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INVESTIGATION OF THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

-

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 18, 1925

UNITED STATES SENATE,
SELECT CoMMITTEE To INVESTIGATE
THE Bureav or INterNan Revexve,
Washington, D, €,

The committee met at 10 o'clock a. m., pursuant to catl of the
chairman.

Present : Senators Couzens (presiding) and Watson.

Present also: Mr. L. C. Manson, of counsel for the committee:
Mr. George G. Box, chief auditor for the committee.

Present on behalf of the Bareau of Internal Revenue: My, A, W.
Gregy, special assistant to the Secretary of the Treasurv: Mr, (.
R. Nash, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue; M.
James M. Williamson, attorney, office of solicitor, Bureau of In-
ternal Revenue; and Mr. F. T. Eddingfield, engineer, Bureau of
Internal Revenue.

The Cramymax. You may proceed. Mr. Manson.

Mr. Maxsox. This is the matter of the settlement of the tax of
the corporation known as George Bros.. of Pittsburgh, for the years
1917 to 1921, inclusive.

The amount of tax involved in the difference between the addi-
tional tax assessed by the bureau, or proposed to be assessed by the
bureaun, according to certain A-2 letters which will be offered in
the record, and the amount actually assessed, is $158.137.23.

The point involved is the matter of deductions for the compensa-
tion of the officers of this corporation.

It appears that all of the stock of this corporation was held by
five salaried officers. These officers had fixed salaries, which ranged
from $2,000 a vear to $4,200 a year. These salaried officers had an
arrangement with the corporation, under which the corporation was
to distribute 10 per cent of its net earnings as dividends.

Senator Warson., What is the business of this taxpayer, may I
ask vou?

Mr. Maxsox. The real estate business—real estate brokers, rentals,
ete,

Senator Warsox, And where are they located?

Mr. Maxsox. Pittsburgh, Pa.

Senator Warson. All right.

Mr. Maxson. Their arvangement provided that 10 per cent of the
earnings of the corporation should be distributed as dividends and
that the balance, the 90 per cent of the earnings, should then be
distributed among these four officers in proportion to the amount

of stock that each of the officers held.
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It was claimed by the corporation that this distribution of 90
per cent of the earnings constituted additional salaries or compensa-
tion for the officers of the corporation, and, as such, was deductible
expense, which would T ave the carnings of the corporation only
10 per cent of the actual net earnings, with the result that for the
vear 1917 they returned an income vpon which a tax of $23% was
Jevied, and for the yvears 1918, 1919, 1920, and 1921 they returned
no taxable income.

The facts are stated in a memorandum prepared by Mr. Box, chief
andhtor

The Coamrsas, Of the committee?

Mr. Maxsox (continuing). Of the committee.  This memorandnm
i~ brief, and T will read it: v

Mancn 12, 10925,
In re: George Bros, Pittshurgh, Pa.

Thix taxpayer is a corporation, organized under the laws of the State of
Peunsyivania in 1902, and s engaged In the real estate and rentingg business,

It submitted an income-tax return for the year 1917 which showed a tax
Hability of $23K,

On August 18, 1922, Revenue Agents A, H. Toothman and . W, Piues, of
the Pittsburgh (Pa.) distriet, submitted a report of thelr investigations of
1917 recommending an additional tax of $4,852.72. The ftems involved which
rexulted in this additional tax were a donation to the Red Cross of $300 (not
allowable as a deduction to & corporation) and payments aggregating $35,005.2
to four oficers of the corporation. who were its only stockholders,

The records indicate that in 1910 the taxpayer agreed with its officers that
It wonld pay them salaries in stated sums, and after payments of 10 per cent
af the carnings of the corporution were distributed at the end of cach quarter
of cach year ax dividends the balance, or 90 per cent, would be paid to them
us additional compensation in proportion to the stock owned by them at that
time,

The agents decided that these payments were dividends and not additional
compensation, and that, theretfore, the corporation was taxable on all of such
payments as income.  They also reported that in their opinfon, in view of the
fact that the corporation did not buy or sell or deal in real estate and no
invested eapital was needed exeept for contingeneles, that it was entitled to the
benetit of personnl service elassitication under seetion 209 of the revenue aet
of 17T,

Thix fenture of the vevenue agents’ report was overruled by the bureau, and
jx set forth only to expinin the Lwrge disparity between the amounts of addi-
tional taxes recominended by the agents and by the bureau. The report in
quastion wag forwaided by the revenue agent in charge at Plittsburgh and
received in the publie utilities and personal service section of the personal audit
division of the Internal Revenue Bureaw on November 6. 1922, On January
11. 1923, an A-2 letter wias matled to the taxpayer notifyl: £ him of a proposed
additional assessment of $21.760.97.

This A-2 letter is marked “Exhibit A" and is offered as a part
of our presentation of this matter.

In this letter the burean advised the taxpayer that its claim for
assessment at the 8 per cent rate under the provisions of section 209,
revenue act of 1917, was denied, and the taxes were computed at
the rate provided by the 1917 act for corporations having invested
capital.

!;‘he taxpayer requested a conference, which was arranged for Feb-
ruary 13, 1923, at which time Mr. L. E. Rusch as)]peared as the
taxpayer’s representative. The conferees reported that Mr. Rusch
stated that owing to the limited amount of time he had had he
had not been able to furnish a brief, but that he would submit one
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prior to Mareh 12, 1923, and he was advised a conference would he
arranged for 11 o'clock on that date.

The minutes of this conference are offered 1w Fxhibit B.

On Mareh 5. 1923, the brief was filed in this case by the taxpayer.

Mr. Rusch. who vepresented the taxpaver in this case. was formerly
assistant chief of the cousolidated veturns subdivision of the special
audit division in the Income Tax Unit. from which position he re-
stgned on November 15, 1922,

It will be noted that that was just a short time hefore Mr. Rusch
appears as this taxpayer’s representative, and the power of attorney
is offered as one of the exhibits, which shows that within two weeks
after Mre. Ruseh vetived as the assistant chief of the consolidated
returns subdivision he had a power of attoriiey as representative of
the taxpaver in this case.

The file of the ecase contains a power of attorney exeented by the
taxpaver in favor of William A Seifert: Reed, Smith, Shaw. and
MeClay: and Louis E. Ruseh, on November 28, 1922 (see Exhibit
(). 13 days subsequent to the latters resignation from the Bureau
of Internal Revenue.

The records fail to show that the Maveh 12, 1923, conference was
held. but on that date Mr. Rusch addressed a letter to the Commis-
sioner of Internal Revenue requesting that the entive file of the tax-
payer be forwarded to the consolidated returns division (of which
he was formerly assistant chief). as there was a guestion of aflilia-
tions for consideration.  (See Exhibit D)  On the same date D,
W. Bell. chief of the public utilities and personal service seetion.
referred the file to the head of the consolidated division by letter
(see Exhibit E). and also advised the coliector of internal revenue
at Pittsburgh that additional facts had been presented sinee the ad-
ditional assessment of $21,687.96 was sent for schedule to the list,
and that he would be advised of the final decision at an early date.
(See Iixhibit I.)

Shortly thereafter. and prior to Mareh 300 1923, a certiticate of
overassessment  (the file copy of which was undated) was sent to
taxpayer notifving it that the arsessment of additional taxes made
m burean letter of January 110 1923, was not on the proper basis:
that its tax liability would be redetermined. and that they found an
overassessient of $21,760.97, the amount which had been assessed on
March 5, 1923, (See Exhibit (i.)

The effect of that was to reverse the former action in levying this
additional assessment, and the additional assessment was based upon
the determination that the allowanee of 90 per cent of earnings ax
additional compensation to the officers was not a proper deduction.

On Marceh 30, 1923, the collector of internal revenue at Pittshurgh
was advised by-Deputy Commissioner Chatterton that a certificate of
overassessment had been issued for $21.760.97 for the purpose of
cancellation in entirety of the additional assessment of that amount.
(See Exhibit H.)

The auditor, Mr, C. F. Pollock. who handled the case in the consoli-
dated returns section, was advised by his chief (Mr. H. L. Robinson.
chief of section B) to allow the salaries as deductions from income,
and in forwarding the ease to the reviewer, attached a memorandum
in pencil to indicate his authority for arriving at the deduction.
(See Exhibit 1)
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By allowing this additional compensation as a deduction from in-
come nothing remained on which to assess additional tax except the
$300 disallowed by revenue agent on account of donations. and ac-
cordingly on July 17, 1923, an A-2 letter was mailed to the taxpaver
advising him of additional tax of $18 (6 per cent of the lnst above-
wentioned item), and the case for the vear 1917 was closed on that
basis.  (See Fxhibit J.)

Under date of June 28, 1922, Revenue Inspector Pitts, of the
Pittsburgh, Pa., district submitted « report of his investigation of
the taxpayer for the years from 1918 to 1921, recommending assess.
ment of additional taxes in the following amounts:

| R1 B o e e e e e e - o o R21,.090. 5
L OO 1 S 1 11 Sl i
1920 . . e 44, 980, 52
] VOO & E O 11 |

There were no taxes paid by the corporation for any of these
vears on submission of its original returns.  The agents state:

The books of the company show no profit in any of the taxable years, This
is eaused by the fact that when the quarterly profits are arrived at 10 per
cent is distributed as dividends and the remaining 90 per cent distributed a-
increase In compensation to the stoekholders who are also the oflicers of the
company,  This distribution is disallowed as expense throughout this report
and classed as dividends,  (See Exhibit K.)

He also invites the attention of the bureau to the fact that the
salaries of the oflicers are low and are regarded by them as drawing
accounts chiefly, and recommends that an adjustment be made on
this account.

Notwithstanding the fact that the payment of the 90 per cent of
the profits of the corporation for the year 1917 to its officers (who
are the only stockholders) was decided by the burcau to be addi-
tional compensation and not dividends, prior to July 17, 1923, the
burean advised the taxpayer by A2 letter, dated November 21,
1923, that these items were considered as a distribution of profit«
and proposed additional tax aggregating $142,584.36,  (See Ex-
hibit 1..) That is, as to the years after having determined that
this extra compensation was 2 deductible salary for the year 1917,
for the years 1918, 1919, 1920, and 1921 the bureau determined that
tliey were not deductible salaries and proposed an additional tax of
$142,5%4.36. based upon a disallowance of that deduction,

The taxpayer tilm\ a brief under date of December, 1923, protest-
ing the proposed assessment of additional tax above mentioned, and
stubmitted copies of agreements of ofticers dated June 3, 1910, indi-
ating that the corporation agreed to pay them an annual compensa-
tion consisting of a fixed salury and a percentage of the net earnings
of the corporation.  The inspector’s report failed to show the fixed
salaries ot the officers, although he refers to the low salaries paid
them.

The copies of agreements attached to the brief indicate that the
fixed salavies for 1910 were as follows:

W. D. George, president.. .. e e e e e =t = o 84, 200
C. 8. Chubb, vice president . e 3, 600
W. A, Feltyberger, secretary.. oo e e i —————— e 300300
FoR Guthrie, treasirer e v e 3,000

W L. Davis, renting @ent . oo e e EALLY
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A conference was granted the taxpayer on January 29, 1924
Among other things, the conferces stated in their report that the
taxpayer claimed that its agreements were entered into from year
to year in relation to salavies taken, and were granted the privilege
of presenting further information relating to this matter. This
report contains a note, evidently written subsequently, to the effect
that the taxpayer could not furaish copies of new contracts, as
promised, and recommended **that salaries be allowed as taken in
view of the personal element in the income.”

A-2 Jetters were written on March 10 and 15, 1924, which allowed
the payments of 90 per cent as additional compensation to the
officers, and proposed assessment of additional taxes as follows:

1S . oo L et e e e em e £376. 30
O e e e e e o B GTRGY
O e e e ————— e 2, 381 86
T e e e 1,751, 26

. By deciding that these payments were additional compensation
instead of dividends, this taxpayver saved $158,137.23 in taxes, as
shown by the following statement :

Additional | Additional
tax proposed | tax col-
by A-2letters| lected

R SN IV

. e e e $238,00 | $21,760.97 $18.00
1018, .- . None. 21, 500, 44 376. 30
None. 35,305, 39 1, 678, 68
None. 46, 980, 52 2, 383, 84
None. 38, 618. 01 1,751, 26

Totw.. ... ... ... RO PR 104, 345. 33 6, 208. 10

Your Original
tax

A statement is attached (see Exhibit M) showing the percentage
of stockholdings by the different officers, and the amounts paid from
1917 to 1921, inclusive, to each of them,

W. D. George, president, transferred 714 shares of stock on July
1. 1918, to W. AL Feltyberger, seeretavy-treasurer.  On July 1, 1920,
the former transferred 5 shares of stock to G. W. Feltyberger, assist-
ant secretary.  The amount of earnings paid to these three officers
changed in the same proportion as their stockholdings.

There is nothing in the records to indicate whether or not the ofhi-
cers performed a greater or less amount of services after the trans-
fers, but this fact is evidence that the payments called additional
compensation, based entively upon the stockboldings of the officers,
were in reality distribution of profits or dividends and not compen-
sation for services rendered.

The taxpayer claimed that the agreements with its officers were
made long before the excess profits tux law was thought of, and
therefore could not have been made with a view of evasion of the
taxes provided for by that law: however, the first agreement, made
under date of Jannary 3, 1910, was subsequent to the corporation
excise tax law of June 5, 1909, which provided for a tax of 1 per
cent on corporation income.

Senator Warson, What reason is given by the department for
holding one way in two or three yvears and another way in the other
years?
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Mr. MawsoN, The final outcome of that as to all of these years
is that they hold this distribution of 90 per cent was a payment of
salaries, and as such is deductible from income instead of u distribu-
tion of earnings. That is held as to all the years.

Senator Warson. As to all of the years?

Mr. Maxson. Yes.

The Cramman. But they did rule two ways?

Senator WarsoN, Yes; and I was wondering what the reason was.

Mr. Maxson. 1 pointed out that it was proposed fo assess the
1917 tax and that action was reversed, but after that conclusion had
been reversed it was then proposed to assess the 1918, 1919, 1920,
and 1921 taxes, and that subsequently that action was veversed, o
that the same action was taken with respect to all of the years. 1
submit that if the law with respect to’the deduction for salaries of
corporate officers is to receive the construction that has been given
in this case it is optional with any corporation whose stock is held
by its officers as to whether it pays any corporate tax or not. Any
corporation whose stock is held by a small group can make an
arrangement with the stockholders whereby such stockholders will
receive compensation, which shall consist of 100 per cent of earn-
ings. I can see no particular reason in. this case why they did not
take the whole thing. If 90 per cent of the earnings can be dis-
tributed, as they were in this case, and thereby the payment of a
tax is evaded, it is very easy to distribute 100 per cent of the
earnings.

Senator Warson. Have yvou stated anywhere, Mr. Manson, whut
this made these salaries to these people?

Mlg(fo Manson. Yes; I did state that the salaries ranged up to

, (]

The Cuairman, Noj; Senator Watson asked you what it made
after adding all of these distributions.

Senator Warson, Yes. :

Mr. Manson. I did not state that, but the exhibits show it here.

Mr. Box. That is the last exhibit, Exhibit M, I think. That is
just the distribution of dividends.

The Crarkman. Which would be added, of course?

Mr. Ma~son. Yes. In 1917 the dividends distributed to W. D.
George amounted to $16,6561.23; to F. S. Guthrie, $9,640.18: (o
W. A. Feltyberger, $7,011.04; and to W. L. Davis, $1,752.76,

Senator Watson. That is the distributive share of each in addi-
tion to their salary?

Mr. Manson. In addition to the fixed salary.

Senator Warson. What was the capitalization of that company?

Mr. Mangon. I think it was $16,000, was it not?

Mr. Box. I believe it was. It was very small.

Mr, Manson. $16,000.

S%ngator Warson. And what was the volume of business trans-
acted ¥

Mr. Manson. I do not know the volume of business, but in 1921
the total amount of earnings distributed was $84,054.86.

The CrarmaN. Whi-! represented 90 per cent of the earnings?

Mr. Manson. Well, these payments made to the officers repre-
sented the balance of earnings made by the corporation after the
distribution of 10 per cent dividends. \
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The net income in 1917 was $39,321.80. In 1918, 90 per cent of
their net earnings was $33,926.41; in 1919, 90 per cent was $77,743.14;
in 1920, 90 per cent was $100,409.72; and in 1921, 90 per cent was
$84,054.86.

The Cuammax. In your examination, Mr. Box, have you found
any policy with respect o treating these distributions of earnings
in this manner?

Mr. Box. I have not, Mr. Chairman, but the usual procedure in
the field is where u distribution is made by a corporation on a certain
percentage, if it is in the same proportion as the stocks held by the
oflicers in a close corporation it is held as dividends and not addi-
tional compensation.

The Coamman., Mr. Gregg, do you want to say something at this
time?

Mr. Grece. Yes, sir. 1 want to ask several questions if T may.

What is the criticism, if there is a general criticism based on this
case?

Mr, MansoN. My criticism of this case is that it is manifest from
the statement of facts that this is a distribution of earnings among
stockholders, and not salaries.

Mr. Grece. Without conceding that, does that amount to a gen-
eral criticism of the bureau, or is it a criticism of the settlement of
this one particular case? I mean, is it claimed that this represents
what is usually done in the settlement of similar cases? Does
counsel for the committee claimn that, under the rulings, the general
rulings of the bureau, the general precedents—and there are hun-
dreds on this very point—that a close corporation may, by paying
out its earnings as salaries, evade the corporate income tax?

Mr. Mansox. It is manifest, in any case where the rule is applied
that was applied in this case, they can evade the tax by this method
of distributing their earnings. To what extent this practice has
heen permitted by the bureau I am unable to say.

Mr. Grecs. Well, Mr. Chairman, I think I can show very con-
clusively that it is not possible for a corporation, by the payment of
its earnings as salaries, to evade the income tax,

I would like at this time to give you a brief statement of the
history of this questior: in the bureau.

The Cramyan, Let me ask you at this point, Mr. Gregg, whether,
in view of that general statement of yvours, you think this case was
properly settled ?

Mr. Grege. 1 do not know, siv. T can not tell without going into
the facts more fully. I will get to this case in just a moment, if I
may.

The CHarMAN, Yes.

Mr. Greea. I would like to give you the general procedure.

The Cuairman. All right.

Mr. Gres. When the 1917 excess-profits tax was passed, this
question for the first time became an acute onc. The act provided
for the deduction by a cmgoration, in computing its net income, of
salaries paid to officials and employees of the corporation. We held
that this meant only true salaries, and that if, in fact, the amount
so distributed was not true salary but a distribution of earnings and
profits, it was not deductible by the corporation and should be
treated as a dividend.

92019—25—p1 172
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We had: very slim legal grounds for our ruling, under the 1917
act, and we went to couit on it. In the Philadelphia Knitting Mills
case, the circuit court of appeals held with us. That court sustained
our position and certiorari was denied by the Supreme Court, the
cirenit court holding that, under the 1917 act, we had no right to

uestion the reasonableness of a salary in a given instance; that
that was a matter entirely within the jurisdiction of the board of
directors of the corporation; but if, as a matter of fact, it was not a
salary, but a distribution of earnings and profits, and we could <o
show by the facts, then it was not deductible.

As a result of that dificulty under the 1917 act, we came to Con-
gress when the 1918 act was under consideration and asked them to
put in the act specifically a provision that the only salaries de-
ductible by a corporation were a reasonable allowance for the com-
pensation of officers and employees. That gave us a right for the
first time to test the reasonableness of a given allowance,

Senator WarsoN. Was that incorporated in the 1918 act?

Mr. Grece. Yes: that was incorporated in the 1918 act, and has
been continued in every act since then in the corporation provisions.

One of the most troublesome questions that we have had in ad-
ministering the excess-profits tax law has been this question, more
particularly under the later acts, as to the reasonableness of sala-
ries in a particular case. You can appreciate the difficulty of our
sitting here in Washington and passing judgment on the reasonable-
ness of salaries paid in every type of business and industry.

The usual procedure was this: If the salary was increased in
1917 or 1918, when the question first became important, the increase
would be entirely disallowed in the field if it bore any relation at all
to stock ownership. It would be disallowed in its entirety as a
distribution of earnings and profits. Then, in Washington, we
wounld examine 1t to see whether or not we could sustain our position
that it was a distribution of earnings and not salary.

I do not think there has been a single point that the committee on
appeals and review has been called npon to pass upon more fre-
quently than upon that particular question. and it has come down
to approximately this point in our general rulings, and I will be
prepared to cite to the committee-prcbably a hundred precedents
on.this in decisions of the committee on appeals and review: If the
salaries are paid to nonstockholders, we allow them, unless it is to
the wife of a majority stockholder, or something of that sort. If
it is to any person entirely outside of the corporation, we allow it as
salary. If it is salary paid under a contract entered into prior to
the income tax laws, we almost always allow it. Sometimes we do
not. If, however, there is an increase voted to the stockholders after
the rates became high, when it became to the advantage of the cor-
poration to do so, and if that increase bears any relation whatever to
stock ownership, then we disallow it in full.

That is a statement of the general attitude of the bureau, and 1
can cite you hundreds of cases showing it.

I have just one case in mind now where, on January 1, 1917, a
corporation—as I remember it, it was the New York Talking Ma-
chine Co.—had permitted the purchase of its stock by its employees.
They continued as fixed salaries for 1917, they voting their own
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salaries, and they were the same salaries which had been paid in the
previous year when the stock was owned by outsiders. At the end
of the year they voted themselves a bonus in proportion to stockhold-
ing, which was in some cases as much as five times the salary they
had been receiving. They claimed that that was a deduction. We
disallowed it. T handied the case personally, and that is the reason
I remember it so distinctly. We disallowed it in full, on the theory
that there we had a test of the value of their services by what was
paid in the preceding year, and there was ncthing to show that
thelr services were any more valuable in 1917, when they were pay-
ing their own salaries, than in 1916, when the stock was held by
outsiders.

That has been the general attitude of the bureau on this entire
question. T wanted to bring that out to show that, if there is a
criticism here it is a criticism of the settlement of this particular
case, rather than a criticism of the settlement based on the general
attitude of the bureau on this question,

The Cuamyax. In that commection T would like to say that this
oceurs to me, not only in the discussion that has taken place heve,
but in my contact with the work as it has been going along, that
notwithstanding that this may not be a general criticism of the
policy of the bureau with respect to this kind of cases. I think it
clearly indicates the possibilities of individuals ruling differently in
specifie cases from \\'llmt the general poliey of the bareau is,

Mr. Grrae, Yes, siv; that is quite true: it is very possible.

The Cuamyax, I think it is equally important, Mr. Gregg, that
the bureaz and the public, if you please, should know that these
particular things can be done and are done: and T do not think the
answer to Mr. Gregg's question was conclusive as to the reasons for
“the reporting of this particular case. In other words, yon inferred
that we may not be devoting our time to an investigation of the
policy of the burean, but trying to find fault with a specific case,
and even if the latter were so it would be justifiable to investigate
the administration of a particulav case and show the possibilities in
a particnlar case, even thongh it was an exceptional instance.

Mr. Maxsoxn. There is one other thing that T wanted to brin,: out
here.

Senator Warsox. When was this case decided ¢

Mr. Maxson. The A-2 letters here are dated March 10 and 15,
1924,

There is one other fact that T want to call particular attention to
here. and that is the fact that an assistant chief of the consolidated
returns sections resigned. Thirteen days later he appeared with a
power of attorney for this taxpaver. This case was pending in an-
other division. His first act was to request that it be transferred to
the division of which he had been assistant chief, and that the first
action reversing the——

Senator Warson. Was the transfer made?

Mr. Maxsox. Yes: that the first action reversing the policy with
respect to the treatment of this kind of a reduction in reference to
thix particular ease took place immediately after that.

The Cuamymaxn, I would like te ask Mr. Grege if he does not think
that there is some justification for a criticism of this particular case,
in view of the history surrounding it?
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Mr. Griac. 1 was just coming to that.

Is there anything to indicate that Mr. Rusch. who hendled the case
after he got out of the department. had any personal knowledge of
the ease while he was in the department?

Mr. Maxsox. T do not know anything about that.

Mr. Gueca. I think that is quite material,

Mr. Maxson. 1 do not consider it at all material.

Mr. Box. There is not.

Mr. Grrce, There is not, Mr. Box?

Mr. Box. No.

My, Greca, Then you come to this, Senator-—and it is something
you know exists, and we all know exists, that men who get out « . the
departiment are permitted to appear in cases if they have had no
personal knnwlngv of the ease while it was pending in the depart-
ment, and if they ave not. when they take the case, handling a claim
for refund against the Government. That is the situation at the
present time.  Tf Congress wants to remedy that, of course it can
do so.

The Caamyan. T understand, but do you place any significance
in the fact that the record was transferved to the division that he
had formerly been assistant chief of, and where he was'in close touch
and familiar with all of the ewployees?

Mr, Grece. Not as T heard the statement made by counsel for the
committee. Tt was said that the case involved a question of aflilia-
tion.

Mr. Maxson. Well, it was raled that it did not.

Mr. Grecs, He got the transfer on the ground, as he alleged. that
a question of affiliation was involved.

Mr. Maxson. The departiaent ruled that it was not, but instead
of then transferring the case back to the division where it originally
was, the division which secured jurisdiction on the ground that the
question of affiliation was involved retained jurisdiction after it had
heen determined that the question of affiliation was not involved.

Mr. Guree. Was it determined that there was no question of
aftiliation involved., or was it determined that there was no afliliation
involved?

Mr. Maxrcox. Well, that is a distinetion without a difference.

‘Mr. Greee. T do not think so. Here is my point, Mr. Chairman:
If there was a question of affiliation involved in that case, no matter
how the question was subsequently decided, there was only one sec-
tion in the bureau that had authority to pass on that question, and
that is the consolidated returns section. Yf.such a question was in-
volved, it was entirely proper and necessary that the case go to that
section.  When it gets there for the determination of the question of
affiliation. the section takes jurisdiction over it and disposes of the
CRse.

Senator Warson. Whether there be affiliation or not?

Mr. Greae. Yes, sir. So I think it was material whether there was
a question of affiliation involved in the case.

now want to answer what the chairman said to me. I did not
state what I did say with any irtention of implying that there was no
reason for the committee investigating individual cases which were
incorrectly settled. What I did want to bring out was that that
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eriticism was a criticism of an individual ease, and not a eriticism of
the general poliey of the department. This particulur case ix entively
new tome, T did not know that the case was coming up this morning.
amdd 1 thought we were to have another ease. and 1 have nothing on it
except what has been stated here.

Is there anything in the files showing why this stock was trans-
ferred between these different officers of the company, which T think
vou said was in 1917 and 19182

Mr. Maxson. Not that 1 know of.

My, Grrce, May T ask Mr. Box as to that¢?

Mr. Box. There is nothing in the files showing why the transfer
was made.

Mr. Grece. Was there anything shewing a consideration for the
transfer?

Mr. Box. No; it shows that the transfer was made about the 1st
of July; that is, the income changed from the different officers in
the third quarter of each year. There were two transfers, one of
seven and a half shares and one of five shares, and cach time the
transfer was made the income for the succeeding quarter changed in
proportion.

Mr. Manson., We merely cite that to show that this distribution
was in no way based upon the services rendered by these officers, but
that the slightest change in stock holdings, even in a case of five
shares in one instance and seven and & half shares in the other, was
immediately reflected in the distribution.

The Cuamrman. I think the committee understood that.

Mr. Greas. We will go into this case thoroughly and submit
rzply to the committee, but these facts occur to me right now, to
which I would like to draw attention:

‘This company earned a net income, as counsel for the committee
says, of approximately $90,000 in one year—ranging from $35,0060
up to $90,000. The company had practically no capital. The reve-
nue agent has classified it as a personal service corporation, one
using no capital. The salaries of the officers had been the same since
1910—that 1s, the basic salaries—the president getting $4,000 a year.
The services of five officers who without capital can produce up to
$90,000 a year income are, I think, on the face of things, worth much
move than $4,000 a year.

Going back to 1910, when the excise tax of a corporation was 2
thing that no one paid any attention to, the company had adopted
the policy of basing salaries, in addition to these drawing accounts,
which were practically nominal, on the earnings of the company--
something that is not at aii unusual in a case where the income of a
company is attributable almost entirely to the activities of its stock-
holders and ofticers. This policy was continued up through the tax
years, There was no change made after the high tax years in con-
nection with this policy. I think it is obvious from that statement
of the facts that they had paid salaries before the high tax years in
excess of these basic nominal salaries and that they were entitled in
the high tax years to a deduction for salaries in excess of thosc
amounts. Now, whether they were entitled to the entire 90 per cent
is u different question ; but it seems to me that if that was a reason-
able salary for the services rendered by those men, they were probably
entitled to it.
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That i~ a quostion that we will have to go into {o see whether the
salaries were peasonable, considering the services that they per-
formed. But I do not think the case, on its face, shows that it is
wrong, The thing that T think-is hardest to explain is as to the
transfers of the stock in 1917, and that is the reason 1 asked Mr. Box
the question.  Unless there is some explanation of that, it is a very
weak point: but I do not think the fact that the salaries were based
on carnings affects the case materially, when the earnings of the com-
any were attributable almost entively to the activities of these stock.
lmhlvrs and officers.

Mr. Maxsox. On that point 1T would like to say if the compensa-
tion of the officers is to be increased and decreased in proportion to
earnings, as occurs sometimes, that that policy can be justified. There
vyour basic salary determines the increase or decrease,or the basis of
your increase or decrease.  In this instance, however, the basic sal-
aries have nothing whatever to do with the increase or decrease, that
having been predicated entirely upon the stockholding. For in-
stance, if these officers received a honus of 25 per cent or 30 or 50, or
may be a hundred per cent, in addition to their basic salaries, when
the earnings permitted it, that is one thing: but to have the earnings
of the company distributed in identically the sume way and in iden-
tically the same proportions as they would be distributed were they
denominated dividends is a clear evasion of the law.

My point is that if this practice, or if the rule followed in this case,
could be generally applied. vou might just as well vepeal the corpo-
ration tax.

The Cuarmax. I think therve is a difference there, Mr. Manson.
I think Mr. Gregg’s point is well taken: that if, prior to the income
tax act, these same percentages of distribution occurred, and have
continued to oceur after the excess-profits tax and other taxes have
been made effective. that is a different case than if it was as you
stated, only adopted for the purpose of tax evasion.

Senator Warson. 1 think so, too, Mr. Chairman.

The Cuamvan. Yes.

Senator Warsox. That line of demarcation seems very clear.

The Cuairman. But we ought to get the facts in the case.

« Senator WaTsoN. Yes,

Mr., Greca. We will look into the case and see whether the salaries
paid these people were reasonable as compared with the services per-
formed.

The CHamman, Yes: I think we ought to have the facts.

Mr. Grese. Yes; we will get that for you.

Mr, Maxsox. In that connection, we have $35,000 in one year and
$100,000 in another,

The CrairmaN. Have you anything else to-day, Mr. Mansen?

Mr. MaxsoN. That is all T have this morning.

Senator Warsox. Have you concluded, then, not to treat this as a
personal-service corporation?

Mr. Mansos. Yes.

Senator Watson. They got away from that idea; they had origi-
‘nally treated it on that basis?

Mr. Mansox. The field agent’s recommendation that the claim be
treated as a personal-service corporation was rejected.

(The exhibits submitted by Mr. Manson are as follows:)
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Exmmir A
STATEMENT IN RE GEORGE BROS,, PITTRBURGH, P'A,, 1017

Additional tax, $21,087.9¢.

After careful consideration of the facts submitted, your cluim for assess-
ment of the 8 per cent rate under the provisions of section 200, revenue act of
1017, Is denied, sinee the department, under the law, deems that yvour busiiwss
i one in which the use of capital is essential and the profits can not be
axcribed primarily to the personal services of the principal owners,

NET INCOME

Net income reportedo . o e e e £3 966. 68

P"lus:
Donations disallowed - .. e 300. 00
Distribution of profits o e 35, 065, 29
Net Income adjusted oo 39, 321, 86

Donations, gifts, gratuities, ote., ave held not to be operating expenses, and
therefore are not allowable deductions from gross income,

Nt CArtings £or the FORT - - oo oo $39, 321. 89
Less tentatlve QX o e 21, 237, 30
Enrnings availuble for dividend paymentso ... 15, 084. 59

ADJUBTMENT TO INVESTED CAPITAL FOR EXCESS DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

Dividend paid Mav, 3. e $49, 987, 54

Available carnings o A0te e 4, 472,53

Dividend paid in excess of available earndngs oo 5, 515. 31

ptmmmirints e smrrreeed

$5,015.31 prorated for 9+ months. e 4, 151. 31
Dividends pald June 30. .o $0, 987, 84
Available earnings from March 31 to June 30 (3 months) . 4, 521, 15
Dividends paid in excess of available earnings....__ 0, 466. 69

$5,466.69 provated for Gyl ymonths. . e 2,748.53
Dividends padd Sept. 30 e - ), 987. 84

Available earnings from June 30 to Sept. 30 (3 months) - 4,521, 15

Dividends paid in excess of available earnings. ... 5, 446, 69

$5,466.69 prorated for 3 § months. .. ... ———— e o 1,381.86

Dividends pald Dec, 31 e 9, 987. 84

Avatlable earnings from Sept. 30 to Dee. 31 (3 months) ... 4 521,15
Dividends paid in excess of avallable enrnings____ 5, 466, 69

$5,466.69 prorated for ‘rmonth. e 14.70
Total deduetion for dividends. oo 8, 206. 40

INVESTED CAPITAL

Capital stock and sUrplas. . oot $25, 0060. 00
Deductions :
1918 income tax provated. .o $38. 41
Adjustment for dividend payments_ ________________ 8, 298. 40
e 8, 344, 81
Invested eapltal .o e 16, 665, 19
T per cent of invested eapltal... . —aeee 1, 166. 56
Exemptlon o e 3, 000. 00

Total AeqUCtion. ... e e e o = e e 4, 166. 56
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L T T T - [PPSR —

Exeess.

fate per cent eapitul Income profits Balance Hute ° RENA
’ credit e
Per cen |
$2,400.78 32, 499, 7% 2
833,20 833,90 |- 25 L L.
833, 26 8332 | .. 5 ...
1,933,22 L8] 812 10 45 - $500.K3
33,8237 ... ..., 34,822,397 60 1 20, 203, 42
39,321, 89 : 4,166.56 | 35,155.33 1 .......... ; 20,893, 25
Total excess profits tax..__. .. . . L _________ $20,808 25
Net Income. e e $39, 321. 89
Less excess profits tax-. .. _.. B et s 20, 893. 25
Amount subject to 4 per cent and 2 per cent.___ 1R, 428, ¢4
Tax at 2 per cent. . ————————— 368. 67
TAX QL 4 PO CONME o ettt e e e 37,15
Total tax Mability. 21, 998, 97
Tax previously assessed .. e * 238.00
TOtAY e e femn 21,760, 97

Exuaipir B

TAXPAYER'S CONFERENCE

Taxpayer: George BDros.
Address: Pittsburgh, ’a.
Represented by: Mr. E. R. Rusch, Washington, D. C.

Mr. Rusch appeared for the taxpayer and requested that the conference
arranged for February 13 be deferred to March 12, 1923. The representative
was requested to furnish further evidence relative to the various items in
the taxpayer’s return, specifically, deduction for taxes, $245.75, bills and notes
receivable and payable, interest paid and the conneetion of this taxpayer with
the partnership, Edwards, George & Co.

Representative stated that owing to the limited amount of time he had had
he had not been able {o furnish a brief for the couference, but that subse-
quently, prior to March 12, 1923, he would submit a brief signed by the tax-
payer.

The representative was advised that a conference would be arranged for
11.0’clock March 12, 1923,

Interviewed by:

ALBerT B, MiLies,
Auditor,
A. J. BaAKER, Conferee.
D. W. BELL,
Chief P. U. and P. 8. Section.
FERRUARY 13, 1923.

Exmmpir C

Know all men by these presents, that George Bros.,, a corporation of the
srate of Pennsylvania, baving its domicile in the city of Pittsburgh, county of
Allegheny, in said State, has made, constituted, and appointed, and by these
presents does make, constitute, and appoint, William A. Seifert, Reed, Smith,
Shaw & McClay, and Louis E. Rusch true and lawful atterneys for it and its
name, blace, and stead to appear before the Treasurer of the United States,
ilie Commissioner of Internal Revenue, the committee on appeals and review,
sand/or the Income Tax Unit of the Internal Revenue Bureau in connection
with any and all matters appertaining to or having to do with the 1916 and
1917 income and profits taxes of this company, hereby giving and granting unto
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pur said attorneys full and whole power and authority in and abowt the
premises; and generally all and every act and nets, thing and things, device
and devices, in the iaw whatsoever needful and necessary to be done in and
about the premises, fo  us and in our name to do, execnte, and perform as
large and ampiy, to all intents and purposes, as we might or could do, if
personally present; and an attorney or attorneys under them for the pur-
pose aforesaid, to make and constitute, and the same to remove and revoke at
their pleasure, hereby ratifying and confirming as good and effectunl, In law
and in equity, all that our said attorneys or their substitutes shall lawfully
and legally do by virture hereof.

In witness whereof we have horeunto =et our hands and =eal the 28th day
of November in the year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred and twenty-
twao,

Recorded March 19, 1923, income Tax Unit, administrative division,

Sealed and delivered in the presence of-—

GEORGE Bros,,
By W. D. Grorgk,

President.
Aftest:
fsrarL.} W. A. FEI'TYBERGER,
Keeretary.

Exmisit D

WasHingron, D. C., March 12, 1923,
CoMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D, C.

Sie: Inasmuch as the public-utilities section raised a question of affillation
in connection with George Bros., a corporation in Pittsburgh, Pa., with Ed-
wards, George & Co., it is respectfully requested that the entire file be for-
warded to the consolidated returns subdivision for consideration of the guestion
of afliation.

Yours respectfully,
L. E. HuscH.

Exuisir E
MarcH 12, 1923.
Head, consolidated division: In re George Bros.,, 307 Fourth Avenue, Piits-
burgh, Pa.

Inclosed herewith is the fle of the above-named corporation for the year
1917. The 1917 return was sent for schedule to collector’s list, March 5, 1923.

The file is transferred to you for consideration at the request of the tax-
payer, and with this return should be considered the return of Kdwards,
George & Co.

After careful consideration of the faets submitted the claim of this corpora-
tion to assessment under the provisions of section 209 of the revenue act of
1917 is denied, since the department under the law deems that their business is
one in which the use of capital is essential and the profits can not be ascribed
primarily to the personal services of the principal owners.

Your attention is directed to the carbon copy of a letter forwarded to the
collector under date of March 12, 1923,

F. R. Crure,
Head, Corporation Audit Division.
By D. W. BEL,
Chietf of Bection.
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Exmipir B
Marcre 12, 1023,
COLLECTOR OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Pittsburgh, Pa.:

Reference is made to the return of {ncome of George Bros, 307 Fourth
Avenne, Plttsburgh, Pa,, for 1917,

You are informed that the additional assessment of $21,687.96 was sent for
schedule to the Hst, under date of March §5, 1923, Since then additional facts
huive been prexented in form of a brief and are now being considered.

You will be advised at an early date of the final decision of the bureau.

If you desire to take up the matter further, =same wil bhe expedited Ly
referring to I'f: CA: PU-23006.

“ It. W. CHATTERTON,
Deputy Commisxioner,
By D, W. B,
. Chicf of Seetion.

Exsmr G
GEORGE Bros,,
307 Fourth Arvcnue, Pittshuryh, Pa.

Sigs: This certificate is prepured for the reason that careful consideration
of additional information submitted by you reveals that the assessment of
additional corporation income and e¢xcess profits taxes for 1917 made in bureaun
letter, dated January 11, 1923, was not on the proper basis., Your tax lin-
bility will therefore be redetermined, '

Thix action ix not to be construed as preventing the assessment of any tax
found due upon redetermination of your tax lability.

Amount of overassessment (assessed March 5, 1923), $21,760.97.

(The tile copy of above certificate Ix undated and unsigned, bat the following
appears in pencit at the upper right corter “ To Schedule 47147237

Exmmer [1
Magen 30, 1923,
CoLLECTOR OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Pittshurgh, Pa.:

Reference is made to rveturn of income of George Bros, 307 Fourth Avenue,
Pittsburgh, Pa., for 1917.

You are Informed that a certificate of overassessment has heen issued foy
the amount of the additionul assessment of 321,700 97 sent for schedule to the
lict under date of March D, 1923,

This is for the purpose of cancellation in entivety of the additionnl assess.
ment mentioned, as additional information has been submitted which reveals
that the assexsment was not made on the proper basis and the tax liabllity
will {herefore have to be redetermined,

E. W. CHATTERTON,
Deputy Commissioner
By W, P. B,
Chief of Nubdivision

Exmir 1
REVIEWER ;
Advised by chief of section I} to allow salavies,
C. F. PouLrock.
Jux~E 19, 1923,

Exuamit J
Jurny 17, 1923,
GEorGE BRos.,
v 367 Fourth Aveaue, Pittsburgh, Pa,
S1rs: An examination of your income-tax veturns and of your books of ac-
count and records for the yvear 1917 discloses an udditional tax labillty for
the year 1917 aggregating $18, as shown in detail in the attached statement.




INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE 3837

In accordance with the provisions of =ection £50(d) of the revenue act of
1921 you are greanted 30 days within which to file an appeal and show cause
or reasons why this tax or deficlency should not be paid.  No particular form
of appeal is required, but if filed it must set forth specifieally the exceptions
upan which it Is taken, shall be under oath, contain a statement that it s
not for the purpose of delay, and the facts and evidence upen which you rely
must be fully stated.  The appeul, if filed, must be addressed to the Commis-
sioner of Internal Revenue, Washington, D, ., for the specific attention of
1T SA:CR:B-CFI, and will be referred to the Income Tax Unit before
transmittal to the ngency designated for the hearing of such appeals.

You may, if you desire, request a conference before the Income Tax Unit
in connection with the appeal, to be held within the period prior to the ex-
piration of five days after the time prescribed for the filing of the appeal. If
the Income Tax Unit Is unable to concede the points ralsed in your appeal, it
will be transmitted, together with the recommendation of the Income Tax Unit,
to sueh ageney as the commissioner may designate for final consideration,

Where a taxpayer has been given an opportunity te appeal and has not
done s, as set forth above, and an assessment has been made, or where a tax-
payver has appealed and an assessment in accordance with the final deeision
on =<uch appeal has been made, no ¢laim in abatement of the assessment will be
entertained.

'ayment should not be made until a bili ix received from the Collector of
Internnl Revenue for your district, and remittance shonid then be made to him.

Respectfully,
J. G, Bricuat, Deputy Commissioner.
By L. 1. Lousmaxy, Chief of Sudbdivision.

Sehedule 1---Net income

Net income as disclosed by revenue agent's report, dated Aug, 18,

B e i i i m e e 3D, 2T, RO
AN COPFOCOM e e e e e e e e e 4, 206, 68
DeAUETON . o e e e e 35, 055. 21

(a) Distribution of carnings, $35,0505.21.
REABON FOR CHANGE

() The action of the unit in disallowing salaries, as shown in bureau letter
dated January 11, 1923, is hereby reversed.

Nehedule 2—-Compuiation of total tar, 1817

Net income (schedule 1), $4,264. 88,

Tax
Taxable at 2 per cent ($4266.68) - v o ———— $85. 33
Taxable at 4 per cent ($4.266.68) .o oo e 170. 67
TOtAl tAX e e e e e 256. 00
Previonsly gssessed. .o o it a e ——— 238.00
Additional tax to e @8ReSReHo . e e 18. 00

As the credit for excess.profits tax is in excess of the taxable net income,
the computation of invested capital is not shown.

Statement of returns eramined and resulting tar labilitp

Returns examined :
Georgze Bros., Plittsburgh, Pa.—
O o ettt e e o e e o e e e 1017
)T 11 YU O U U OO 1031

Tax TLiability:

George Rros,, Pittsburgh, Pa.—
N AT e e e e 7 o e i e e e e 1917

AQBIONAY BN et e e e e e e s et m e $18
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The revenue agent’s yeport dated August 180 19220 and vour hrief dated
March 15, 1923, have heen made the basis of adjustment~ which sre fuliy oy
plained in attached Sehedules 1 and 2,

Exmmr K

Pittsburgh, Servinl No. 7350,
FREASURY DEPARTMEN T, .
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE,
OFFICE OF INTERNAL REVENUE AGENTE IN CHARGE,
Pittsburyh, Pa., June 25, 14923,
In re: George Bros., 307 Fourth Avenue, Pittshurgh, Pa.
sxamining officer, George W. Pitts; examination commenced June 145 1020
examination completed, Juue 27, 1923, *
INTERNAL REVENUE AGENT IN CHARGE
Pittsburgh, Ia,

An examination of the books and records of the above-named corporation
for the calendar years 1918 to 1922, inclusive, and period ending February 2%,
1923, disclosed the following in connection with its income and exeess-profits
tax Hability:

Nuwnmniry

,  Form  Schedule Additional

Year © No, No, LIEA

1
- — - - e

o 1065 LI ) Wt TN
L LS [ 35,485, 70
. 15 8 i, b, 52
1065 10 38, 418, 08
‘ 1120 | 12 1L A2 50
H2N-A 14 1,687, 28

105, T0L TR

Kind of buxiness: Real estate brokers and ugents.

Authority for examination : Anthority of agent in charge.

Neo affiliations,

This company was incorporuted wnder the Jaws of the State of Pennsylvania
in July, 1802, It operates as brokers and renting sgents. When first in-
corporated the company operated an insurance department. In 1905 the
insurance department of George Bros. and the insurance business of Ogden
Edwards were consolidated and the partnersLip of Edwards, George & Co.
was organized. The capital of this concern was furnished by Messrs, Fdwards.
George, Guthrie, and McKelvey., . Edwards and 1L M. McKelvey withdrew
from the business later on and W. D, George and I, 8, Guthrie beceame sole
owners.

The stockholders of George Bros. have a working agreement to turn over
to the compuny all outside earnings for distribution. There is also an
agreement which gives the company the right to purchase the stock of any
stockholder upon the death or retivement from active participation in the
business.  This agreement, however, could not he enforeed against the interest
of Mr. George and Mr, Guthrie in Edwards, George & Co., and income now
received by the corporation would, therefore, be diverted to other channels.
It is evident, therefore, that Edwards, George & Co., regarded by George Bros,
as their insurance hranch, is a separate and distinet organization,

During the years examined the books of the corporation show dividends
from Edwards, Georpge & Co. ax income.  This income, however, is in reality
income of W, D. Gerrge and F. 8. Guthrie, turned over to the corporation in
accordance with the working agreement before mentioned, and with article of
tryst executed by George and Guthrie, although regurded by George Brow, us
income from their insurance department.
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In the same elass also bs salavy received by W 1R George as yeceiver for
the Pittsburgh Street Railway Co, as follows:

19200 . .. e e e e e e — e e e - N1, DO O
{100 e e e e e —— 35, 000. 00
oo . e e ————— et e e ———- Jh 250, (0
Janwary and luhnmr l‘):l‘l . e e e 3, 33,34

Thix moeney is tarned over tn the u»rpnmmn hy ’\11' George, and is treated
A~ income to the corporation and distributed in the same manner as ordinary
income, It is so treated in this report,

The books of the company show no protit in any of the taxable years, This
1= caused by the faet that when quarterly pmﬂtw are arrived at 10 per cent
are distributed as dividends and the remaining 90 per cent disirvibuted as
increase in compensittion to the stockholders, who are also the officers of the
campany,  This distribution is disallowed as expeunses throughout this report
and classed as dividends,

Note, however, that salarvies of the oflicers ave low and are regarded by
them as drawing accounts chiefly. It is recommended that an adjustment be
made on this aecount.

The corporation filed returns for 1918, 1919, 1920, and 1921 as a personal-
service corporation.  Department letter I'U: CA: DU 2308, dated January 11,
1020, disallowed @ personal service rating.

The tax for 1918, 1919, 1020, 1921 falls under seetion 302, regulations 45
and 62, Consequently no Invested capital s<chedules for the year 1919 on are
included,

It is recommended that the corporation be granted relief under section 327
tdy ) or section 328,

Al ehanges in this report fully discussed with My, Seifert. of Reed, Smith,
Shaw & MeClay, attorneys for the corporation,

Respectfully submitted.

GrORGE W, PIrTs,
Intevanl Revenne Tnspectar.

SxHIBIT L
STATEMENT
Mailed November 21 19238, 0, G, Bright, Deputy Commissioner,

In re: George Bres, 307 Fourth Avenue, Pittshurgh, Pa.
Additional tnx

OIS o e e e e e b 21, 590, 44
Y o e e e e e e e DRy B0, 3D
O e+ —————————— 2 am e 46, 980. 52
2T o e e e e e —— 28, 618,01

Total.. . ___. e e e e e - ——————— ]-l... 584. 36

After a careful consideration of the facts submitted, your claim for classi-
fication as a personal-service corporation under the provisions of section 200
of the revenue act of 1918 is denied. since the department, under the law.
deems that your business is one in which the use of capital is essential and
the profits can not be ascribed primarily to the personal services of the prin-
cipal owners,

Inasmuch as your profits tax for 1918, 1919, 1920, and 1921, as computed
under section 301, is in excess of the proﬂts tax as computed under section
302, your profits tax has been computed under the latter section,

1918
Net income reported. . oo e e $4, 407. 59
Plux:
DonaAtions . e $400, 00
INCOmME LA e e 238, 00
Distribation of profit. . . e —— 33, 288. 41

33, 926. 41

B e e s i ————— a8, 334, 00
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Less Liberty bond Intevesto ... ..o o e $200. 00

, 38, 134, 60
Profits tax under section B0 10,607, 20

Net fncome o e e N3S, 134, 00
Less:
Irofits AKX e 319, VT, 20
Exemption___ .. .. 2,010, vU

————— 21,607, 20

Taxable at 12 per ¢ent oo v 16, 526, 80
Tax at 12 per cent .. S L 0N
B Ot X e e e e e e 21, 500, 44
Tax previousty a8sSessele oo oo oo None.
TAX UC e U 21, 500, 44
19 T
Net income veportedo. . SELGUN 1B
Distribution of profits . . TN 14
Net income e e NGBS 2T
I'rofits tax under section SO2. .l e 2905251
Net Income o e NSG, N1 27
Less:
Profits «aN. o v ———— %29, 902, 51
sxemption - oo 2, . U
s e 38, 1032, 51
Balance. e —— NE R RANTH
Tax at 0 per cont o e e
Total tax assessable. .- i ae o
Tax previously assessed. oo e Nonwe,
BAX O e e e e e = e 35,305, N
1920 '
Net inceme reported. Lo 11, 156 64
Distribution of profits________ e e — P (L LA T A Mrees
Net INCOMe.. oo e 111, 566,346
Profits tax under section 302 . L. . . ... 40,026.54
Net income. .. . e e e e e NTTT, 066, 36
Joosu:
Profits tay oo e o 40, 026, 54
sxemption - .. 2,000, 0
- s 42,026, 54
Balance subject to tax at 10 per cent .. oo ... GH 530 82
Tax at 10 per cent o e e 6, 905, 08
Total tux assess@ble. oL i e 44, 980, 52
Tax previously assessed __ .. e Note,
Tax due_ . .. .. e = o e 46, N0, 52
- 1021
Not income reported o e S, ROT. 55
Istribution of profits_ K4, 400,03

ot e 3, 304,28
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Liberty boud Interest o .o o e e e $442, 07

Net INCoOme. oo e e e 92,052, 21
Profits tax under section 302, ... .. [ e e 32,080, RS
Net ECOMC . e e e e s e 802, 952,21
Less profits CAN - o e e e $2.080. 88

Balance. ... ... e e e 60,371, 33
Tax at 10 per cent. oo e e m e e BOO3T13

Total tax assessublea . o e e 3R, G618, M
Previons]y ASSOSSCU - oo e e e e None,

Tax due ... .. e e ¢ e e e A8, 618N

Exmme M

Payments made to officers of George Bros., Pittsburgh, Pa.. as  additional
compensation for the years from 1917 to 1021, inclusive, These payments
represent the balanee of carnings wade by this corparation after a distribu-
tion of 10 per cent dirvidends,

£ AMar. 31 ; June 30 sept. 30 Dee.31 | Total

1917 ! I

| j
W, l) George, president, 471y, e e e $16, 651, 23
F. (iuthrio,»icemeshlom oty I . .. 9,240, 1::
e e e .. 70110

W, \ Feltyberger, secretary-treasurer, 20
W. L. Davis, assistant treasurer, 5 ...

LR T

Total ........... L e . )
1018 - “ T o
W. D. George, 47V (6 months), 40 (6 |
months).

¥ 8. Guthrie, 2"'

200135 0 315071 2, 648,81 621, 89 9, 320. 76
W, A, Mlt)hcrger. 26 (6 month i

I
| | '
ey sra,mn,u%; $5,45.23  SLRS2BD $U04.57 15,2404
i 1
|
I

mnntha) ................. 2, 10 0 } 2, 206, 51 2, 648, 80 62184 RIS
L. Davis, 5. ......._._ (D AON K74 13 481, 60 113, 08 1, 6, 53
Fotal... ... . . ... . 10.550'30 nanz (O 9832.01 - zzm 45 33, 426, 41

1019 ’ f o T
W. I}, George, 40. ... .. ... . ... .. 4,027,011 9,327 48 i 2,088 7R 15,158,260 31,007 26
F, 8. Guthrie, 7'y, ... . .. 2,760.00 | 691268 | LTITY 0,417, 21,379,495
WA, Foltyborgor ot FAU DD 20061 6.412.64,  LTT0.79 1041587 | 21,379.36
W. L. Davis, 5...... L S03.47 1 1,165.94 | 323.60  1,EM4.16 | 3 R8TIT
TOtal. .. oo L ©10.060.33 93,3170 1 6,470.96 | 47,843, 15 | Pooan s 4

1920 ! E !
\\ D. George, 40 (f monthe), 35 (ﬁnmnths).s 491,73 8,017 12 ‘ 5, 651, 06 TITLRY 88, 333.04
A Feltyberger, 2714........_........ 1 5150.56  12,386,07 | 4,440.13 5,635, 02 | 261268
F . Guthrie, 27% ... ... {OR10.56  12386.07 | 444012 5,635 02 [ 261267
W, L. Davis, 5. .. ooovo L 036.47 2,252 1R | 807, 20 1 024, 5 5,020. 49
G. V. Feltyberger, 5 (6 months)........... N | 807. 29 1,02& 5 1, 831, 84
Total.....coconnunnnnn s IR T29.32  45,043.54 l 16, 145, 89 ( 20,490.97 | 100,408.72

1921 : ‘ © ’
W. . George, 35 .. coooe e ? : 5719.62 | 3,358.50 | R005.61| 29,419.20
W. A, Feltyberger, 2712 ... . 4,493. 99 l 2, 638, 82 6,200.12 | 23, 115. 09
F. 8. Guthrie, 2%, ... . 4,493.99 | 2,633.82 | 6,200.12 | I3,115.00
WL DAVIS, 5 i e .‘ , 81708 | 475,78 | 1,143.65 f 14,2023
G, W, Feltyberger, ussistant socretary, .. 1,762, 21 8IT. 08 479.75 | RN 143. 66 ; 4,275
TOtA). e e O 35,244 21 1634178 i 0, 595,51 } 02,K73.16 1 84,054 K6

The Cuairmax. I thought there were some statisties that you were
going to give us this morning, Mr. Manson. as to some of the find-
ings with “reference to the statistical work of the burean.
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Mr. Minsox. I did not brire them down here this morning, and
I am not prepared to discuss them myself this morning.

The Ciamyan. Has the bureau any veply to the last cases that
we had up for consideration ?

Mr. Grrce. We have not a thing this morning; no. sir. We will
be prepared to-morrow morning. however.

he Cuamyan. Then we will adjourn until to-morvow morning

at 10 o’clock.

(Whereupon, at 11 o’clock p. m., the committee adjourned until
to-morrow. Thursday, March 19. 1925, at 10 o’clock: a. m.)



INVESTIGATION OF THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

MONDAY, MARCH 23, 1925

UNITED STATES SENATE,
SELeCT CoMMITTER 10 INVESTIGATE
THE Burear or INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D. ('

The committee met at 10 o'clock a. m., pursnant to the adjourn-
ment of Saturday. -

Present : Senators Couzens (presiding), Ernst, and King.

Present also: Mr. George i, Box, chief auditor for the committee,

Present on behalf of the Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mr. A, W,
Gregg, special assistant to the Secretary of the Treasury: Mr. (. R,
Nash, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue: Mr. A. H.
Marr. attorney, office of solicitor. Burcau of Internal Revenue.

The Cuamman. Let the record show that Mr. Manson is absent
this morning because of illness in his family. Mr, Dox, one of the
auditors of the committee, will present the case this morning. You
may proceed, Mr. Box.

Mr. Greaa, Before you start with that case we have a couple of
matters we would like to put in the record.

The Cuamryman. Very well; you may proceed.

Mr. Grece. At the last meeting of the committee the chairman
stated that in connection with the settlement of several of the cases
which the committee had criticized the names of a few of the officials
and employees of the bureau, whom he named, occurred repeatedly.
He stated thal it was the feeling on the part of at least some of
the members of the committee that there might be either irregularity
or fraud in their settlements or in their actions with reference to
some of these cases. In this connection he stated that the committee
might desire that those ofticials be brought before the committee.

The statement rucher took me by surprise at the time, pgrticularly
because of some of the names which were stated by the chairman in
that connection, and I made no answer. But I do want to refer to
the matter now briefly. The record as it now stands contains only
the statement by the chairman, which indicates the possibility of
irregularity or corruption on the part of those officials of the bureau
whom he named in the settlement of some of their cases. Those
men, like most people who spend their time in the Government serv-
ice, have nothing but their good names and their re?lutations, and
as it now stands that statement is a black spot on both.

The CriairmaN. On both of what?

Mr. Grega., Both their reputation and their good name. It seems
to me that the committee should ge into the matter specificaliy to
determine the question one way or the other. I think in justice to
those men that that should be done, that it is owing to them that this

3343
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statement, without the citation of facts or evidence on which it is
based, should not remain alone in the record, and it is due them to
have the charges investigated to determine whether there was any
irregularity in their action or was not.

I am not making this statement for the bureau, but for the men
themselves, because I feel very sincerely that an injustice hias been
done the men, that the record with this statement questioning their
integrity should not go to the public without the charges being
investigated and their accuracy determined. If it is released to the
publie, it will be u lasting stain on their vecords and reputations, [
think they are entitled to have it cleared up.

The Cuamyan. 1 do not think that the statement. of the chairman
at the hearing on Saturday, March 21, is quite as broad as Mr, Gregy
has made it.  What the chairman said was as follows:

I ask if they think anything could be gained by the committee if some of
these employees or members of the staff were to come before the committee,
because some of the members of the committee have a very definite conelusion
that there ix something peculisr about the conduct of a number of the stalf
down there, including Mr. Alexander, Mr. Shepherd, and Mr. Greenidge, and a
Mr. Robinson, who used to be with the bureau, and Deputy Commissioner
Bright.  We have had some talk among ourselves whether it would be a good
thing to have them come here and tell us how some of these things happened
and how they reached some of their conclusions,

Then further on the record shows this further statement by the
chairman:

It seems to run throngh a number of these eases that this group that I have
Just mentioned is invelved, and 1 say very frankly that some of the members
of the committee have had a very definite convietion that all is not right with
some or all of those employees. 1 want to be perfectly open and frank with
the representatives of the bureau herve and not try to trick them or trap them
in any way and subpena thoxe nien down here without them knowing about it.

I do not see anything in that statement which charges fraud or
graft.

My, Greaa, 1 did not mean to misquote the chairman.,

The Cuarmaxn. T think you did misquote me in that respect, be-
cause I did not use that language at all.

Mr, Grece, No, sir: you did not, but T think the inference from
the statement which you just read is that the committee thinks that
there may have been some irregularity on the part of those men
whose nawmes have occurred in connection with the various cases
taken up by the commiittee.

The Cuamryan. Of course. Mr. Gregg can read anything he likes
into it or can reach his own conclusions, but I submit there is néthing
in the statement of the chairman that either mentioned the word
fraud or graft or dishonesty. ‘

Mr. Grece. No: but the chairman said exactly this:

I ~ay very frankly that some of the members of the committee have had a
very definlte convi-tion that all is not right with some or all of these em-
ployees,

Now, the words ™ graft™ or *corruption ™ were not used, but I
think the inference from that statement is fairly plain. I do not
think it is necessary to place an interpretation on it. I think the
record as it exists with that statement in it is a very decided refiection
upon the integrity of those men.
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The Cinamyax. The members of the committee who discussed it
Jdid not have any definite conviction as to either fraud or graft.
With those members of the committee who discussed it there was
a dainite conviction, as 1 said, that there was scraething peculiar
abeut some of those settlements. In view of the fact that no reply
hias vet been put into the record on the Thompson case and some of
the gquotations from Special Conferee Shepherd sounded peculiar and
did not seem to be cleared up at least in the minds of some of the
members, this statement was suggested to the chairman the other
day. The statement was not a prepared statement, but was just aun
expression of opinion of some of the members of the committee who
had, you might ~ay. anoflicially discussed it at times. In line with
what T said at that time. T expeet before we get through that we
will probably ask some, if not all. of those men who have been men-
tioned to come down here and help straighten out the things that
seetned peculinr to members of the committee,

Mpr. Grece, That is what T wanted to ask that the committee do.
im order that any reflection of that kind either be substantiated or
removed.

The Coamymax, There was no desire on the part of members of
the committee to whom I had reference

Senator Krxsr (interposing). Who arve the members of the com-
mittee to whom you have reference? : :

The Cuamman (continuing). To forestall the men who had been
mentioned here from muking any statement or explanation they
may desire to make.

senator Ernst, Was the matter discussed by the committee?

The Caammax, No. What 1 «aid in my earlier statement of last
Saturday was that some of the members of the committee had dis-
cnssed it. I say now for the benefit of Senator Ernst that he was
not one of them, but it was among some other members of the com-
mittee informally.

Mr. Grese. T just wanted to get that statement in the record.

The CnamyaN. You may proceed, Mr. Box,

Myr. Box. The case which is about to be presented is that of the
Phelps-Dodge Corporation, a corporation incorporated in the State
of New York March 14, 1917, with a capitalization of $50,000,000.
It took over the assets of several companies which were owned by
Phelps, Dodge & Co. (Inc.). a holding corporation. Phelps, Dodge
& Co. (Inc.) was incorporated in 1908 under the laws of the State
of New York and took over the assets of the Phelps, Dodge & Co.
partnership. which owned the Copper Queen Consolidated Mining
Co.. the Moctezuma Copper Co.. the Detroit Copper Mining Co.,
and the Stag Cannon Fuel Co. properties in Arizona and New
Mexico.

The 1917 return of the Phelps-Dodge Corporation showed a tax
liability of $2,666.821.36. Upon examination of the income of this
corporation the bureau prepared an A-2 letter under date ()f'Dg-
cember 11, 1919, proposing an additional tax of $2.101,114.95. This
tax was reduced and an overassessment found of $44,051.54. Shortly
after this overassessment was found a mistake was found in the
computation of the invested capital—that is, a mathematical error
in the bureau—slightly in excess of $8.000.000. After considerable
correspondence in regard to whether the case had been closed or not
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closed wi additional tax of $131.116.33 was assessed, whieh elosed
the 1917 case,

Under 1918 an overassessment of $125,580.45 was found in June,
1920. * Subsequent to that time, upon recomputing the tax. an add:-
tional tax of %4303,195.76 was found due on January 1. 1924, After
n conference this tax was reduced to SLTY6.547.20 on September 2,
1924, The proposed assessment of this additional tax was protested
by the taxpayer and the question is now before the solicitor on sev-
eral different points for decision, o that the 1915 tax matter remuin.
open at the present time.

Senator Kixe, Was that additional tax of 430319556 on one
year or on all years?

Mr. Box. On the year 1915,

Senator Kine. 1918 alone

Mr. Box. Yes, .

Senator Kixa. Have settlements been made for the vears 1920,
1921, 1922, and 1923?

Mr. Box. No. March 2, 1925, an additional tax of S236. 197,20
was found on 1919, and there is no record of any protest having
been made as to that.

Senator Kixa. That has not heen paid?

Mr. Box. No: the tax was only assessed s that is, the letter wa-
sent out this month.  The whole question in this case. outside of the
error that I spoke of, the mathematical error of $8.000.000 in the
burenu, has centered on the matter of valuation of these proper-
ties that were taken over in 1908,

The taxpayer in this case, the Phelps-Dodge Corporation. wa- in-
corporated March 14, 1917, under the laws of the State of New
York, at which time it acquired the assets of the Phelps. Dodee
& Co. iln('.). a holding company which was incorporated under the
laws of the State of New York under date of Decombeor 11908,
On the latter date Phelps, Dodge & Co, (Inc.) acquired the asset-
of the Phelps, Dodge & Co. partnership, which owned the stock of
the Copper Queen Consolidated Mining C'o.. Moctezuma Copper
Co., Detroit Copper Mining Co.. und the Stag Cannon Fuel (o,

Both the taxpayer and the Phelps Dodge Co. (Ine,) were capi-
talized at %50,000,000, which comprises 300,000 :hares of capital
stock at the par value of $100 each.

On December 31, 1908, the Phelps Padge & Co. (Ine.) jsened
545,000.000 of its stock in exchange for <tock of subsidiary eom-
panies formerly owned by Phelps Dodge & Co.. the partnership. in
the following amounts:

Copper Queen Consolidated Mining Co____.._..________ . K27, 06, U0
Moctezuma Copper Co.. .. _TTTTTTTTTTTTIm oo S, 000, O
Detrolt Copper Mining Co._.________ 77777777 oo G, 000, 0O
Stag Cannon Fuel Co...._.._.____ __ " TTTTTTTTTTTT T 1, 000, (0

Total oo 45, 000, 600

The values represented by the stock issued were made up of the
following items:

1y
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VALUK OF MINES

Coppeer QGueen Consolidated Minkng Coo ..~ $12, 385, 213. 66
Moctezuama Copper Co oo .. e 4, :l.’i(),.]'l:i. 82
Detroit Copper Mindng Co. o . ___ 1, 057, 306. 51
Ntaw Copper Mindng Coooo e 2,412, 732. 54
: s e $20, 211, 426, 63

VALUE OF PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Copper Queen Consolidated Mining Cowveae. - &4, 974, 860. 17
Moctezuma Copper Cooo ... 3, 046, 384. 32
Detrolt Copper Mining Co. ... . 2,158, 106, 00
Stag Cannon Fuel Co oo ... 3, 2206, 488, 42
cemr s 13, 4085, 845, 51
Net value of Houid assets. .o .o oo e 11, 382, 727, 96
Total o e e e 45, 000, 000. 00

The Cnamyan. Do your records show what the liquid assets
were!

Mr. Box. No: they do not. They show the excess liquid assets
over the liabilities were $11,382,727.96. They were lumped.

Senator King. Were they notes or cash?

Mr. Box. There was no reference at all to what they were.

The Camearan, They were just an amount to even up the $45,000,-
000 of stock issued, were they not?

Mr. Box. It wonld seem so. There is nothing to show what they
were made up of. You will note the value of mines was
%20.211,426.53.

Under date of June 15, 1911, Phelps, Dodge & Co. issued a circular
which it sent to its stockholders (see Exhibit A) advising them that
sinee the law relative to the excise tax on corporations became effec-
tive it was essential that the actual values of mines and mining
claims should be recorded in their books and accounts, and that they
had written up the values of mines and mining claims so that the
total values shown on the books “will equal the total estimated
values at the time of the sale of Phelps, Dodge & Co. on December
31, 1908."  This write-up was from a book value of $2,579,041.48 to
%24.114,045.73.

Mr. Grece. May I ask a question just at that point to clear up as
we o along?

Mr. Box. Yes.

Mr. Grrce, T do not understand the items which were written up
from $2,000,000 to $24,000,000.

Mr. Box. It was the value of the mines and mining claims.

Senator Kina. The property?

Mr. Box. Yes,

Senator Kixa. Copper Queen was valued at $12.385,213.66.

Mr. Box. Yes. In the statement I have just made, under “ valua-
tion of mines,” the value is given at $20,211.426.53. Those figzures
are taken from the engineer’s report in the case. While there is a
difference of four million and odd dollars between the two items,
that is the only record we have as to the value of the mines in the
Bureau of Internal Revenue outside of the Phelps-Dodge figures.
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Mr. Griece. Then the figures which have been given showing the
value of the mines as twenty million and odd dollars were not put
on the books until 19117

Mr. Box. Yes,

Mr. Grree, That is a point 1 wanted to clear up.

Senator Kina. They just wrote them up to muke the aggregate
amount of the new capitalization’

Mr. Box. The items were written up on the books of the separate
companies. The holding company itself then issued the stock of
545,000,000 without, I suppose, any segregation of assets, but T do
not know about that.

On December 11, 1919, as a vesult of an audit of the net income
of the taxpayer for the year 1917 based on a revenue agent’s report
of his field investization the assessment of an additional tax of
$2,101,114.95 was proposed. This was based on an invested capital
of $55,332,524.48. The taxpayer protested against the assessment
of this additional tax and claimed that its invested capital was
greatly understated. It submitted the argument that the value of
the assets acquired by Phelps-Dodge & Co. (Inc.) from the partner-
ship of Phelps, Dodge & Co. in 1908 for which $45,000,000 par value
in stock was issued, was in reality $90.000,000, and the Internal
Revenue Bureau, after the submission of a report by one of its
engineers, named L. C. Graton, agreed to consider the value of the
assets acquired at the above-named date for invested capital pur-
yoses at $90,000,000 instead of $45.000,000, the additional $45.000.000
eing considered as paid-in surplus.  This action was authorized by
article 63 of regulations 41. There is no complaint to make about
tfhe write-up if the values were there, because the regulations provide

or it.

Senator Kixa. T am somewhat familiar with some of the prop-
erties in Arizona. When they incorporated and took over the assets
of the Phelps-Dodge partnership, and it is presumed that they
started out on a fair and legitimate basis, why should they put in
assets of the value of $90.000,000 at only $45.000.0002 Is there any-
thing to indicate it?

Mr. Box. Nothing whatever.

Senator Kixa. Very well: go ahead.

Mr. Box. As a result of this change in invested capital it was
found that an overassessment of $44,051.54 had been made and certifi-
cate issued thcrefor, under date of April 15, 1920,

On April 26, 1923, the case was reopened for 1917 and an addi-
tional tax of $131.116.33 found due.

Senator Kixa. I want to go back for just a moment. Is Mr.
Graton’s report here?

Mr. Box. Yes; it is here.

Senator Kina. ‘Did he state of what this property consisted? Did
he itemize it to show its value?

Mr. Box. No. He shows four items of different mining properties
en bloc.

Senator Kina. Did he mention the $11,000,000 of so-called liquid
assets?

My, Box. I think not.

Senator Kixne. Or state what that consisted of ?

R
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Mr. Box. No, sir.

Senator Kixe, Very well.

Mr. Box. As article 63 of regulations 41 grants authority for
considering the excess of the actual value of an asset over the
amount. of the stock issued in exchange therefor, as paid-in surplus
the only question in this case 15 one of fact as to the actnal value of
the assets acquired by the corporation from the partnership in
1908, In this connection the following information taken from the
records as evidence that the value of the assets did not exceed %45.-
000,000 on December 31, 1908, is submitted.

On May 14, 1919, Revenue Agents (. W. Huntington and Charles
W. Murphy stated in the report of their investigation for the year
1917 of this taxpayer in regard to the value of the property of the
various companies concerned in the transfer of Phelps, Dodge & Co.
(Inc.), in 1908, that they visited the surrogate’s court of the county
of New York., with the object in view of «obtaining information
bearing cn the value of the property taken over by Phelps. Dodge &
Co. (Inc.), upon its formation.

D. Willis James, one of the partners of the old partnership of
Phelps, Dodge & Co., died on September 13, 1907.  On March 6,
1908, the appraisers filed a report recommending that tax be assessed
on part of his personal property as follows:

Copper  Queen Consolidated Mining Co, stock. par value $10 per share,
appraised at $50 per share,

Moctezuma Copper Co. stock, par value $100 per share, appraized at $75
per share.

Detroit Copper Mining Co. stock, par value 25 per share, appraised at $35
per share,

Inheritance tax was paid on the above valuation.

It appears that subsequently the State comptroller had been in-
formed that the shares of stock mentioned above might have been
undervalued, which information rested upon data submitted to the
New York Stock Exchange in connection with the application of
Phelps, Dedge & Co. (Inc.), to have its stock listed. The contention
was made that the stocks should have been appraised at the value at
which they were exchanged for the stock of Phelps. Dodge & Co.,
(Inc.), in December, 1908, as follows:

Copper Queen Consolidated Mining Co,, par $10, exchanged at $135 per share.

Moctezuma Copper Co., par $100, exchanged at $307.69 per share.

Detroit Copper Mining Co., par $25, exchanged at $150 per share.

A x'eappmisul was ordered, und ex-Governor Charles F. Whitman,
of New York, was appointed special appraiser. Hearings were held
at which both sides were represented by counsel, and much testimony
was submitted. It was contended that the exchange of stock for
the stock of Phelps, Dodge & Co. (Inc.), in no way represented a fair
measure of the market value of the stocks of the other companies.

On December 27, 1910, Mr. Whitman submitted a report to Judge
Blanchard of the Supreme Court of New York State to the effect
that no error had been made in the original assessment and that the
property in question was valued fairly, as follows:

Copper Queen Consolidated Mining Coo oo i $350
Moctezur 1 COpRer QO o oo e e e e ™

Detroft Copper Mining Qoo e 39

.
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The par value, the September 13, 1907, value, arrived at by ex-
Governor Whitman for the New York State inheritance tax, and the
value at which it was exchanged on December 31, 1908, for stock of
Phelps, Dodge & Co. (Inc.). is as follows:

i X v stock of Phelps,
Nume of company i Totgl‘ par \;(ulue f alnel 8&?\‘,. 13, l()l‘;:%{{f ‘gzs &e?l
; * therefor
Gopper Quoen Consolidated Mining Co. ....._........ : $2,000,000 ©  $10,000, 000 $27, 000, 000
Montezuma CopperCo.. ... ... ... ...... 2,600, 000 | 1, 950, 000 8, 000, 000
Detroft Copper Mining Co......... ....... ... ... 1, 000, 000 | 1, 400, 000 6, 000, 000
Total o e 5, 600, 000 :

41, 000, 000

This is exclusive of the coal company. which was put in at
$4,000,000, making thé total %45000.000. This ix their agent’s
report.

Iéenatﬂur Kine. You mean Huntington’s report ¢

Mr. Box. Yes.

As the stocks were judicially declared on September 13, 1907, to
be worth only one-third of the figzure at which they were taken over
by Phelps, Dodge & Co. (Inc.) in December, 1908. *and as far as
we can ascertain nothing happened in the meantime to materially
affect their value, we consider it very doubtful whether they were
worth the $45,000,000 and consider the claim of their value at
$90,000,000 to be absolutely beyond reason. It is only on account of
the clause in the law (section 207 (a) of the revenue act of 1917)
allowing appreciation to January 1, 1914. to be considered in this
case that ;s)revents our decreasing the original $45,000,000 very
materially.’

rrom the valuations just stated it appears that the value placed
on these properties on September 13, 1907, was less than one-third
of the value at which exchange was made with the corporation on
December 31, 1908,

Senator Kina. Then, in brief, the situation is this: Phelps, Dodge
& Co. as a partnership had property which they assembled and put
into a corporation at $45,000,000. The surrogate’s court found, as
did Governor Whitman, after a contest, that part of that property
was put in to Phelgs, Dodge & Co at grossly excessive prices to make
up the $45,000,000 .

Mr. Box. Yes, sir.

Senator Kine. Then in the face of that fact Mr. Graton and the
Bureau of Internal Revenue raised that valuation to $90.000,000 for
invested capital purposes?

Mr. Box. Yes; for invested capital purposes.

Senator Kinc. Why did they not make it $190,000,000?

Mr. Box. The representatives of some of the companies claimed
that it should have been $150,000,000.

Attached to the 1909 excise-tax returns of the Moctezuma Copper
Co., the Detroit Copper Mining Co., and the Stag Cannon Fuel Co.,
and the excise-tax return for 1910 of the Copper Queen Consolidated
Mining Co. are statements setting forth that the fair and just valua-
tion of the mines and mining claims of the respective companies are
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represented by the values at which they weve determined in the
exchange of stock between the said companies and the Phelps-Dodge
Co. (Inc.) on December 31, 1908. These returns are sworn to by
its officers and all statements submitted with them are covered by
their oaths. See Exhibits B, C, D, and E.

When this case was audited in the bureau the reviewer, Mr. Robert
P. Smith, under date of December 13, 1922, attached a statement to
the case stating that “The letters have been signed by the reviewer
merely as a matter of form, in order that the case may go through
regular channels.” He stated that the case is handled absolutely
erroneously and that his signature is a matter of form only. Exhibit
F is a copy of the letter in question, and states:

The letters have been signed by the reviewer merely as a matter of form,
in order that case may go (hrough regular channels. The case is handled
absolutely erroneous even from the gtandpoint of allowing pald-in surplus.
Basis used to determine depletion for invested capital is groundless even
should the figures be approximately correct (which is not admitted). The
depletion should he fizured on cach grade of copper separately, based on a
saitable production life. (This 18 possible.) There is also allowed reserves
for bad debts and taxes, $850,000, which is in no way substantiated, nor was it
claimed by taxpayer on his own amended return. My signature is therefore
a matter of form only and I shall in no way be responsible for the inaccuracies
in this case.

Senator Kine. That is, he questioned the allowance of the
$90,000,0007

Mr. Box. The allowance of the additional $45,000,000.

Senator KinG, Mr. Smith is questioning that and claiming that
it is erroneous?

Mr. Box. Yes.

Senator Kinc, Was he criticizing then Mr. Graton’s report?

Mr. Box. He was criticizing the allowance of the $45,000,000 add:-
tional paid-in surplus. That letter was signed * Robert P. Smith,”
December 13, 1922,

In another memorandum which he attaches to this case he states
that the possible value for invested capital is $45,000,000, to which
should be added acquisitions for cash between the dates of acquisi-
tions and January 1, 1914, and that it is understood that the metals
veluation section is not allowed to make a revaluation in the case
on the ground that it is a closed incident. He also states that a re-
valuation of the coal property shows a large reduction in the
original value and that it is not clear why a valuation is permitted
on coal lands and not for metals. He states that he thinks should
this case be closed in its present deplorable condition the depart-
ment would not be able to retract its position, as this is a paid-in
surplug allowance and not a January 1, 1914, value.

I sub. it the memorandum in full as Exhibit G.

The Crairmax. All of those exhibits will be set forth in the
record.

Mr. Box. Yes. . .

Senator Kix¢. That memorandum merely supports his position?

Mr. Box. Yes. The reason why a revaluation was not allowed for
copper mines is because, under date of December 11, 1922, the com-
missioner wrote a memorandum to Deputy Commissioner Batson,

92019—25—p1 17—3
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in which he decided that the value of the ore bodies of coppér mines
for 1919 and subsequent yvears should be revised. s the memoran-
dum submitted to the commissioner, to which this was an answer,
referred to the years 1917 and 1918 also. the fact that he authorized
the revised valuations for the later years and did not mention 1917
and 1918 was accepted as final that the valuations for those years
were not to be disturbed. Exhibit H is 2 copv of the letter of the
commissioner referred to.

Senator Kine. Do you understand that the valuation of $90,000,000
was for 1917 and for 1918 and has not been justified ?

* Mr. Box. It has not been justified.

Senator Kinc. The tax was paid upon that basis?

Mr. Box. The 1918 tax has not yet been paid, but the tax has been
computed on that basis. :

Senator Kinc. But 1919 and subsequent years have not exceeded
the valuationr of $90,000,000? ,

Mur. Box. Noj; they have made a reduced valuation for 1919,

The Cuamman. Do-you know what it is?

Mr. Box. It is claimed at $45,000,000.

Senator Kine. It is returned at $45,000,000%

Mr. Box. Yes; with cash acquisitions. ‘

Senator Kina. It would be interesting to know where it got the
cash to make those cash acquisitions. Was it out of dividends which
it did not distribute? Was it undistributed earnings? Or was it
real cash that it put in as an addition to capital? Did you discover?

Mr. Box. Of course, if it was cash left in the treasury undis-
tributed, it would be available for invested-capital purposes. I did
not go into that matter, however.

Senator Kixc. It was $170,348 at that time in 1922, and they made
no returns of net income for taxation and stated they did not earn
anything, and yet paid cash dividends aiiounting to $253,849,119.

The Cuamrman. I would like to ask Mr. Gregg at this point, as
long as Mr. Box is referring to these cases as closed incidents,
whether there is any ruling of a court saying that when a case is
closed by one commissioner it may not be opened by another com-
missioner ? ‘

~ Mr. Grece. That is a much-disputed point. There is a great deal
‘©of argument on both sides of it. The department, of course, has
never accepted the theory that we can not reopen, although it has
been urged before us in a great many cases. e copper cases will
form one of the first cases to test the question, because they say they
are going to take it to the courts, and they have prepared some very
excellent briefs on the question. ‘

The CuamssaN. Has any court ever decided that question, either
a lower court or an appellate court?

Mr. Greca. Not since the income tax law was enacted. There
were a great many decisions back under the old internsl revenue tax
law prior to the income tax law to the effect that we can not reopen
such cases, but we have always contended that they stood on a dif-
ferent basis than the income-tax returns. There are a good many
different points involved. The question is very complicated and

) ve:-y'invo}ved. The precedents arise as a result of cases in other
departments of the Government to the effect that where an offi-
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cial of the Government who, in accordance with .acts of Congress
authorizing him to exercise judgment and discretion, does so exer-
cise his judgment and discretion that action can not be subsequently
revised by his successor. It arose primarily, I think, in the Depart-
ment of the Interior in land cases, patent matters, locations, ete.

Senator Kixa, Not having in mind these particular cases, let us
assume that an assessment were made for $25.000,000 for capital in-
vestment by the representatives of the Government in 1917 and sub-
sequently and before the tax was paid it was raised to $50,000,000
through the representations of the taxpayer, and those representa-
tions were wrong; that court investigation showed in a collateral
case which involved questions of the value of the property that it
was just doubling the value, and settlement was made on the basis
of that incorrect valuation superinduced by representations of the
owner which were false: in fact, either constructive or actual fraud
in the representations. Do yon mean to say they could not be re.
opened ?

Mr. Grece. Exception is always made of fraud cases. Even in
the decisions with reference to other departments of the Govern-
ment they except cases where fraud 1s discovered. 'They can be
reopened unguestionably.

Senator Kina, When Mr. Smith said this was erroneous, o
erroneous that he disapproved of it, why did not the department
then refuse to settle on the basis of that valuation?

Mr. Grrce. 1 do not know enough about the case to know. That
may have represented the individual opinion of Mr. Smith and there
may have been 15 others who differed from Mr, Smith.

The Cramryvan. FProceed, Mr. Box.

Mr. Box. Under date of May 25, 1923, a letter was written to the
cominissioner signed *J. G. B., deputy commissioner.” referring to
a mathematical mistake in the computation of invested capital for
the vear 1917, in which he recommended that “ although the year
1917 was mathematically incorrect and the invested capital allowed
the corporation was considerably in excess of the proper allowance,
it should be considered closed.”

In this connection I think it would be well to present that letter
in full.

The Cuamyran. What is the date of the letter?

Mr. Box. It is dated May 28, 1923, and addressed *To the com-
missioner,’ and states:

A conference was held in my ofice this morning with representatives of the
above-named corporation—

That is, the Phelps-Dodge Corporation—

to discuss the proposal of the Income Tax Unit to reopen the 1917 audit because

of an erroneous computation of the Invested capital in office letter dated June

10, 1920, e
Mr. Matthew C. Fleming and Mr. Sterling, who represented the corporation,

exhibited a copy of a valuation report dated December 1, 1919, signed by Mr.
L. C. Graton, valuation engineer, and Mr. J. C. Dick, head metals valuation
section, in which the total valuation of the mineral property was said to be
in the neighborhood of $110,000,000 as of 1908, the dare of the organization of
the company. A subsequent memorandum, undated, rigned by Mr. J. L. Dar-
nell, then head of the natural resources subdivision, states that it was ngreed
that the company should Le permitted to include n paid-in surplus of $45,.-
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000,000 ‘In the Iuvested capital since it war clearly shown that the properiles
hag} a value in 1908 in excess of £90,000,000.

Acting upon the recommendntion of Mr. Davuell the consolidated returns
subdivisfon prepared a letter dated Mareh 3, 1920, in which it was stated
that the invested eapltal for the year 1817 should be $110,756,190,17.

An aundit was made shortly thereafter and the tax lability for the year
1017 determined.  The aunditor, in preparving a letter setting forth this tax
Hability stated * your investal capital has been fixed as sgreed in conference
at $110,765,190.37."  This letter i3 written in longhand preparatory to typing
bhut was never typed, as a request was made by the corporation at this thine
that the audit be extended to cover the year 1918, The final letter, dated
June 10, 1920, contalned schedules 1 to 30, setting forth the tax Hability for
«the years 107 and 1918, and was made * subject to amendynent by a field
oxamination which may later be made if deemed necessary by the bureaw,” It
appenrs that the change in wording of the final assessment letter from that
propoxed by the aunditor has some significance, and the inference ix that the
audit for the year 1917 was considerdd by all concerned to have been com-
plete, but when in complinnee with the request of the corporation the year 1918
was included in this avdit, it was thought best to puitke such audit for the year
1918 subject to a tield exnmination since no revenue agent’s examination had
been made for that yeur,

Therefore I wish to recommend that, although the year 1917 was mathe-
matically incorrecr and the invested capltal allowed the corporation was con-
sidorably in excess of the proper allowance, it should be conxidered closed, but
the unit should be allowed to reopen the audit for 1918 on all points other than
the actual valuation of the property to determine the correct tax iiability.

That letter is signed “J. G. B., Assistant Deputy Commissioner.”

Senator Kina. The erroneousness of which this man_complains
was in raising it from $90,000,000 to $110.000,000 plus.  He did not
complain of the $90,000,000 at all being erroneous,

Mr. Box. It was not that, Senator. It was an item of eight mil-
lion and odd which had been computed the wrong way and made the
invested capital of $110,000,000 about $8,000,000 too much. It
should have been revised from one hundred and ten million dollars to
one hundred and two million and odd dollars.  He did not object to
the $43,000,000 paid in surplus at all.

The Cirtamemanx. Who did not object to that—Mr. Smith?

Mr. Box. This was Mr. Bright.

The Cratrman. Mr. Smith objected to the $45,000.000 paid in
surplus?

Mr. Box. Yes.

Senator Kina. He does not object to the so-called $45,000.000 and
also the additional $12,000,000 for some purpose which T do not
know—-—

Mr. Box. That was acquisitions.

Senator Kine. That made a total of $102,000,000.

Mr. Box. Yes.

Senator Kina. It was settled, then, for 1917 on the basis indi-
cated. Tn 1918 on what basis was it settled ?

Mr. Box. It was not settled on this basis. There is more corre-
spondence that reverses Mr. Bright's recommendation. That $8,000,-
000 was afterwards thrown out.

Senator Kixa. And $110,000,000 allowed ?

M:. Box. $102,000,000 allowed.

Se;lat'm' Kixng. But it was not reduced down to $45,000.000 at any
time?

Mzr. Box. No: that was never taken out for 1917,
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Mr. Grece. As I understand it, the question of the valuation of
this property is not under consideration or discussion in Mr. Bright's
memorandum ¢

Mr. Box. No.

Mr. Greca, He is referving solely to the so-called wmathemmatical
error and has no refevence to the question of valnation, which he
considers settled ?

Mr. Box. Yes.

The Cuamyan. Would you agree that he was right in ienoring
the mathematiecal error?

Mr, Grece. No, siv: and the bureau did not do so in that case

The Cramrman. That is perhaps one of the peculiar things to
which I had reference in my statement of Saturday.

Mr. Box. By letter of June 29, 1923, Acting Secretary of the
Treasury S. T. Gilbert, jr., advised the Commissioner of Internal
Revenue that the error in the computation of invested capital raised
a sufficiently serious question as to tax liability to warrant the re-
opening of the ease for both 1917 and 1918, (Exhibit J.)

Senator King. And that letter there just confirms your statement,
does it?

Mr. Box. Yes, sir: it confirms the statement that I have made.

Senator Kixa, I ask that to save the time of reading the letter.

Mr. Box. On January 19, 1924, Matthew C. Fleming, Esq., coun-
sel for the taxpayer, wrote the Secretary of the Treasury, protesting
against a proposed additional assessment of approximately $131,000
for 1917, and $4300.000 for 1918 (Exhibit K). in which he states
that it is a fact:

* o+ o+ that we made a bargain with the department i 1920, whereby,
in consideration of onr obtaining an invested capital figure of $110,000,000,
irrespective of how it was made up, we aceepted a very large reduction in the
depletion tigures which our engineers claimed, and agreed to 0 redoction of
about $40,000,000 in the March 1, 1913, value of our mines.

The mathematical error referred to in the correspondence above
mentioned is one amounting to $8,109,572.49 in computing invested
capital, and results in reducing the invested capital that amount be-
low that allowed by the bureau in its computations of June 10, 1920,
(Ixhibit 1.)

The letter of the Secretary of the Treasury. dated Maveh 6, 1924,
in reply to the last above-mentioned letter, reveals the circumstances
in regard to the mathematieal error and the decision to allow the
provisional valuation of the copper mines to remain undisturbed.
(Exhibit M.)

There is one paragraph of this letter of the Secretary of (he
Treasury that I think should be read. It says:

Inasmuch as a declsion was reached te allow the original or pravisional
valuativns to govern the audit of returns for INT and 1918, bhat to mnke new
valuations for invested capital and depletion for the audit of returns for

1919 and subsequent years, the values which you state were the result of @
“bargain with the department in 1920, have not been altered for 1917 or

Mr. Grese. May I bring this fact out there, Mr. Box? This
mathematical error of $8,000,000 was corrected, however, was it not!
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Mr. Box. Yes, sir. I just wanted to read that to show a little
conflict between that letter and the following one, from the com-
missioner. on that point.

The commissioner advised counsel for the taxpayer, under date of
March 28, 1924, that the case (1917 and 1918) would be carefully re-
congidered by the Income Tax Unit, and that conference would be
arranged at an early date at which any additional evidence and
arguments presented would be consicered. :

This letter of the commissioner is dated March 28, 1924, and is
addressed to Mr. Fleming. It reads:

Reference is made to your letter dated March 10, 1924, in vegard to the
income-tux Hability of the Phelps-Dodge Corporation for the years 1917 and
1M, involving the depletion values exgablished for these years as well as the
invested capital, !

Ina=much as the figures arriced at by the burean as to the determination
of the March 1, I3, values for the purpose of depletion and the amount
of invested capital to which the tuxpayer is entitled for the years 1917 and
1018 are not satisfactory to the taxpayer and in view of the misunderstanding
as to certain adjustments in these values, the entive case will be recon-
sfdored.

Reforring to your statement in regard to any bargain which may have been
nude by the bureaw's representative with respeet to depletion values and
invested capital, you arve advised that these matters ave questions of faet to
he established by the best evidence available, and the bureau's representative
in the partlenlnr audit case Is not vested with authority whereby such values
may be estabdished through bargaining with the taxpayer’s veprexentative,
The eases will, however, be earefully reconsidered by, representatives of the
Income Tax Unit. The conference will he arranged at an early date, at which
you may present any additional evidence and arguments which you desive to
be considered,

The Cuamyay. The conflict that you speak about is that your
understanding of the Secretary’s decision was that there would be
no reconsideration of valuations only.

Mr. Box. Of the revaluation for invested capital purposes, and
this letter has seemed to raise a little doubt in the minds of some
of the officers as to whether the 1918 revalnation should be made,
which wiil appear a little later on.

Mr. Grece. However, there was nothing to revoke the order of
the commissioner, as approved by the Secretary, which was pre-
vious to that date, '

Mr. Box. Of December 11, 1922¢

Mr. Grees. Yes; saying that they—those provisional valuations,
so called—would not be reopened.

Mr. Box. Only this letter.

Under date of January 27, 19235, Deputy Commissioner Bright
advised Mr. Greenidge by letter (Exhibit O) that he was returning
the latter’s memorandum of January 10, 1925 (Exhibit P), ad-
dressed to the commissioner, which had been sent to him for signa-
ture, and stated that:

* * % It appears to me that this cdase is open to the Government only
for the purpose of correcting the error in invested capital and to the tax-
payer to permit it to vrove a high valuation on the basis of evidence and facts
in its possession,

By memorandumn of the chief of the metals valuation section,
dated January 23, 1925, he recommends that the case be revalued
for 1918 on the basis of the valuation methods approved by the
commissioner in his memorandum of December 11. 1922, ‘authoriz-

L
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ing the unit to revalue the copper and silver mining industries.
(nghihit Q.)

This is & memorandwn from Mr. John Alden Grimes, dated Janu-
ary 23, 1925

In re letter of Junuary 10, 1925, addressed to the Commissioner of Internal
.ll]te\'cinme bearing symbols 1T: EN:M:IVT.D. and copies of letters attached

ereto.

About Junuary 20, 1925, Mr. Greenidge, head of engineering division, stated
verbally that the commissioner had instructed him that the case was to be
audited in coyformity with the statements of his letter of March 28, 1924,
directed to Mr. M. C. Fleming, attorney for the above corporation.

In view of the questions of this office directed te the commissioner in the
letter of Jaunary 10, 1925, thix office can read the eommissioner’s letter in but
one way, and therefore recommends that the case be revalued for 1918 on
the basis of the valuation methods approved by the commissioner in his
memorandum of December 11, 1922, nuthorizing and fustructing the Income
Tax Unit to revalue the copper and silver mining industries,

The valuations of the properties of the taxpayer are therefore being sent
to audit on thix basis.

The Cmamryax. I want to ask Mr. Gregg if he does not think
there is some conflict between the Secretary and the commissioner
there, where the commissioner’s letter, as interpreted by Mr. Green-
idge, indicates that 1918 was to be reopened in this taxpayer’s case?

Mr. Grege. By Mr. Grimes, I think Mr. Grimes interpreted that
as he wished to interpret it. I happened to be present at a good
many of the conferences with reference to this case. I was present
at the conference in Mr. Gilbert’s office, when it was decided to re-
Oﬁ)el\ and correct the mathematical error of $8,000,000. It was never
the thought of anyone that this case would be made an exception,
however, to the general letter of the commissioner, as approved by
the Secretary, to the effect that Mr. Graton’s valuations of copper
properties would stand for 1917 and 1918, and that the revaluations
would be effective only for subsequent years, and Mr. Grimes, vhen
he put that memorandum in the files, was perfectly familiar with
this previous order of the commissioner and the Secretary, and knew
that it had never been modified.

The CrairMan. From a reading of the commissioner’s letter, do
you not think there has been some conflict as to just what it means?

Mr. Gregs. Yes. The commissioner’s letter is not very clear.

The Cramaran. Yes: that is what I mean.

Mr. Greaa, Yes, sir.

The CHamrMax. To my mind, it would seem that there is a conflict
between the two.

Mr. Grece. It is not clear at all. I can understand how anyone
‘would have difficulty in getting exactly what was meant by it.

The CHamrMan. You may proceed, Mr. Box.

Senetor Kine., Just a moment. Mr. Gregg, are we to understand
thai the unit has accepted as a finality the valuation for invested
capital at $20,000,000? .

r. Grece. Yes; for 1917 and 1918,
Senator King, Yes; for 1917 and 1918¢
Mr. Grece. There is no question about it.
The Cuaamryan., Why do you say $90,000,000? I thought it was

$110,000,000, less $8,000,000. -

Mr. Box. $102,000,000.

Mr. Grece. $102,000,000 was the final figure.

L]
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Senator Kina. I had reference to the transfer.

Mr. Greca. ,The oviginal transfer in 1908; yes, sir.

Senator Kina. Of course, they claimed there were some additions,
bringing it up to %$102,000,000 or $110,000,000?

Mr. GreGG. Yes, sir.

Senator Kinag. But that $45,000,000 of water was legalized.

Mr. Grece. Well, that all depends on what you call it.

Senator Kixe, Yes. _

Mr. Grege. If the value was there as of 1908, they were entitled to
#. Mr. Graton determined that that value was here. Subse-
quently we differed with Mr. Graton.

The Cuairman. And when you did, you still had the valuation
as presented to the Surrogate Court of New York, had you not ¢

Mr. Grege. Yes, sir.

Th?e CrairmMaN. What has the department valued in 1919 and
1920

Mr. Grece. I do not know from my personal knowledge, but Mr.
Box said they valued it at $45,000,000.

Mr. Box. $45,000,000 paid in surplus had been eliminated.

Senator Kinc. They eliminated that $45,000,000¢ -

Mr. Box. They eliminated that $45,000,000.

Senator Kixg. So that it would be the $45,000.000 plus any sub-
sequent capital investment ?

Mr. Box. Yes, sir.

Senator Kixng. What would be the amount of the tax on that
$45,000,000? Taking all of the other factors into consideration,
and allowing that increase.of $45,000,000 for capital purposes, what
would be the tax?

Mr. Box. That would involve a great deal of computation, be-
cause it would mean figuring the depletion from 1908 down and the
revaluation on Muich 1, 1913, for depletion purposes; but this will
give you an idea:

For 1917, the additional tax, as proposed by the bureau at first,
before the $45,000,000 was considered, was $2,201,000, and the final
payment was $131.000, after taking off $44,000 which had been re-
funded, leaving $87,000. :

« Senator Kinc. Tax?

Mr. Box. Yes, sir.

Senator Kixc. Do you mean to say that that corporation, then,
was taxed only $87,000%

Mr. Box. $87,000 additional tax. The original tax was $2,666,000.

Senator King. Oh, yes.

Mr. Box. But an additional tax over that $2,666,000 was proposed
originally, of $2,101,000. That was the final settlement on the
basis of about $87,000 additional tax.

The Cuamyax. In considering those figures roughly, the use of
$90,000,000 instead of $45,000,000 would save the taxpayver approxi-
mately %2,000,000. Is that correct?

Mr. Box. Yes, sir,

Under date of January 21, 1925, a revised valuation report for

‘1918 and 1919 was submitted, placing the values of the assets of the
Copper Queen Consolidated Mining Co., the Detroit Copper Mining
Co., and the Moctezuma Copper Co. at the amounts at which they
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were originally tuken over by the Phelps & Dodge Co. (Inc.), on
December 81, 1908. The Stag Canon Fuel Co. value had been re-
vised heretofore, as it was not a copper company and therefore not
subject to the commissioner’s ruling referred to above.

The valuation of the Stag Canon Fuel Co.. which was taken in
at $4,000,000 in 1908, was revised. and the revised valuation was
made at about $1.400,000.

Senator Kixe, More!?

Mr. Box. Reduced.

Senator Kixea, It was reduced

Mr. Box. Yes. It was increased to $8.000,000 when the paid-in
surplus of $45.000,000 was allowed. and then under revalnation it was
valued at %1.400000, approximately,

The recommendation of the chief of the metals section in regard
to the revaluation for 1918 resulted in a letter from the head of the
consolidated returns division (Exhibit R) calling attention to the
fact that the interpretation of the comnussioner’s letter of March
28, 1924, arrived at by the chief of the metals section would be in
conflict with the letter of the Secretary of the Treasury of March
€. 1924, and stating that he felt the personal approval of the head
engineer should be secured before a reandit upon the revised valua-
tion is commenced.

In regard to the taxes for the years 1918 and 1919, an A-2 letter
was mailed January 1, 1924, proposing an additional tax of $4,303,-
195.76, to which protest was macde by the taxpayer. On September 2,
1924, an additional tax assessment of $1,796,547.20 in lieu of the
above was proposed. Protest has been made to this assessment, and
the question of tax liability for that year is still unsettled. The tax
for 1919 is also unsettled. On March 2, 1925, A~-2 letter was mailed
proposing an additional tax of $236,197.23. The invested capital
was reduced by $45,000,000, in accordance with the revised valua-
tion, but with this reduction the income was not sufficiently large to
exceed the excess-profits credit, and therefore the additional tax is
comparatively insignificant as compared with that which would be
due for 1917 and 1918 if the invested capital for those years was
adjusted on the same basis as that for 1919.

The Cuamman. Does that complete your presentation of this case,
Mr. Box?

Mr. Box. That completes iy presentation of the case, Mr. Chair-
man.

Mr. Grece. May I say just one word on the case? I do not want
to put in an answer now. I am not prepared to do that, but the case
is rather complicated and I would like to boil the criticism down as
much as I can. The case is complicated by reason of this mathe-
matical error which was under consideration for so long.

Senator Kinc. Still that cuts a small figure in the aggregate
amount of the tax. .

Mr. Grece. True. The mathematical error was actually cor-
rected, the $8,000,000 mathematical error.

Mr. Box. Yes; and an assessment of $131.000 additional tax made.

Mr. Grece. That is correct; yes. The sole criticism of the action
of the bureau is the acceptance of the valuation as of 1908 as of
$90,000,000 for the years 1917 and 1918?

92919—25—r1 17——4
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Mr. Box. Yes.

Mr. Grece. In other words, this case is given as a specific illus-
tration of the effect of the action of the bureau with reference to
copper cases as a whole, which has been considered so much by the
committee. .

Mr. Box. This case is given as an illustration of the amount of
the tax which was lost by allowing a write up of $45,000,000, and
calling it paid in surplus, when the valuation from outside sources
was shown at $45,000,000 and was probably too high a valuation to
bg placed in 1908 on property taken over by the corporation.

Mr. Greae, But it is just an illustration; it is just one of the cases
which Mr. Graton valued, which have been, in general, alread{
criticized by the committee. I just wanted to make that clear.
think that is accurate.

The Cmamrman. I think, if the chairman might interpret it, it
is more than that. It involves the question of the write up of
assets on the taxpayer’s books to 100 per cent in excess of what the
taxpayer’s books showed, and allowed it to be included as paid in
surplus, when the evidence in the New York courts showed that it
was probably worth one-third of the original book figures of
$45,000,000. -

Mr. Grece. Well, it scems to me that it comes back to the same
general point. If the properties were worth $90,000,000 when they
were pald in, the taxpayer is euntitled to include that amount in
invested capital, regardless of the par value of the stock issued for
it, or retgardless of. the valuation placed upon this property on the
books of the taxpayer. If the property was not worth $90,000,000
it was not entitled to that. The evidence that should be considered
determining the value of the property is a different matter; but the
case really boils down to the question of the value of this property
in 1908, when taken over by the corporation. ‘

The Cmairman. In part, yes; but aside from that I think it is
apparent that the taxpayer’s own statements, or at least some state-
ments of the original partnership before the surrogate court of
New York, indicated that they did not place any such value as that
on the property. ,

. Mr. Greca Yes, sir; but that is just evidence in determining
what the value of the property was in 1908.

The Cuairman, Oh, yes.

Senator King, I think you are right, Mr. Gregg.

- Mr. Grege. But I just want to make this one point, that the prop-
erty which was valued in 1908 for inheritance tax purposes was not
the identical property which we have to value for tax purposes.
The property which was valued for inheritance-tax purposes was

. the stock of these subsidiary companies.

Senator King. Which had been surrendered, and they had taken
stock in the new company?

Mr. Grece. Yes, sir; but what we have to value is not the stock
of these subsidiary companies, but we have to go back of the stock
to the assets. Of course, the valuation of the stock may be evidence

+ of the value of the assets back of it, but it is certainly not conclusive
evidence. , ' ‘

Senator King. That is true.

\
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The Crarmax. Is it not quite competent evidence, though ¢

Mr. Grega. Yes, sir.

Senator Kina. I was wondering whether the president of the com-
pany or any of the officers of the company; and if so, what officers
testified in the hearing before Governor Whitinan, For my own
information 1 should be very glad if we could get that report, be-
cause the officers of the company, knowing that that question was
to be the basis of the value of the property, went before Governor
Whitiian and testified to the value of the property, and then turned
around and doubled it for the purpose of escaping taxation in deal-
i;lg with the Federal Government. 1 would like to know about
that.

Mr. Box. T will try to get something on that.

Senator King. I wish you would get that.

Mr. Box. Of course, you will remember that there are exhibits in
this case which I submitted, which were copies of the sworn state-
ments attached to their excise-tax return for 1909 and 1910 by these
different officers, to the effect that these values taken over were fair
and just at that time.

Senator Kine. That is important. Did you make that statement?

Mr. Box. Yes, sir; that is in the case.

Senator IK1ng. When the corporation was formed ?

Mr. Box. Yes; the excise-tax returns for 1909 and 1910 had these
statements attached to the front of the returns. They were sworn
to by the vice president and secretary, I think, or at least two of the
principal officers in each case. They swore that the valuation at
which these mining properties were taken over by the corporation
on December 31, 1908, was a fair and just valuation.

Senator Kina. ‘And that was how much ¢

Mr. Box. That was the valuation of $45,000,000. ‘

The Cnammax. Then the same officers swore to the claims before
the bureau? I think that is what Senator King wanted to find out,
if they were the same officers? ‘

Senator Kine. What I wanted to find ont was whether the same
officers who made this claim for a tax reduction on the basis of
$90,000,000 capitalization testified before Governor Whitman in that
investigation.

The Coamyax. And it would be equally interesting to ascertain
whether they testified at any other place.

Senator Kixc. Surely.

The Crmairyan. Diflerently than they testified before the bureau.

Senator Kivc. I might say that, usually, in the case of corpora-
tions. where you take over properties, the incorporators swear as
to the actual cash value and the market value of the property taken
over.

Mr. Grece. Mr. Box, did you say that that affidavit was one of
the exhibits that you submitted ?

Mr. Box. Yes.

Mr. Grece. Which exhibit is it, please?

Mr. Box. Exhibits B, C, D, and E, I think.

Mr. Grece. I do not find it here. Maybe it is Exhibit 13.

Mr. Box. B, C, D, and E are the exhibits.

The CaammaN. I wich you would just read that particular exhibit
into the record at this point.
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Mr. Box. This is Exhibit B.
The CiratrmaN, What is Exhibit 13?2
Mr. Box. Exhibit B 1s as follows:

The following Ix a statement attached to the return of annual net income
of the Copper Queen Cousolidated Mining Co. for the year 1919, sworn to by
James Douglas, president. and George Nottman, treasurer,

COPPER QUEEN CONROGLIDATED MINING CO- - DEPRECIATION

In fixing “a fajr and just estimate of the actoal amount of deprecintion ™
this compuny has considered that its plant and real extate would be obsolete
or worthless in approximately eight and one-thivd years, and therefore for a
number of vears has been writing off 12 per cent per annum covering such
depreciation.

The books of the e¢ompany do not definitely <how “the amount actuaily
invested ” representing the value in mines and mining claims, but in making
up this report of anvual net income we desire to clearly indicate that we
helleve we are making a fair and just estimate when we assume ithat 12 years
will approximate the life of the mines, and therefore the annual rate of depre-
elation of mines and mining elalns will be one-twelfith of thelr total estimated
value, being, say. $13.967.242.74.

This teprecintion is based upon the fuir and just valuation of <aid mines
and mining claims as determined December 31, 1908,

The plaut investinent and real estate Is earried on December 31, 1910, at
$2.152.424.04, un elghth of which is $269.053, 7

The mine value as per valuation of December 31, 1908, is $13.967.242.74 on
which the depreciation of one-twelfth annually is S1,163:936G.90,  The deprecia-
tion on both plant and real estate and mines and mining claims aggregating
$1,432,989.90,

Senator Kixg. Is that the Copper Queen Consolidated Mining
Co. that is referred to? o o

Mr. BDox. That is the Copper Queen (Consolidated Mining Co.;
ves, Sir. i ] .

Senator Kine. T um interested to know this: Going down 13 years
from the date when he swore to that, what valuation was put on
that mine. which he said would be exhausted absolutely in 13 years?

Mzr. Box. Each of the other exhibits——-

Senator Kixe, The 13 vears have elapsed. and I venture to state
that there is a very high value attributed to that property still.

Mr. Guree, Of course, his basis of depletion based upon an esti-
mated life of 12 years was not accepted by the bureau. The deple-
tion was taken not on the basis of the vears but on the basis of
the nnits produced. o

Senator Kixa, I was interested to know. in view of his sworn
statement. I would like to see if they have reduced every year the
valuation pursuant to that or whether they have not augmented it.

Mr. Grree. Of course, an increase in the price of copper would
increase the value of the mine, although some of the ore had actually
been produced, or the value of the mine might be increased by ex-

© tensions,

Can yon tell me, Mr. Box. just what portion of the valuation of
$90,000,000 was allocated to the mines of the Copper Queenn Con-
solidated? The amount that we have arrived at here in this state-
ment that taxpayer returned for 1910 is $13.000,000.

. Mr. Box. No: I can not tell you what the bureau considered was
the value of the mines of each company. The value of the mines
as taken over was $12385,2138.66 for the Copper Queen. T do not

\
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know whether that was just doubled or how it was figured in the
report.

The Cuammax. Can you look up, Mr. Box, and find out what
the price of copper was in 1910, and whether this sworn statement
that vou have just read into the record is at great variance with
the value placed on that property in the various claims that the
taxpayer has made?

Senator Kina. From year to year.

The Cnamraran. Yes: from year to vear, and also whether the
same oflicers made these statements.

Senator Kine, As I understand it, the bureau now is considering
1919, 1920, 1921, and 1922, ete.

Mr. Grece. Yes, sir: we have revalued for those years, and have
cut the value as of the date of 1908 to $45,000,000.

The Ciarmax, Do T understand that the law does not permit
you to reduce those valuations below the par value of the stock?

Mr. Grece. No, siv: we reduce them lwlmv the par value every
day.

The Cramaran, Just what was the reason for taking the $45,-
000.000 in this case!? : ‘

Mr. Grece, On the revaluations, T suppose Mr. Grimes's re-
valuation, in accordance with the Secvetary’s order, for 1919 and sub-
sequent vears gave $45,000,000. 1 did not know what it was until
Mr. Box gave it this morning.

Mr. Box. You mean the revaluation?

Mr. Greee, Yes.

The Ciramyan. You have not got the revalution here!?

Mr. Box. I have not a copy of it here.

The Crairamax, T wish you would give it to the committee, be-
cause 1 got the impression that the revaluation accepted was $45.-
000,000, and it seems to me that even that was excessive in view of
the testimony given before Governor Whitman,

Mr. Grece, I should rather imagine—

Mr. Box. That is so. The value of the property taken over in
1908 in this revaluation is $45,000,000. I can not tell you how much
has heen added for subsequent acquisitions.

Mr. Greee. I rather imagine the committee will find that since
the revaluations in 1919 were made by Mr. Grimes, it is plenty low.

Senator Kinc. T would like to know whether those acquisitions
have been paid for by just issuing additional stock or whether there
has been new capital added.

Mr. Grega. I think you will find, Senator, that surplus has been
‘nvested in new property.

The Cuairman. 1s that the only case you have to present this
morning, Mr. Box?

Mr. Box. That is the only one. sir.

(The exhibits submitted by Mr. Box are as follows:)

Exuisit A

PaELPS, DopeE & Co,,
New York, June 15, 1911.
To the storkholders of Phelps, Dodge « Co.:
At the time of the purchase by Phelps, Dodge & Co. of the Copper Quecn
Jonsolidated Mining Co., Detroit Copper Mining Co. of Arizona, Moctezuma
Copper Co., and the Stag Cannon IFuel Co. the values of the mines and mining
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claims of these companies were carried on the respective books at nominal
figures only, following out an estublished policy of years’ standing,

Since the law relative to excess tax on corporations became effective we have

found that to avail ourselves of its provisions as to deductions from annual
gross income for depreciation on mines and mining claims it Is essential that
the actual value of mines and mining claims shall be recorded in our books
and accounts because of the following ruling of the United States Internal
Revenue Department, viz: * No system of bookkeeping or accounting will be
required by the department., However, the business tramsacted by corpora-
tions, etc., must be so recorded that each and every item therein set forth may
be readily verified by an examination of the books and accounts where such
examination is deemed necessary.”
« To meet these conditlons and establish our right to deductions for deprecia-
tien we have, under authority of the bhoard of dircctors of the several com-
panies mentioned, written up the values of mines and mining claims as follows,
S0 that the total values shown on the books will equal the total estimated
values at the time of the sile to Phelps, Dodge & Co., December 31, 1908

From book l

value of— To—
Copper Queen Consolidated Minlng Co... o n oo reeei e icvreaunn $500, 286, 45 | $13, D67, 242.74
Detroit opper Minlng Co. of Azlzona . 585, 984, 4 2,821, 569, 35

Moctezuma Copper Co.._......._...
Stag Canon Fuel Co. .

092 770. %0 3,846,201, 71
.)00'.000 00 3,479,061, 93

Praeurs, Donce & Co,,
W. B. Craxg, Comptroller,

ExHIBIT B

The following Is n statement attached to the return of annual net incowe of
the Copper Queen Consolidated Mining Co. for the year 1910 sworn to by
Jumes Douglas, president, and George Nottman, treasurer:

COPPER QUEEN CONSOLIDATED MINING CO.—DEPRECIATION

In fixing “a fair and just estiinate of the actunl amount of depreciation”
this company has corsidered that its plant and real estate would be obsolete
or worthless in approximately elght and one-third years, and therefore for a
number of yeirs has been writing off 12 per cent per annum covering such
depreciation,

The books of the company do not definitely show *“the amount actuaily in-
vestedd ” representing the value in mines and mining claims, but in making up
his report of annual net income we desire to clearly indicate that we believe
we are making a fair end just estimate when we assume that 12 years will ap-
proximate the life of the mines, and therefore the annual rate of depreciation
of mines and mining claims will be one-twelfth of their total estimated valne.
belng, say, $13,967.242,74,

This depreciation i3 based upon the fair aund just valuation of sald mines
and mining claims as determined December 31, 1908.

The plant Investment and real estate is carrled on December 31, 1910, at
$2.152,424.04, an eighth of which is $269,053.

The mine value as per valuation of December 31, 1908, is $13,067.242.74,
on which the depreciation of one-twelfth aunually is $1,163,936.90, the depre-
clution on both plant and real estate and mines and mining claims aggregating
$1,432,980.90).

Exxisir C
The following iz a statement attached to the return of the Stag Cannon Fuel

' Co, for the year 19009, which was sworn to by A, C. James, viee president, and -
George Notman, treasurer:
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BABIS OF ARRIVING DEPRECIATION FOR REPORTING AND RETURN OF NET INCOME FOR
1909, STAG CANNON FUEL CO.

This company is the Operating Fuel Co. at Dawson, N. Mex,, for the Dawson
conl flelds, and is operating uander lease the mines and plant of the Dawson
Fuel Co. In connection with its own plant,

In fixing “a fair and just estimate of the actual amount of deprecintion”
upon the plant and real estate, not including the mines, of the above-named
preperties, wonld say that the only charge =o far set up against this class of
company property is to cover the ordinary wear and tear which Is not made
good through -naintenance and repairs,

. In making this report of annual net income we desire to clearly indieate that
we belleve we are making a fair and just estimate when we assume that 20
years will approximate the life of the plant, and therefore the annual deprecia-
tion will be one-twentieth of the toisal value of the plant as of December 31,
1909, apportioned as follows: Dawson plant $2.327,150.53, and Stag Cannon
plant $129,346.00. Total depreciation will be $122.825.28 annually.

Exwnir D

The following is a statement attached to the return of the Moctezuma Copper
Co. of New York for the yeur 1809, which was sworn te by A, . James, vice
president, and George Notman, treasurer.

BABIS FOR ARRIVING AT DEPRECTATION AND VALUE OF MINES FOR REPORTING DEPRECIA-
TION FOR RETURN OF NET INCOME FOR 1009, MOCTEZUMA COPPER O,
Balance sheet December 31, 1908

Plant investment and real estate (not including mines and

mining elaimms . e e 83, 000, 480, 82
OENOL ASEOES i s et m e s e o e oo o e i = 1,003, 217, 47
Estimate@ value of mines____. . __.__. o e e e e 3.846,201. 71

ot o e+ e ], 000, 406, 00

In fixing *“a fair and just estimate of the actual mmount of depreciation ™ this
company considers that its plant and real estate will be obsolete and practically
valueless in approximately eight and one-third years, and will therefore de-
preciate this class of its property, say, by an annual deduction of one-eighth of
23,090,480.82, cqualling $386,310.10. :

The books of this company do not deflnitely show the ‘“amount actually
invested " representing the value in mines and mining claims, but in making
this report of net annual income we desire to clearly indicate that we believe
we are making g fair and just estimate when we assume that 12 years will
approximate the life of the mines, and therefore the annual ate of depreciation
of mines and mining claims will be one-twelfth of their total value, as shown
above, being, say, $3,846,.201.71. The annual depreciation, therefore, will be
on mines $320,516.82 and is based upon the fair and just valuation of said
mines as determined December 31, 1908, as per above memo. Ne depreciation
is included in the ordinary and necessary expenses but is shown under the

proper heading,

Exmsit B

The following is a statement attached to the return of net income of the
Detroit Copper Mining Co. of Arizona for the year 190% which was sworn
to by C.'H. Dodge, president, and George Notman, treasurer.
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BABIS FOR AKRIVING AT DEPRECTIATION AND VALUE OF MINES FOR REPORTING DEPRECIA-
TION FOR RETURN OF NET INCOME FOR 1909—DETROIT COPPFR MINING (0. OF

ARIZONA 4
Balanee sheet, December 31, 1908

Plant fnvestment and rveal estate (not including mines and

mining clalms) o e $4l4 2143. 52
Other a88ets . e et —————— e ‘., 764, 187. 13
Estimated value of mines_ .o e ;., 821, 569. 35

Totalo oo e e o e 88 e (iv.OOO 000. 00

In fixing “a fair and just estimate of the actual amount of depreclation,”
this company considers that its plant and real estate will be obsolete and
practically valueless in approximately elght and one-third years, and will,
thorefore, depreciate this class of its property, say, by an annual deduction
of one-cighth of $414,243.52, equaling $51,780.44. Would say that this company
has for a number of years past been depreciating its capital investment at the
rate of 12 per cent annually,

The books of this compuny o not definitely show the “amount actally
invested,” representing the value in mines and mining claims, but in making
this report of net annual income we desire to clearly indicate that we believe
that we are making a fair and just estimate, when we assume that 12 years
will approximate the life of the mines, and mining claims will be one-twelfth of
thelr total value as shown above, being, say, $2,821,569.35.° The annual de.
preciation will be, therefore, $235,130.78, and is based upon the fair and just
valuation of sald mines as i]('t()l‘lnill(‘(l Dvcemlu-r +1, 1908, as per memorandum
nbove, No depreciation is included in the ordhnuv and necessary expenses,
but ix shown under the proper heading.

Exumir P
PHELPS DODGE CORPORATION AND SUHBSIDIARIES

The lettors have bheen signed by the reviewer merely as a matter of form
in ovder that case may go through regular channels. The case is handled
ahsolutely erroncously even from the standpoint of allowing paid-in surplus;
basis used to determine depletfon for invested capital is groundless even
should the figures be approximately correct. (Which Is not admitted.) - The
depletion should be fizured on <ach grade of copper separately based on a
suitable production life. (Th'. :» possihle,) There is also allowed reserves
for bad debts and taxes $850. ¢« which is in no way substantiated nor was
it claimed by taxpayer on his own amended return.

My signafure is therefore a matter of form only and I shall in no way be
rc-sponaiblo for the inaccuracies in this case.

Rou'r P, BMITH,

DrcEMBER 13, 1922,

Exmspit G
MEMORANDIIM FROM REVIEW SKCTION

I'helps Dodge Corporation and subsidiaries,

A number of discrepancies appear in this case,

In the first place, as to valuation, the amounts allowed pm\lsimmlly by Engi-
neer Darnell nre not substantiated by any figures.  The valuntion shown by five
different methods in metal section show that the value of minex could not he
more than $72,000,000 as of 1913, and that ti.c evidence shows that no pafid-in
surplus existed as of 1908. The largest possible value for invested capital ix
'$45,000,000 or the par value of stock at January 1, 1914, To which should be
wlded the acquisitions for cash hetween the dates of January 1, 1909, and Janu-
ary 1, 1914, It is understood that the metals valuation section is not allowed
to make a revaluation in this case ou the grounds that it is a closed incident,




INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE 8367

This, of course, is not true, as an A-2 letter assessing additional tax is now
nnder preparation, It should be noted that a memorandum, approved by head
of division, prepared by coul vuluation section, wherein the value of the conl
property has been revalued and accepred by the audit, which redueces original
value shown by Mr, Darnell by approximately $10,000,000. It is not clear why
a revaluation is permitted on coal lunds and not for metals.  This method of
valulng merely transfers the reduced value of the conl to the copper and is
very inconsistent,

It is my judgment that casxe ought to be closed on baxiy of memorandum
from metal valuation section, which is in the file, but which is not yet ap-
proved by head of division,

Assuming, however, that the value of $90,000,000 should be followed, there
are apparent discrepancies which even then should be changed.

The original mineral deposit was grouped in the following companies, which
were acquired for stock in 1308 by the Phelps Dodge Co. for $45,000,000 of
stock :

Stag Common Conl COo e e $4, 000, 000
Copper Queen Consolidated Cooo o2 27, 000, 000
Detrolt Copper Com e G, 000, 001
Moctezuma Copper QO ot e 8, (000, 40O

O e e 43, 0070, 600

Allowing an additional paid-in surplus of $45,000,000, allocating propor-
tionately as above, we would have the following original values, which also
includes physical and liguid assets,

Stag CommOon CORD COm et e s e $8, 000, 0600
Copper Queen Consolidated Coo oo 54, 000, 000
Dotroft Copper Qoo oo e ——— 12, 000, 000
Moctezuma Copper Coo e — e e 16, 000, 000

PO e [ 90, 000, 000

The conl valuation seetion has valued the conl land as $1,652,100, hence the
above shiould be reduced by the difference between $8,000,000 and $1,652,100, or
$6,347,900,

Hy rt .
The difference therefore should be disgllowed from Invested capital,
The value of the mineral assets should therefore be—

Value shown on books Dee, 31, 1916 o e $31, 616, 649, 65
PIUS e e o e e e e e s e e e $45, 000, 000
LESS mame e e e ot e 2 e e 6, 3417, 800

C e 38, 652, 100, 00

Total o —————— 73, 268, 749, 65

Total new value is based on provisional paid-in surplus allowance, and in-
cluding asvets which were acquired since organization for cush, and without
deducting depletion.

The method of computing depletion is decidedly incorrect; in fact, the entire
cost, including paid-in surplus, has been allocated to three companies—the Cop-
per Queen, the Moctezuma, and the Detroit Co.—whereas there is approxi-
mately 237,000,000 pounds o¢f copper in Burro Mcntana mine, which was ge-
guired for cash before 1913 ; but after organization (date not known), also the
Copper Queen porpbyry depoxit, which wuas assigned no value, which have
not been considered.

The value of all grades of copper from various interests has been considered
as being the same, whereas the value of the Copper Queen, which was the maos»
valuable asset, has a much larger unit value than others. ence, «s the values
are already allocated, the depletion on each grade of copper should be flzured
separately.. Since the greater part of the value is represented in the Queen
copper mines, it s believed that the depletion in any event would be greatly
increased.

The allocation of stock acquisition includes in addition to the mining
deposit considerable physieal assets, for this reuson depletion computation will
entail considerable work ; and a memorandum from valuation sectlon contain-
ing these computations should be sccured.



3368 INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAIL REVENUE

It i1, therefore, recommended that if the above valuation of metals he ap-
proved (which is not considered correct), that the appreciation applicable to
coal be eliminated; and that the depletion for invested capital be computed
on metals, including computation of the Burro Montana mine, and in any event
computed on the basis of the value of copper of each mine separately, which Is
clearly shown,

It might be well to state that should this case be closed In its present de-
plorable condition the department would not he able to vetract its position,
as this is a paid-in surplus allowance and not a January 1, 1914, value, which
we are dealing with, Consequently if it is permitted to be closed for 1917
on this busls it would follow same would be allowable for kubsequent years,
This company Las paid only about 10 per cent tax. The additional assessment
ifcreases this somewhat, The average rate for this class of companies, inelud-
ing largest copper mines, 18 not less than 18 io 20 per cent; und the average
is about 30 per cent for 1917, There {8 more than $10.000.000 additional tax
involved in this cage for the three years, and sincee we arve partinlly distributing
the value requested by them, we might better take them at their word and
close the case under section 210, as they have so requested on thels amended
1017 return.  Sce valuation request, dated November 22, 1022,

It should be borne in mind that neither the review rectlon or metals valua-
tion seetion approve the valuation in this case. Additional jwints to be in-
vestigated by nuditor,

On the balance sheet submitted by the taxpayer or that contnined in agent's
report there doex not appear any reserve for tuxes or *“bad debts™ nelther
does taxpayer claim any such items on his return for “ invested capital.”

The reviewer does not follow adjustmments made for depreclation.  The tax-
payer shows a consolidated reserve for depreclation of $3,904,847.87.  Auditor
har made adjustment for additional depreciation of $1.000,752.95, and for
what he ealls depreciation restored to eapitul as of December 31, 1016, of
$1.440,000, These adjustments are questionable.  The amounts shown on
schedule (21-1) Hsted *“as per books"” do not agr.. with resources on halanea
sheets,  The auditor should check this. Reviewer does not say they are
fncorrect, but time alloeated for review does not permit of a detailed check
of those items, so same should be carefully investigated by auditor,

It iz recommended that above points be carvefully considercd.

RoserT I’ SM1TH, Reviewer.

Exuamir H
DECEMBER 11, 1022,

Memorandum for Deputy Commissioner Batson.
(Attention Mr. Fay, head natural rexources division.)

Reference 1s made to the memorandum prepared by Mr. Grimes to the
commissioner, dated January 7, to Mr. Fay's memorandum to you, dated Feb-
ruary 7, to your memorandum to Mr. Fay, dated February 16. and to the
various memorandum regarding the tax liabllity of copper companies for 1917
and subsequent years,

Full consideration has been given to the gquestion, and it is concluded that
for 1919 and subsequent years the valuation of the ore bodles of copper mines
should be revised. The price of approximately 15 cents a pound, recommended
by the natural resources division, and the 10 per cent Interest rate are ap-
proved for the purpose of discounting to the present worth. The Income Tax
Unit is authorized and instructed immediately to proceed to the revaluation
of the copper and silver mining companies for the purpose of determining their
tax Mability for 1919 and subsequent years in accordance with the recommen-
dation heretofore made by it.

D. H. Bras,

Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

A. W. MrL10N,
Seoretary of the Treasury.

Approved :
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Exnisir 1

MEMORANDUM
May 28, 1923,

In re: Phelps-Dodge Corporation.

To the COMMISSIONER:

A conference was held in my office this morning with representatives of
the above-named corporation to discuss the proposal of the Income Tax Unit
to reopen the 1017 audit because of an erroneous computation of the {nvested
capital in office letter dated Juue 10, 1920,

Mr. Matthew C. Fleming and Mr. Sterling, who represented the corporation,
exhibited a copy of a valuation report dated December 1, 1919, signed by Mr.
L. C. Graton, valuation engineer, and Mr. J. C. Dick, head metals valuaticn sec-
tion. in which the total valuation of the mineral property was sald to be in the
neighborhood of $110,000,000 as of 1908, the date of the organization of the
company. A subsequent memorandum, undated, signed by Mr. J. L. Darnell,
then head of the natural resources subdivision, states that it was agreed that
the company should be permitted to include a paid-in surplus of $45,000,000 in
the invested capital, since it was clearly shown that the properties had a value
in 1908 in excess of $90,000,000.

Acting upon the recommendation of Mr. Darnell, the consolidated returns
subdivision prepared a letter dated March 3, 1020, in which it was stated that
the invested capital for the year 1917 should be $110,756,190.37.

Ap audit was made shortly thereafter and the tax liability for the year
1917 determined. The auditor in preparing a letter setting forth this tax
Mability stated * your invested capital has been fixed as agreed in conference
at $110,756,100.37." This letter is written in longhand preparatory to typing,
but was never typed, as a request was made by the corporation at this time
that the audit be extended to cover the year 1818. The final letter dated June
10, 1920, contained schedules 1 to 30, setting forth the tax liability for the
vears 1917 and 1918 and was made * subject to amendment by a fleld examina-
tion, which may later be made if deemed necessary by the burean.” It appears
that the change in wording of the final assessment letter from that proposed
by the auditor has some significance, and the inference is that the audit for
the year 1917 was considered by all concerned to have been complete, but when
in compliance with the request of the corporation the year 1918 was included
in this audit it was thought best to make such audit for the year 1918 subject
to a field examination, since no revenue agent’s examination had been made
for that year.

Therefore 1 wish to recommend that, although the year 1917 was mathe-
matically incorrect and the invested capital allowed the corporation was con-
siderably in excess of the proper allowance, it should be considered closed,
but the unit should be allowed to reopen the audit for 1918 on all points other
than the actual valuation of the property to determine the correc§_ tax llability.

. G. B.
Asgistant Deputy Qommissioner.

Exuamir J

THE UNDERSKECRETARY OF THE TREABURY,
. Washington, June 29, 1923.
To the CoMMISSIONER OF INTERN AL REVENUE! *

T am returning herewith the papers which you left with me in connection
with the tax liability of the Phelps-Dodge Corporation. ¥rom such examina-
tion as I have been able to make of the papers and from the statements made
the other afternoon hy the various representatives of the Bureau of Internal
Itevenue and the Solicitor of Internal Revenue, I should say that tue error
in the computation of invested capital raised a sufficiently serious question
as to tax lability to warrant the reopening of the case for both 1017 and 1918.
I take it from the statements made by the representatives of the Income Tax
Unit that for 1917 the result is likely to be about the same even if the case 18
reopened. but apparently there might be quite a different result for 1918,
and since there is no doubt as to the legal power of the commissioner to
reopen the case I think it had hest he reopened for all purposes for both
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years, thus avolding any possibility of stopping the Government in respect to
1918 through acceptance of the compututfon for the purposes of the 1917 tax.

, ST, Guseer, Jry,

Exnipr K

OsBoRN, FLEMING & WHITILESEY,
~New York, January 19, 192,
Hon. AxprEw . MELLON,
Secretary of the Treasury, Washington, D. (. :

DEAR MR, SECRETARY : On January 20 of last year you very kindly guve me a
conference with regard to the taxes of Phelps-Dodge Corpuration for the
years 1917 and 1918, which we regard ns finally seteled in 1920, Later § sent
additicnal data to you and afterwards had conterences with M. Bright ana
other people in the Bureau of Internal Reyvenue,

I have heard nothing from the department since last June, bui the com-
pany is now in receipt of a burenu letier dated Jaunuary 17 stating that for
1017 an additional assessment of $131,116 will be made, and #lse of u letter
dated January 11 which suggests that the compuany ix lable for an additicnal
agsessment of $4.303,195 for 1918, Most of the facts with regard to both
these matters were set forth in the papers submitted to you last yenr, and it
would not be right for me to ask you to reexamine them. 1 do think, how-
ever, that we are justifie! in calling to your personal attention the following
summary : . ’

For the year 1917 this additional tax of $131,116 is veached by veducing the
invested capitale fixed at $110,756.190 by the bureau in 3920, to roughly
$102,000.000. The bureau now claims that the reduction is made BeCessary
by a ‘mathematical error.” We clunim that the supposed error is due to a
difference of opinion as to tne meaning of article 844 of Regulations 45. The
important fact, however, and the one which I desive to submit to your
personal consideration ts this: .

I have sworn, and it is absolutely the fact. that we made a bargain with the
department in 1920 whereby in considernrion of onr obtaining the above £110,-
000,000 invested capital, irrespective of how it was made ap., we gecepted a
very large reduction in the depletion figurex which our engineers elpimed and
agreed to a reduction of ahout $40,000,000 in the March 13, 1013, vajae of our
mines, We did this becanse we then felt that this increased invested eapital
would offset in taxex what we lost by reason of inereased income. That this
weas not & one-sided bargain is shown by the fact that the entire nssets of the
company in 1917 were worth far in excess of $110,000,000; and then when the
company was formed in 1908, ax appears by a memorandum of the Government
engineers dated December 1, 1919, on file in the Lurepu, the mines alone were
worth about $110,000,000, This mine value with other assets wounld make 2
total 1908 value of $135,000,000 at the time the company was formed instegd
of the §90,000,000 which we agreed to accept if our 1917 invested capital was
left at $£110,000,000. On this basis our “paid-in surplis” in 1908 would have
been $90.000,000 instead of the agreed $45.000.000. So that there is no question
about the fact that the bargain was made and that it was not u disadvanta-
£eous ohe to the Government. We therefore contend that it ix absolutely
unfair for the Government now to recede from itz side of this 1020 bargain
by docreasing our invested capital thus agreed upon and at the same time to
get the benefit of its part of the bargain by holding us te a lower depletion
and lower valuation in 1908, at the time of the formation of the company, than
we certainly could have obtained in 1920 if any such contentions as the present
oney had then been made.

The same facts affect the invested capital and depletion for the year 19318,
For as part of the same arrangement it was agreed that the invested enpital
and depletion fixed for the year 1917 were to be carried forward and made
the basis for the year 1918,

One additional fact will show that we have always rezarded the matier as
¢losed, and that is that under sectior 304 (c¢) of the 1921 law we had a perfect
right to go back and clafmn a refund for that part of our 1917 income due to
the production of gold. We have always advised the company. however, that
as the above settlement was final, it had no right to disaffirm it by making any
application for refund under this section.
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In order that there may be no question ax to the form in which these state-
ments are made I attach my affidavit,

We therefore respectfully ask that ia some way these very annoying matters
boe closed for the two yenrs in question and that the department ve up to the
bargnin which its predecessors made in 1920,

Very respeetfully yours,
Marrarw C. FLEMING.

N1 ATE oF NEW YORK.
County of New Yark, se:

Matthew . Fleming, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he is general
caunsel for Phelps Dodge Corporation and is familiar with the facts stated in
the phove leiter. and that the same are troe to the best of his knowledge, in-
formation, ami belief,

Kwaorn to before me this 19th day of January, 1921

Javes Harwg,
Natary Publie No. 95, Kibigs County.

My commission expires Mareh 30, 1924,

ExmmiTt L

(Copy of schedule No. 13. including letter of June 10, 1920, from rough draft
in files: original letter not found)

SHEDULE 10

Analysiz of depletion rexerve, Phelps Dodge Corporation, year ended
December 37, 1917

Cost of mining claims per DOoOKS. e meee $34, 618, 640, 85
Patd-in =urplus_ e 45, 000, 000, 00
TPOtA] COSLe v e e et e e e e e 79, 616, 649. 65
Value Mar. 1, 1915, per United States engi-

THCOTS e e e e e e i i e e $132, 285, 000. 00

Bunker Hill mines. e 1, 092, 019. 29
Total value Mar, 1, 1913 .o 133, 377, 019. 29
Deplaetion sustained based on value Mar, 1, 1913 ... 53, 760, 360, 64
Depletion from Mar, 1, 1913, to Dec. 31, 1916 ——— 20, 123, 008, 65
s

Depletion above divided proportionutely— Per cent
As ne depletion on COSte e 659.70 12,013, 436,16
And realized appreciation . iaae 40.30 8.109,572. 49
M 0 2 UV RO 100. 00 20, 123, 008. 65
Depletion reserve per books Dec. 31, 1016 .. 13, 432, 404. 33
Depletion sustained 0D COSto e e 12, 013, 436. 18
Allowable addition under schedule B. oo omee e 1, 418, 968, 17
Realized appreciation as above. . _____ e 8, 109, 572.49
Total allowable addition under Schedule B .o 9, H28, 540. 66

(See Exhibit M following in explanation of elmination of * Realized
appreciation.”)
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Exmmsir M
Marc G, 1924,

Mr.’MartraeEw C. FLEMING,
New York, N. Y.

Sig: Receipt is scknowledged of your letters dated Junuary 19 and 31, 1924,
in regard to the tax linbility of the Ihelps-Dudge Corporation for the vears
1017 and 1918, but presenting no information or argument which has net
previously been considered by the department.

On June 29, 1923, the Actlug Seeretary of the Treusury instructed the
Commissioner of Internal Reveuue that in the caxe of the determination of
tax lability of the helps-Dodge Corporation for 1917 and 1018 “the crror
in the eomputation of invested capital ralsed a sufficiently serious question
s to tax lability to warrant the reopening of the ease for both 1917 and
1918, and that “since there is no doubt as to the legal power of {he com-
missioner to reopen the case 1 think it had best be reopened for all purposis
for both years.”

The above instructions did not reach the Income Tax Unit until after the
walver covering the 1917 tax liebility furnished by the tuxpayer had expired
and a materially lower additional axsessinent vesulted than would otherwise
have heen the case,

The Income Tax Unit has followed the instructions of the Acting Seerctary
of the Treasury daved June 29, 1923, concerning the audit of the 1918 roturn
of this taxpayer. The procedure directed in the letter just mentioned has
been adjusted to accord with previous instryctions on copper-tiine revaluntion
contained in a letter dated December 11, 1922, from the Commissioner of
Internal Revenue under my approval.

Inasmuch as a decizion was reached to allow the originul, or provicional,
valuations to govern the audit of returns for 1917 and 1918, but to make
new valuations for invested capital and depletion for the audit of roturns for
1919 and subsequent years, the values which you state were the resalt of g
bargain with the department in 1920 have not been altered for 1917 or 191K,

The value allowed in 1918 for invested capital ax at January 1. 1909, has
been reduced by the amount of depletion sustained to December 31, 1017, in
accordance with the explicit instructions in regulations 45, article 839,

The only adjustment made in the reaudit of the 1917 return of this taxpayer
was to elimir:ite the amount of realized appreciation which had been errone-
ously allowed in office letter of June 10, 1920.

Inasmuch as the books of the taxpayer prior to December 31. 1016, had
not reflected depletion, except upon tlre basis of cost, it i® obvious that there
can be no realized appreciation added to invested cupital in 1917 on account
of depletion in excess of that on cost.

I am therefore of the opinion that the Income Tax Unit in its consideratfon
of the 1017 and 1918 tax liability of the Phelps-Dodge Corporation has com-
plled with the instructions eited, and trust that this review of the situnation
will be both satisfactory and conclusive to your client. If such is not the case,
waivers may be filed for both 1917 and 1918 and complete reconsideration
accorded to the audit of the returns for both years, including valuution ques-
tions, if you so desire, '

Respectfully,
A, W. MgLrox,
Secretary of the Treasury.

Exgmsit N
Marcmr 28, 1924,
Mr, MATTHEW C. FLEMING,
New York, N. Y.

Sm: Reference is made to your letter dated March 10. 1924, in regard to the
income-tax liability of the Phelps-Dodge Corporation for the years 1917 and
1918, involving the depletion values established for these years as well as the
invested capital.

* Inasmuch as the fizures arrived at by the bureau ss to the determination
of the March 1, 1913, values for the purpose of depletion and the amount of
invested capital to which the texpayer is entitled for the years 1917 and 1018
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are not satisfactory to the taxpayer, and in view of the misunderstanding as
to certain adjustinents in these values, the entive ciase will be reconsidered.
Referring to your statement in regard to any bargain which may have been
mad by the bureau's reprexentative with respeet to depletion values and in-
vested capital, you are advised that these matters are questions of fact to be
established by the best evidence available, and the bureau’s representative
in the particular audit case is not vested with authority whereby such valaes
may be established through bargaining with the taxpayer's represcntative,
The case will, however, be carefully reconsidered by reprerentatives of the
Income Tax Unit. The conference will be arranged at an early date, at which
which you may preseut any additional evidence and uarguments which you
desire to be considered.
Respectfully, .
D. Il Brawx, Commissioner

Exnmir O

JANUARY 2¢, 1925,
Mr, GreeNIpge: I am returning memorandum dated January 10, 1923, ad-
dresged to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue and prepared for my signa-
ture, wherein a request is made of the commis<ioner that he inform this office
(metals valuation section, Income Tax Unit) as to the interpretation of the
intent of the memorandum dated June 29, 1923, from Undersecretary Gilbert,
and the commissioner’s letter dated March 28, 1924, 0
I do not see the necessity of requesting the commissioner to place an inter-
pretation on either his letter of March 28, 1924, addressed to Mr. Matthew C.
Fleniing in connection with the audit of the Phelps-Dodge Corporation case
for the years 1917 and 1918 or to the memorandum from Undersecretary Gil-
bert dated June 29, 1923, with reference to the same corporation, in view of
the definite information contained in the letter of the Secretary to Mr. Matthew
C. Fleming dated March 6, 1924. Your attention is invited to the last para-
graph of the first page of that letter and to the last sentence of the last
paragraph on page 2, which read as follows:
“Inasmuch as a decislon was reached to allow the original, or provisional,
valuations to govern the audit of returns for 1917 and 1918, but to make new
valuations for invested capital and depletion for the audit of returns for 1919
and subsequent years, the values which you state were the result of a ‘ bargain
with the departmenr in 1920° have not been ultered for 1917 or 1918,
“If such is not the case, walvers may be filled for both 1917 and 1918 and
complete reconsideration accorded to the audit of the returns for both years,
including valuation questions, if you so desire.” -
In all the conferences held with this taxpayer and its representatives they
have been informed that the original, or provisional, valuations for the years
1017 and 1918 would not be altered. but that the commissioner had the right
and. authority to reopen the case for these years, inasmuch as there had been
a mathematical error made in the computation of the invested capital for those
two years. The error in question iz on realized appreciation in an amount
approximately $8,000,000 erroneously allowed in office letter of June 10, 1920.
The taxpayer contended that the amouunt of invested capital shown in office
letter of June 10, 1920, was an amount agreed to by the department, and
should therefore stand, and it was not the valuation of the properties as of
& certain date that was agreed to. The taxpayer's representatives were, there-
fore, informed that they would be permitted to produce evidence which might
fnereas: the valuation if such evidence was based in the light of the circum-
stances and conditions under which the valuations for the years 917 and 1918
were made by those officers of the Income Tax Unit in charge of the metals
valuations section,

" Therefore it appears toc me that ihis ease i open to the Government only
for the purpose of correcting the error in invested capital and to the taxpayer
to permit it to prove a high valuation on the basis of evidence and facts in its
possession,

J. G. BrIcHT. Deputy Commiscioner.
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Exumir I

Jaxuvany 10, 1023,
Memorandum to the Commirsioner of Internal Revenue.
In re: Phelps Dodge Corporation, 170 Broadway, New York, N. Y.

Reference is made to a8 memvrandum of Undersecretary of the Treasury
8. P. Gllbert, jr., dated June 29, 1923, to a leiter of Secretary of the Treasury
A. W. Mellon, dated March 6, 1924, aud to a letter of Commissioner of Internal
Revenue D, H. Blair, dated Maveh 258, 1924, Coples of the above memorandum
and letters are attached.

It has been the understanding of the metals section that the.questions raised
and presented for the conslderation of Underseeretary 8. P, Glibert, aud to
which his memorandum of June 29, 1923, refers, were only those pertaining
to ceftain adjustments to invested capital for the years 1917 and 1918, and
that, while the Inngusge of the memorandumn of My, Gilbert refers to “ reopening
the case for all purposes ™ the intent was to confine the reopening of the case
to the question considered by My, Gilherty  Thix understanding was reached
after {nterviewing Mr, W, . Tungate, chief of section G, consolidated audit
division, and Mr. Nelson ‘T, Harton, Solicitor of Internsl Revenue, who were
present at the conference with Undersecretary Gilbert, and appears to be
correct, as evidenced by the letter of the Secretary of the Treasury dated
March 6. 1924,

The statement in the sceond paragraph of the letter of the commissioner
dated March 28, 1024, might be open to the possible interpretation that the
questions of valuation for invested capital and depletion are to be reopened
by the unit for the taxable years 1917 and 1918, and upon thé basis of valua-
tion approved by the memorandum of December 11, 1922, from the commis-
sloner authorizing and instrueting the Income Tax Unit to revalue the copper-
mining indusiry. :

It is the understanding of the metals valuation section that the ¢ provisional
values” allowed for depletion and invested capital are to govern the unit in
the audit of tax returns for 1917 and 1918 for all of the copper companies,
which would include the Phelps Dodge Corporation, unless the taxpayer pro-
testing such valuations is able to substantiate greater values than were allowed
by the “provisional valuations,” and the letter of March 28, 1924, signed by
the commissioner is interpreted subject to the foregoing limitation,

The taxpayer has presented no new evidence to substantiate claimed values
ot the properties at acquisition and at March 1, 1913, and a reconsideration
at this time by the unit would, in the opinion: of the metals valuation section,
result in material reduction in the amounts allowed by the * provisional valua-
tions,” both as at date of aequisition and as at March 1, 1913,

Will you please advise the metals section whether the above interpretation
of the intent of the memorandum of Undersecretary Gilbert and your letter of
March 28, 1924, 13 correct. or whether it i intended to make an exception
in this care to the general rule that the “ provisional values” shall be allowed
to stand for 1917 and 1918 a¢ Indicated by your memorandum of December 11,
1922, in rogard to revalnation of the copper-mining companies

0

Deputy Coinmissioner.

Exuit Q
Jasuvary 23, 1925

Memorandum for file of I'helps Dodge Corporation (1918 return).

In re: Letter of January 10, 1825, addressed to the Commissioner of Internal
Revenue bearing symbols IT: EN: M: ©.T.D. and copies of letters attached
thereto.

About January 20, 1925, Mr, Greenidge, head of engineering division, stated
verbally that the commissioner had instructed him that the case was to be
audited in conformity with the statements of his letter of Muarch 28, 1924,
directed to Mr. M. C. Fleming, attorney for the above corporation.

In view of the questions of this office directed to the commissioner in the
letter of January 10, 1925, this office can read the commissioner's letter in but
ohe way and therefore recommends that the case be revalued for 1918 on the
basis of the valuation methods approved by the commissioner in his memo-
randum of December 11, 1922, authorizing and instructing the Income Tax
Unit to revalue the copper and silver mining industries.
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The valuations of the properties of the taxpuyer are therefore being sent

to audit on this basis,
JONN ALDEN GRIMES,
Chief, Metals Valuation Section,

F. T. Doxanor,
Axxistant Chicf, Metals Valuatiom Section,

Exmmr R
JANUARY 26, 1925,
MEMORANDUM

In re: Phelps Dodge Corporation, New York, N, ¥,
Mr, 8. M. GREENIDGE,
Head Engincering Divizion,

Your attention is invited to the attached memorandum dated January 238,
1925, prepared in the metals valwition section of your division, -which reeom-
mends that the case of the above-named comwpuny be reaundited for the year
1918, using as the basis a new vahmtion as at date of organization and March
1, 1913, which conforms with the valuation methods used for alli copper com-
panies in connection with their 1919 returas,

Under date of December 11, 1922, tlie commissioner, with the approval of
the Secretary of the Treasury, instructed the Income Tax Unit to revalue the
copper companies for the years subsequent to 1918, and made it very clear
that no revaluation was to be attempted for the years 1917 and 1918, This
procedure has been followed in all the copper vompanies to date, and to take
the action recommended by the metals cection in its memorandum mentioned
would appear to place the I’helps Dodge Corporation in an unfavorable posi-
tion when compared with the action taken on other compaunies similarly situ-
ated. It is true that the commissioner’s letter dated March 28, 1924, may be
interpreted to mean that the revaluation should be made for both years 1917
and 1918, but that interpretation would he in confliet with letter of March G,
1924, signed by the Secretary of the Treasury, which explains to the attorney
of the company in detail what action is contemplated for all years involved.

In view of the situation in which the audit division findy iteelf placed by
the suhmission of a new valuation report for the year 1918 by your division,
it is felt that your personal approval ot this action should be secured hefore a
reaudit is made vpon the basis of the valuation submitted with the memo-
randum of January 23, 1925.

. Head Consolidated Rcturns Divi'sion.

Senator Kixe. I would like to have the department give us their
view of the matter that I suggested the other day, and I wish to
suggest it now. because it will be involved in legislation, it seems
to me, and I may want to make some recommendations in our
report if the committee does not agree with me on this matter. In
looking over the report for 1922 I find that there were 170,348 cor-
porations that made returns showing no net income whatever.,

Mr. Grece. For what vear is that, Senator?

Senator Kixe. 1922, What is the page there?

Mr. Grece. We can find the page. ‘

Senator Kixc. And yet those same corpovations paid cash divi-
dends amounting to nearly $25>4,000.000 and stock dividends amount-
ing to $181,134,291, or a total of $1.349.794.

I should be very glad, if it is not too much trouble, Mr. Nash, to
have somebody in vour office look over those corporations—some of
the outstanding corporations there—which paid the largest divi-
dends and give us your view as to how it was possible for them to
make the returns which they did of no income whatever. and yet
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pay cash dividends and stock dividends amounting to $434.000,000,
or nearly $435,000,0007

Mr. Greo. I think T can answer the Senator now. I know I can
answer him now as well as I could after an investigation.

The dividends paid by a corporation during a given year do not
necessarily bear any relation at all—as a matter of fact, they usualiy
do not—to the earnings in that year.

The Cramyan. T am interested in that, because 1 find that the
new computation on the chairman’s stock based it on the dividends
that were paid and those that were not paid.

Mvr. Grece. I thought they based it on the earnings of the corpora-
tion rather than on the dividends.

The Cuameman, Well, the statement was that the dividends weve
likely to be less instead of more, or something to that etfect.

Pardon me for interrupting you, Senator.

Senator Kixe, Let me say tf)is: That my understanding is that
many of these same corporations before and since have made similar
reports.

r. Grece. That is quite possible. Senator, but look at this point
.of view for just a minute. . '

A corporation’s dividends during a given year are not determined,
as a usual thing, by the earnings for that vear. Ior example, you
have for the first three months

Senator Kinc. Oh, they may or they may not. It depends on
their practice.

Mr. Grece. During the first three months of the year a large cor-
poration does not even know accurately its earnings for the preceding
year. It certainly does not know its net income, and se many cor-
porations adopt a policy of having their dividends fixed each year.
One year it may be 10 per cent only of the earnings for that year.
In another year it may exceed the earnings for that year, but it does
not bear any direct relation to the income of the corporation for the
year during which the dividends are paid. They are paid out of the
surplus accumulated in prior years. They will pay one year more out
as dividends than they will earn in that year. plrfhe next year they
will pay materially less. The result is that over a period of years
they are adding to their surplus and have a surplus on hand out of
which they can pay in any year a dividend. -

That is particularly true with reference to the dividends on pre-

ferred stock, which are included in the statement which the Senator -

just read. A corporation having preferred stock with a guaranteed
dividend is going to pay them, i? they have a surplus from prior
years, whether they have earnings during a particular year or not.

Another point: A corporation may have tax-exempt income. This
is particularly true of the banks. That does not show in their net in-
fmlr(xf at all, but they can distribute that as dividends to their stock-

10lders.

Again, a mining company or a natural-resource company will dis-
tribute its capital in the form of dividends since its ore body is being
impaired. They have no net income. They may be absolutely op-
erating at a loss, considering the cost of their ore properties, but they
are getting money out-of the property each year, and they might still

3
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lp:;y litltn their stockholders. Tt is not a true dividend, although so
abeled.

I think that is not difficult to explain, if you consider those fac-
tors. It is just on its face that it startles you.

The Cuameman. T think My, Gregg’s statement is a true statement
of the real facts in the situation, and that those statistics do not really
mear what they might imply.

Mr. Greca. I do not think so. I do not think yon can take gen-
eral statistics of this sort and really get anything from them. If you
will take individual companies, you will find hundreds of conditions
which cause this result,

The Creamaax. T think it might he better, then. for the burean, if
they did not publish those statisties, especially if they do not mean
anything in «o far as the interpretation of the activities of the bureau
ix concerned.

Mr. Grece, Of course, our statisties are valuable for purposes
other than tax purposes. They ave used a great deal for purposes
other than tax purposes. .

The Craryax. But it seems to me that the bureau shonld oniy be
interested in statistics which are valuable to itself.

Mr, Grraa, Of course, statistics as to the earnings of corporations
and as to the dividend distributions of corporations are of general in-
terest, particularly in connection with such proposals as Senator
Jones’s for the taxation of undistributed profits.

The Cuamrmax, In that case, why do you not explain that your
statistics of carnings and dividends have no real relation?

Mr. Grrag, I think we should.

The Cunamyax. Yes; I think that should be really emphasized in
red figures, because they really do have no relation.

Mr. Grece. They bear no relation to each other at all—the earn-
ings and dividends for a given year.

The Cpairman, I think the bureau overlooks a very valuable
piece of information when you do not emphasize that.

Mr. Gerrga. I think you are right. We should emphasize it.

Senator Kixeg. Would it be possible, without any very great ef-
fort, Mr. Gregg, to find out whether any of these corporations to
which I hiave just referred are paying those dividen ls in an improper
way : that is to say. that they have concealed assets and earnings, and
are payving these dividends right along from yvear to year without
rendering a just account to the (zovernment?

Mr. Greca. In other words, to see if they are making a fraudulent
income-tax return?

Senator Kine, Yes.

Mr. Grreo, We check them, Senator. just as carvefully and thor-
oughly as possible,  Whether or not they return a taxable income,
we check it to sce if there is fraud. I think a taxpayer contemplat-
ing {fraud would be very slow to pay large dividends aiid report an
absolutely nontaxable return, because it must, on its face, call atten-
tion to facts which would make the department investigate it even
more carefully. I think they would be more apt to return some tax-
able income, if they were attempting to evade the tax fraudulently.

Senator Kine, Would it be difficult to determine what proportion
of these 170,308 corporations which paid dividends and reported no
net income, for how many veays they have done it anterior to that
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year, and whether since those years they have carried on the same
practice?

Mr, Grece. Well, it would involve examining the returns of those
170,000 corporations, not only for the year 1922 but for prior and
subsequent years, which would be quite a task.

The Cramrmax. I would like to ask Mr. Gregg if he does not think
that our investigations are going to disclose some of those things?

Mr. Greda, I think they probably will, _

The Crairmaxn. I think if Senator King will look over the sta-
tistics that we have already compiled and are compiling he will find
them classified as between corporations, as to those who earn and
pay and those who do not earn, and those who distribute less than
60 per cent of their earnings, and he.will develop from those statis-
tics some of the things that he is inquiring for.

Senator Kinc. We will be very glad, Mr. Nash, if you could make
a selection, just to show the point, of some 10 to 23 of those that I
have referred to, giving some that paid the largest dividends. I
wish you would have some clerks in your department go back two or
three years and forward two or three years to see if they have in-
dulged in the same practice for more than that year, just taking 10
to 25 promiscuously. '

Mr. Nasn. Yes; we will do that.

Senator Kinc. To give us a little slant on the extent to which this
practice is carried on.

Mr. Nasa. I just want to add here that the returns of every cor-

oration of any kind that reports no net income are always exam-
med by the field agents and a very careful check is made of such
accounts. As Mr. Gregg pointed out, if they are paying any divi-
dends that do not come out of surplus it constitutes a fraud, and we
have founc or discovered several such cases. Several of them are
of considerable size. We have a very prominent millionaire of the
Middle West serving time in Leavenworth to-day for that very thing.

The CHalrMaN, §'ly own observation is that the bureau is very
strict and very careful to check all corporation returns of any mag-
nitude, regardless of whether they turn in an income tax or not. Is
not that correct ? :

%t. GreGe. Yes, sir; that is very true, and they are very careful.

r. Nasu. And the fact that they do not report any income usually
puts them in the preferred list to be investigated.

The Cuarman. I think that is very true.

Senator Kine. You will remember, Mr. Gregg, in drafting the
bill we did have the question up about these enormous amounts for
deductions and depletions, which were distributed too often as divi-
dends, and yet they were escaping taxes.

Mr. Gre «.. Again, Senator, if I may make the suggestion, I think
that is another subject which we can not get at from the point of view
of general statistics,

"The act lists specifically the deductions to which corporations are
entitled, and it seems to me that the important point is whether they
are entitled to those deductions, and not how much they aggregate in
the totals. Xor example, take the first one—wages, salaries, and
business expenses—and see whether they are entitled to that. The
second one is interest. The third one is taxes. The fourth ope is
losses, then depreciation, depletion. We should check them in that
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way to see if they are entitled to them. In doing that I think you
will find that you will get further than by going to the totals to see
how big the totals look. When you take the salaries, wages, interest,
and taxes paid by all of the corporations in the United States, they
are going to run up into a big total.

Senator Kixa. Of course, what they pay in wages, though, they
would not distribute as dividends.

Mr. Greee. No.

sSenator Kina. Because that money actually goes out.

Mr. Grece. And what they pay in interest they can not distribute
as dividends. 1If they had a loss, they could vot distribute it as
dividends, either. Thev can distribute dividends out of depletion
reserves, although they can not, as a general rule, out of depreciution
FoSerVes,

The Coamsrax. Because that would be 'an extinction of the
capital.

Mr. Grece. Yes; there is plenty of law on that.

Senator Kixg. It depends on whether they are a public-service
corporation or not.

Mr. Grege. Most of the State laws are uniform in that respect,
that the corporations having natural resources can distribute out
of depletion reserve, hut not out of depreciation reserve.

The Crrammaxn. Because that might impair the capital.

Mr. Grece. It impairs the capital; yes, sir.

The Crrairman, Is that all?

Mz, Greae. That is all we have.

Senator Kixe, Have you anything else this morning?

Mr. Box. T have not.

The Cuairman. We will adjourn here until 10 o'clock to-morrow
morning.

(Whereupon, at 11.50 o’clock a. m., the committee adjourned until
to-morrow, Tuesday, March 24, 1925, at 10 o’clock a. m,)
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Bugrav or INntERNAL Revexve,
Washington, D). C.

The commnuttee met at 10 o'clock a. m., pursuant to the call of the
chairman.

Present: Senators Couzens (presiding), Watson, and King.

Present also: Mr. I.. C. Manson, counsel for the committec; Mr.
L. H. Parker, chief engineer for the committee; Mr. Raleigh C.
Thomas, investigating engineer for the committee; Mr. J. M. Rob-
bins, assistant engineer for the committee. *

Present on behalf of the Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mr. A. W,
Gregg, special assistant to the Secretary of the Treasury; Mr. C. R.
Nash ; assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue; Mr. A. R.
Marrs, attorney, office of the Solicitor of Internal Revenue; and
Mr. W. S. Tandrow, appraisal engineer, Bureau of Internal Revenue.

The CrairmaN. You may take up your next case now, Mr. Manson.

Mr. Manson. This is the matter of the General Carbonic Co.

Senator Kine. Do you refer now to the company which had a
good many subsidiaries ¢
P El}]enator Warsox. The one which has its principal plant at Niagara

alls.

Mr. Maxsox. That is the Union Carbide Co.

Senator Warson. Is that the one that has factories on both sides
of the falls at Niagara?

" Senator Kixa. That is the Union Carbide Co.

Mr. Manson. I think that is the Union Carbide Co.

The CaairMax. Where is the General Carbonic Co. located ?

Mr. Manson. It has its main plant at Saratoga Springs, N. Y.,
and its main office in New York City.

The revenue act of 1921 levied a tax of 4 cents per pound on all
carbonic-acid gas sold by the manufacturer. The manufacturer
collected this tax from the purchaser. In this case the amount of
tax collected monthly by ithe manufacturer exceeded $30,000. -

The CrHawmax, When was that money to be remitted to the
Treasury Department under the law and the regulations?

Mr, Maxsox. Under the law and regulations it was to be trans-
mitted to the Treasury Department once a month.

The Crramrmax. Is that the law, or is that the regulation?

Mr. Manson. The law provides that they shall make the return in
accordance, with the regulations, and the regulations provide for
remission once a month.

In this case there were no returns made for a period of 14
months, during which time the collections amounted to $406.351.98. .

3381
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The president of the company absconded, with a shortage of
$260,000. The company paid, I think it was, $110,000 in monthly
installinents to'make good the shortage; that is, to make good the
company'’s obligation to the GGovernment for the tax which the com-

any had collected on behalf of the Government. There was a
Ealance of $296,351.98. This was compromised upon the ground
that to enforce the collection of the money would have forced the
company into bankruptey, for $100,000 in cash and the release of a
claim for a refund amounting to $32,000. ~

The Cuamrman. This in spite of the fact that this money had
already been collected from the purchasers?

My, MaxsoN. Tt had been collected from the purchasers.

The Crzamrmax. Was there no bond require:l by the bhurean?

Mr. Maxsox, That is the point thet T wish to discuss,

[ ami not here for the purpose of eriticizing the settlement that was
finally wade so much as L am the system.

Senator Warson, What was the settlement?

Mr. Maxson, The ultimate settlement was $132,000.

The Cuamyax, On a claim of $296,000, approximately.

Mr. Maxson. On a claim of $296,000. _

I am not prepared to say that that was not the best settlement
that the Government could get. What I am criticizing is a system
which would permit a company that had been making returns of this
kind of taxes, exceeding $30,000 a month to, for a period of 14
months, go along without any return when the collector must have
known that they were still in Dusiness and still collecting these taxes.

Senator Warson, Over how long a period had the collection of the
tax been made?

Mr. Manson. I suppose ever since the tax was levied. I assume
that this company was in existence. That was not brought out, but
it was an old concern. ‘

Mr. GreGi. I understand that the tax on carbonic-acid gas was
levied first in the 1921 act?

Mr. MaxsoN. The tax on carbonic-acid gas was levied first in the
192] act.

Mr. Grece. Had this company ever made any return or paid any
tax so as to put the Government on notice? ~

‘Mr. Maxson, Oh, yes. They had been making returns, as I say,
at a rate exceeding $30,000 a month.

The Cuammyan, And then they were allowed to go 14 months
without making any returns?

Mr. Maxson. They were allowed then to go 14 months without
making any returns,

The Caammax. And as a result of that the Government lost about
$190,000°?

Mr. Maxsox. About $190,000.

My criticism is directed to the system which permits the taxpayer
under such conditions to go for any such period of time without
making any return or without being checked up, because had a check
been made at any time or had the regulations been enforced against
this taxpayer during that period, of course the loss would have been
reduced.
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Senator Kina. Would the fault, if there is a fault—and I express
no opinion—be in Washington or in the local collector’s office where
the taxpayer is located ?

Mr. MansoN. The duty was upon the collector of internal revenue
in the district. I take it, however, that the system would be that
the internal revenue collector’s office is one that is prescribed by the
Bureau of Internal Revenue. I am not familiar with that system.

Senator Warson. Do you know of any other like omse, Mr.
Manson ¢

Mr. MansoN. No: T do not. We have not access to the informa-
tion; that is, it would be necessary to make an investigation of the
collectors’ offices to determine what their system is. I merely call
the commitiee’s attention to the case for the purpose of suggesting
that in all cases where taxes ace collected by a manufacturer to be
remitted to the Government the law should require an adequate
bond and that proper machinery should be established to insure
the periodic checking up of such collections.

The Cramnan. What is the procedure in the case of automobile
companies who collect automobile taxes and theaters which collect
the theater tax, do you know?

Mr. Manson. That is left to the internal revenue collector to
check up.

The Cuamrman. Is that only remitted once a month or do they
wait until the entire year is up?

Mr. Manson. I think that is remitted once a month.

Mr. Greee. Yes; monthly.

Mr. Nasn. Monthly. In reference to this case, Mr. Box, the
suditor for the committee, called at my office yesterday and asked
88 to our system of checking these monthly returns. We have. a
very definite system for checking them, and I gave Mr. Box that
information and discussed it with him very thoroughly. QOur pro-
cedure is just as tight as it can be made, and provides for a monthly
check of these delinquents, and in this particular case the collector of
internal revenue at Albany, N. Y., is probably at fault for per-
mitting this delinquent to get away from him for 14 meonths.

The Crarman. Did not the bureau have that check on that com-
pany while they were getting away with it for 14 months!

Mr. Nasu. The bureau does bave inspectors that check these offices
periodically. Now, I do not know whether the collector’s office at
Albany was checked during those 14 months or not, but the pro-
cedure for checking the office wounld require the inspector to call the
attention of the bureau to this particular instance.

The Cuamman. I assume that in the bureau’s reply you will make
angwer as to whether they did in this case?

Mr, Nasn. I would be very glad tc put our procedure into the
record. I think it is just as tight as we can make it.

The CaairmaN. Do you mean to say that there is no way for the
bureau to protect itself against a case of this kind ¢

Mr. NasH. This case would indicate incompetence on the part of
some particular clerk handling the records in the collector’s office.

The Crarman. My point is, then, that it can not be very tight if
a case of this kind is not caught, because a clerk is incompetent.

92919—25—pr 17—5
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Mr. Nasu. It comes down to a personnel problem, and it is not a
matter of procedure or system.

The Cuameman. I do not agree with that. T do not ag ee that the
officials should stand for a procedure which is so loose that an in-
competent clerk could make it pcssible to get away with a situation
like that.

Mr. Grege. Let me say in answer to the chairman, that we can not
lay down a fool-proof system. If some of the individuals who are
operating under the procedure are incompetent, it is not the system
that is to blame. It seems to me it is unfair to the bureaun to pick
out ap isolated case, such as this is, where the only criticism is that
it happened to slip through the hands of a particuf;r clerk.

The Cuamman. I do not agree with you at all. I remember very
well when I had some 40 or 50 branch houses of the Ford Motor Co.
that we had our traveling auditors, and no branch department could
get away for 14 months without a check. I do not think it is un-
fair. I think it is perfectly proper to present that case, to have
the Congress assured that the Government is protected when they
grant permission to manufecturers and to theater owners and to
others to collect governmental taxes that the Government will re-
ceive those taxes.

Mr. Grece. It seems to me that that—-—

The CaairmaxN. That is important, because apparently no bond
was required in this case. It appears to me that if the taxpayer
could get away without making any returns in this case, any theater
owner could do that or any manufacturer could do that in other
cases, and therefore to bring this particular case to the attention of
the committee is not unfair at all.

Mr. Greco. It assumes in the other cases that there is going to be
incompetence in the offices of our collectors. I do not see that this
case is comparable to the case which the chairman gave at all. Our
local officers from the Bureau of Internal Revenue are supposed to
check these things. We have a check, as Mr. Nash has poinied out.
through our inspectors. Of course, whether the inspector missed
this, as weli as the clerk, we do not know, but it i3 perfectly obvious
that the clerk missed it. We have adequate procedure for checking
that situation, but it slipped threugh in this particular instance.

Senator KiNe. As I understand Senator Couzens’s point, it is that
there should be some amendment to the law by which bonds would
be required of these companies and theaters and the others collecting
the taxes to insure their payment to the Government of the taxes
collected. .

Mr. Nasn. I agree with that perfectly, Senator. In fact. I know
of cases where theaters have embezzled this money and we have tried
to prosecute them in the courts. We have found it very difficult to
prosecute and get a conviction of a theater owner who withholds a
part of this tax. We have lost more cases than we have won on that
very point.

Senator Kine. It may be well, then, in the new act, and this com-
mittee, perhaps, might very well consider the question as to whether
to recommend to the full committee some new machinery by which
those‘who do collect the taxes should give a bond for their payment,
so that in the case of embezzlement, of bankruptcy, throngh defalca-
tions or whatnot, the Government could be protected and conld get
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the taxes. For myself, I should be very glad to have the views of
the bureau submitted in writing upon, that question so that we may,
if we see fit, make some recommendation in our report respecting
that matter.

The Cuammax. T again submit to Mr. Gregy the idea that the
theatrical business is a highly speculative business and if a theater
owner can go along collecting his theater taxes for the period of a
year and then go into bankruptey the Government is the loser.

Mr. Greae. T do not think T counld say that he could go along for
a year without being caught for failure to file a veturn. As I said,
this case is an isolated case.

Can you tell, Mr, Nash, just what the procedure is in the collector’s
oftice for checking these matters?

My, Nasu. When these tax returns are made each month to the
collecter they are entered upon an assessuient list by means of an
Eiliott-Fisher bookkeeping machine, and & return form i~ at the
sume operation addressed to the taxpayer for use for the next month,
That is mailed out as a notice. The return comes in in two <ectionz,
Cne is a duplicate. That stays in the collector's office. The criginal
accompanies the assessment list to Washington. The duplicate that
stavs in the collector’s office is filed in a folder. which is kept for
each taxpayer, and the instructions arve that when this duplicate i~
filed in the folder the clerk must take the folder and see if the pre-
vious month has been paid and any gap is caught up. If there is a
gan a report is made to the chief field deputy calling his attention
to the fact that the taxpayver has not filed for some given month. He
in turn vefers that to one of his ficld men, who is supposed to make
a call apon the taspayer and find out why the retwrn is not maoe.
We frequently find that there is a gap because no business has been
done that month: he has been closed down for repaivs or something
of that sort; but if there is an explanation for the gap, the explana-
tion is put in the file. The procedure is very definite.

The Cuamman. I would like to ask Mr. Manson if there is any-
thing in the files in this case to show that anybody checked this tax-
payer within any of these 14 months?

Mr. Maxson. T would say that the files, to make it positive rather
than negative, show that there was no check during the period of 14
months.

Senator Kixe. That would be due to negligence on the part of
the collector at Albany and his assistants and somebody down in
vour oflice here, probably. '

" Mr. Nasu, I would say that as far as the inspection of the
collector’s office at Albany is concerned, I do not know whether it
was inspected during those 14 months. In 1921, the collector's offices
throughout, the country were in bad shape. Most of them were out
of balance, and all the few inspectors that we had were used in the
larger offices in trying to reconcile the accounts and getting them
balanced. Ther: were a number of the smaller offices that went for
over a year without inspection, and it is very possible that the
Albany office was not inspected during those entire 14 months, be-
cause, at one time, we had all the inspectors that we had in the
United States working in New York City, trying to straighten out
that office. At another time we had them all in gan Francisco, and
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in Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, Cleveland, etc. Right now th~ offices
are all in splendid shape, and every officr, except the very largest,
is being examined at least once every six months.

Mr. Manson. What was in my mind with regard to this case
was that it suggested the necessity for a system of bonding, and
fundamentally iy purpose in bringing it to the attention of the
committ-e was that a glaring instance of this sort might move
(f‘ongress to require bonding, where mere general statements might
not do so.

Senator Warson. How many people collect taxes for the bureau?

Mr. Nasu, There are various manufacturers, under this excise tax,
that collect taxes. There were more of them under the 1921 act than
under the 1924 act.  Of course, all of our admission taxes are col-
lected by the owners of the theaters. .

Senator Warson. Of course, if the next Congress should abolish
the theater tax, that would do away with that, so far as that goes?

Mr. Nasu. Yes, sir.

The Coameman, I am interested further in this matter because
of the compromise settlements to avoid bankruptcy. I would like
to have some statement from the Bureau, or from our investigators,
indicating how extensively this compromising of taxes has heen en-
gaged in to avoid bankruptey. In other words, that leaves a very
great discretionary power with the Commissioner, and it may or
not have ben exercised well, or it may have been exercised in some
cases, and not in others. I think it is important as a matter of
equity between taxpayers that some uniformity of procedure or
conduct be had to insure equity as between taxpayers. I believe we
should have uniformity of procedure as against all taxpayers.

Mr. Manson. I wisK to say in connection with this compromise
that there was another feature which influenced my mind a great
deal in not attempting to indulge in any criticism of the compro-
mise.

It appears that in connection with the manufacture of sugar a
process has been developed for the recovery of the carbonic acid
¢as, which permits sugar refineries to sell carbonic acid gas at less
than it costs the carbonic acid gas manufacturer to make it.

Senator Kine. Because it is a by-product in the manufacture of
sugar,

Mr. Mansox. Yes, sir; it is a by-product in the manufacture of
sugar, and it is a product that is manufactured without cost. It
involves the mere cost of recovery, which only requires a modifica-
tion of equipment.

As a result of that it appeared that this company at the time of
this settlement was losing about $9,000 a month. 'There was a com-
bination of circumstances—the defalcation of the president of the
company, together with this run of loss from month to month—
which rather influenced my mind to believe that the Government
was, perhaps, lucky to get anything they could. I did believe, how-
ever, that this case should be presented in considering the necessity
of bonding private individuals who are permitted to collect Govern-
ment taxes.

Senator King. And to guard against inattention or neglect of local
coilectors and their agents.
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The Cirairman. You made one suggestion, aud the thought had
occurred to me. Do you keep any account in the Treasury Depart-
ment of the losses because of the bankruptcy of taxpayers? T mean
losses in taxes to the Government?

Mr. Nasir. Yes, sir; we have a bankruptcy section that handles
nothing but bankruptey cases, and their records are very complete
in that respect.

Senator Kina. Will you kindly, at your convenience, nrepare a
statement showing the losses from year to year in taxes by reason
of the bankruptey of taxpayers, and if you have any recommenda-
tions or suggestions as to how the law could be strengthened or the
regulations strengthened to guard against losses from bankruptcy,
speaking for myself, T should be very glad to receive the same.

Mr. Nasu. With reference to the compromise of this case. Mr.
Chairman, I wish to state that the case was called to my attention
when the compromise was being considered, and Mr. Hartson and
I went into it carefully, not into the detail, but we were thoroughly
satisfied that this was the best settlement that we could get ont of
this company, and that if we prosecuted our claim we auite likely
would not get anything: that is. if it was forced into a v ceivership.
The people who conducted the negotiations were people that were
in other business in Saratoga, and I am quite sure the money that
was advanced in this offer in compromise was advanced outside of
the company. Two revenue agents went to Sarvatoga and made an
examination of the detuils of the company and submitted a report,
and the amount that we finally received from the company was in
excess of the amount that was vecommended by the agents as the
greatest amount that they could possibly pay.

The Cramarax, Is this company still in existence, and is it doing
a profitable business: do vou know ¢

My, Nasu, I helieve it is: and that is one of the things that were
taken into consideration at the time of the compromise, that it was
better to keep it going as a potential taxpayer, and paying from
month to wonth, than to «lose 1 on it and put it out of business.

The Crnamrman. Let me a-k you at this point whether the sugar
companies that make carbonic-acid gas as a-by-product pay the
same tax as the manufacturers?

Mr. Nasm. They pay the tax at the same rate as if it was used for
beverage purposes.

The Cramrman. Have you anything else, Mr. Manson?

Mr. MaxsoN. Noj except to submit this statement of facts in this
cave:

The General Carbonic Co. is a manufacturer of carbonie acid gas. It main-
tains branches in several citles in the United States, has its main plant at
Saratoga Springs, N. Y., and its main office in New York City.

During the period of 14 months from February, 1922, to March, 1923, in-
clusive, this taxpayer collected from its customers $406,351.98 in taxes on
sales of carbonie acid gas.

Sections 602 and 603 of the revenue act of 1921 provide for a tax of 4 cents
per pound upon all carbonie acld gas sold by a manufacturer, and provides that
monthly returns of ail taxes collected sball be made under oath, these taves to
be due and payable without assessment by the commissioner or notice from the
collector of internal revenue at the time fixed for flling the returns. Article 26

of Regulations 47 provides that monthly returns shall be filed during the month
following the nonth during which the sales were made,
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The taxpayer did not make monthly returns of the excise tax due the Gov-
ernment from its sales for the period mentioned above until June, 1928,
although it did collect the taxes from its customers.

On May 16, 1923, Mr. H. E. Pettee, president of the company, absconded,
leaving a shortage in his accounts with the company of approxhmately $260,000.
On the same day Mr. Henry W. Somers was clected president, and Mr. Luther A,
Wait vice president and secretary of the company., Cn June 1, 1923, Revenue
Agents Kenneth W, Moe and Arthur O, Gray called at the New York offlce
of the taxpayer and asked to see its books, ‘They were advised by Mr., Wait
that the tax for the 14 months in question had been returned and paid at
the collector’s office at Alhany, N. Y.; and that the books wore bemng wudited,
for which reasons he requested that the examination be deferred. Communica-
tion with the collector at Albany disclosed the fact that the tax had not been
paid, amd on June 4, 1923, the revenue agents returned and examined the books
of the company, fAinding & tax liability of $406,351.98, and penalties and interest
acerued of $1206,1564.8%, a total of $568,506,86.

The officers of the company claimed that none of them knew of the de-
linquent taxes and of the president’s shortage ‘except the president, who was
fornmerly niiyor of Saratoga Springs, and the accountant, Willinm J. Nushaum,
1 certified public accountant, of Albany, N. Y., whoe wus a friend of the presi-
dent, and who reported directly to him and not to the directors of the company.
The revenue agent’s report, freom which the above facts are taken, is attached
as Exhibit A. The company was assessed for the total amount found due on
account of delinquency and after the officers of the company informed the
bureau that it c¢onld not pay the amount found due in one payment arrange-
ments were made whereby it was allowed to puy st the rate of $10,060 per
month, In the meantime liens were filed by the. collector of internal revenue
against the various plants of the company. Payments continued at this rate
until $110,000 had been paid. A claim in abatement of the penalties and inter-
est was filed by the company, which wus rejected on June 18, 1924, Undor dates
of July 14 and August 19, 1924, conferences were held with the taxpayer seek-
ing relief from the payment of the total amount, The bureau held that no
relief could be granted as to the penalties because the tax had not been paid
nor as to the tax because the company was solvent and the tax due and ascer-
tained, Memoranda of the above conferences appear as Exhibits B and C.

On Aupust 23, 1924, the company did sabmit an oifer in compromise of
F50,000 and produced o balunce sheet as evidence of its insolveney, The com-
pany claimed thet the amount of the tax could not be realized by distraine:
tiat the Government would be benefited by allowing the company te continue
in business: that the company lost for the six months ended May 31, 1924,
at the rate of 59,000 per month because of conditions brought about as a
result of the Federal Sugar Refining Co. installing equipment for the recluma-
tion of carbonie acld gas, a by-ppoduct of the sngar reflning process, which it
sold at 3 conts per pound, which swas below the cost of manufacture of the
taxpayer: and that Mr., Nomers and Mr. Wait were giving their time and
hest services to the company withont charge, und that they would quit it the
tax wax not compromised.  (Exhibit D.)  Thix offer was rojected.

A sedond offer of 5Y5,000 and cancellation of the company’s claim for refund
on account of iucome taxes wias =ubsequently made in compromise of the tax
amonnting to X266G.551.08 and an offer of $10 in lien of penalties and interest
aggregating $162.15488 was alxo submitted.  (Exhibit E.)  Recommendation
was made by Deputy Commissioner Estes that thix offer be accopted. It was
stbsequently rejeeted,

On September 27, 1924 an offer of $132,000, consisting of $100,060 in cash
and a waiver by the company of itx right to a refund of $32,000 allowed by
the Income Tax Unit to the eompany on aceount of overpayment of income
taxes was submitted in compromise of the balance of taxes, interest. and pren-
alties due, which was accepted, the Nolieitor of Internal Kevenue stating
that in his opinfon it was proper and for the best interests of the United
States to accept the terms mentioned. (Exhibit F,)

Subsequent to the filing of the first offer in compromise Agents William D).
Elder and R. A, McCormack made an examination of the bocks of the tax-
payer and on September 13, 1924, submitted their report of its financial con-
dition. The balance sheet as at May 31, 1924 (Exhibit ). shows a surplus,
according to the company's books, of $264,049.13. The estimated liquidating
values, according to the bureau’s figures, would leave a deficit of $437,051.98.
The estimated liquidating values adjusted Septembeor, 1924, according to the
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burenu’s figures, show a surplus of $675,858.33. The balance sheet shows
capital stock outstanding on May 31, 1924, as follows: Preferred. $2485,100
common, $2,379,6¢0,

The par value of hoth preferred and common stock ix $¥100 per share, The
stock of this company ix not listed on any of the principal ¢xehanges, but
information was secureds that in December, 19238, 400 shares of common stock
was sold at anction at ¥4 per share, and on December 10, 1924, 200 sharves
of preferved were sold at $15 per share. It appears that ar the present time
there is ne market for the preferred, and the latest quotation-on the common
wias 31 per share offered,

1t would appear that had a proper cheek of delingquent returns of excise
tuxes been made in the office of the colleetor, where the returns of this eom-
prny were fHled, it would have been impossible for a period of 14 months to
elapse bhefore the discovery of the delinguency, It would have resulted in
the discovery of the embezzlement of the president of this taxpayer and the
suving of a large amount of {ax in this ease.

The Coamryan. Has the bureau anyihing to put in at this time,
Mr. Gregg?

Mr. Grece, No, sir.

The Cramsmax. Then we had better adjonrn until 10 o'clock to-
MOrrow morning.

Mr. Grece. Before we adjourn, Mr. Chairman, let me say this:

The members of the committee perhaps noticed in the papers yes-
terday the statement that My, Hartson had resigned as solicitor for
the bureau as a result of his activities in connection with Senator
Couzens's personal-tax case, that it caused so much criticism of him
within the department that his resignation was asked for.

Tor the sake of the record. 1 wish to say that of course there is
absolutely nothing in that. Mr. Hartson sent his resignation to
the commissioner on Febraary 6, and it was only at the insistence
of the department that he stayed any longer. Of course, everyone
in the department was very anxious that he should continue with
the department, but he did not feel that he could afford to stay any
longer.

So far as Senator Couzens's personul-tax case is concerned, the first
he ever knew that there was siich a quiestion or that theve was such a
case was on his trip to Bermuda, where he read it in the papers, so
that obviously there was no connection between the two things.

The Cuairyman. T think T can say for the committee that we have
never had any such idea. It was pirvelv a matter of some newspaper
reporter’s interpretation of it.

My, Maxson, T think Mr. Hartson, as far back as last January,
told me that he was contemplating resigning as soon as he could
do so.

The Cirarmax. T hope you do not think that that story originated
with any member of the committee.

Mr, Grece. Ol no, siv: we are certain that it did not come from
the committee; bat in justice to Mr. Hartson, I wanted to make that
statement on the record. We issued a press story from the Treasury
Department in denial of the previous press story last night.

The Cuairman. I hope the officials of the Treasury Department do
not think that that originated with the committee.

Mr. Gerrge. Nos no one thought it eviginated with the committee.

(The exhibits submitted by Mr. Manson in connection with the
General Carbonice Co. case are as follows:)
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ExHIBIT A

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE,

New York, N. ¥., June 22, 1923,
Mr. E. M. MuLLER, '

Supervisor of Accounts and Collections,
Customhouse, New York City.

Sm: In complance with your instruoctlons, we visited the place of business
of the General Carbonic Co., 542 Fifth Avenue, New York, N. Y., to make an
investigation of its books and records and to ascertain if tax had been paid
upon the sale of carbonic-acid gas manufactured by this company -as required
under section 602 (¥') of the revenue act of 1921.

The General Carbonie Co. was incorporated in the yoar 1915, with principal
place of business at Saratoga Springs, N. Y,

The officers of the corporation frem the date of organization to May 135,
1923, were as follows: Henry E, Pettee, president; George M. Pettee, vice
president and treasurer: and James C. Minor, sberetary. On May 16, 1923, the
following officers were elected: Ienry W. Somers, president ; Luther A, Wait,
vice president and secretary; and George M. Pettee, treasurer,

On June 1, 1923, we ealled at the New York office of the above corporation
und interviewed Mr. Luther A, Wait, vice president and secretary. relative
to the tax upon the sale of carbonic-acid gas as manufactured by the corpora-
tion, We informed him that the records at the office of the collector, second
distriet of New York, disclosed the fact that payment of tax upon eeghonie-aeid
~ gas had been made for the month of January. 1922, and not for.subsequent

months, Mr. Wait informed wvs that returns for.each month, with the exeoy
tion of January, 1922, had been filed and tax paid to the colleetor of internal
revenue at Albany, N. Y. ITe stnted that the reason for fillng returns and pay-
ing the tax to the Albany office was that the principal place of business of the
corporation is at Saratoga Springs, N, Y., and that through error the January,
1922, return was filed in the second distriet of New York,

Mr, Wait further stated that on the morning of May 13, 1923, the officers
of the corporation learned that the president, Henry E. Pettee, had absconded
with approximately £250,000 of the corporation’s funds, and that on May 16
1923 : an election of officers was held and it was decided upon by the new officers
to retain the firm of Nau, Rusk & Swearinger, 250 Broadway, New York City,
N. Y.. to make a complete audit of the corporation’s accounts, and he requested
that we defer onr examination until the audit was completed,

During thiv interview he informed us that returns had been filed and tax
paid for all months to the eolleetor at Albany, N. Y,

Upon reporting the facis as stated above to you, telephone connections were
immediately had with the collector's office at Mbany, N, Y. and it was learned
that on May 31, 1923, a Mr. James P. TTussey. tax consultant, who was re-
tained by the corporation, had filed Form 726 for the month of April, 1923,
showing tax due in the amount of $34,004.68, witli check in payment of same,
and he had stated to the chief office deputy, fourteenth distriet of New York.
that the following day returns would be filed for 14 delinquent months cover-
ing the period from February, 1022, to March, 1923, tnelusive,

These delinquent returns were recelved at the office of the collector. Alhany.
N. Y., on June 2, 1923, disclosing tax Hability in the total sum of $406,053.26
and were not accompanied by funds,

Cn the morning of June 4, 1923, we again visited the New York office of the
General Carbonice Co. after learning that all books and records of the corpora-
tion were in New York instead of Saratoga Springs, the main office.

On this date we met Mr, James P. Hussey. as prearranged by vou, and were
intreduced to Mr. James P. Henderson, of the flrm of Nau, Rusk & Swearinger.
who are compiling data which would reflect the tax liebility on sales of
carbonic-acid gas.

The General Carbonic Co. operates branch offices and plants at Albany.
N, Y., Buffalo, N. Y.. Boston, Mass., Elizabeth, N, J.. Long Island, N, Y., Provi-
dence, R. I., and Wilkes-Barre, Pa., and separate accounts are kept for these
branch offices at the New York office, which are known as ‘ Main-office ac-
counis” reflecting daily sales. A separate Set of sales accounts are kept for
the New York City sales and are known as “ New York City accounts.” The
corporation also operates branch offices and plants at Detroit, Mich., Norfolk,
Va., New Orleans, La., and Philadelphla, Pa., and semimonthly reports are ren-
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dered by the respective hranch azents to the New York office showing the total
number of pounds of nontaxable and taxable carbonic-acid gas sold,

We verified the accounts known as the * Main-office accounts ™ and the “ New
York City accounts ™ and feel assured that we arrived at the true tax lHability
on these accounts. We were compelled to aceept as being correet the semi-
monthly reports rendered by the branch agents of the four above-mentioned
bruneh offices,

Mr. James 1, Tlenderson stated that at the present time his firm, Nau, Rusk
& Swearinger, was making a complete audit of the books aud records of the
four above-mentioned branch oftices, and that if any discrepancies were found
in the reports as sabmitted by the branch agents to the New York oflice
amended returas would be filed upon the completion of their audit.

It wax the poliey of the corporation, upon the sale of taxable carbonic-acid
s, to bill the amount of tax due on each sale and to request the respective
custoniers to make ]mvm( nt of the amount of tax due before shipment was
muade,

At the completion of our examination we compared our working sheets with
those of the accountants retained by the corporation and found that we
had arrived at the <ame amount of tax due for each month as refleeted on
Lixhibit AL

The following is a summary of the delinquent tax. penalties, and interest as
Adizelosed by onr examination:

]
25 per (‘vntI & por eont e I ,
Month Tax penaity } wnnlts Interest ‘ Total
i
e - | ‘ I
FobIUALY . oo e e $11, 200, 28 %z 802,32 | $560.40 | $2,00.09 | $16,612 15
Mareh oo 10,165.44 | 4,701.36 | 58, 27 8. vl 254. 133.32
H . ) ) ] H 4 v bl U
. e S AR Y
June , 47,482,064 | 11,870.66 AT | 617274 | 67,000, 17
Julv_.. . LTI aRe0 | 10,278,65  2,255. 7 527841 | 63,027.30
August I 40,135, 88 10 nm 97 . 201679 1 419493 56,631 57
Septowber -0 LI T T T aman o 127,82 162556 | 200858 | 45,228.10
{\)vlnhor .............. R ! 3:;, 145. 20 h B3 ;(l) , }.:107, %1 2 9.31:. B8 .:r; :3;32 g‘;
November_ 23, 400, 81 ,;,m.. D195, 04 | LA5R 55 1 326
December. oo i e el ’ M2, R1R, GO 5 120,65 | 1,025.03 1, 066, 97 27,741 16
4 1
| ‘ !
I \
January. oo 24806 TE 6,076,601, 215,34 917,06 - 32546, 73
February . Lo o0383.83 | 5,005.46 0 1,019.19 SHLOR 27,028.97
Mareh . ... o) 25, 838, 00 7..n 50 1,442.00 475,15 . 7,800 556
Totoloo o e : 404,,.3,)1 98 | 101, 58, 00 20,‘;17 590 40,249.20 | 568, 506, 86
j [ — — ‘V. — —

The Forms 720 as reeeived at the Albany office were forwarded to us for ¢om-
parison and it was dizclosed that the total tax liability for the 14 delinquent
months, as veflected by these retarns, was $406,055.26, and our examination dis-
closed a liability of $406,351.98 for thix period, or an additional sum of $298.72.

We secured from Mr, Iusrey, tax consultant for the corporation, a balance
~heet which reflects the financial condition of the General Carbonic Co. as of
the close of business of the fiseal year ended December 1, 1922, Exhibit B also
the balance sheet which reflects the financial condition of the corperation as
of the close of business on March 31, 1923, Exhibit C.

On the balance sheet, Exhibit ¢, there i- carrvied under “ Other assets” the
item “Acecounts receivable—personal and sundry,” $274,645.33. This is the
account which wa  wed by the absconding president, Mr. I1. E. Pettee, in cov-
ering his defaleat, <, amounting to approximately $230,000. Therefore it can
readily be seen that this asset is practically worthless,

The unpaid taxes in the amount of $406,351.98 are inclnded in the “Accounts
payable " gcecount of $492,138.958 on the balance sheet, Exhibit C.

We were informed by Mr., J. I Hussey, tax consultant, that the balanee
sheet, Exhibit B, attached hereto, was prepared and submitted by William J.
Nusbaum, certified public accountant, to the former, president . E. Pettee,
and that this accountant was aware of the fact that the tax Hability existed,
but being a very intimate friend of the former president this knowledge was
withheld from the other officers and directors of the General Carbonic Co.

92619—~26—-pr 1 T—-0
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On June 1, 1922, this corporation forwarded to the colleetor of internal veve.
nue, Albany, N. Y., Form 848, Applieation fov registry, ss manufacturer of
carbonic-acid gas.

Our examination disclosed that the books and records kept in the New York
office for the several branch offices were such that we had no dificulty in arriv-
Ing at the number of taxable and nontaxabiv pounds of carbonle-acid gas sold
by the corporation. There were on file affidavits sabmitted by customers stat-
ing that carbonic-acid gas purchased by them was to be used for other than
beverage purposes, All sales of carbonic gas used for other than beverage pur-
poses, manufactured by this corporation, were supported by affidavits of thi«
character, The largest amounts of nontaxable ca.bonte-acid gas were sold to
the large steamship companies to be used for refrigerating purposes.

After completing our examination as to the tax liability under the revenue
act of 1921, we then checked the hooks and records of the corporation to ascer-
tain the true tax Habllity under the revenue act of 1917, same being for the
perlod October, 1917, to February, 1919, inclusive. We found that the tax as
paid to the Alhany district covering thix period was correct.

At all times durlng our examination we received very courteous treatmen
and cooperation from Mr. J. . Henderson, accountant, who was preparing a
statement of the tax lHability for the corporation,

Upon completion of our examination we interviewed Mr, J. P. Hussey and
informed him of the amount of tax, penalties, and interest we would report for
assossment, and he advised us that the matter would be taken up with the
burean at Washington at a inter date,

We therefore recommend the assessment of the tax, penalties, and interest in
the sum of $568.006.86, ax shown hereinbefore, against the General Carbonie Co.

Attached hereto are Exhibits A, B, and €. . ’

Respectfully,
K. W. Mag,
Internal Revenne Agent.
ArTHUR O, GRAY,
Depnin Colleetor,

Axwmimir ¥
TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
i Washington, Julu 1), 1924,

Memorandum for file, in re canference between W, . Bennett, attorney, Savp-

togn Springs, N, Y. and . J. Richards, auditor, representing the General

Carbonie Co,, Karatogn Springs, N, Y. with Messrs, Drake and Stewart,

Representatives of the company explained that defaleation was experienced
on the part of the president of the compaay: that new officers came in and
discovered he had not paid the sales tax. The new management diselosed
voluntarily the liability covering a periad of about 14 months, and the amount
of the tax is quite large. In a previeux conference an agreement was reached
by which the company was to pay the tax in monthly payments of 810,000,
interest at the rate of 6 per eent, and a claim for abatement of the penalty
and interest was filed. Tt seems that that claim has been dizallowed, and the
company received a notice and demand from the collector, demanding pay-
ment of penalty and arerued interest, and the representatives of the company
wanted to know what, if any. adjustment couid bhe made, The company is
solvent, but has a numbey of things to clean up, of which this ix one. The
$10,000 monthly payments have been regularly made. Tt was explained that
the notice and demand arixes from the fact that they filed the abatement claim
and, upon action being taken by the office, 1. e, rejection under date of
June 18, 1924, and the collector being so advised, in order to bring the matter
to an issue it was necessary that he yender a bill permitting them to take
advantage of the privilege of filing an offer in compromise in Heu of penalty
and interest. At the rate of $10,000 per month it will probably take 40 months
to pr. the tax. It is believed the Government is entitled to at least 6 per
cent interest on the tax from the time assessed until paid, and representatives
of the company werve so advised. TFurther, it was suggested that they flle a
tentative offer in compromise of, say, about $10, plus whatever interest at the
raterof @ per cent is found due from date assessed until finally paid. in order
to stay collection proceedings, pending final settlement of tax found due. In
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other words, it is impossible at this time to accept an offer in compromise,
in view of the fact that the tax has not yet been paid.

The representative of the company aflso stated that there in no separate
selling organization, but that the company manufactures and sells direct, al-
though there are a few localities where the company works through jobbers.

Initialed * CAD.)”

Exumir €

THEASURY DEPARIMENT,
Washington, Sugust 19, 192},

Memorandum for file, in re conference held between Mr. 1., A, Walte, viee prest-
dent, P, J. Richardg, auditor, for the General Carbonie Co., S8aratogu Springs,
N. Y, and Messrs, Drake and Stewart,

Mr. Waite stated in order to acquaint the office he would review the situntion.
About May 10, 1923, the stockholders found that their former president had
absconded with some three hundred to four hundred thousand doilare, aud
Mr. Somers was made president and Mr. Walte vice president, and took
charge of the affairs of the company. They found within a few days that there
was an unpaid sales tax of seversl bundred thousand doilars. They did not
know how it had remained unpaid, but, nevertheless, such was the case: and
they immediately reported the matter to the collecter, muking full dizcloxare as
to all the facts, He stated had the Government insisted at that time on pay-
ment in full the company would have been thrown inte bankenpiey, A scheme
was finally worked out whereby payment ot the rate of ST10.000 per nieath
was to be made, and thus far such payments have beei reeeiy od, provabiy te
the extent of 100,000, He stated that the officers of the compuny were rathor
optimistic until the spring of 1924, when they ran inty a prive-cattineg war
caused by a4 competitor,  Yor the first seven months of 1924 the company loot
about £30,000, and prospects for making money at the preseat tane are nos
bright ; especinlly with this incubus of tax over theiv heads. they do not
~ee how they are going to save the compuny.  Further, Mr, Somers and him-
self have been there about a yeur and a half, have received: no enmpensation,
although he later admitted they would not work indefinitely without <ome
reward, They have been trying to figure some sway to tinanee the compiny, b
with the tax overhanging have been unable to do so, They stated it swas
practically impossible to interest capital under the cireums tancees, They dis-
played a balance sheet, and in going over the different fteme called atrention
to the faci that many were of guestionable value. They admitted. however,
that the real estate, eliminating all buildings, had cost soms ¥350.000 dnring
the war period, on which a mortgage of approximately $125,0430 L outstamding,
leaving a net of $223.000. The balanee <heet showed casio ol piont <y
thousand and cdd dollars, but they <tated this wax a portien of money borrowed
from banks with the understanding that a certain amount would be kept on
deposit. They admitted at least $20,000 could be attached by the Government,
The current assets just about equal the current liabilitics, and they called
attention to the iarge investment in plant and cylinders, which, in their
opinion, would have Iittle value in the case of lguidation.

They were advised that se far as the office war aware a compremixe of the
tax legally due could not be made with a solvent corporation. They do not
admit that the company is solvent or insolvent but intimate that it ix in a
serious finaneial condition and feel confident that they have reasclied the end
of their rope, and seek rellef by some means of eliminating the tax or com-
promising it with a view to then interesting capital, saying they have hopes
of pulling through. They were advised that in the event they did make an
offer in compromise, attaching a check and setting forth fully the situation
and analyzing the various items of the balance sheet, the otice would officinlly
pass upon the question, but until such was received the office did not feel
justitied in intimating any possibility of such a settlement: in fact, they were
advised at stated above, that so fur as the law i« concerned the office i nnable
to suggest any velief, although agreeable to having the Solicitor puss on the
legal phase of the question.

In the event such offer ix received they were advisxed the Government would
in all probability require sufficient time to make investigation and verify any
statements they may make, to which. of course, they offered no objection hut
offered to do anything within their power to assist the investigating ofticers.
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To-day, the 20th, they called upon 7« Huates, who had Mr, Stewart and the
writer appenr, and the guestlon do assed without any new  developments.
My, Estes stated every considersutlon possible snder the law aud regolations
would be glven thele case, but no definite promises or intlmations were made
other than the question would have to be raled upon by the solleftor's oflice,
as it s purely a question of Iaw,

In thee event an investigantion Is made, T belleve It would be well to aseertaln
the status of the prestdent and vice preshdent In the way of compensation or
nereoment o contract, gy there pay be some personal fneentive to eliminnte
the tnx Hability and continne the copporntton,  They admitted that the smmmer
I8 the best season In this basiness and that the price competition 2 still on,
und with sueh condittons i I not eleir to the wrlter how thay can hope to
suceeed by simply elliminating the tex,  They were advised {o subimit arsessed
values of the read estate, prices pald, dates purehased, and sales of nny sur-
roundiing or adjucent similar property.  From o perusal of the balunee shoet it
would seem that the Government should by able to reallze the gmonut of tax
due, nasmuch axs It is iy understanding the Government has the flest lien on
the net assets, and under such clreumstanees It s havd to Justify gcenating
relief unles< it is simply for the purpose of enahling the corporntion to Hve,

Cuas, A, Drawe,
Head Sales Taa Dirision,

ASHITHEEN Y
New Youw, dagust 23, 1029,
Hon, Cynvs Doy, .
Collecton of Tetevoal Bevenne, Vlainn, VY.

D St Inelosed herewith is g certifled ehieek for 850000, which i< herehy
tendered in ding) payient of all ocebse tnses nad pennltes nceerned on the <ale
of envhonle was Prom Febraary 1, 1922, (o Mareh 31, 1920, with the anderstand-
fng that B T tender is peecpted this company is thereby released from all
further Habil 1y Tor sueh mxes durlong the aforementionsd period,

The compiny §x in acute finnnelnd dilieaities, as tally set forth hereinafter,
and we belfeve that the interest= of the Pnited Stntes Gosermment well he hest
setved by the peceptnnee of this offer,

About the middle of May, 020, Mr. {Tarey ¥, Pettee, former president of
this compony, divappenred, Tamedintely after Ws disappenanee Mre, Henry
W. Ronters was clected prosident and mysolf viee president of the company,
hoth aetively engnped inoother affnbes, But consenting to serve here to (ey Lo
save the situation for close friends,

A exnmimgtion of the ecampnny’s affairs diselosed the faet that Mre. Peitee
I cmbezzled pproximately 8200000 of the compnny's fauds. It was also
dxclosed that Pettee hnd fatled to make veturnx of the wples taxes aeerued on
cathonie ens ~olil by the eompany from Februnvy 1, 1922 to Mareh 21, 1924,
noe had he popid hix tanx which mnmmiwl to 080198, We tmme i]lu!ul\' dls-

closed to the Government the company’s Habldiy for these unpaid taxes, and,
alter negotintions with the Burenn of Interngd Reveune, arvanged for payment
theveof Cin monthly iustallments of $10.000 cnch. Usder this arrangement
SHOO00 has heen prbd, Teaving S206,950.9% anpnid at the present time,

Hid conditions in the carbonie-gas industry remadned as they were o vear
o the compiny would very likely have bheon able to meet s obhllantions
uvtder this arransement and fingly be able to pny the tax in fall, Bt last
fall the Federal Sugar Refluing Co, of Youkers, No Y. Installed equipment for
the rechiauntion of earvhonie gas, which s one of the by-products of the sugir-
etining procoss, Thix by-produet gas was thrown onto the mavket tnst winter
at n price of 3 conts per pound, which is less than our manufacturing cost,
The prevalling price prior thereto had heen 16 and 11 cents per pound.

Our busipess is a seasonn) bhusiness and we continiped to hope that when we
vot into the sununer months we might be able to dixcegard this competition
utd seenre an advantageous price for our product,  Our hopes have not min-
tevislized.,  The compuny ¢ now in a very precarious condition and can not
flnanee isell beconse of the fax Hen agalnst i, With some finnneing  for
working enpital, which will be possible provided the tax Hen ean be wiped out,
we hope to weather the present price war and survive untll the industey returns
to n nermal basis,
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Mr. Somers and myself have sneriflesd onr other business to keep this com-
pany n going coticern. We have done this witheut recelving any compeusation
for our servieen to date. However, with the present outlook, we can not eon-
tinue thexe snerifices, nor ig it reasonable to expect us to. With a chnuge in
management at this eritieal time the outeome s apt to be disastrous,

For your information we have atinehed hereto as Exhibit B oan income and
profit-and-lors statement for the «ix months ended Moy 31, 1024, which is the
Hest hindf of our fiseal year. This atatement shows a loss from our operations
for this perlod of S64.21277, or at the rate of more than $OUK per month,
We are unable to continue our monthly payments ander existing conditions,

The next thing for serlous constderation is the present finunelnl status of the
company.  KExhibit A, attached hereoto, Is 8 balance sheet as at May 31, 1824,
In purallel columns we have shown the book values of the vavious assets and
the possible realizable values of these same assets in the ovent of o foreed
liquldation of the compuny, While the books ostensibiy show an excess of
nasots over Habllities, the assets, upon Hquidation, might have at the outside n
possible renlizable value of $ISL007.62, Tess than the linhilities, o that, on the
basis of the actunl fucts, the company i hopelessly nsolvent,  Varlous sup-
poerting scheduies submitted herewith explndn the basia on which the possible
reslizable valuer are determined, This does not take into coustderation (he
vory heavy expenses of a Hquldation which would materially reduce ¢he nmounts
realized upon foreed sule of the company’s properties,

The hopelessness of the sftuntion, shiowld we be unable to xecure vellef
froim the tax, Is tndleated by a comparison of the quick assets with the Habili-
ties.  "FPhey nrve SGSDA82.00 of current Uabilties,  To meet these labititles,
there are quick assets of o possible realizable value of S2EO25.07, or shoul 26
cents on the dollar, it gall of the gulek assets could be rentized.

Moxst of the cash in banks I8 subject to a priov Hen, as the loans from the
buanks were secured by our agreement to epreey 4 bidanee in these banks of
20 per cent of the amounts of our loans,

The life-dnsurance polley is pledged as coliieral on g note of S20,000 held
by the Adirondack Trust Co, of Saratoge Springs, N, Y.

The accounts may be subjeet to even greater sheinkage than is provided {or
here, as set forth in Schiedule No, 1 herewith, )

In sctunl Hguldatlon it i~ problematiesl whether the inventories would
vealtlze the vidues heve shown,

The possthle values of the piants and equipment are based largely on the value
of the land ewned, as shown by Schedule Noo g0 The bulidings and equipient
have little or no value for purposes other than the manutaeture of ciarbonic
gns, AL the present time, and for some thine in the past, there has heen a
surplus of vacant factorlex on the market.  These facts, togetivar whth the
tollowing luformation, help (o establish the valaes of these properties,

This sprimg the mortgage on the Long Island City plant was due. . We
attempted nt that thime to borrow some more money on that plant, n the
maximum wmount we could secure was X100000, which was only cnnngh to
renew the maturing mortgnge, althongh this plunt s cavreled on our hooks ot
RINO,000 nnd is assessed for taxes gt S335,000,

Our Detroft plant I8 on leased laud, This lease explres in 10200 Unless the
purchase option fn that lease Is exereived, the plant will be of very little valne
to anyone.  In the event of lguidation the optlon, of course, can not to
availed of,

The compuny owns land in Norfolk which was purchased nearly three vears
ago as a site for n new plint. The purchase price of this Limd was SUD 000,
We have offered this Iand for =ale at $25.000 and have heen unable to find «
murchaser,

The physieal condition of several of the plant hulldings Is such that they
woitld be an encumbranee to the lnnd rather than tending to fnevease the
value thereaf iu the event of a foreed sale.

In the event of bankruptey proceedings the expense of Hguidation wonld be
vory groat. hecause the propertles are widely seatiored, necessitating the
appointment of ancillary recetvers fn seven different States, with all the adidi-
tional expense caused thereby,

The most valuable plant the company owns (Long Esland €ty is enenme
hered by o mortgage of S100,000.  This is the property on which we were
uhabie to seeure an additional Toan fn excess of £100,000L The other movtgnge
of $25,000 runs agninst property in Norfolk, Va.
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Another asset-in which there would be a tremendous shrinkage upon lqui-
datlon is the cylinders or tubes used as containers i our product. While
these cylinders appear on the books at a value of more than $1,000,000, this is
in excess of the present replacetnent values, These cylinders are all old, very
few new ones having been added to our equipment in the last flve years.
nder the old management for a considerable period of time no depreclation
was written off on this asset. This asset is of value only to this compuny as
n polng concern. In case of liquidation these cylinders would be of value
only as scrap. All competing compunies have un even greater excess of
cylinders than this company.

The $30,000 which Is hereby tendered has been raised upon the personal
responsibility of the president of the compauy and the udersigned:

Attention In directed to the fact that this payment will make a total pay-
ment by the company to the Government of $160,000 on account of the tax in
question,

In view of the company's insolvent financial condition, unless relief be
granted as set forth in the attached statements and as further explained
herelnbefore, we belleve the interests of the Unlted States Government would
be best served by acceptance of this offer, thus giving this company, with its
many stockholders and employees, a fighting chance to survive, We earnestly
request its acceptance.

Respectfully submitted.

GENFRAL Carnonte Co,
By Lurher A, Warr, Viee President,

Exnmir E
ABSTRACT AND STATEMENT

TREASBURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE oF THE COMMISAIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
. Washington, September 25, 1924,

United States v, General Carbonice Co., Saratoga Springs, N. Y. Compromise
case No, 31119, fourteenth district of New York. Not in suit

To the Solicitor:

Cherge: This $107,000 offer was submitted in compromise of tax amounting
to $200,351.08 under section 602 (f) of the revenue act of 1921 ou the manu-
facture and sale of carbonic-aclid gas. An offer of $10 in Heu of penalties and
interest aggregating $162,154.88 Las also been submitted.

It appears that this delinquency was not due to a willful intent to evade the
tax, the liability having been discovered by revenue agenis after the former
president of the firm, Mr. H. E. Pettce, absconded, in May, 1923, with funds
belonging to the company approximating $400,000.

Abolt one year ngo arrangements were made with the corporation under
which it was permitted to pay the tax due in installments at the rate of
$10,000 per month, $110,000 having been paid up to the present tlme on ihe
original tax of $406,351.98,

On July 14 of this year a conference was held in this office with Mr. P. J.
Richards, auditor, and Mr. W. E. Bennett, attorney, representing the corpora-
tion, who stated that the collector had made demand vpon them for payment
of the outstauding penalties and interest. They stated that the company was
making every effort to cancel the ilability for tax; that it was solvent and it
was their desire to cancel all indebtedness at the earliest possible date, and to
that end it was thelr intention, if posgible, to increase the amounts of the
monthly payments to the collector of internal revenue, They were advised
that although the Government recognized the hardship under which the com-
pany was Iaboring due to the defalcatlon of its president, the tax would have
to be paid in full, but that the interest and penaltics could be compromised,
and under the circumstances it was felt that an amount equivalent to 3 per
cent interest on the tax from the thne when it becawe due until jf was flinally
dispaosed of would be acceptable. However, in order to stay collectlon pro-
ceedings on the part of the collector, it was suggested to them that they file s
tentative offer in compromise in & nominal amount, which, when received in
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the department, would be filed until such time as the entire tax liabillty way
divposed of. This suggestion met with the approval of the representatives of
the company and the collector was advised under dute of July 16 of the resnlt
of the conference. .

On August 19, 1924, Mr. L. A. Waite, vice president, and Mr. P. J. Richards,
auditor, called at this office and stated that the company was on the verge
of bankruptcy, due principally to 8 price war caused by a competitor, They
represented that for the first seven months of 1924 the company had lost about
$50,000, and indlcations pointed to fMurther losses. Mr. Walte also stated that
unless additional capital could be secured with which to continue business,
which was impossible with the tax burden to settle, the company would be
forced within a very short time into bankruptcy. The represeutatives were
advised that unless the corporation was inxolvent, and it did not appear to be,
the Government could grant them no rellef from the payment of the tax, but
that if they could show that the compsny is actualyy involvent the matter of
compromise could be taken into conslderation. It was understood when they
left the office that they would probably submit an offer with a brief explaining
the finanelal condition of the company.

On August 26, 1924, the additional offer of $50,000 was received, together
with a brief, a financial statement, and varifous exhibits, in connection with
the financial standing of the company. On September § the case was referred
to the deputy commixsioner of the Income Tax Unit with request for an imme-
digte report regarding the abllity of the corporation to pay the tax due, The
agent’s report, dated September 13, was received in this office on September
16, recommendation being made that instead of accepting the offers aggregating
$50,010 now pending, the company be permitted to submit an additional $50.000,
making a total of $100,010. This recommendation 18 based on the fact that
the survey of the agents shows an estimated liquidating value of approxi-
mately $341,469.68 (sce Exhibit A), which is less than the Government's entire
claim for taxes, penalties, and interest, The agents expressed the opinion
that under present conditions the company can not continue to operate at a
profit and alse provide a proper amount for depreciation. Therefore, in order
te permit the corporation to remain in business for an indefinlie period and
perhaps survive by overcoming competition, the agents recommended that full
payment of the exelse-tax elaim be not enforced by the Government.

To get a clear idea of the condition of the company a summary has been
prepared (sce Exhibit A) showing book figures, revenue agent's sales tax
division, and company’s estimated Hquidating values. There has also been pre-
pared an explanation for each of the items entered in column 3 on Exhibit A.
it will be noted that the figures of this office show that the net surplus would
he $575,458.33 instead of $341,269.68, if the Government exercires its right of
distraint and sale, If the figures of this office are correct and the property is
sold, it is believed that there would be sufficient funds with which to pay
the Government’s claim in full.

The representativos of the sales tax division inferred from Mr. Walte's
statements that he and Mr. Somers devoted thelr entire time to the compaany
and that they haqd recelved no compensation for their services. The ageat’s
report, however, that Mr. Somers, the president of the General Carhonic Co.,
and Mr. Waite, the vice president, are also officials of the Iroquols Pualp &
Paper Co.,, Saratoga Springs, N. Y., receiving annual salaries of $25,000 and
18,000 respectively. Mr. Waite conducts a law office, maintaining a staff of
four attorneys and necesspry assistants, and Mr. Somers also operates a
wholesale conl and coke business in Albany, N. Y., all of the coni and coke
nsed by the General Carbonie Co. being purchased through hir as broker.
This, together with the understanding that his firm is one of the general
creditors, may aceount in part for Mr, Somers’s interest in keeping the General
Carbonte Co, 8 golng concern. The agents report acerued salaries on the hooks
of the company of some $17,000 for these two officiuls at the rate of 37,500 per
annum,

Purticular attention is called io the company's statemend as regards Hability
itoms $39.211.2R and 31635198, the Tormer belng admiited by Mr, Waite as
tax already paid and the latter reduced to $286,351.95; also land, buildings,
and equipment of $2,100,000 reduced by the company {o a liquiadting value of
$215.000, which includes lands alone vhat cost $384,000 and lands and bulld-
ings assessed at $684,000, showing the extreme reductions claimed.  Accounts
recelvable aggregating $183.000 were reduced by the company to $27,600,
whereas accounts less than four months old amonunt to $143,000. There is also
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a refund due the company according to the agents of some $32,000, which has
been entirely omitted in the company’s assets, but which Mr. Waite admitted
e and Mr, Somers expected to use to relmburse themselves in part for the
$50,000 submitted by them as an offer in compromise,

Aithongh not admitted by Mr., Waite, the representatives of the sales tax
division belleve that the company could liguidate for an amount at least equal
to the tax due.

The delinquency is evidently the result of defaleations on the part of the
former president of the company, who ®tan not now be located, and it i«
probably an extreme harvdship upon the present officials of the company to
pay the tax due. Furthermore, it is believed that the company is in serious
financial difficulties, and the impossibility of accuraiely estimating Houidat-
ing values i3 recognized. In view of Mr. Walite's statement that it is im-
possible.to interest additional capital with the tax lability unpaid and bis
affidavit that unless the offer in compromise is accepted he and Mr. Somers,
who furnished the $75,010 in cash, offered in compromise, will withdraw
such funds and retire from the management of the company and further
with the understanding that it is the policy of “the bureau to accept an offer
in compromise in such an amcunt that will allow a taxpayer to survive in
pbusiness, it is recommmended that the $75,010 in cash and release, or assign-
ment, of any and all refunds due the company for overpayment of income
taxes (approximately $32,000) be accepted in lieu of the total sales tax
liability for tax, penalties, and interest.

I recommend acceptance.

R. M. EsrES,
Deputy Commiissioner,

Exmwmmr B
ABSTRACT AND STATEMENT

TREASURY DEPARTMENT.
UFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENCE,
Washington, Seplember 27, 1924,

United States r. General Carbonic Co., Saratoga Springs, N. Y. Compromise
case No. 31110, fourteenth district of New York, Not in suit

Charge: This $132,000 offer, which consists of $100.000 in cash and g waiver
by the company of its right to a refund of $32,000 which is understood to have
been allowed by the Income Tax Unit for overpa;ment of income taxes, was
submitted in compromise of tax amounting to $296,351.98 due under sectlion
602 (f) of the revenue act of 1921 on the munufacture and sale of carbonic-
acid gas. An offer of $10 in lieu of penaltlies and imerest assessed in the
amount of $162,154.88 has also been submitted.

It appears that this delinguency was not due to willful intent to evade the
tax, the lability having been discovered after the former president of the
firm, My H. E. Pettee, absconded in May, 1923, with a large amount of funds
bhelonging to the corporuation.

Full detall:: in connection with this case are set out in brief submitted by
this office under date of September 25, 1924, which is included in the file
attached hereto.

The delinquency is evidently the result of defaleations on the part of the
foriner president of the company, who can not now be located, and it is prob-
ably an extreme hardship upon the present officiais to pay the tax due. Iur-
thermore, it is belleved that the company is in serious financial difficulties
and would probably be thrown into the hands of recelvers if demand were
made for immediate payment of the tax due. The impossibility of accurately
estimating liquidating values is also recognized.

In view of the above facts and also because of Mr. Waite's statement that
with che tax Hability unsettled it is impossible to interest additional capital
with which to continue iu business, this office recommends that the offer be
aceeptel in leu of the tax, penalties, and interest outstanding.

I recommend acceptance.

R. M. ESTES,

' Deputy Commissioncr.
First offer. Daie of offer, September 27, 1824, Amouni offered, $132,000.

e
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DEPARTMENT OF JUATICE,
OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR oF INTERNAL RFVENUE,
Washington, D. €., September 29, 192,
The CoMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,

Sir: I have considered the proposition of the General Carbonie Co,, Saratoga
Springs, N. Y., to compromise the labilities, as charged herein.

For the reasons embodied in the accompanying abstract and statement, which
are made o part hereof, I ani of the opinion and advise that it will be proper
and for the best interests of the United States to accept the terms proposed,
namely, $100,01¢ and the waiver by taxpayer of its rights to refund of income
tax overpaid for the years 1919 to 1922, inclusive, estimated to be about
$32,000, in compromise of taxpayer's liability to unpaid balance of excse tax
on the manufacture and sale of carbonic-acid gas for the period February,
1022, to March, 1923, inclusive, amounting to $206351.98, and also in com-
promise of penaltics and interest assessed and acerued thercon,

Respoetfully,
NEerson T, Harrsox, Solicitor.

Exunur G
Bulamw st(t ua at l!t.// k1, l‘)

[ Estimated liquidating

] ! Estimated values adjusted to

. L | e ¢ N 1924

' Book values | liquidating | *" t .

| values
B
i
P
!

( ompanv'
ﬂgur('s

Burenu S
ﬂgures

ASSETS

. Cash in banks and on hand..........]
. Accounts receivable, customers .

Lessreserve forrehatesand lossos.
3. Lonns due from customers. .. .......

S -

134, 643, 8

B 143, 500,88 27, 000,00
.............. | 600000 | 500000 ps

5,000.00 2 000,00

. Loansund notes from employ coqmul ‘

others.. . I e BTAR2TR L 6,000,001 6,000000 (o, ..
5. Cash v nluv Tife insurance. | D4, TR0, 00 | 124, 746,06 | 21, 7RG, 06 23, 181, 37
b, lnvcmmu-s gas in o?.md(-r |
7. Inventories, materinls and s 30,388, 42 { 5,000.00 ; 5, 000.00 | . 000, 00
N

. United States (tovernment, claim for | X

BANCS L it e I 31,021 55 3!.921.55& 32, 116, 55

9. Unpaid stoek subscriptions T T A,

1
: :
26,071.20 [ 20,000.00 . 26,071.20 1 "2 500,00
l
5 |

1l
10, Investwents. ... . .. ..o ieia 10, 820,
11. Fived assets: !
Plunts and equipment | . IENCATY T ARHTIND 1 2 R e
Loss reserve for dvprmmtmn mi.' w, 97 - 1 e G e .
- l.mm.:u;sr i | a1, B0, m‘ ,u..mu m 205, 00000
[V Cylinders amed valves, . ; l I"l H: ll, A e s
Loss reserve for doprvcmtmn IIH..IS G L. o e
. 1,002, 42702, ooo, (N) 4, 000, 00 10, 00, 00
13. Deferred charges ... ... .. ..|. FLGSO6Y e e e e el
14, Good will............. e P2 N5000.00 L
15. Organization expense..........._.. RN B (v 1 S e

Total n. r“-.NT" :4 Mn 4(H). 62 ' ?\"", .{i){).t i L
LIABI ITIES - " - TR e '}’
1. Mortgages payable.. ... ... | e 125, 000, 00 3 125, 000, 00 125,000,000 1 125,000, 00

17. Notes payable. . ...

169, 000.00 169, 000,00 | 20, 000,00 | 169, (00, 60
18, Accounts payable, .

51,951.61 | 5L 5L 6L | 17,883.63 5L, 251 61

19, Excise taxes, current S su.2an 2% apeonen | 30,221, 28
20, Unpaid dividends.._...._... I P, 71, 140, 00 | TLI 00 | 71, 190.00 1 71, 190,00
21, Accrued interest and taxes LTI S maeni2loagann il 1346752 13,467, 72
Capital stock, outstanding: ; ! ‘ 7816,351. 98
Preferved. ..ol ... 20485, 100,00 | ..o R
Common. ... .o RBTR600.00 Lo .
4, 864, 700,00 341, 469, 68 | ‘ 578 ?’»8
BUIPIIS. o e e R S 4,049, 83 1
Total oot e e e mmeeeeaa] B, BY7,870.74 | 810, 400, 62 ' 822, 399, 68 7K> 452, 44
g | 34.;7 051, 98
1 Pledged. ¢ Taxes. 3 Dvﬁcit

The Cramnax. Then we will adjourn here until to-morrow morn-
ing at 10 o’clock.

(Whereupon, at 11.50 o'clock a. m.. the committee adjourned until
to-morrow, Thursday, March 26, 1925, at 10 o’clock a. m.)
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THURSDAY, MARCH 26, 1925

UNITED STATES SENATE,
Serrcr CoMMITTEE TO INVESTIGATR
THE BUreav or INrTervan BeveNuE,
Washington, D. C.

The committee met at 10 o’clock a. m., pursuunt to the adjourn-
ment of yesterday.

Present : Senators Couzens (presiding) and King.

Present also: Mr. L. C. Manson, counsel for the committee; Mr.
Edward T. Wright, investigating engineer for the committee,

Present on behalf of the Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mr. A. W,
Gregg, special assistant to the Secretary of the Treasury; Mr. C. R.
Nash, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue; Mr. A. R.
Marrs, attorney, oflice of Solicitor of Internal Revenue; Mr. W. S.
Tandrow, appreisal engineer, Bureau of Internal Kevenue: Mr. J. G.
Bright, Deputy Commissioner of Internal Revenue; and Mr. John
Alden Grimes, chief of metals valnation section.

Mr. Nasi. May T make just a short statement on the General
Carbonic case and the procedure of handling excise-tax items? I
will take just a mement.

'The Cuamman. Yes.

Mr. Nasi. Yesterday some criticism was mude of the procedure
of handling excise tax returns in collectors’ offices and the apparent
failure to keep an adequate check of those returns so vhat delin-
quencies could be promptly discovered.  The excise tax returns
are vendered monthly by taxpayers to the collector within 30 days
after the close of the month in which they made the collections for
the Govermmuent.

In this case it appears that from February, 1922, up to about
March, 1923, there was a gap in the returns filed by the General
Carbonie Co. The veturn filed by these taxpayers is in triplicate
form, one section of which is forwarded to Wasaington, one section
stays in the collector’s office, and the third section is returned to the
taxpayer as a receipt. L will not read the entive procedure, hut only
that part of it which provides that the duplicate which stays in the
collector’s oftice must be filed behind a guide card which bears the
name of the taxpayer. This is paragraph 11 of the sales tax pro-
cedure in Internal Revenue Manual, part 2, which manual is for
the guidance of the offices of collectors of internal revenue:

Guide eards shoyld be established in alphabetical arrangement,  Prior to
filing the dueplicate sales tax returns at the end of each month they should
be arranged alphabetically,  As each return is placed behind its correspond-
ing guide eard, the entire file should be examined for the purpose of ascer-

taining if any return is missing elther for the curvent or previeus month,
FForms 837 should be prepared at the same time for the chief field depuaty.

3401
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That is this little card, Form 837 |indicating |, which is addressed
to the chief field deputy, giving the name of the taxpayer and
address and reading, » Has failed to file a return on Form No, ——-
for the month of ———-. Please make an investigation and report
o this oflice the reasons why the return has not been made,” and is
signed by the collector.

Then as a further cheek the oflices of collectors are periodically
examined by supervisors of accounts and collections working under
the direction of the deputy commissioner of accounts and collections
in Washington. '

In the manual of instructions to officers making examinations this
paragraph is found:

Sales tax delinquents: Inguiry shall be made as to whether the sales tax
divigion ig furnishing the chief fleld deputy with records with reference to all
taxpayers who are delinquent, and that the chief field deputy forwards the
records oi such delinquent taxpayers to the field deputy for proper investiga-
tion,

In the series of questions which the examining officer has to an-
swer in his report I find this question:

Are duplicate sules tax returns properly tiled and indexed in accordance
with instructions? Are cards, Form 837, prepared on delinquent. sales tax-
payers and forwarded to chief ticki deputy?

That is the procedure. I think it is as tight as we can make it.

Mr. Maxson. Let me sce if 1 understand that. You have a folder
behind the guide card!?

Mr, Nasi. Yes, sir.

Mr. Mansox, The instruetion is that when the return is filed that
folder shall be examined to determine whether there ave any lapses?

My, Nasir, Yes, sir,

Mr. Manson. Under that procedure how do you ascertain whether
there is a lapse until & subsequent return is filed !

Mr. Nasn, The file is also cliecked, Mr. Manson, after all roturns
arve filed. There is a check on the file then to indicate whether or
not a return has been filed for the month, and then all fifes that are
imcomplete are thrown ont--- -

My, Maxsoxs. That is, they ave thrown oui for further action?

Mr. Nasu. Yeg, sir, In this case vesterday I also stated that due
to pressure of work in the large collectors’ oflice during this period it
was quite possible that the Albany office had not been examined by
the bureau. I find that the Mbany office was examined on March 31,
1922, That is about the time this delinquency might first have
become apparent. It was not examined again uniil February 29,
1924, 'There was just about the same gap in the examinations of the
oftice that there was in the delinquency of this taxpayer. I think
that accounts for why the ¢rror had not been discovered by the
Bureau in the meaniime.

The Crairmax. What answer has the collector to make as to that?

Mr, Nasu. As I said vesterday, an incompetent clerk, a clerk who
was not properly functioning.

The Cuamryan. What about the collector himself, who is sup-
posed to carry out these instructions?

Mr. Nast. The collector is in charge of the administration of the
office, and I suppose has taken the proper disciplinary action in the
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case of this clerk. We have had no further complaints from the
Albany office along this line.

The Cuaeman. Has the bureau taken any action in connection
with the collector and elerk for failure in this case?

Mr. Nasmu. 1 did not go into it far enough to see what action has
been taken. T presume proper action has been taken, because we
have had no further eomplaint.  Subsequent examinations of the
Albany oflice have shown the proper procedure is being followed.

The Coamaan., Will you let us know what has been done in this
case !

Mr. Nasir, If any diseiplinary action has been taken; yes, sir.

The Cramran. And what the collector’s excuse was for letting
it run so long?

Mr. Nasu. I do not presume the collector personally looked into
these things. There was a clerk in charge of the index who was not
properly performing his or her job, and it was not discovered for a
period of 12 or 14 months.

The CrsiraraN. What I do not understand is the collector, in a
small district like that, having received $30,000 a month from the
taxpayer, not missing it for 14 months in his office.

Mr. Nusme T quite agree with you in that, Senator. The only
explanation that T can offer at this time is that a $30,000 item in an
oftice Jike Albany is not an unusual thing.

The CuamwaN. Do you mean the taxpayer could omit making a
payment of $30,000 a month for that length of time and the collector
wonld not miss the collection of such a sum?

Mr. Nasi. Tt is a very easy thing. T imagine the collections in
that district perhaps aggvegate $100,000.000 a year. That may be
too large. T am using that figure offhand. The collections will run
very large.

The Crramryax. Then, of course, he has a chief clerk, who is sup-
posed to have charge of the clerks?

Mr. Nasi. Yes: and he has a head of the sales tax division. This
clerk is employved 1o the «ales tax division.  The collector personally
would not have any divect coniact. _

The Coargaan, In spite of the fact that he has o deputy collector,
a chief clerk, and a sales tax supervi.or, ang all that, it still goes on
14 months before it is caught up.

Mr. Nasn, The man who s primarily responsible is the Lead of
the sales tax division. A %30,000 tax is by no means unusual in an
office the size of the Albany office. We have never been able to pro-
vide those offices with an adequate personnel. 1 have to admit that
we probably have not canght 50 per cent of the delinguent ¢xeise tax
pavers in the country. We have not much more than seratched the
surface on it, because we have never had enough men to do it. It
was a lapse in the oflice. At the time this error occurred there may
have been other kinds of work that was considered to be of more
importance. in the opinion of those in charge of this particular kind
of work at that time, and this feature was apparently neglected.

The Cuamyax. It seems to me nothing is more important where
under the law you collect a tax from a citizen and then let the col-
lector keep it. X think that it is more important that they do not
get away with the tax they collect from citizens than it is that the
taxpavers take it out of their profits and keep it.
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Myr. Nasin That is very true and 1T am not offering any excuse
for what happened in this particulur case. 1 do think that the
oftice. was lax and 1 do know that the collector was very much
chagrined when it was brought to his attention.  He came to Wash-
ington to see the commissioner and felt very badly about it. 1
think he did make the proper administrative changes in his office
to correet that condition. 1 never followed it up i detail; but 1
know that we have had no further complaint from that office along
this line,

The Ciatrsan. The colleetor’s bond does not cover a case of that
kind? -

Mr. Nasi. No, sive It would cover a delinqueney in his own
office.

Senator Kina, In what elass of cuses or business oceupations or
activities is the greatest loss?  You stated that you had just
seratched the surface and had perhaps lost 50 per cent of the exeise
taxes,

Mr. Nasi. No, sir. T osaid we have enught perhaps 50 per cent
of the delinguents.  That means that there ave agreat many exeise-
tax payers or people who should have paid excise taxes who have
never been canght and have never paid, and we have never been
able to effectively ferret them out. '

The Ciramenas, Has the statute of Hmitations ran in these cases?

Mr. Nasm The statate of limitations s runcon some of the
eases that were repealed by the 1921 act. That does not mean that
we have lost any great amount of money. We have heen able to
keep in close toneh with the big tuxpayers. Yet I ventoare to sy
to-day you can go out in some parts of the United States and find
moving-picture shows that never heard of an admission tax at least,
they will not admit it Our investigators are now linding 10000
or 12000 delinguents a month on excise tases that were due under
the 1918 Taw and the (921 Taw,

Mr. Mansox. Do ovon have any system of permits which wonld
give you a Bst of fersons engaged in cccnpations: subjeet to the
exctse {ax?

Mr, Nasu. Fvery nemulacturer of an article that is sabject to
exeise tax must register onee a vear with the colleetor of internal rev-
enueand there isa penalty for failure to vegister.

sSenator Kinea, Hoseems (o me that hefore we conelude these hear
ings, Mr. Chairman, we ought to have Mr. Nash and others of the
department, as well as counsel for the committee, look into these
administrative fentures n Little do see if any just eviticism can hie
agrainst the hurean and whether any additional administrative meas
ures may be provided by Inw to aid the department i colleeting all
the taxes and ferreting out, to use Mr. Nash’s expression, those who
are delingent in excise-tax payments. 1 appreciate the nsgrnitude
of the task and I am not making the suggestion in any eritical
spirit.

Mr. Grece. 1 would like to call this fact to the attention of the
committee. The fact was brought out in connection with the hear-
ings on the 1921 act before the Ways and Means Committee. This
is just an example of the dificnlty. The 1921 act levied an excie
tax on the sale of riding clothes. People who manufactured them
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in wholesale lots, who manufactured a kind of khaki riding pants,
suid they were the only ones who paid the tax; that the people who
were supposed to pay it, the hundreds of tailors in each ety who
made expensive riding habits, never paid it, and it was utterly im-
possible for the department to collect.  As a resnlt Congress re-
pealed that provision.  There were a great many of that kind of
taxes in the 1918 and 1921 acts,

Mr. Mansox. T would like to ask a representative of the depart-
ment whether they have ever given consideration to the advisability
of an amendment to the law requiring an individual or corporation
who is Qm'mim-d to colleet a tax to be placed under bond.

Mr. Nasi. 1 have never given that point any consideration, but
[ will say that 1 think the Government goes a long way when it
has some private individuals acting as a collecting ageney. W
ougrht to devise some other means i%;n- collecting the tax. For in-
stance, in the admission tax it has been snggested, and T think there
is a great deal of merit to it, that the Government might devise
some way of printing tickets or stamps or something of that sort,
to be sold to the theaters and that the thewters, could in turn reim-
burse themselves from the people who would apply for admission,
bt they would not be aeting as our collection agency.  They would
pay the tax at the time they bought the tickets or bought the stamps,
I think there might be devised o means for colleeting such taxes thut
would not make individual citizens colleetion ageneies for the Gov-
ernment,

As pointed out yvesterday it is very diflienlt for as to get a con-
vietion when we do get an actual case of what appears to be em-
hezzlement. T do not recall in my experience of more than two orv
three cases of embezzlement of admission tax where we have heen
able to get a convietion,

Mr. Maxssox. What is the trouble there- dinabitity to establish the
amount ?

Mro Noasie Bis very diflieult to establish the amount and very
difficelt to segregate the Government™s money from the theater’s
money,  We have fo get u specifie case where o (nxpayver goes up
to a box oftice and boy= a ticket for an admission, and then show
that the theater owner does not turn in the money that this man paid
him for an admission {ax.

i know of one instanee where we planted men outside of a hox
ollice Tor a week with some kind of little cheeking machines to cheek
the people that went in. We counted from the time the theater
opened at about 11 o’clock in the forencon until they closed at night.
Then at the end of the week we compared onr veport with the re-
ports thai the cashier of the theater was turning o the manager
and also with the serial number of tickets which had been used,
and no two of the three things would agree. We haed the cashier
of the theater arrvested for withholding taxes. We felt thut the
theater was withholding taxes beeause they were not paying one-
third as much tax as other theaters in the saae vicinity, and yet they
were always erowded. Yet the United States commissioner would
no' old that man on the evidence we had seeured. The only evi-
e we conld get was the count that our men made of the people
that went up to the hox oflice. The commissioner threw out the
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case because he said we could not prove whether these people bought
a ticket when they went up te the box office or not,

Senator Kina, The district attorney ought to have taken that to
the grand jury snd gone over the head of the commissioner,

Mr. Nasir, It costs s several hundred dollars to try to make such
a case.  In that purticular instance we were trying to nnke a case
for the moral effect it would have on the rest of the theaters in that
city. We wanted to do it for advertising purposes.  Instead of that,
they mado sore of a luughing stock out of us, beeause it got pretty
well advertised among the theaters that we could noi cateh them.

The Cragman, That is a good argument for abolishing the whole
business of exelse taxes,

My, Manson. Yes: for it permits dishonesty.

Senator Kina, it is an argument either for abolition or the adop-
tion of different regulations, o as to make money embezzlement or
concealment of receipts more difficult.

Mr. Nasu, In this ense I wanted to point out to the committee
that I think the procedure that has heen preseribed by the depart-
ment for handling excise-tax returns is about as effective as we can
get it without tying ourselves up in a mass of red tape trying to
overcome huwman incompetence.  These cases come in by the hun-
dreds and have to he handled speedily, and the more operations we
put them through the longer it takes to have the job done.  We did
try several years ago to have a recheck on this work in Washington.
We found that we were just about duplicating what was being done
by the collector’s oflice, at an enormous expense, and the expense did
not justify the duplicate checking, so we eliminated it.

Mr. Manxon. Before taking up the next case, T want to make o
correction of a statement I made some time ago.  Yesterday my
attention was called to the fact that when we were before the Finance
Committee on the resolution to extend this investigation 1 made the
statement that it was my opinion that it would cost £1.000,000 to
make a proper engineering examination for the purpose of determin-
ing amortization in the United States Steol ease. 1 iind that 1 did
wake such a statement. In the heat of the discussion T did not
state what I intended to state, which was that it was my opinion
that i€ would cost about $1.000000 to make a proper engineering
examination of all amortization eases,

The matter to whieh 1 desive to call the attention of the committee
this morping is the tax of the United Verde Extension Mining Co,
for 1917, This matter involves an additional tax of R721.260.82.

The Coaresan. When was that setiled ?

My, Mavnson, It was settled by a B2 agreement of January 24,
1924,

Before taking up the engineer’s veport 1 desive to eall attention
to the Ligh spots in the case. The United Verde Extension Mining
Co., or its predecessor corporation, was organized in 1888, but. it was
not until 1915 that the bonanza lode. in which they have sinee oper-
ated, was discovered.  From 1910 to 1914 they did not have sufli-
cient income o require them to make a return.

The company in its 1917 return took a deduction of something
over $2,000,000 for depletion.  This deduetion was hased upon what
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they claimed to be the March 1, 1913, value of approximately $40,-
000,000, Inasmuch as the metal had not been discovered until 1915
there was no basis for u 1913 value of the ore, and the only 1913
value there could be was the cost, which amounted to approximately
$525,000.

Senator Kixa, You wean the cost of the property?

Mr. Maxnson, The cost of the property.  There had been n dis-
covery in 1945, but the provision of the law permitting a discovery
valuation did not become effective until 1918, There are three bases
upon which depletion may be allowed-—that is, one of three bases,
either upon cost, which in this instance was $525,000, or upon the
1913 value, or upon a discovery value since 1913, Eliminating the
discovery value basis, becanse the law did not permit a discovery
value for 1917, brings us back to the cost or 1913 value, and the fact
that the deposit was unknown to exist in 1913 eliminates the 1913
value except upon a cost basis.

When this company filed its veturn it set up a net income of some-
thing over $8,000.000.

scnator’ Kiza, For 1917

Mr. Maxsox. In 1917,

The Coamesax, That was after dedueting the 52.000,000¢

Mr. Mansox. That was after it had deducted in exeess of S
600,000 for depletion and also a deduction in the neighborhood of
some $100006 for development coste, which should have been eapi-
talized instead of depleted.

When this veturn was filed the claim was made for a representa-
tive rate of taxation upon the ground that the invested eapital should
not be determined. This elaim was passed upon hy the then exist.
ingr tax advisory hoard.  Comparative companieos were selected and
a rate of taxation of approximately 21 per cent was determined upon.
Applying this rate to the net income as reported by the company
after making these deductions, the tax advisory hoard deterniined
upon a tax of F2.023.800.00,  As I will show to the commiitee, the
avsessinent letter levving that tax speeifieadly stated that that was
a purely tentative assessment.

The Coaarsas, What date was that assessment levied ¢

Mue, Maxsox. Jdune 10, 1918, on the recommendation of the tax ad-
visory bonrd a tentative assessment of S2123.500.00 was made by
the commissioner.  As 1 stated, that assessiment letter stated that
that was a purely tentative assessment.

FFor some reason or other after that assessment was made a dupli-
cate assesstment was made by the collector at Baltimore of that same
amount. .\ claim in abatement was filed and allowed.  In other
words, the allowance of the abatement was for the specitic purpose of
caneeling the duplicate assessment, and so stated,

Senator Kina, The plea for abatement was for the entive tax?

Mr. Maxson, The plea for abatement was for the $2,000,000,

The Cuvirmax. Dut was only for abatement of the duplicate
assessment ?

Mr. Maxson, Yes: it was only for abatement of the duplicate
assessment.

The Cmamyax. And not abatement for the principal assessment ?
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Mr. Manson, No. I call the attention of the commitice to these
two facts: In the first place, the fivst, assessment was a tentative as-
sessment, as I will show, and in the second place the abatement was
an abatement of a duplicate assessment and in no way an abatcinent
of any portien of the tentstive assessment, for the reason that the
basis upon which this case is nltimately closed is that the bureau
had taken final action, aud both the tentative letter and the allowance
of an abatement are pointed to as indicating final action, which
precluded the bureau from afterwards determining the proper basis
for the allowance of depletion. :

The committee is familiar with the proceedings had with reference
to the revaluation of copper mines and the order of the commissioner
in December, 1922, ordering a revaluation of copper mines for 1919
and subsequent years. In this case there was no provisional valua-
tion. There was no initial valuation which was ever applied to the
1917 tax. Yet that order of the commissioner ordering a revalua-
tion for 1919 and subsequent years is pointed to as another evidence
of conclusive action upon the part of the department that the 1917
tax of this taxpayer is closed.

Senator Kinc. Is there anything to show why the collector in
Raltimore would he making a dapheate assossment upon property in
Arizona ! :

Mr. Maxsox. No: Ide not think there s

M. Warer, Tt is simply supposed thai the bureat notified him
of the asse=<ment.

Senator Kine, Dud the ofticers of the company live m Baltimore
or did the company have oflices in Baltimere !

Mr. Waicrrr, Noj their oflices were In New York.  The tentative
assessnient vas made in New York and paid there and for some req-
son the Baltimore oflice has the same jurisdiction.

My, Manson. They have jurisdiction of all cases outside of the
country.

Mr. Naso, It mut hove been o mechanical slip which ocenrred.
There would be no legitimate vex=on for it being paid in Baltimore,

Senator Kixa, No: I think not.

Mre. Maxsox. T werely mention that to eall the autention of ihe
committee to three or the facts that were relied npon by this tax.
payer and urged by the taxpayer and at least to some extent acied
vpon by the burean in finally closing the caxe,

The fucts are rather involved and ithis preliminary statcment
which 1 have made has Leen for the purpose of intcrming the conm-
mittee as to what the facts are about. I now refer to the veport
of Mr. Rice, the committee’s engineer.

On March 30, 1918, the taxpayer filed his 3917 return with no com-
putation of tax, claiming that the invested capital could not be
ascertained and requested to be placed ander scetion 210 of the 1915
revenue act and assessed accordingly. This wae granted and a tenta-
tive tax of $2.123.500.55 was assessed and paid by the taxpayer at
New York, .\ similar assessment was also made by the collector at
Baltimore, and when an abatement of this was claimed by the United
Verde Extension Mining Co. it was allowed by the unit, sinee il
wasuite evidently a duplicate aszessment.

In 1919 when the natural resources section was formed the tax-
payer was requesied te {ill out Form A for the purpose of deter-
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mining his tax liability, He protesied, claiming the ease was closed,
and eited the abatement letter.  Valuations were made by the metals
seetion as a result of which conciderable depletion was disallowed
for the 1917 tax. Later. on January 24, 1923, an additional assess-
ment of $721.26€0.82 was made, which the taxpay protosto 1 <leine.
ing the ease to be closed. X number of conferences were held, brinfg
filed by the taxpayer. memoranda prepared by the metals section,
and the matter was thoronghly examined. The metals section rec-
ommended the additional assessment be collected, while Mr. Green-
idee, head engineering division, and Deputy Commissioner Bright,
after considering the case. recommended it be elosed. as a result of
which an agreement under section 1312 of the 1921 revenne act vwas
exeented and signed by the taxpayer and the bureau.

This company was first organized as the United Verde Extension,
Gold. Silver & Copper Minin:s Co.. abont IS3S, capital $3.090.900,
divided into 300,000 shaves of a par value of $10. The company
acquired mining claims adjoining those of the United Verde Copper
Co. at Jerome., Ariz.

Senator Kixe, T suppose that was chiefly paper capital?

Mr. Maxsox. Yes. The company acquived mining claims adjoin-
ing those of the United Verde Copper Co. at Jerome, Aviv. Ore
hundred and ninety thousand shares were sold at public subseviption
in 1899 at $6 per share.

In 1904 the United Verde Extension Mining Co. of Matiae was
organized. which acquired five of the original claims of the alove
company.  This company had a capital of $1.000,000. divided into
400,000 sharves of a par value of $10.

Tn 1910 the United Verde Extension Mining Co, of Delaware was
incorporated.  Capital, 54,000.000: shares 160000 par value, $10,
The five original claims were deeded to this company by the Maine
company for the entire capital. Development ot this time is said to
have amounted o %2,000.000.

Tn June. 192, this company wis reorgamied and the eapital re-
duced to $TH0000, with 1500000 shares at 50 cents par value. One
millicn and fifty thousand shares were issued snd ave outstanding to
the total value of 525,000,

senator Kixe, Tt was this company that took over the five claims
wirieh is the subject of this inguiry?

Mre. Mawson, Yes. 1 eall attention to the fact that this company
in June 1912, had an outstanding capital of a par value of $525,000
and that the greatest amount of capitalization of any of its predeces-
sors had been 54,000,000,

The ore bodies of the company are located in Jerome, Yavapai
County. Ariz.. while the smelter i~ situated at Clemencean, Ariz,
about 6 miles from Jerome,  No net profit was made between 1910
and 1914, and during that period the company had ne income from
operations. .

The taxpaver filed its veturn for 1917 taxes on Marcih 30, 1918,
without computation of tax and requested special treatment under
section 210 of the revenue act of 1916 as amended by the law of 1917
allowing a reprecentative tax, based on March L 1913, value of
510,000,000, L

Pormit me to interject at this point the fact to which ¥ have al-
ready called the attention of the committee that it was not until 1915
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that the property was discovered which would justify any substantial
valuation. '

The Cuateman. When they filed the 1917 return they claimed a
valuation of $40,000,000? '

Mr. Manso~. Yes: as of March 1, 1913, value.

On_June 10, 1918, on the recommendation of the Tax Advisory
Bpm:d a tentative assessment of $2,193.809.55 was made by the cont-
missioner.

The “*mairmaN. Does the record show or do yon intend to tell the
committee Jater how that was arrived at? '

Mr.-Maxso~. T will explain how that was arrived at. T am trying
to get before the committee now a chre. logical history of this case
in the burean in as brief manner as pos.ible.

On June 15, 1918, the taxpayer puaid this asscssment,

During June, 1918, the collector at Baltimore made an assessment
for a similar amount, $2.123,809.55, and the taxpayer filed an abate-
ment claim.

On August 31, 1918, the revenue agent reported on 1910 to 1917.
inclusive, and disallowed depletion except that based on cost, 8525,
000. .

On September 27, 1918, abatement order No. 3633 was filed by Col-
lector J§. M, Miles at Baltimore. to stop duplicate assessment of $2.-
120,800,055,

On February 19, 1919, the taxpayer’s claim for abatement of tax
was allowed.

On November 20, 1918, Mr. Graton. valuation engineer, wrote the
taxpaver for *supplemental data, Form .\, as revenue agent™s report
indieated large additional taxes for 1916 and 1917, to which the tax-
payer replied that the case was closed for 1917, by the abatement let-
ter of IFebrvory 19, 1919,

On November 25,1919, the taxpayer made a definite elaim on Form
ADMULS, for Mareh 1, 1913, value of 510,000,000 on 2,000,000 tons
of ore not known to exist on Mareh {1915,

On June 7. 1920, the taxpayer. app.rently abaudoning the Marels
1, 1913, elaim, filed Form D elatming a discovery value at December
31,1916, of SO0 618760 on 2000000 tons of ore. and a develop-
ment cost account of 45356240 at date of discovery:in other wm'({
making up the $£40,000,000.

Up to this point the taxpaver first claimed a 1913 value of $40.-
000,000. Then he abandoened the claim for the 1913 value of $40.-
000,000 and set up a claim for discovery value of the same amount
as of December 31. 1916, .

On June 12, 1920, E. T. Cumming:., assistant valuation engineer,
determined discovery value at December 21, 1916, of $36,518,340.88.

I might say at this point that we have not attempted to review
that discovery value for the reason that we claim that for the year
1917 the only depletion they were entitled to must be based upon
the $525,000 of cost, but they were not entitled to any depletion on
discovery value for 1917 for the reason that the law did not permit
it and no depletion upon 1913 valie for the reason that the ore
was not known to exist until 1915,

The Cramyax. You have not told us when they discovered the
ore.

Mr. Maxsox, Yes: it was in 1910 that the ore was discovered,

-
e
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The Cuamaran. Where is the evidence to that etfect?

Mr. Manson. That is admiuted by evervbody. There is no dis-
pute about that.

The Cuamman, That is admitted in the vecord?

Mr. Mansox. Yes. Whon the taxpayer finally filed this claim for
a discovery valuve the discovery is set up as having taken place in
1915 and developed by December, 191¢.

Senator Kinc. And then they claimed $400,000 for development
as abatement for that, which as counsel stated—and I think he is
correct—was capital?

Mr. Manson. Certainly. But that was in addition to the deple-
tion claim. In 1917, based upon the $10.000,000 value to be depleted,
they included their development costs, all of which they sought to
deduct in the year 1917.

No action was ever taken on this Cammings valuation of $36,518,-
340.86. It was later discovered that in arriving at that figure of
$36,000,000 plus, the engineer had fuiled to deduct the plant, and a
new valuation was made by Enginecr W. H. Harrison. On Febru-
ary 25, 1921, W. H. Harrison, valvation engineer, determined dis-
covery value, at December 31, 1916, of $30,652,379 for ores only, and
depletion {rom 1915 to 1917, inclusive, according to the engineer’s
report, was based on the cost of $525,000 as of March 1, 1913,

On March 28, 1921, additional taxes for 1915 and 1916 were
assessed on the basis of the Harrison valuation—that is, for the years
1915 and 1916 they would be assessed on the cost basis.

The CrarMan. I thought you said not on the cost basis but on
the Harrison valuation?

Mr. Maxson. Harrison made two veluations. He made a valua-
tion as of 1913, which was applicable up to the time the discovery
value became effective, up to the date of the discovery, and while
the actual depletion sustained would be based upon the discovery
valuation, the allowance for depletion for the vear 1917 wonld
necessarily, under the law. be based upon the cost for the reason
that the 1917 law made no provision for disvovery valuation.

March 28, 1921, additional taxes for 1975 and 1916 were assessed
on the basis of the Harrison valnation—-that is, the cost valuation—
subsequent to which several conferences weve held, 1917 taxes not
being considered.

On January 22, 1922, additional tuxes assessed for 1915 and 1916
were confirmed.

On March 18, 1922, claim for sbatement of the 1916 tax was filed
by the taxpaver. which was sub«equently disallowed.

On April 5, 1922, a confercrice was held with the taxpayer and
the conclusion was reached that the “ 1917 audit is to be considered
final only in the event that the Commissioner of Internal Revenue
agrees in writing to such arrangement.”

The Cuamraman. Who were the conferees at that time? Does the
record show?

Mr. Mansox. I do not know. I cite this fact to show that the
auditor who attended that conference with the taxpayer did not con-
sider the 1917 tax to be closed and that they were not to be consid-
ered closed unless the commissioner agreed to such an arrangement
in writing. That was as late as April 5, 1922,
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On January 24, 1923, an A-2 letter was mailed to the taxpayer
advising that an additional assessment for 1917 was to be made in
the amount of $721,260.82.

I might interject at this point that that additional tax is based
entirely upon the disallowance ¢f the item of depletion and the devel-
opment cost.

Senator Kine. Which amounted to $2,400,000; that is, $2,000,000
depreciation and $400,000 development costs?

r. Manson. I will give the exact figures on that. The depletion
allowed, which would be the difference between depletion on the
cost basis and depletion on the $40,000,000 basis, amounted to $2,265,-
756.33. The development cost disallowed amounted to $461.407.50.
Then there was a depreciation disallowed amounting to $34,204,94
and a small item of $916.20 due to disallowance on an exchange of
automobile. )

Senator Kine. Was that depreciation on the mine when they
claim its value had gone up to $40,000,000?

Mr. Manson. T assume it was on the plant. Then they did allow
one-tenth of the development costs, correcting the net income to
$10,937,277.99 instead of $8,242,909.04. The additional tax arises
out of a difference in net income for the reason that the same rate
was used as had been previously determined by the tax advisory
board upon & comparative basis and which had been accepted without
objectior. by the taxpayer.

ebruary 19, 1923, the taxpayer wrote protesting this assessment,
claiming the 1917 taxes were closed by the abatement order of Ifebru-
ary 19, 1919,

%‘he CuasirmaN. When, as a matter of fact, it was only an abate-
ment for a duplicate assessment?

Mr. MansoN. Yes.

On April 10, 1923, there was a conference, at which the taxpayer
protested the 1917 assessment on the basis that section 1313, act of
1921, prohibits such review and that under the act of 1917 the three-
year statute of limitations outlaws such 1917 assessment. ‘

T will read section 1313 into the record, but I call attention to the
fact at this time that that section provides that where the commis-
sioner has finally determined the fact or assessed the tax, that his
action shall not be subject to review of any other Government officer -
or department. The claim has no application whatever to this situ-
ation, because, in the first place, the only tax involved here and the
only tax which the commissioner had determined was the tentative
tax, and the tax which was clearly stated to be a tentative tax.

In April, 1923, the taxpayer submitted a brief by Paul Armitage.
its tax consultant, presenting arguments. .

On May 10, 1923, there was a memorandum to Deputy Commis-
sioner Chatterton from the metals valugtion section, answering the
nrotest and arguments of the tax{myer, and submitting that the ad-
ditional assessment should stand, because of gross ervor in the tenta-
tive assessment as a result of misrepresentation by the taxpayer, and
that there is no evidence that such assessment was final.

On July 3, 1923, there is a letter from Mr. Grimes, chief of the
metals valuation section, to Mr. Greenidge, head of the engineering
division, presenting the facts and records in the case.




INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE 3418

On July 31, 1923, there is a memorandum from Mr. Greenidge to
Mr. Bright, deputy commissioner.

On Sentember 4, 1923, there is a memomarndum from Mr. Enes,
conferee of the consolidated returns subdivision, to Mr. Bright, re-
viewing the case.’

On September 6, 1923, there is 0 memurandum from Volney Eaton,
chief of special assessment section, to Mr. Bright.

On September 6, 1923, there is 4 memorandum from Mr. Greenidge
to Mr. Bright, recommending * that the case be considered elosed for
the year 1917.”

I am calling attention to these different memorands in chrono-
fogical order for the purpose of indicating that at the time this final
settlement was made all the facts in the case wore known to both
Mr. Greenidge and Mr. Bright.

The CrairmaN. In other words, it is one of those peculiar cases
to which I have heretofore referred.

Mr. Mansby. On September 11, 1923, there is 2 memorandum from
Mr. Bright to Commissioner Blair, recommending

* % » that the case be not reopened for the year 1917 and that the unit
advise the texpayer that the letter of January 24, 1923, should be ignored.

On Novemben 6, 1923, there is a letter from the taxpayer to Mr.
Bright, advising that the letter of January 24, 1923—that is, the
letter proposing the additional tax—* should be ignored.”

On January 24, 1924, a 1312 agreement was finally executed and
mailed to the taxpayer, closing the case.

On February 18, 1925, there is a memorandum to the commissioner
from Mr. Grimes. recommending that the case be reopened.

The Cuairmax. How could it be reopened when the 1312 agree-
ment had been executed ?

Mr. Maxson. I know of no way myself by which it could be re-
opened, except by a showing of fraud.

The Crairman. Was there any showing of fraud in this case?

Mr. Ma~son. T believe that this is a clear case of fraud.

Mr. Grega. Magr I ask a question right there?

On whose part ?

Mr. Maxsox. I think that will be appare nt before we are through.
I do not care to anticipate the presentation o[ this case.

I have, perhaps, bored the committee with this chronological state-
ment. of these proceedings, but I have done so in order that a brief
history of this case might be before the committee before we get
into a consideration of the details and get lost in the details.

- In the settlement of 1915 and 1916 taxes claims for depletion were

made by the taxpayer based on a valuation as of March 1, 1913, of
$4,000,000. This was not allowed by the unit, and the cases were
finally closed with depletion deductions based on a cost value of
$525,000.

This case pertains only to the settlement of 1917 taxes, the can:
cellation of additional assessment of $721,260.82, and the closing of
the case by a 1312 agreement, with resulting loss in taxes to the.
Government. \

For 1918 and subsequent years depletion is based on & discovery
value allowed by the unit, and is not in controversy, although the
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allowance of.such discovery involves principles which might well
be made a subject for discussion, ’

Inasmuch as that is not involved in this case, T might digress at
this point for the purpose of explaining what principle is involved
here. ~

This company is operating upon the same lode as that upon which
the United Verde is operating.  In other words, their metal deposit
is un extension of a known or so-called discovery, an extension
of a known deposit, ard vnder « strict construction of the regula-
tions they are entitled to no discovery value at all. A

The taxpayer filed its 1917 rveturn on March 30, 1918, without
computation of tax linbility, claiming that invested capital could
not be ascertained and requesting to be assessed under section 210
of the revenue act of 1916, as amended in the act of 1917,

That If the Secretary of the Treasury is unable in any case satisfac-
torily to determine the invested capital, the amount of the deduetion
ghall be the sum of (1) an amount equul to the same propprtion of the
net income of the trade or business received during tue taxable year as the
proportion which the average deduction (determined in the same manner as
provided In section 203, without including the $3,000 or $06,000 therein re-
ferred to), for the sume ealender year, of representative corporations, part-
nerships, and ind.viduals engaged in a ltke or similar trade or business, bears
to the total net income of the trade or business. recelved by .such corporations,

partnerships, and individuals, plus (2) in the caxe of a domestic corpora-
tion $3,000, and in the caxe of a domestic partuership or a citizen or rostdent

of the United States, $6,000.

The request of the tuxpuayer was considered by the unit and the
advisory tax board appointed by Secretary McAdeo in the latter
part of 1917, and afterwards incorporated into the act of 1918,
section 1301, and finally granted. A tentative tax wa: Jetermined
on a representative tax basis in the amount of $2,13,8G9.55, and
the taxpayer so advised in assessment letter dated June 10, 1918,
This tax was paid by the taxpayer on June 15, 1918,

The Craeman., Was that tax ever refunded ¢

Mr. Manso~. No.

The Cunamman. That tax remained in the Treasury?

Mr. Manson, That tax, so far as the records indieate, was paid,
and the taxpayer claims the incident was closed. Tt was finally
closed by this 1312 agreement upon that basis,

Upon notice from the bureau the collector at Baltimore, Md., as-
sessed and demanded payment for a similar amount, $2,123,809.55,
in June, 1918, The taxpayer filed a claim for abatement, advising
that the same amount had been assessed at New York and paid.’

On September 27, 1918, Collector J. W. Miles filed an abatement
claim, order 3633, to stop the duplicate assessment. '

His declaration is as follows, and I am quoting now from the
order in abatement:

Amount assessed, 1917, $2,123.80855 * * * that the United Verde Ex-
tension Mining Co. paid the amount mentioned above, under date of June 15,
1918, and such umount is recorded as an advance payment on my June, 1918,
list, page 159. The assessment on my June, 1918, list, section 1, page 21,
line 20, shiould therefore be abated.

On February 13, 1919, the above abatement order was allowed,
and on February 19, 1919, the taxpayer was notificd as follows:

P
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Your clafm for the abatement of Internal revense tax has been allowed sy
shown above, Xo furiber demand for the payment of the wmount silowed
and abated wHl he made upon you,

Hoser N, Pack,
Acling Deputy Cownrissioney.

Inquiry has been made of the special assessment section as to how
the tentative tax assessed, $2, 128800055, was computed, but we are
advised that sume was determined by the advisory tax board and
thut theve are no records in the files disclosing same. Tt s evident,
however, from the records that a representative tax rate of 21 per
cent plus was u=ed by the advisory tax board on a net income, with
depletion dedueted as elnimed by the taxpuver. It was not possible
in SIS, to investigate valuntion mstters to any great extent, as the
valuation departments were not organized until 1919, The rate
used uppears to have heen satisfactory to the taxpayer as long as
the cizimed depletion deduction was atlowed, bat when, later, the
unit determined that such depletion deduction was improper the
taxpayer protested vigorously on the rate when net income was
inereased by the disallowance of a large amount of the depletion
deduction, and the tax increased thereby.

To make that elear the taxpayer has made certain deductions
which we have already diseussed. The taxpayver also claimed that
instead of being assessed upon the basis of his small invested capital,
it was entitled to be assessed upon the basis of a rate to be ascer-
tained by comparing its tax rates with tax rates of other taxpayers
engaged in the same line of business,  The rate of 21 per cent plus
was arrived at by such a comparison, and the taxpayer offered no
objections to the application m‘l the tax rate.

It i~ claimed that the taxpaver's failure to objeet to the tax rate
was dependent upon its being allowed certain deductions, but it is
manifest that the rate at which a taxpayer shall be taxed-—a thing
that is ovdinarily fixed by Congress atself, and this exception was
only mde beeause of the difliculty of determining invested eapital
in some cases- -is quite a different and a separate thing and a thing
which should in no way be involved with the deductions which ave
to he permitted the taxpayer, which affeet only the amount of the
net income to which the rate is to be applied.

The Coamsax, The taxpaver afterwards objected to the rate, as
I understand it/

Mr. Massox, The taxpayer afterwavds clnimed that its consent
te the rate was dependent upon the allowanee of these deductions,

The Coamyan, O, yes: T understand that.

Mr. Maxson. And one of the grounds-—-

The Coammax, But the taxpayer only objected te that 21 per
cent plus rate beeause of the nonallowance of those elnims?

Mr. Maxsox, Yes: and one of the grounds, as will be shown,
upon which the officers of the burean. particularlv. Mr. Greenidge,
recommetided the case be finally elosed. was that if von reopened
the matter of this deduaetion the taxpayer might reopen the matter
of the vates, and that he might eet a lavger vate and the Govern-
ment would not colleet any more tax-—a good deal like the explana-
tion that was offered in regard to the vevaluation of silver mines,
that you might get more tax ont of the stlver mine owners but you
would get less out of the Tead people,

0225 vr 17 T
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On August 31, 1918, the revenue agent made his report on the

eriod 1910 to 1917, inclusive, disallowing depletion except on the
Easis of cost, $525,000. In the fall of 1919 a valuation section was
organized in the natural resources subdivision and the matter of
determining a proper depletion allowance for 1917 was taken up by
Mr. L. C. Graton. The taxpayer was requested to file “snpple-
mental data * * * not later than December 8, 1519  In its
return the taxpayer had deducted depletion for 1957 in the amount
of $2,301,206.48. On November 23, 1919, the taxpayer filed Form
A-M. M. S, claiming a March 1, 1913, value of $40,000,600 on 2,000 -
000 4ons of ore not known to exist as at March 1, 1913, On June 7,
1920, the taxpayer abandoned its claim for March I, 1913, value as
above, and iiied Form D, claiming a discovery value at Decemboer
31, 1916, of $39,546,137.60 on 2,000,600 tons of ore, and a develop-
ment and cost account of $453,862.40 at date of discovery.

On June 12, 1920, Mr. K. ‘I, Cummins, assistant valuation engi-
neer, reported a discovery valuation for ores only, at December 31,
1916, of $36,518,340.88.

The Cuairman. Why is all of that being read into the record
again? We have already had all of those figures once.

Mr, Manson. I endeavored at the opening of the consideration
of this matter to state in 2 summary way the points that are in-
volved. I am now trying to get this matter presented in regular
order.

This valuation, however, was not nsed by the unit in any tax deter-
mination and was superseded by a later valuation report, dated
February 25, 1921, made by W. IL Ilarrison, valuation enginec.r, and
approved by O. R. Hamilton, chief of the metals valuation section,
in which a discovery value at December 31, 1916, for ores only was
allowed of $30,652,379, and the March 1, 1913, value was deter-
mined based on cost as $525,000. Inasmuch as a discovery deple-
tion was not allowable previous to the 1918 act, a depletion deduction
was allowable for 1917 in the amount of $35,510.15.  In March, 1921,
the taxpayer was nassessed additional taxes for 1915 and 1916 on the
basis o% the Iarrison valuation. It appears to have been the im-
pression that 1917 taxes were closed. and not until 1923 was the
matter reopened.  On Junuary 24, 1923, an A-2 letter was mailed
to the taxpayer calling for an additional assessment of $721,260.82,

The engineer sets up the basis of this additional assessment, show-
ing just how he arrived at it.

In the tentative assessment the net income reported was used,
$8,242,909.04. In the additional assessment this amount was in-
creased to $10,937.277.99 by the following corrections:

Net INCOME TePOTICU o e e e e s s e oot e e $8. 242, 909, 04
Additions:

Depreciation, disnllowed. oo e 834,204, 01

Exchanged automobile, value disallowed..... 016, 20

Development, disallowed. e 401, 407. 50

Depletion, Qisgllowed oo v 2, 265, 756. 33

—— 2,702, 284. 07

[RE—

. 11, 005, 194, 01
Amortizutlon of development, one-tenth allowed ..o __ 67, 916, 02

—

—

L e——

Corrected net INCOMCA o e v e 10, 037, 277. 99



INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE 84179

Representative rate: Tn arriving at a representative rate, five com-
panies were selected, as follows:

i i
For ‘ ¥ Per
vt cont aot CXCeIY y
h,“ estedl Nt tncome |income to profits vent 1y
capitul investod | sy o net

”m“m ’ income
Arfrona Capper Co __. ... ... ' 835,140,023 |  $8, 180,047 | 2228 1,383,061 16,01
Mammath Copper Co ... .. .. . 148, 425 420,771 4437 141, K45 3.1
Hhattuck-Arizona Capper Co. . 3, 111, 310 1,647,197 1. 48 ne, T 36. 65
Chinn ('uxmr Co. . 20,324,106 | 10,88, 26) 6353 4, 062, IR7 37,34
Calumet & Arizons Co., o.oooou .. 41, 045, 372 8,307, 313 20,24 1, 024, 389 12.36
Totnl oo e + 100, 569, 238 20,407,389 | . ... 720,833 | ...
AVEIBRE. .o mviiine e aa e I’ 20, 119, 484 b, W41, 478 28,23 1, 441, 367 21,20
. ! .

From the average per cent of net income to invested capital, 29.23
per cent, applied to the corrected income, $10,937,277.99, 1s obtained
a constructive invested capital of $38,986,896.54. This constructive
invested capital then becomes the basis for the excess-profits tax com-
putation as provided in the regulations.

The excess-profits tax thus computed amounts 0. e mcvnn.ae $2, 320, 546, 48
TAX At 2 POIF CONt e et e e e 172,174, 63
Tax at 4 per cento ... ottt e e e o e e e 244, 349, 26
2,845, 070. 37

Tax previously Q8SESSOA v v oo ece e v i 2, 123, 809, 5%
AdAIIonaY 80X et e e 721, 200, 82

This clearly shows that the difference is due entirely to the disal-
lowance of this depletion and the development costs and that small
item of depreciation.

It is interesting to note what this taxpayer would have been
assessed had it not received special treatment under section 210. The
revenue agent reported for 1917 a tax due of $5,548,823.40, We have
made a computation of the tax based on the regular basis, which
shows as follows: '

TXCERS-PrOfits fX e e e e e e $5, 739, 100, 95
TAX 8L 2 POP CON o e et e e i e e oo e en 103, 563, Hi4
TAX 8t 4 POT COMb e e e e e 207, 927, 08

Total tax that would have been pafd, regular basis__ ... 6, 00D, V91, 57T
Total tax due under representative taX ..o ae e 2, 845, 070, 37
Total tax actually paide oo e 2,123, 800, Hn

Senator Kina. Thev got special treatment, and that reduced it to
$2,700,000 or $2.800,000, and then they got a further reduction to
$2,100,000?

My, Maxsox, The total tax due under the representative tax rate,
if this depletion is properly eliminated, is $2,6845,070.37, and the tax
that they actually paid and on which the case has been closed is
$2,123,809.55,

Senator Kixo, What was the rveason for the special treatment
which reduced it from $6,000,000 to nearly $3,000,000?7 Why was it
entitled to special treatment?

Mr. Manson. Why were they entitled to consideration under
section 2107

Senator Kinc. Yes.
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Mr. Mansox. That claim is based upon this fact, that they had a
very low invested capital.  You see, their value here is practically all
a discovery volue.,

Senator Kixa, Yes.

Mo Mansox. And theiv invested eapital is very low.

Senator Kina, Welly it is simply based on the discovery value,
then? )

Mre. Mansox, It is simply based on that faet.

Senator Kixa, I understand. :

The Cusmemax. But there was no discovery value allowable at
that “time, was there?

Mr. Mansox. Noj but their invested eapital would have been
very low there. ‘Their property had neither been purchased at any-
where near what it was worth, nor did it have a 1913 value that
amotnted to anything,

The Caairyan, Then yvou find no fault with the spocial treatment$

Mr. Maxson. Noj I aun not criticizing the special rate that was
applied here at all under the law. There is some question in my
mind as to the justification of that act, but that is past history. I
think the vate that was finally arrived at was a fair one. On the
other hand, I wounld call attention to this fact, that from the tax-
payer's standpoint he received very fair consideration. The United

Jerde Co., operating upon the same lode, operating under identical
conditions, paid a tax of approxin-ately 29 per cent. This compuany
was allowed a rate of 21 per cent, approximately.

Senator Kixa. On the net l'vturns';

Mur. Mansox. On the net income.

Senator Kina. On the net income.

My, Maxson. And one of the grounds set up as a reason why this
case shoulkd be closed is that if these deductions which were taken by
the taxpayer are disallowed the taxpayer will reopen the matter of
its tax rate, and it will be possible to give it the saume amount of tax
by giving it a lower rate.

I eall attention to these comperatives for the purpose of showing
that it has already received a fair rate, and even a very much lower
rate than another company operating upon the same ground, practi-
cally, or operating upon the same deposit.

The Ciamyan, Just for the information of the chairman, could
vou tell us briefly why the rate in one of those five cases was 37 or
39 per cent and another only 12 per cent? T want to get the theory
of fixing this special-tax rate.

Mr, Maxson. They did not get 2 special representative rate.
Their rate was based upon the relation of their invested capital to
their net incomes,

Senator Kina, Was there not a part of that apparent disparity
that vesulted from excess profits?

Mr. Masson. Yes: entively, T assume they would have a higher
invested capital in proportion to their net income.

The Cnamaan. These five cases that vou have just enumerated
were not special-treatment cases under the act veferved to?

Mr. Maxson. No, sir.

The Ciameyman, They were actual eases?

Mr, Maxsox, They were actual cases; yes,
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The Ciramrmax, And it was on that actual experience that this
particular taxpayer received a rate of 21 per cent ?

Mr. Mansex, Yeso Well, Tosaid, * Yes™ 1 want to elarifv my
answer there, o

My understanding i« that the tax advisory board avvived at a rate
of 21 per cent, plus. There is no record that diselosed exaetly how
they arvvived at that. but in making this specind assesstent heve the
bureau selected these five companies and rveached the same resuit that
the tax advisory board reachied in its previous determination,  As |
have already explained, its previous determination, so far as the rate
was concerned, was not objected to by the taxpayver, and the vesult
reached by the use of these companies that I have mentioned is the
samie ws the result which the tax advisory board had reached.

The taxpaver elaimed a deduetion of $2.301.296. 18, based on a
value as of March 1, 1913, of 540,000,000,

On November 25, 1919, Form A-M. M. S, was fileq to substantiate
their claim as above——-

Senator Kixe, That has already been stated.  Are vou going to go
over that again?

Mr. Mansox, T am giving the details now. I have stated that
summarily, perhaps, unfortunately, but 1 want to get the details in
the record.

A valuation as of November, 1916, by James R. Finley, was sub-
nitted, showing 2,000,000 tons of ore. at $20 per ton, a total value
of $40,000000. They claimed the *market value in the mine, of
the product thereof which had been mined and sold during
the year for which the return and computation ave made.” The
taxpayer maintained that, although the mine had no known ore
as at March 1, 1913, he was entitled to a Mareh 1, 1913, value, based
upon the quantity and quality of the ore discovered in 1915, No ore
was known to have existed in the mining property of this taxpayer,
and the metals valnation section coneluded that the Mareh 1. 1913,
value of the United Verde extension mine was not in excess of its
cost.

The cost of the riine in 1912 to the present corporate owners was
not in excess of $325,000, established by the sale of 430000 shaves at
50 cents par value to the Douglas-Tenar Syndicate, and the total is-
sue of 1,050,000 shares at par.

The Cuamemax. Those sharves of stock were turned over to the
owuers of the property that this great discovery was made upon; is
that correct? I just want to establish how you arrived at the valae
of the property at that $525,000¢

Mr. Weicrer, By this sale of 450,000 shares at 50 cents a share,

The Cnaenan. 1 know; but what did they actually pay for this
property? . ) )

My, Maxsox. The March 1, 1913, cost is arvived at by taking the
value of 1050000 shares of the stock, and that is arrived at by the
sale of 450,000 shares of the stock out of this 1,050,000 shares at 50
rents a share,

‘ The Criamesan. Yes; but at the time they did that, did they have
actual possession of this property? ]

Mrv. Wricirr. Yes, sir: it was turned over to the 1912 company by
the predecessor company.
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The Cuamsan, And it was in their possession at the time this
stock was sold?

Mr. Wricnr., Yes, sir.

The Ciamrmax, Is there any record of what valuation Mr. Graton
put upon this property ¢ )

Mr. Wiaerer. He did not value the property. Mr. Cununings, who
was one of his mep——-

The Coamatax, 1 understand that; but Me, Graton valued it at no
time?  Afterwards, when he came iy he put no value on at per-
sonally?

Mye. Wricur. No.

Mr. Maxson. It was valued after he went out,

The Cusneyrax, And what was it valued at after he went out?

Mr. Maxsox. The ore deposit was valued at approximately
£30,000.000., '

The Cramwax, Al right.

Mr. Mansox. But,as I say, that is a discovery valuation.

The Cramyan. I understand that.

Mr. Maxsox. In June, 1420, when the taxpayer abandoned ats
clnim for a March 1, 1913, value of $40,000,000 in favor of a discov-
ery value claim it still maintained that depletion deducted in 1917
of $2301296 was proper, based on a. March 1, 1913, value of
4,000,000

The Cnamyax, He wants to take 50 per cent in that case?

Mr, Maxsox. Yes,

There is nothing in the files of the case to substantiate this claim,
based probably on the capitalization previous to 1912, and expendi-
tures not only by the taxpayer, but by all the predecessor owners,

The Cumpyan. In other words, they were trying to capitalize all
of the losses made by the stockholders who were not then in the
company?

Mr. Mansox. And deducet them all in one year.

The Coamaan, Yes,

Mre, Maxsox, In June, 1920, the taxpayer filed Form D, claiming
 discovery value at December 31, 1916, of $39.546.137.60 on 2,000,000
tons of ore, and a development and cost account of $453.862.40 at
dute of discovery.

On July 7, 1920, My, Cummings, assistant. valuation engineer in
the' metals valuation section, made a report on this claim and placed
a discovery value of $36,518,360.8% on the property.  Mr, Cummings
appears to have assumed that the 1917 taxes were taken eare of in
the original assessment and the ease closed, since in his schedule of
annual depletion he placed sustained depletion for 1917 at $2.472.-
111.81 mu‘ allowed w{)h'ii«m of #2301.296. This valuation, how-
ever was not used as a basis for audit,

On February 25, 1921, Mr. Harrison, valuation engineer, made a
report on the case and determined the value a: of Mareh 1, 1913, at
8525,000, and discovery value, $20652379.  This valuation for dis-
covery differs from the Cummings valuation largely in the plant
and smelter value to the amount of $6.000,000,

A sehedule for depletion is shown as follows:

1Y
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|
Yeur | Sustalned Allowed i Valuo
WIS, o e e e &4, 560, 00 | $A25,000 (Mar, 1, 1013),
wig, . ' PR 48, 520, 13 | 825,000 (Mur, 1, 19139).
wive.. oo Lo Lo R N AAITED TR 14 Wh, B0 18 | EA25000 (Mar. 1, 191Y),
wiw ., e e e s [N V3 B i/3 BE ) 3,120, 720, 44 | BNB528T0 (diseovery),
1, oo, 0007 1, 20, 016 7Y } S, 652,970 (divrovery).
| '

i

Since the discovery law in the 1918 act applied only to 1918 and
subsequent vears, discovery depletion could not be used for 1917,
the uhnwml depletion based on cost as at Mavch 1, 1913, being
$35,040.15.  This valuation beeame the basis for audit of 1915,
1916, and 1917 taxes and subsequent additionn]l assessments.

On December 10, 19238, after conferences with the taxpaver, Mr.
Harrison revised his diseovery valuation to $31.6060,000, with deple-
tion rate of S0.0551335 per pound of copper, which was accepted
by the taxpayer. The revised «lvyloti(m schedule is as follows:

i

Year Copper sold, | Sustained | Allowed

(pounds) | depletion depletion
OIS, e, it bcaeacaimaaat b aunn SR, 006, 038 . £3, 200, RR2, 08 $4, 200, K82, 08
O it i i eaiireee v e 24, 188, 705 1,330,007, 27 1,341,957, 27
3 3 O 41, (42, 700 2,312, 447. 485 2,312, 447, RS
S PSP, 12, 498, 005 081, 058, 75 s, 058. 758
BOZ2. et iiuen et areeeairmma——— e aeaman s 20,027,500 - 1,490, 120,67 ¢+ 1, 400, 120,87

We now come to the consideration of the question of the finality
of the action of the burcau, as to whether this case is a closed case,
which foreclosed the department from considering this deduction
upon its merits,

It does not seem to me that the officers of the department can
possibly take the position that these deductions were proper. If
there is any possible excuse for closing this case, that excuse must
rest upon this claim that the 1917 tax was not open for vedetermina-
tion and that the original assessinent, even though it be a tentative
one, was a final assessment. It is now for the purpose of discussing
the speciousness of that position that I call the attention of the com-
mittee to further facts in this case.

This taxpayer has consistently claimed that the 1917 taxes were
closed.  The files, however, fail to disclose any such evidence,

The assessment letter of June 10, 1918, Exhibit B, states——-

The Ciamrsan. You have already vead that in, I think.

Myr. Manson. No: I read from the abatement claim: that is, from
the order allowing the elaim in abatement. I am quoting now from
the originul assessment lettor:

A final conclusion has net been reached, but from the consideration <o far
glven it s apparent that the amount of taxes owlng will prebably not be less
than that indicated below,

And the amount indicated below was $2,123.806.55, and the tax-
payer was notitied to make payment on or hefore June 15, 1918,

The letter concludes:

Upon final audit of your returns you will be advised of the concluston renched,
and ¢ the amount determined to be due Ix in exeess of the ameunt above stated
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a further ansessnent will be made s 1 Tesw, you may (e n elnbim for vefungd of
the nmount overpild,

I believe it is manifest that thnt letter enn not e elnitaed to con
stitute a finnl aetion by the e,

The Coanevwan, Did the taxpayer el that that was n tingd
netion?

Mo Masson, That s one of the thinges he elnins constituted .
This taxpayer, ws alveady stated, switehed frons the 1983 value to
n dircovery value, and he switehed oy times from one fuet (o
nnother for the prepose of showing that there had been a final
action,

The elnim, lieste was that this assessment was the fining of
definite tax aginst the company.”

In the brief of the compirny nppear the Tollowing statenients.;

Thevenfter, and e daly or Sagust of the yeny
That is, in 1918 .

Parsannt (o the satd Tetter, a0 hind exumdnntion nud eadit of the compnny's
hookn, papoets, docimenty, and eecords wirs e,

¢ ¢ v ATEer the it of the nuditor's report deponent hnd cevtain disens
sond with the guthoritles o Washlngton with veference o the ense, und in
May, HIEN, the compnny vecelved o fingl notlee, copy of whleh I8 gnnesed,

I would now enll the attention of the committee (o the fa t that
the assesstent letter was not dated June 10, 1918, so that the tina)
notice to which the compuny refers was prior to the pesessient
letter,

The Crsanesiasn, Did vou tind any evidenee of nny letter of May,
19i8¢

Mo Mansox, There 9 no evidenee of any sueh letter, Thers s
no sueh letter in the diles. The compuny in its beiel states that. it
is nttnehing a copy of that fetter to its brief, yet there is no copy
of any such letter nttached o the brief, Tn other words, neither
. . . ) . . D) . . .
in the compuny’s brief nor in the tiles of the fncome Tax Unit s
theve any evidence of this letter which the company clnims (o have
been n final letter, und ot eliimes that thet fined letter was doted in
Muv 1918, whenas a pintter of fuet, the tentative assessment letter
clenrly stnting that the assessment is only a tentative nssessinent
was not dated antil June 10, 1918,

Quoting further Trom the company’s brief, they say

Thut wlter the vecelpt of the undd not co deponent took (he sime gy with
cortain members of the honed of (s pssessors having chnvge of the ense, nnd
wan fnformed tht the snid notlee was o il notlee and settled the ensae,

Breponent, nfter vecelving this fntormntion, so reported (o the divectors and
oflleers of the eampnny that thele teses hud been thadly sefthed ot s 1,
RODAS For the your N,

The elnim for abatement of duplicate assessment, mnde by the
tuxpayer, wus allowed on Febenary 18, 1919, in the following
Iingrunge:

No fuvther demnnd for the payinent of the gt alowed wnd gbated will
he ninde upon you,

On Novewber 200 1919, My, Greaton wiote the taxpayer in pnet

II. witl b pecossnry to mtke provistonnt Invertigntien of your tases for
the ‘veny BT o ovder thet the adddtonnt nmount of tax Indiested s day
mny be aunested withont deiny,
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The following day the taxpayer voplied, referring to ubatement
order und saving the cuse hud been closed for 1917 an the result of
this letter. Mr. Mrmitage, tax consultaut, eluimed in his brief to
have interviewed My, Graton and to have

Hhowed bime the orlgdual notlee that had beon recedved by the eompnny
fingtly txbogge the tax, and nde the cldm thet the sabd tases for BT werg
oy adjusted il ibsed.

See alse letter of Novewber 20, 19010, (lshibit ()

Farther quoting from the compuany’s hrief':

Theveufter deponient spw Meo Genton, who informed Wim that be hod node
alioeanmbnntion of the Tuets * ¢+ aud thmit the departinent hrd aeeivod
at the concluston that the tax for the sear 957 was Banlly settled aml thai
no further quertion woull be taken ap or mnde I eelerence fhereto,

I would call attention to the faet that that valuation was nover
ured by the depuetment, Bwas found ta contatn an error and was
never wsed,

A copy of the Cammings valimtion of July 7, 1920, was given to
the taxpayer, nnd great steess is latd on the fact, as stated in this
valuation

That the depletton allowed fo the compnty far the yoar 1987 wis not the
depletion allowed wnder the veluntion or at the anft rste pllowed by the
valuntlon, bat was the exnet depletion whiteh had beer eladmed by the come
puny b He 1917 veturn, (o wit, $2AH0LLN0AN, which elalm hnd been nilowed
nnd setthed swith the settlement of the T taxes batweon the compring snd
the representatives of (he Government as heretofore set ond,

In allowing to the company for the year 17 the snld depletton ax clplmod
by the compuny tn s eenien, 1t win done beenuse of the distinet understanding
that the company’s 1017 taves were fiunlly settled, ineluding both Bs clubn Tor
rpecht) teentient onder section 210 and Ha elatm for depletion at the rate of
F2.800, 20048,

In other words another one of the faets which was seized upon hy
the compnny for the purpose of showing this cluim was seitled was
a statement. contained inan engineer’s report, to which no effect. way
ever given, nid as to which the engineer was Inborving under w niis-
apprehension of the {aet,

The Ciatesan, Who took up this taxpayer’s elaim on the brief
thut you veferved fo just now ! Whaoin the burenn, cheeked that up ¢

Me, Mansox, As T will herenfter eall attention to, this whole sih-
ject has boen checked up by quite o number of people, 1t was
checked upoin the fiest instunee; that s, this subject u} whether or
not the elaim had heen Ginally acted upon; in other words, whether
or not the tax had been elosed, has been examined in the metals
vitluntion section. 1t has been examined by Me, Greenidge: it has
boen examined by two auditors to whom it was veferved by Mp,
Bright, and fron a Jetter of Mre, Bright to the commissioner, T take
it it has been examined by Me, Bright,

Senntor isa From your statement, as 1T ounderstood you, the
finnl determination of the matter was mnde by M. Bright and My,
Gireenidyre,

Mr. Manson, Yes. The finnl determination was made by Mr,
Bright, acting npon Mr. Greenidge's vecommendation, bt the whole
sithject appenrs %‘mm the vecords to have been thoroughly examined
by everybody that had their hands on it,

(AT LS U g ]



3424  INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUR

The Cuamman. And did those people who examined it profest
against this final settlement ¢ ‘

Mr. Ma~sox. I think everybody, except Mr. Greenidge and My,
Bright, reached the conclusion that the matter was not disposed of,
and 1 am not prepared to say that they did not veach the same con-
clusion. Their memorandun: is not very clear on that point, but
everybody else that had anvthing te do with it reached the conclo-
sion that there was no basis for the company’s claim that the matter
had been closed. ,

The Cuamax, In going over the records did you find that there
was sny criticism made of these misstatements of the taxpayer!

Mr. Maxsox. Well, there is very serious criticism made by Mr.
Grimes.

The Cramrwax. Of these misstatements on the part of the tax-
payer?

Mr. Maxsox. Yes: and in one of the auditor’s reports—TI do not
recall which one just now, but in one of the reports which is at-
tached as an exhif)it here the auditor claims that the taxpayer has
misrepresented the facts, and it is upon this misrepresentation of
fact here as to notices that I maintain that this is a clear case of
fraud. ‘ '

The Cramax. Well, as long as the bureau did not accept those
statements of fact as true, is it fraud?

Mr. Maxsox. I think that in the tinal action in this case they did
accept them, althongh the real moving factor in the final determi-
nation of this case is this alternative claim that if they reopened this
subject the taxpayer could claim something else.

Now, subsequent to all of these claims that this matter was 4
closed issue, on April 5. 1922, the 1917 taxes were considered in
conference and the conclusion was reached, quoting from the con-
ference report:

1017 audit iIs to be considered final only in the event thut the Commissioner
of Internal Revenue agrees in writing to such arrangement,

This conference was held between the taxpayer and the repre-
sentatives of audit section F.

Coming now to the final closing of this case. I call attention to a
memorandum signed by Mr. Greenidge, dated September 6, 1923, to-
Mr. Bright, as follows:

In re: United Verde Extension Mining Co., New York, N. Y.

As a result of your request for a recommendation by me in regard to the
aboeve-mentioned taxpayer, I wish to say that 1 have carefully examined the
entire file in this case and find that although the unit did not consider the
case as closed for the year 1917 there were some actions taken by the unit
which permitted taxpayer to consider its case had been finally acted upon by
the unit for the year 17,

An investigation of the amount of tax paid by taxpayer cerporation and
the tax paid by similarly situated corporations leads me to believe that a
reconsideration of this case by the unit will result in an amount of tax being
finally arrived at not materially different from the tax already paid.

It is therefore my recommendation that this ease be considered cloved for
the year 1917,

There is attached a memorandum of this date from the special assignment
secfion explaining the new list of ¢omparatives prepared in this case,

8. M. GREENIDGR,
Head of Division.
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Exhibit G is & memorandum dated September 11, 1923, fromn
Mr. Bright—J. G. Bright, deputy commissioner--to Mr. Biair,
which reads as follows:

T have muade a8 thovongh and complete investigation relutive to reopening the
eiane of the United Verde Extension Mindng Co. foy the year 1917, in com-
plinnee with your request of May 14, 1923,

Iu order that the unit might have before it all the facts in councection with
the c¢losing of this case, . conference was arcanged with the represeutacives
of the taxpayer, Mr. Douglas and Mr. Seifert, at which conference there were
present the hond of the natural resourees diviston, an engloeer from the
metals valuation seetion, and an awditor trom the consolidated returns andit
section of tue natural resources division. Based on the ituformation furnished
by the taxpayer's yepresentatives ar tols conterence, Mr, Greenidge, head of
the natural resouvees division, prepared a memorandum to me undey dare of
August 6, 1923, cotting forth all the facts in connecidon with the closing of
this case, without any recommendation as te the advisability of reopening,
In order, therefore, that o elearver understanding might be had of certain facts
set forth in the memorandum of Mr. Greeuldge, I arranged o further con-
ference with Mr. Dougine and Mr. Armitage in my offive under date of Septem-
ber 5, at which time the following pertinent facts were disclosed :

1. That the letter from the unit dated February 19, 191%, in which the
statement was made * No further demand for payment of the amount gliowed
and abated will be made upon you,” had ne hearing on the question at issue
and should not be considercd. This was a standard paragraph used by the
old claims division on its action in the allowance of abatement claims wherein
there had heen duplicate assessments,

2, That during the period from February 19, 1919, to Jaunuary 24, 1923,
the unit dealt almost entively with the question of valuations for the year
1918 and that during this period representatives of the natural resources
division had in part led the taxpayer to believe that its cuxe for the year
1017 was closed. The taxpayer was furnished a copy of an audit memoran-
dum dated June 12, 1920, signed by the valustion engineer and approved by
the chief of the metals valuation section, wherein the statement Is maude
that the case for 1917 was closed under section 210,

3. That the tuxpayer was entitled to and could prove a greater March 1,
1913, value for the purposes of determining the depletion deduction than wuas
allowed in the assessment letter of June 10, 1918, the letter upon which the
taxpayer bases its cinim that the case for the year 1917 was closed,

4. That if the case was reopencd In accordance with the facts as set forth
in the letter of January 24, 1923, and the revaluation as made by My, ITarrison
was used as the basis for determining the amount of the depletion deduction
the taxpayer would be able to increase this deduction considerably throagh
the proving of a greater March 1, 1913, value, which fact is admitted by
both Mr. Greenidge and Mr. Donanhue, the assistant chief of the metaly valun-
tion section.

5. That the taxpaver would be entitied to a lower rate of tux under the
provisions of section 210 than that used in the letter of January 24, 1923,

Previous to the conference arranged with the representatives of the tax.
payer, I had & review of this case made by Mr. Enes, conferee of the con.
solidated returns subdivision, and he Lias prepared a clear and concise state-
ment of the facts in this case. This statement is attached and made a part
of this report, After the conference of September 5, T again referred the case
to Mr. Greenidge for n reconsideration of the allowable depletion deduction and
the old rate as used by the advisory tax board im its letter of June 10, 1918
There i3 attached a statement by Mr. Eaton, chief of the special assessmont
gection in the natural resources division, fully setting forth the facts covering
the allowance of u different rate than that used in the letter of January 24,
1023,

In view of the facts as set forth in the memorandum prepared by Mr.
Fuoes and Mr, Eaton, also the recommendation by Mr. Greenidge dated Septem-
ber 6, 1923, * that this case be considered closed for the year 1917, and the
plea of the taxpayer that this caxe should not be reopened, due to the pro-
visiong of section 1313, revenue act of 1921. 'That in the absence of fraud or
mistake in mathematical caleulation, the findings of facts in and the decision
of the commissioner upon (or in the caxe the Secretary is authorized to approve
the same, then after such approval) the merits of any claim presented under
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or authorizes by the internal revenue laws shall not be subject to review by
any other administrative officer, employee, or agent of the United States,”
1 recommend that thiy case be not reopened for the year 1917 and thut the
unit advise the taxpayer that the letter of January 24, 1923, should be

ignored.
J. G. BriouT,

. Deputy Commisgioner.

One of the rensons assigned by Mr. Bright for the closing of this
case is that if it was reolx)ened, the taxpayer would be entitled to a
greater March 1, 1913, value.

It will be borne in mind that the deduction taken by taxpayer was
based upon a valuation of $30,000,000, which is a discovery valnation
of a bonanza find. This taxpayer up to the time of this discovery in
1915 had been operating at a loss. They had been trying since 1888
to find the extension of this United.Verde lode, which extended
under their property, as was afterwards developed.

They hud been reorganized from time to time. The highest capi-
talization that they ever had had been $4,000,000, and the deduction
taken was based upon a $40,000,000 valuation claimed; and yet Mr.
Bright takes the position in this letter that if you are to disallow
that deduction, based upon the $40,000,000 valuation, they might get
a higher 1913 valuation upon a piece of property which.at that time
had never paid and upon which its highest capitalization had been
£4,000,000, and which in 1912 had a value of approximately $525,000,
based upon the actual sale of 450,000 shaves ont of 1,050,000 shares
of its capital stock.

The Cramrvan. In establishing the March 1, 1913, values no sub-
sequent facts are allowed to be considered, are they?

Tr. Maxsox. No.

The Cuarrman. So that a'l of this discovery was not known at
Mareh 1, 1913, and of course could not be considerad ?

My, Maxson. No. Shortly before that, in 1912, this company had
been reorganized, and its capital stock had been actually reduced
from $4.000,000 to $760,000,

The Cuamarax. We have that already in the record?

Mr. Maxsox. Yes; so it was not considered a brilliant prospect at
that time.

The Crarmax. Thal seems to me to be rather strange reasoning
when subsequent facts are not allowed to be considered.

Mr. Maxsox. Take reason No. 5, as advanced here, that the tax-
payer would be entitled to a lower rate of taxes under the provisions
of scetion 210 than that used in the letter of January 24, 1923,

I am willing to admit that in the application of the provision of
the law providing for a representative rate, if you want to rig up a
high rate, or if vou want to rig up a low rate, you can do it; but I
submit that by taking the five companies doing bhusiness in Arizona,
with tax rates ranging from 12 per cent to as high as 34 or 37 per
cent—I am not exactly sure which--they arrived at a rate which was
fairly representative, and the fact that the United Verde Co., doing
business upon identically the same piece of property, upon the same
lode, under exactly the same conditions, paid a tax at the rate of 29
per cent, is fairly conclusive that under no honest method of admin-
istration of that provision of the law could this company be given a
rate of tax which would have come any where near making up for
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the difference which wss due to the disallowance of that illegal
element of depletion.

As far as section-1313 is concerned, it appears to me that the very
language of that section shows that it has no application to this
situation whatever. That section provides that when the commis-
sioner has made a determination 0} fact, no other officer shall have
the right to reopen it. It does not provide that the commissioner
shall not have the right to reopen it; and, furthermore, I think the
record is very complete herve that there never had been a determina-
tion of the depletion allowable upon that property, and if there ever
had been such a determination that such determination was directly
contrary to law.

For the reasons that I advanced in the opening of the presenta-
tion of this matter, there was no property there to value that would
sustain any such valuation on the 1st of March, 1913, and the dis-
covery value which arose out of the discovery in 1915 had no appli-
cation to 1917 taxes.

During 1922 the question of revaluing copper mines was under
consideration by the bureau. The taxpayer cites the decision of
the commissioner in his memorandum of December 11, 1922, not to
reopen 1917 and 1918 cases for revaluation as again settling the
question as to the finality of their 1917 tax settlement.

The matter then rests until January 24, 1923, when the assess-
ment letter was sent to the United Verde Extension Mining (o,
disclosing an additional tex of $721.260.82. The taxpayer pro-
tested this on February 19, 1923, on the following grounds:

1. That the taxes referred to therein were settled by n settloment entered
into by the Government and taxpayer in the year 1918, and thexe taxes can
not now he opened.

2, That the tax assessment iy jmproper, illegal, and in violation of the
Conxtitation, the several revenue acts, and the regulations promulgated there-
under.

Events subsequent to additioral assessment, January, 1923,

On May 10, 1923, Mr. Grimes, chief, metals valuation seetion,
addressed a memorandum to Deputy Commissioner Chatterton, in
which he stated:

The 1817 tax should be assessed upon the basts of the letter of January 24,
1923, for the following reasons:

1. There was a gross error in the previcus assessment.

2. The gross error In the previous assessment was the result of misrepre-
sentation by the taxpayer to the Income Tax Unit.

3. There is no record in the file of this case that the tentative assessmont
for 1017 was cver considered final by the Income Tax Unit.

On July 3, 1923, Mr. Harrison and Mr. Grimes, of the metals
valuation section, prepared a memorandum for Mr. S. M. Greenidge,
head of the engineering division, setting forth a chronological rec-
ord of the correspondence, assessment letters, conferences, ete., apply-
ing to the 1917 tax return of the taxpayer, in which they stated that
it was apparent from the summary that—

(1) The assessment letter of June 10, 1918, was tentative and the
tax paid was listed as a partial payment by the collector at Bal-
timore.

(2) The orider for abatement, which the taxpayer has always
claimed finally closed the ease, was allowed because the original
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tentative assessment of tax was twice listed on the collector’s books
for collection.

(8) No further assessment had been made by the Income Tax Unit
from June 10, 1918, to January 24, 1923, when an additional tax of
5721.260.82 was assessed.,

(4) The taxpayver has never contested the accuracy or legality of
depletion based on a cost or March 1, 1913, value of $525.000, but has
contended that the 1917 return was closed and that no additional &s-
sessment could be made.

(5) The original assessment was tentative and that at the time

the assessment was made no revenue agent’s report was available, At
no time from June 10, 1918, to the present could a case of tuiy size
be closed by office audit prior to the receipt of a revenue agent’s re-
yort. . -
! (6) That vepresentatives of the taxpayer have consistently de-
layed action in the collection of additional tax for 1917 by their con-
tentions that the case had been closed by the assessment of June 10,
1918, and abatement order No. 3633. The record shows that while
some representatives of the Income Tax Unit may have given cre-
dence to the taxpayer’s contentions, these contentions were never
officially accepted or the case closed. .

(7) That tlhcro can be no question as to the facts that the addi-
tional assessment is proper and that no revaluation i« involved for
the vear 1917,

On July 31, 1923, Mr. Greenidge addressed a memorandum to J. G,
Bright, deputy commissioner, in which he reviewed the case and pre-
sented some facts in connection with comparative tax rates, as fol-
lows:

LIST (A)

|

Net income I

. Per tont
" after depletion :
! has bm‘-n dos t?;; ?(;’u'::t
| ducted
Unitod Verde Mining Co. . ooveuiini  oniacmninnns .. 810,011,833 00 | M A9
Chino Copper Co. ... ... i 8,479,603 00 i 2.2
Nevada Consolldated Copoee Co. . 8,769, 284,00 10.18
Ray Consolidated Copper Co_ . © 9,551,848 00 | 21.04
Inspiration Consolidated Copper (o, . ..o e cecaaenneannas P #,357,491.00 | 11.3¢
MU Copper Co . .. i i e eaneaiaaicav e aaunaaa . 6,779.693.00! 3. 41
Calugnet & Arizonn Mining Co. 0200007100700 R I 8,307, 313.00 19,08
Calumet & Heela Minng Cooieoinnnt i veiniam i inceaes canenn ceean | 10,843,779.00 | 30.68
Aversye for 8 compontes. ..., e muanmaemeeesaeseemaeiiamamasenasaan R RI oA : 2330
LIST (B)
‘ R ) .‘ -
i
Per cent
etiogros PO% R
oporating . "y
income | Coue
Tron Cap Copper CO_. L. et aar e crreur e it damaainn 50.@ i 35, 44
Miamt Copper Co. . e cmanrse e nasaa s roman g caaane s 45.:3 33.41
Mammoth Minlng Co_. ... e e e eaneeeesesianesisasceoisisscesneses 5.2 37.69
Shattuck Arizons Copper €0 n. ciemuaiiriiiracri s tabnaiia i 4.3 40.45
United Verde Copper oo o imei i iintasa s s v e s et s nn e s s 5"‘1 . 23.49
Alloner Mining Co. ... il it mamm—————— 455, 4. 58
Mohawk Mining Co._.......... 4’35 . 35168
Wolverine Copper Mining Co........ .. 4.5 . 14. ?1
Chaanpion Copper Co.oonaain . - ) 53.6 o 50125
Avernge for 8 COMPANICS. v vuuimasrmcmoaneeacrcamceae e ntmasna s 34.53
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COMMENTS ON RATEHR

The two companies appenring on hoth UHsts and thelr tuxes in percentage
of net income are:

Unfted Verde Mining Co_. . . e e e e 28,49
Miamd Copyer Con o coinnl L Ll i e e e e Sih ]
Average of two compamdes. . . Ll i e e e 3000

The Unfted Verde Exteusion Copper Co. cave fnvolves in 1917 the following
Percentages ;

e e v o i ot e ¢+ e e e e [E————— . Y

|
Peor cent :
Per cent
Depletion deple- Total tax tax to
allowed tlgrgtm ‘ Net income assessTent ot
income |' , Income

e ot e+ e et f e emamn

Original ussessment... ... ....... L $2, 401, 200, 48 27.92 1 SN, 242,200.04 | $2, 123 KoP, b6 25,77

Final assessrgent.. ... ... ......0 35, 540, 15 0.325 | 10,487, 20710 ! 2,845, 070. 37 20,01

. { i . ) .

JE—

Mr. Bright referred the matter to several officials in the unit for
comment and recommendation.

I. T. Enes, conferee of the consolidated deturns subdivision, in a
memorandum dated September 4, 1923 (Exhibit D). says, in part:

The taxpayer's contention that bureau letter deted February 19, 1919, finally
fixed the tax Hability for 1917 and elosed the case i aot reasonable and it
would ahinost indieate a deBiberaie misinterpretation of the faets,

It is true the records did not show any agreement ax to the closing of the
ease for 1917, but if no such understanding existed as claimed by the taxpayer,
why was there no agtempt made to assess the gdditional tax before January
24, 1923 It appears that the taxpsyer’s representative convinced the repre-
sentative of the burean at the conforenees held that the 1917 tax was a settled
question but that no records were mnde, and the gquestlon, therefore, cgme np
anew at later conferences,

Volney Eaton, chief of the special assessment section, in a memo-
randum dated September 6, 1923 (FKahibit 1) says, in part:

By allowing the previous rate sind settlement for 1817 to stand instead of
the rate and tax as determined by the new data sheet and corrected ineome
ailowing $4,000,000, March 1, 1913, value, the Government will lose approxi-
mately FINANGLRL, hat at the same time the unir is placed in a better position
to eguatize in 1918 any Inequalities inadvertently favoring the taxpayer as g
result of this settlement made in 1917,

On Septembe. 6. 1923, Mr. Greenidge addressed a memorandum to
Mur, Bright, in part. as follows (Exhibit ) :

¢ 2 2 githough the anit did pot consider the ease ax closed for the year
1917, there wore some petions taken by the unit which permitted taxpayer to
considor  ease ha? heen finally acted upon by the unit for the year 1917,

An Investigation of the amount of tax paid by taxpayer corporation and
the tax paid by similarly situated corporations leads me to belleve that a
reeonsideration of the ease by the unit will result fn an nmonnt of tax heing
finally arrived at not materialy different from the rax alveady paid,

It is therefore my recommendation that ihis ease he considered ciosed for
the year 1017,

On September 11, 1923, My, Bright addressed a memorandum to
My. Blair, in part, as follows (Exhibit ) :

In view of the factz as set forth in the memorandum prepared by Mr. Enes
and Mr. Eaton, alzo the reesmmendation by Mr. Greenldpe dated September 6.

1923, “ that this ecase be constdered closed for the vear 1917, and the plea of
the taxpayer that the case should not be reopened, due to the provisions of
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section 1313, revenue act of 1921, “That in the presence of fraud or mistuke
in mathematical caleulntion, the findings of facts in and the decision of the
commisstoner apon (or In case the Secretary iy aathorized to approve the
same, then after such approval) the merits of any claim presented under or
authorlzed by the internal rovenue faws shall not be subject to review by any

“other administrative officer, employee, or agent of the United States,” 1 recom-
mend that this case be not reopened for the year 1917 and that the unit advise
the taxpayer that the letter of January 24, 1923, should be fgnored.

On November 6, 1923, Mr. Bright advised the taxpayer by letter
to ignore oflice letter of January 24, 1923, reluting to a proposed
additional assessmant of $721,200.82 income and excess: profits tax
for 1917. (Exhibit H.)

On Juanuary 24, 1924, an agreement in accordance with section
1312, of the revenue act of 1921, covering “ Your income and profits
tax liability for the year 1917 was executed and mailed to the
taxpayer. (Kxhibit 1.)

On Februavy 18, 1925, Mr. Grimes, chief metals valuation sec-
tion, in a memorandum to the commissioner recommends “ that an
attempt be made to collect the tax which should have been paid b
thig taxpayer, either by sgreement with the taxpayer or throug]}:
legal proceedings on a charge of fraud.” (kxhibit J.)

Conclusion: Your engincers after caveful review of this case
desire to point out particularly— -

1. That evidence is lacking in the files in confirmation of the tax-
payer’s contention that this case was at any time prior to the 1312
agreement officially closed.

2. That the unit is to be criticized for the lack of action in deter-
mining the taxpayer’s final tax liability from Febpuary, 1921, when
depletion was determined for 1917, to Jﬂnmu‘y, 1923, when the addi-
tional assessment was made,

3. That the allowance by the unit of cost as the March 1, 1913,
vilue for depletion was their only possible action in the absence of
additional information. :

4. That the taxpayer’s total tax was not excessive, as indieated
by the peveentage of taxes to net income of the United Verde Min-
ing Co. of 2849 per cent as compared with 26.01 per cent finally
determined for the United Verde Extension Mining Co., both oper-
ating on same lode as adjacent properties, and the tax paid, 19.42
per cenc was rank inequity as between taxpayers, :

5 That the additional assessment of $721,260.32 was justly due
the Government and should, if possible, be collected.

6. That measured by the provisions of the regulations the allow-
ance of a discovery value of $31,600,000 to this taxpayer was proper,
since, although an extension of known ore bodies, this bonanza body
had never been and could never have been included in * probable™
and “ prospective” ore or in any other way comprehended in a prior
valuation.

The Cuasmoran. Mr. Gregg, do you want to say anything in con-
nection with this case at this time?

Mr. Grree. Just one word,

Of course, the principal criticism of the case is with reference to
the 1917 closing, or leaving it settled. Counsel for the commnittee
hags stated that, in his opinton, there is frand in the case warrant-
ing the reopening of it in spite of the 1312 settlement. It seemns to
me that if such a charge is made, it should be more specific than that;

4
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it should state who committed the fraudulent acts and what acts
were fraudulent acts.

‘The Caamgmaxn. The impression the chairman got from the state-
ment of counsel was that the fraudulent acts were purticularly ap-
plicable to the taxpayer in his presentation of the case in his brief.

Mr. Maxsox. Yes; the misrepresentations on the part of the tax-
payer as to the facts.

Mr. Grece. Then, the fraudulent acts were on the part of the
taxpayer. What were those acts, specifically ?

The Cuameyan. Mr. Gregg, I think all you have to do is to read
the testimony. I do not think the committee wants to go over all of
the testimony now, because the statement is in the record as to the
fraudulent acts.

Mr. Guros, No, sirs I do not think so.

Mr. Maxson. I have stated that with such particularity that I
have been called down by the committee two or three times for it.

Mr. Grece. Counsel has stated the claims made by the taxpayer
with reference to the final closing of the case, with which he did not
agree,

The Cramyan. O, no; he went further than that; he said there
was no letter of May, 1918,

Mr. Grece. That it had not been—-— .

The Cuamman. That it was not in the records and there was no
evidence of it, and that subsequent events indicated that there was
no such letter in existence. That is just one item that the ehairman
recalls, but there are other statements, if you will read the record,
that indicate fraud.

Me. Greae, T followed the testimony very carefully when he was
making the statement, T got that one statement. I am glad to
know that this is one of the items, but there were many statcments in
counsel’s stutement of the case as to claius wade by the taxpayer,
and I should like to know, and T think we shoukl be told, what
those statements were on which fraud can be predieated, besides the
one which the chairman has just given us,

The Cramryan. So far as the chairman is concerned, T wish to say
that the burean will have a chance to answer this charge by counsel
after they ¢et the record, and if they disagree with the conclusions of
counsel that there is fraud in the case they may say so.

Mr. Grece. We bave alveady gone into the case in that respeet,
but 1 will postpone the answer te his criticism of the 1917 settlement
until we have had time to go into the case wore fully.

However, in presenting the case counsel digressed {or a moment
to speak of the discovery value, stating that this was not a new or
separate ore body but was an extension of the ore body of the United
Verde, and that under a strict imterpretation of the regulations the
taxpayer was entitled to no discovery value,

1 should like to dispose of that, which is a side issue, now, and then
feave only the question of the matter of the 1917 settiement.

Mr. Maxsox. That you may know my position clearly on that I
do not mean to say that this law is not applicable to this case. 1
have taken no exception to the allowance of discovery value here.
I do not intend to. I do not criticize anybody for allowing it. T do
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say that under a strict interpretation of the vegulations—not the
law. but the regulations—- there is at least a great deal of question as
to whether they are entitled to discovery value here, for the reason
that I understand the vecord shows that this is an extension of the
United Verde Lode and comes under that provision of the vegula-
tions which does not allow discovery depletion where the ore body
is an extension Hf u known ore body. )

Mr. Greaa. That is the point that I wanted to make clear in the
record.

T asked Mr. Grimes, who is familiar with this property, in refer-
ence to that, and he said that this is not an extension of the United
Verde ore body, but that it is an entirely separate and distinet ore
body.

Tleat alse, of course, applies to the stgtement of counsel later with
reference to the rate of tax of 29 per cent paid by the United Verde,
operating the same property. They were separate ore bodies, and
separate and distinet properties, according to Mr. Grimes's state-
ment to me.

My, Manson, As to the latter part of Mr. Gregg's statement, my
statement was that an allowance of a raie heve of 21 per cent, plus,
compares favorably with the rate upon which the United. Verde paid
a tax of 29 per cent. . It does not depend upon this being an exten-
sion of the same ore body. They arve operating in the same character
of ore. They are operating practically adjacent to each other. They
are operating under the same conditions. I understand that all of
tlx;~ conditions in regard to the two companies are practically identi-
ceal.

Mr. Wrianr, That is as T understand it; yes.

Mr. Maxson, Yes: and 1 say that under those conditions, the fact
that this rate is almost 50 per cent less than the rate applied to the
United Verde does not add any weight to the position taken by Mr,
Bright and by Mr. Greenidge, in closing this case, that if it was re-
opened, they would probably get a more favorable rate.

The Cuamvax. T wonld like to have an explanation, if T can, at
this time. as to this feature : What is counsel’s theory of what the tax
woulil have been had the taxpayer fizured his own tax in meking the
returns. instead of leaving it to the burean to fix under section 2102

Myr. Maxsow. If this particular rate had been applied here, ii they
had received no consideration under section 210, and this depletion
aliowance claimed had been disallowed, they would have paid a tax of
something like $6,000,000.

The Cnsivman. Yes: I recall that now. That is in the vecord. and
1 had overlooked it for a minute; but just why did not the taxpayer
fix his own tax at that time, the same ax these other companies die ¢
Was it because of the low capital stock?

Mr. Maxson. The low capital investment.

The Cuamyan. And that was perfeetly permissible under the
law?

Mr. Maxson. It was permissible under the law.

The Ciateman. On what theory? Was it on the theory that they
had made a great bargain or that the property had later enhanved u
valwe. which had not been capitalized on the books ¢

Mr. Maxsox. Yes: that is it exactly. ‘
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Mr., Grea. T just want to narvow the case down to one point on
the 1917 settlement, and get out of the way the other question of dis-
covery value,

The Cramx:an. When you take up the case, you will probably
analyze the testimony carefully as presented this morning. Obvi-
ousty, 1 can not recadl all of the testimony related by counsel, but {
have the impression that there were & number of items and claims
made by the taxpayer which were apparently aceepted by the bureau,
which seemed ridiculous to say the least,

Mr. Greas. Well, of course, we shall go into the testimony very
carefully.

The Crammax, We will adjourn until 10 o’clock to-morrow morn-
ing, unless you hear from us,

{ Exhibits submitted by Mr. Manson in the United Verde Extension
Mining Co. case are as follows:)

Fxnmir A

Mawen 24, 1025,
OFFICE REPORT NO, 24

My, Y, ', MaNsoN,
Counsel, Seaate Committee Investigating
Burcaw of Internal Revenne,
Taxpayer: United Verde Extension Mining o,
Business: Copper miptie, milling, and smelting,
subject : Closing of 1917 tax caxe by 19312 agreenwid and caneelntion of addi-
fonud assessment of $721,2600.82,

donounts fnrolred

Origingl assessment, 117, by tax advisory boardo oL L0 52,123, 808, 55
Additionn] assessment, TMT, by Income Tax Unito___ . TOL, L0, K2
Vatue for depletion as of Mar, 1, 1913
Cladmed .o oL Ll . e e By ORND, OO0, (XD
Atfowed ... . e e e e D20, (KK, M
Piscovery value sllowed . .0 .. . e e AL G0, 000, GO

STATUH O CARK

Cases 1915 and 1916 closed ; INT ease, involved in this report, closed by
1312 agrecment; 1908 and 1919 taxes elosed on basts of discovery  value
allowed,.

SYNUPSLS OF CASE

On Mareh 30, 1918, the taxpayer filed his 1917 return with ne computation
of tax. claiming that the invested eapital eoulid not be ascertuined, and rve-
querted to be placed under section 210 of the 1917 yevenue act and as<essed
accordingly.  'This was granted and o teutative tax of $2,124809.55 nssexssed
and pakd by the taxpayer at New York, A similar assessment was also made
by the collector at Baltimove, and when an abatement of this was clnimed
by the United Verde Extension Mining Co, it was allowed by the unit, since it
was guite evidently a daplicaie gssessment,

In 1919 when the nataral resoarces section was formed the tuxpayer was
requested to il out Form A for the purpese of detevmining his tax Hability.
He protested, claiming the case was closed, and elied the abatement lotter,
Valuations were made by the metals section, s 2 result of which constderable
depletion was disullowed for the 1917 tax. Later, on January 24, 1923, an
additiona) assessment of $T21,260.82 was made, which the taxpnyer protested,
claiming the ense to be ¢losed. X number of conferences were held, brietfs filed
by the taxpayer, memorandy prepaved by the metals section, and the matter
wos Thoroughly examined.  The moetals seetion recommended the additioaal
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assessment be coliceted, while Mre. Greenddge, hegd engineering division, anad
Deputy Commibssioner Bright, after considering the case, recommended 16 be
closed, as a result of which an agreement under section 1312 of the 10231
reveinne nel wiy executed and sfgned by the tnxpayer and the burean,

HISTORY OF TRHE COMPANY

This company was first organized as the Unlted Verde Extension Gold,
Silver & Copper Mindug Co, about 1888, Cupital, $3,000,0600, divided ingo
00,000 shares of a par vilue of 310, The company acquired mining elnims
adjoining those of the United Verde Copper Co. ut Jerome, Arvlz. One hundred
and ninety thousand shares were sold at puble subxeription in 180D at 56
per share,

In W4 the United Verde Extepston Mining Co. of Maine was organized,
which acquired flve of the original claims of the above compuny.  This com-
pany had a capital of $4,000000, divided into 400,000 shares of a par value of
$10. .

In 19106 the United Verde Extension Mining Co. of Delaware was incor-
porated.  Caplial, $LU00,000; shaves 4000005 par value ¥H, Phe five original
claims were deeded to this company by the Maine company for the entive
capital.  Development, at thiz time iz sald to have amonntod to S2.000,000,

In June, 1012, thisx company wax reorganized and the capital vedueed to
STH0,000, with 1.500,000 shares at 50 cents par value: 1L030,000 sharex were
Ixsued and are ontstanding, to the total value of $325,000).

The ore bodies of the company are located in Jerome, Yavapid County. Aviz,
while the smelter Iy situnted at Clemencenu, Aviz., about 6 miles from Jorome.
No net profit was made between 1210 and 1814, and durving that peviod the
company had no income from operations,

HISTORY OF THE CASE

The taxpayer filed its reten for 1917 taxes on Mervel 20, 1918, without com-
putation of tax, and reguested special treatment umder section 210 of the
revenue act of 116G as amended by the law of 1917 allowing a representative
tax, bazed on March 1, 1913, value of $40,060.000,

Op June 10, 1918, on the recommendation of the tax advisory hoard, ¢ tenta-
thve asvessment of 82,123, 50955 was made by the commissloner.  (Exhibit B.)

On June 15, 1918, the taxpayer paid this assessmont,

Daring Juae, TS, the collector af Baltimore made an assessment for a
similar amount, 212380005, and the taxpayer filed an abntement eladm.,

On Augmst 31, 1918, the revenue szent reported on 1950 1017, inelusive, and
disoliowed depletion except that based on cost, 55250040,

September 27, 1918, abatement opder No, 3633 was filedd by 4 ollector B0 M,
Miles ar Baltimore to stop duplicate assessment of 82,123,509.5.5.

February 19, 1919, the taxpayer's elnim for abatement of tax was allowed,

November 20, 1918, Mr. Graton, valuation epgineer, wrote the taxpayer for
“supplemental data (Form A), as vrevenpe agent’s report indieated large addi-
tionnl‘taxex for 1916 and 1917 "5 to which the taxvayer replicd that the case
was closed for 1917 by the abatement Tetter of February 19, 1919,

November 25, 1919, the taxpayver made a definite ¢laim on Form &0 M. M. N,
for Mareh 1, 1913, value of SH0000,000 on 2,000,000 tons of ore not Known to
exist on March 1, 1913,

June 7, 1920, the taxpayer apparently abandoning the Marveh 1, 1913, clain,
filed Form D, clnfming a dizcovery value at December 81, 1916, of 830.546,157.60
on 2000000 tons of ore, and a developiment cost aceonnt of $433.662.40 at date
of discovery.

June 12, 1920, E. T, Cummings, assistant valuation engineer, determined
diceovory value at Decomber 31, 1916, of $36,518,340.86: this valuation made
for 1918 depletion and subsequent years, presuming 1016 and 1917 closed.
(Not uzed in audit.)

February 25, 1921, W. . Harrison, valuation engineor, determined discovery
value at Deccmber 31, 1016, of £30.652,379 for orex only. Depletion {from 1915
to 1917, inclusive, based on cost of &525,000 as of March 1, 1913,

Mareh 28, 1921, additional taxes for 1915 and 1916 were assessed on basis
of the Harrison valuation, subsequent to which several conferences were held,
1017 taxes not being considered,
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January 22, 1922, additlonal taxer assessed for 1915 and 1916 confirmed.

March 18, 1922, claim for abatement of 1916 tax filed by taxpayer, which
wis subsequently disailowed.

April 5, 1022, conference held with taxpayer; conclusions resched: “1917
audit ix to be considered flnal only in the event that the Commissioner of
Interngl Revenue agree in writing to such artangement.”

January 24, 1923, A-2 letter mailed to taxpayer advising that additional
assessment for 1017 "I to be wade in the amount of $721,260.82,

February 19, 1923, taxpayer writes protesring this assessment, claiming
1017 taxes closed by abatement order of ¥ebruary 19, 1919,

April 10, 1923, conference, at which taxpayer protests the 1917 assessment
on the basis that section 1313, act of 1921, prohibits such review and that
under act of 1917 the three-year statute of limitations outlaws sueh 3917
gesessment,

April, 1923, taxpayer submits brief by aul Armitage, its tax concultant,
presenting arguments,

May 10, 1923, memorandum to Deputy Commissioner Chatterton from metals
valuation section, answering the protest and arguments of fhe taxpayer and
submitting that the additional ussessment should stnnd because of gross errvor
in the tentative assessment as a resalt of misrepresentation by the taxpayer,
and that there is no evidence that such assessment was tinal,

July 3, 1923, letter from Mr. Grimes, chief of the metals valuation section,
to Mr, Greenidge, head of the engineering division, presenting the facts and
records in the caxe,

July 31, 1923, wemorandum, Mr. Greenidge to My, RBright, deputy com-
missioner.

September 4, 1023, memorandum from Me, Faoes, conferee of the consolidated
returns ~4ulullvi~i«m to Mr. Bright, reviewIng ease,

September 6, 1923, memorandum from Volney Eaton, chief of special issess-
aent seetlon, 10 M. iright,

September 6, 1923, memorandam from Mr. Greenidge (o Mr. Bright recom-
mending * that the vase be considered elosed for the year 1917

September 11, 10923, memorandum from Mr. Bright to Commissioner Blair,
rmmnmnndim: “that the case he not reopened for the year 1917 and that the
unit advise the taxpayer that the letter of January 24, 10238, should: be
ignored.”

November ¢ 1923 letter to taxpayver fmm Mr, Bright, advising that letter
of Janwary 28, 1923, “ should be jgnored.”

Junuary 24, 1924, 1212 agreement finally executed and mailed to faxpayer,
closing case,

February 18, 1925, memorandum fo commissioner from Mr. Grimes, recom-
mending that the cuse be again reopened if possible,

DiscussioN

INTROBUCTION

In the settlement of 1915 and 1918 taxes elulms for depletion were made by
the taxpayer baxed on g valuntion as of March 1, 1913, of $4000,000, This was
not allowed by the unit and the cases woere finally cloxed with depletion dedue-
tions based on o cost value of $325,000,

Phix case perfains only to the settlement of 1917 taxes sthe cancellation of
additiona) assexsment of $721.260.52, and the c¢loxing of the case by o 1312
agreement, with resulting loss in taxes to the Govermment,

For 1918 and subsequent years depletion ix based on o diseovery value
allowed by the unit and §s net In controversy, although the allowance of such
disrovery Involves principles which might well e made a subject, for diseas-
sion,

TENTATIVE ABBESBMENT, $2,123,800,505 (EXHIBIT B)

The taxpayer filed its 1917 return on Marceh 30, 1918, without computation of
tax iiability, ¢laiming that invested capital omﬂd not be aseeriained and
veyuesting to be asressed under section 230 of the revenne act of 10916, as
amended In the uo t of 1917

“That If the Secretary of the Tressury is unable in any cuge catisfactorily
to determine the invested capital, the amount of the deduction sbhall be the sum
of (1) an amount equal to the same proportion of the net income of the trade
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.

or business recelved durlng the taxable year as the proportion which the
avernpge deduction (determined in the same manner ax provided {n section two
humdred and three, without including the $3,000 or $6,000 thereln referred to)
for the same calendar year of representative corporations, partnerships, and
individuais engaged in a like or similar trade or basiness bears to the total net
“income of the trade or business recelved by sach corporations, purtnerships,
and individuals, plus (2) in the case of a domestie corporation $3,000, and the
ease of o domestic partner=hip or a citizen or recident of the United Rtutey
SO,006L"

The reguest of the taxpayer was consldered by the unit and the advisory
tax board appolnted by Necretary MeAdoo in the lutter part of 1917, and after-
wards incorporated into the acet of 1918 (see. 1301) avd finially granted, A
tentative tox was deterinined on n representative tax basis in the amount of
$2,123%00.65 and the taxpayer so advised in assessment letter dated June 10,
INIR, This tax was pakd by the taxpayer on June 15, 1918,

DUPLICATE ARBESSNENT

Upon notice from the burcan the collector at Baltimore, Md,, assessed and
demanded payment for a similar amount ($2,123.800.65) in June, 1918, The
taxpayer filed a claim for abutement, advising that the same amount had been
assessed at New York and paid.  On September 27, 1618, Collector J. W, Miles
filedd an abatement claim,. Order 3633, to stop the duplicate assessment,  Iis
declaration is as follows:

“Amount assessed, 1917, $2123.800.55 ¢ * *: that the United Verde
Extension Mining Co. pudd the amonnt mentioned sbove, under date of June 15,
I8, and such amount is recorded as an advaiiee payment on my June, X,
list, page 159, The assessment on my June, 1918, dixt, section 1, page 21, e
20, shouid therefore be abated.”

On February 13, 1919, the above-mentioned order was aliowed, and on Febru-
ary 19, 1919, the taxpayer was notifled as follows:

“Your claim for the abatement of Interunl revere ax has been aliowed ss
ghown above, No farther demand for the payiment of the smount aliowed and
abated will be made upon you,

‘ “HoMeR 8. PPaar,

“Acting Deputy Comntisgioner.”

BASIS OF TENTATIVE TAX

Inquiry has been made of the specinl assessment section as o how the tenta-
tive tax assessed, $2,123.800.55, was computed, but we are advised that same
was determined by the advisory tax board and that there are no records In the
files dixelosing same. It ix evident, however, from the records that o repre-
gentative tax rate of 23 per cent plus was used by the advisory tax beard on a
net Income, with depletion dedueted as cluimed by the taxpayer. Tt was not
possible in 1918 to investigate valuation matiers to any great extent, as the
valuation departments were not organized until 1919, The rate used appears
to have been satisfactory to the taxpayer as Iong as the claimed depletion
deduction was ullowed, but when later the unit determined that such depleidon
deduetion was fmproper the taxpayer protested vigorously on the rate when
net income was ingreased by the disallowance of a large amount of the
depletion deduction snd tax inereased therehy,

ABDITIONAL ASSESSMENT, $721,060.82

On August 31, 1918, the revenue agent made his report on the period 1410 to
1017, inclusive, disallowing depletion, except on the basis of cost §525,000. In
the fall of 1919 a valuation section was organized in the natural resources sab-
division and the maiter of determining a proper depletion allowance for 1917
was taken up by Mr., L. C. Graton. The taxpayer was requested to file * sapple-
mental data * * * not later than Decvember 8, 1019.° In its return the
taxpayer had deducted depletion for 1917 in the amount of $2,301,296.4%, Oun
Noveniber 23, 1019, the taxpayer filed Morm A. M. M. 8, claiming a March 1,
1913, valie of $40,000.,000 on 2,000,000 {uns of ore, not known to exist as at
Mareh 1, 1013, On June 7, 1920, the taxpuyer abandoned its clalm for March 1,
1913, value as above and filed Form D, claiming a discovery valae at December
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$1, 1916, of §39,546,137.60 on 2,000,000 tous of ore; and a development and cost
aceount of $453,862,40 at date of discovery.

On June 12, 1920, Mr. E. T, Commins, assistant valuation engineer, reported
o discovery valuation for eres only, at December 31, 1916, of $36,518,340.88,
This valuation, however, was not used by the unit in any tax determination,
and wax superceded by a later valuation report, dated February 25, 1921, made
by K. H. Harrisen, valuation engineer, and approved by O. R, Hamilton, chlef
of the metals valuation secetion, in which a discovery value -at December 31,
1016, for ores only was allowed of $30,652,379, and the Mareh 1, 1913, vauue was
determined, based on cost, as $525,00. Inasmueh as discovery depletion war
not allowable previous to the 1918 act, a depletion deduction was allowable for
107 in the amount of K35,540.15. In March, 1921, the taxpayer was axsessed
additional taxes for 1915 and 1916 on the basis of the Harrison valuatlon, It
appears to have been the impression that 1917 taxes were closed and not uutfl
1922 wax the matter reopened.  On January 24, 1923, an A-2 letter was mailed
to the taxpayer, calling for an additional assessment of $721,260.82,

BASIB OF ADDITIONAL ARSESEMENT, $721,260.82
NET INCOME
In the tentative assessment the net income reporied was used, $8, 2l¢.,~ , In

the additionnl assersment this amount was increased (o $10,937,277.99 by the
following corrections:

Net income reported. ... ot et et e e 21 2 e e o e 2 e 8, 242, 909, 04
Additions ;

Depreciation, dlzallowed. v 834, 204, 94

Exchanged sutomobile, value disallowed........ 916, 2

Drevelopment, disallowed. oo oo 461, 407, 50

Depletion, disallowed .. oce e o m 2, 2(5.». 8. 33

e e B, T2, 284,07

[T

11, 005, 194. M
Amortization of develepment, ene-tenth alloweddo. o e cvann 67, 16, 02
Corrected Net INCOMC .. .o e e et s o e 10, 937, 277, 99

REPRESENTATIVE RATE

In arviving at u vepresentative rate, five compnnies were selecied as follows:

—— 1 i ;
! Pereent of ar o

Compat Invested ! Net net itcome | Excosse | ! ‘{“‘: "'('; of

mpany capital income m(i;x;;‘c;:’t'odl profits tax | i ovme

Arizona (‘npnrr L O PO, $35, 140,023 ’ $8, 181, 847 23. 28 | $1, 383,051 16, 2!
Mammoth Copper Co. .., el oo e 94K, 428 420,771 44, 47 141,845 35, 71
Shattuck-Arizons Copper Coooooooon.. 3,141,310 | 1,617,187 51. 45 592, 7ﬂ1 36 65
Chino Copper Co. i 20,324, 105 | 10, 860, 261 53.53 1 4,082, 187 37,34
Calumet & Arfzona Cooooo o T4),045,372 | 8,307,318 20,24 | 1,026,380 12,36
Total o e 100, 599, 238 | 20, 407, 38y N LA |
AVErafe.. _ooricrncioimananaan 2, 119, 648 5,881,478 20,23 l 1, 441, 367 21.29

From the average per cent of net income to invested capital, 20.23 per cent,
applied to the corrected net income, $10,937,277.99, is obtuined a constructive
invested cupital of S3I808G806.54.  This wmtm(-tlw invested capital then be-
comes the baxis for the excess-profits tax computition as provided in the
regulations,

The excess-profits tay, thus compuied, amounts 0. enn $2, 828, 546, 48
TTHX Q2 POT CONE o e e e e e e 172,174, 63
Tax at 4 per ('em __________ et v o e e s e 344, 344, 26

2, 810, 070, ¢ 7
Tax proeviouwsly asRessodl o s e i - e s 2, 128, 809, 55

AdAIEONGT  CX o s me e —— e m "‘] 280 82



3488 INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL RLEVENUE

COMPARATIVE TAX UNDER REGULAR BARIS

It 18 inferenting to note whint this taxpaver would have been nusensed had
it not recelved speclal trentment under section 210, The revenue apent re-
ported for IVI7T a tax due of $H,548.824.40, We have made n computation of
the tax, based on the regular basis, which shows as follows

Excess-proflts taNX. .o e e i $5, 749, 100. 05
Tax at 2 per eent 1o, 963, hd
Tax nt 4 per cent 207, 927. 08
G, O5H0, D91, 57
2, 846, 070, 37
2,123, 809, 65

Total tax that woeuld have been pald, regular basis_. .
Total tax due wnder rvepresentative tax. ... -
. Total tax actoally pald

MARCH 1, 1611, VALUE FOR DEPLETION

The taxpuyer elalmed a deduction of $2,.201,290.48, hased on a value a8 of
Murch 1, 19013, of 10,000,000, On November 205, 1919, Form A. M. M. 8, was
filled to substantinte their elaim a® above, and a valuation ax of November,
1016, by James R, Finley wuas submitted showing 2,000,000 tons of ore at
$20 per ton, total value of $40.000,000. They clulmed the * market valae in
the mine of the produet thercof which had been mined and sold during the
yoar for which the return and computation are made”  The taxpayer main-
tained that although the mine had no known ore as at Mareh 1, 1913, he was
entitled to a Mareh 1, 1903, value based upon the quantity and quality of the
ore divcovered In 1915, No ore was known to exist in the mining property
of this taxpayer and the metals valuntion cection coneluded that the Mareh
1, 1913, value of the United Verde Extension mine was not in exeess of 1ty cost,

The ¢ost of the mine in 1012 to the present corporate owners was not in
excess of 525,000, establishied by the sale of 430,000 shaves at 50 eents par
value to the Douglas-Tenar syndiente, and total issue of 1,030,000 shaves at
par.  In June, 1920, when the tavpayer abandened s elabm for o March 1,
1013, value of 10,060,000 In favor of {ty discovery value cladm, It still main-
tailned that depletion deducted in 1917 of $2300.200 was proper, based on a
Mavreh 1, 1913, value of 34,0000, There is nothing in the files of the ease
to aubstantiote thig claim, based probably on the eaplialization previous to
1012 and expenditures not only by the taxpayer but by all predecesser owners,

DINCOVERY VALVE

In June, 1920, the taxpayer filed Form D, ciniming 0 discovery value ot
December 31, 10146, of $10.546,137.60 on 2,000,000 tons of ore, and a develop-
ment ad cost, acconnt of $453,862.40 at date of discovery,

On July 7, 1920, Mr. C'ummings, assistant valuntion engineer in the metals
valuation section, made a report on this claim und placed a discovery valne
of $H0OHI8360.8% on the property.  Mr. Cuonmings appears to higve assnmed,
that the 1917 taxes were taken care of in the original assessment and case
closed, sinee in his scehedule of annual depletion he places sustalned deplo-
tion for IB17 at $2,472,111.81 and allowed depletion $£2,301.206. This valua.
tion, however, was not wsed as a basis for audit,

On Febroaary 25, 1921, Mr. Harrison, valnation engineer, made 2 report on
the ease and determined the value as of March 1. 1913, at 8525000 and dis-
covery value 830632370, This valuation for discovery differs from the Cum-
mings valuntion largely fn the plant aud smelter value (o the amount of
$6.000,000.

A rchedule for depletion 8 shown as follows:

: S
Year Sustained 1 Allowed

I Value
. e e e . e ,,_..,.-.M._.WIV - i e
LT S .. . $1, 500, 00 |
1910 3,020, 13 ! 145.25,000 (3/1-13¢
- i
uiR. .. 3,121, 70, 3,121,721, 44 iy =
A | I} 30, 832, 370

|

- . . - Lo e

1200, 006,70, 1,208,010 7% ‘

! Discovery valuo,




INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE 3439

Since the discovery lnw in the 1688 act applied only to 1818 and subsequent
years, discovery depletion could not be used tor 1917, the allowed depletion
bused on enst us at Marceh 1, 1913, belng $35,540.15.  Phds valuation became the
basis for vudie of 1915, 1018, and T taxes and subsequent additlonn) assess.
menty,

On Becember 10, 1923, after conferences with the taxpayer, Mr. Harrison
revined his discovery valuntion to $41,600,000, with depletion rate of $0.0501:335
per pound of copper, which was accepted by the taxpayer. The sevised
depletion schedule is as follows:

N

Your Cupper sold I sustnined Allowed

(pounds) l depletion depletion
MM L e e . 85K, 056, 036 xi 20, K2, ()Rl £1, 200, RN2, 08
wWe. . e e e e e e 24, 16%, 76 1, 8L 067, ) 3,080,907, 27
W, .o L e P 41,042,700 2 312, No.&v ‘ 2,312, 47 K6
w2, L L . e . 12, 4%, 005 ! 08D, 0%, 75 089, 05K, 75
Wk, . oL . L BN 20,027, 500 1.490,120.671 1,490, 120, 67

THE QUESTION OF FINALITY

Thix taxpayser haz consistently claimed that the 1917 taxes were closed ; the
filex, however, fail to disclose any such evidence,

The assessment letter of June 10, 1918, stated : (Copy not found in file)

“A thinl concington has not been veached, but from the constderntion so far
glven it 12 apparent that the amonnt of texex owing witl probably not be less
than that indieated below.”  (The amount indiented was #2,728 80000, and the
tuxpayer was notifted to make paymeni on or before June 1, 1918, The lotter
conchuled.)  * Upon final audit of your retarns you will be advised of the con-
clnston reached, and 1F the nmount determined to be due 4 in exeess of the
amonnt nhove stated a further ascossament will be made; i Jess, you wmay file o
claim tor retund of the amount overpaid.”

Certainly there v nothing in the above assessment letter suggestive of any-
thing bhut a *tentntive ™ axxessmont.

The elabm, flest, was that (s ascessment was the “ixing of a deflulte tax
against the company.”  Quoting from briet:

“herentteor, and in July ond Sucust of the \q-nr pursuant to the said lotter,
a e exmndnetion and audit of the company’s hooks, papers, doenments, ang
Fecords wax ade,  * % % Affer the ting of the nuditor™s voprrt deponent
had certain diseas<dons with the authoritios fn Washinaton in veference to
the cnse, wnd o Moy, 1018 the company received o fnal notlee, copy of which
is nnneved.”

{Nori~—-No such notice attached to brief, and this was presions to tentative
asxessient.)

“hat after the receipt of the sadd notice deponent toek the same up with
cortain members of the board of tax assessors having choavee of the ease and
was informed that the satd notice was a final notiee and sottlod the case,

< Deponent, alter veceiving this Information, so reported to the directors and
ofticers of the compnuy that their taxes had been finnlly settled ot $2,025.50.55
for the year 1917 * * »

The cladm for abntemoent of duplicate ascessment, made by the taxpaver, was
allosved on February 19, 1919, in the following lnngange: © No further domand
for the payment of {he amount sllowed and abated will be made upon you.”

On Novemboer 20, 19, My, Graton wrote the taxpayer, in parvt: “ It will be
necessary to make provisfonal fnvestization of your tases for the yvear 1017 in
order that Ilw additional amount of tax Indicated ns due may be gxsexsed
witheui delny.”

The following day the taxpayer replied, referring to abatement order and
saving the case hnd been closed for 17 as a resalt of this fotter.  Mr. Avrmi-
tage, tax consnliant, elaimy in his brief to have interviewed Mr. Graton and
to have *<hown him the original notice thai had been recolved by the company
finnlly fixing the tnx, and made the clnlm that the safd taxes for 1917 were
finally adjusted and fixed.” See also letter of November 29, 1914, (Ex-
hibit )



8440 INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

“Thereafter deponent saw Mr. Graton, who informed him that he had made
an examination of the facts * * * and that the department had arrived at
the conciusion that the tax for the year 1917 was finally wettled and that no
further question would be taken up or made in reference thereto” * * *

A eepy of the Cumining’s valuation of July 7, 1920, was given to the taxpayer,
- and great stress is lnid on the fact “ that the depletion allowed to the compuny
for the year 1017 was not the depletion allowed under the valuation or at the
unit rate allowed by the valuation but was the exact depletion which had been
claimed by the company In s 1917 return, to wit, $2,301,296.48, which claim
had been allowed and settled with the settlement of the 1917 axes between the
company and the representatives of the Government as heretofore set out,”

“In allowing to the company for the year 1917 the xald de pletion as elaimed
by the company in its return, it was done beeanse of the distinet understanding
that the company's 1917 taxes were finally settled, tpclading both its elnim for
special treatent under section 210 and its claim for depletion at the rate of
$2,301,206.48.”

In March, 1021, the taxpayer was assessed an additlonal tax for 1915 and
1016 on the basis of Harrison's valuation, gnd subsequent to that time con-
ferences were held in which all mention of 1917 taxes was omitted.

In a conference memorandum dated April 5, 1922, the 1917 tax was con-
gidered, and the conclusion reached that the * 1917 audit is to be considered
final only in the event thiat the Commissioner of Internal Revenue agrees in
writing to such arrangement.” This was held between the taxpayer and rep-
resentatives of audit F sectlon.

During 1922 the question of revalulng copper mines was under consideration
by the bureau. The taxpayer cites the declsion of the commigsioner in his
memorandum of December 11, 1022, not to reopen 1917 and 1918 cases for
revaluation, as agaln settling the question as to the finallty of thelr 1917 tax
settlement,

The matter then rests until January 24, 1923, when the assessment lotter
was sent to the United Verde Extension Mining Co., disclosing an additional
tax of $721,260,82, The taxpayer protested this on February 19, 1923, on the
following grounds:

“1. That the taxes referred to therein were settled by a settlement entered
inte by the Government sud taxpayer in the year 1018, and these taxes ¢an not
now be opened.

“2 That the tax assessment is improper, illegal, and in violation of the
Constitution, the several revenue acts, ana the regulations promulgated there-
under.” ‘

EVENTS SBUBSEQUENT TO ADDITIONAL ASSESSMENT, JANUARY, 1023

On May 10, 1923, Mr. Grimes, chief metals valuation section, nddressed a
memorandum to Deputy Commissioner Chatterton, in which he stated:

*The 1917 tax should be assessed upon the basis of the letter of Junuary 24,
1623, for the following reasons:

1, There was a gross error in the previcus askessment. :

“3, The grons error in the previous assessment was the result of misrepre-
sentation by the taxpayer to the Income Tax Unit,

“3. There is no record In the file of this case that the tentutive asvessment
for 1917 was ever considered final by the Income Tax Unit.”

On July 3, 1923, Mr. Harrison and Mr. Grimes, of the metals valuation sec-
tion, prepared a memorandum for Mr. 8. M. Greenidge, head of the engineering
division, setting forth a chronological record of the correspondence, assessment
letters, conferences, efc., applylng to the 1917 tax return of the taxpayer, in
which they rtated that it was apparent from the sunuary that—

{1) The assessment letter of June 10, 1918, was tentative und the tax paid
was Usted as a partial payment by the coliector at Baltimore.

(2) The order for abatement, which the taxpayer has always claimed finally
closed the case, was allowed because the original tentative assessment of tax
was twice listed on the coilector’s books for collection.

(3) No further assessinent had been made by the Income Tax Unit from
June 1({)1. 1918, to January 24, 1923, when an additional tax of $721,260.82 was
assessed,

(4) The taxpayer has never contested the accuracy or legality of depletion
based on a cost of March 1, 1913, value of $525,000, but has contended that the
1017 return was closed and that no additional assessment counid be made.
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(3) The origlnal askessment was tentative and that at the time the assess-
ment war made no revenue agent’s report was avaflable. At no time from
June 10, 1918, to the present conld a case of this size be closed by office audit
prier to the receipt of 4 rovenao agent's report,

() That representutives of the taxpayer have conxistentiy delayed action in
the collection of adaitional tax for 1917 by their contentlons that the case had
been elosed by the assessment of June 10, 1918, and abatement ovder No., 34338,
The record shows that while some representatives of the Income Tax Unit may
have glven credence to the taxpuyer's contentions those contentions were never
officially aceepted or the cuse elosed,

(7) That there can be no guestion as to the faets that the additionsl assesn-
ment Is proper and that o revaluation i involved for the year 1917,

On Juiy 31, 1923, Mr, Greenidge addressed a memorandum to J. (3. Bright,
depity commissioner, in which he reviewed the case and presented some facts
in connection with comparative tax rates as follows:

Nf(‘-‘.t ll‘xi('mlue Por cent
o after deple- tax to
List () tionhasbeen| nst
educted income
Unlted Verde MIning Co. .. .. L oo o0 e, $10,011.683 28. 49
Chino ¢ opper Co. . e . . 4,479,603 23.21
Netada Congolidntng ¢ umn-r Co.. 8, 769, 234 19, 18
Hay Consolidnted ¢ opper Co. N, 551, 448 21.04
fnspiration Consolidated Copper Co 9, 357, 491 1), 4
Minmi Copper Co. . 6, 7T, hiR 1341
( *alumet and Arizona Minlnu C e e e . 8,307, 13 10.08
Calumet and Heeln Mintng Co....... ... .~ . . ... . e e 10, 843, 779 30. 68
Average for 8 companles. .. e e e amemme e i 23, 30
' Pereont | poroent
List () "‘f tn,tr?lﬁ:‘m tax to net
I U fncomes
1eonie
lrm(a»(oppor(o 0. 8 36,44
Miomi Copper Co_ .. ... 48,2 33.41
Mammaoth Mining Co. .. L . L e iiunin £9.2 37.69
Shattuck-Arizons ¢ opper Co ... 44.3 40,45
United Verde Copper o, . . ... e e e e e e 5501 28.49
Alovez Mining Co..ooo o ... 45,6 44, 58
Mohawk Mining Co_._....___ .. 48,1 45.16
“olwr!ue(‘app«r‘mnlng(o e e e e e . 45. 5 1.5
Chamipion Copper Co__. e et e 53.6 50.
Average for 9 CoOmpantes. . ... oveo e DUUTN IR ‘ 34.53

COMMENTS ON RBRATES

The two companles appearing on both Hlsts and thelr taxes in percentage of
net hicome are:

Ter cent tax
to net income

TUnited Verde Mining Coonnnn... —————— a0 e e s it s e 00 40
Miami Copper Cooceeo-. e e e e e s e — 33,41
Average of two companies. ... e e e eriem e 30, 08

The I'nited Verde Extencion Copper Co. case involves in 1917 the following
percentages

Depl ;’or‘ts:wnt Total t Per eent

eplotion depletion 'otal tax tax to

alfowed tonet | INetincome Ausessed net
income ’ | income

1

e+ e wene s e s mm i ‘

Originsl nssesSmMent ... ..o oveuee.. 2, 301, 200. 48 27.02 $8, 212, 209, 04 ’ s , 123, 809, 55 25,97

Final assessiment 35, 540. 15 L3251 10, 9‘%7 217. 96 ‘ 2, 5. 070.37 28.01
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Mr. Bright r¢ferred the matter to several officialyg in the untt for comment
and recommendation.

L 1. Enes, conferee of the consolldated returns subdivision, in a8 memorandum
dated September 4, 1923 (Exhibit 1)), says in past:

*The taxpayer's contention that bureau letter dated February 19, 119,
finally fixed the tax Uabllity for 1917 and closed the case is not reasonable, and
it would almost indicate a deliberate misinterpretation of the faets,

“ It Is true the records did not show any agreement as to the closing of the
cane for 1017, but if no such understanding existed, ax clalmed by the {ax-
pryer, why was there no attempt made to assess the additionnl tax before
January 24, 19237 It appears that the taxpayoer's representative convineed
the representative of the burean at the conferences held that the 1917 tnx was a
sottlod quention but that no records were made and the question, therefore,
came ‘W anew af later conferences,”

Volne” Eaton, chief of the speelnl assessment section, in a memorandum
dnted September 6, 1923 (Exhiblt 1), says in part:

* By allowing the previous rate and vttlmm'nt for 1917 to stand Instead of
the rate and tax as determined by the new dita sheet and correcied income
allowing $4,000,000, March 1, lm.& vitlue, the Govermnent will lose approxi-
mately $164,854.82, but at the same time the unit i< placed in a better position
to equnlize in 1918 any inequalities inndvertently favoring the taxpayer as a
result of thiy settlement made in 1917,

On September @, 1023, Mr, (.wonld;zo addressed a memorandum to Mr,
ﬂright. in part ns follows (Exhibit )

*  “Although the unlt did not vunxhlm‘ the case ax cloxed for the year
1m7. tlwr(‘ were some actions taken by the unit which permitted taxpuyer to
consider Its ease had been finadly acted apon by the unit for the yvear 1917,

“An investigation of the mmount of tax patd by tnxpayer corporation nud the
tux paid by similavly situated corporptions leads me to belfeve that a recon-
sideration of the case by the anit will result an an amount of tax belg tinally
arrived at not materially diffevent from the tax already paid.

1t fs therefore my vecommendation that this case be consldered closed for
the year 1917.”

On September 11, 1923, Mr. Bright addressed 2 memorandum to Me, Blair,
in parg &y follows (Exhiblt G) @

“In oview of the facts ax set torth in the memorandum pre mm-d by Mr. Bues
and Mr. Eaton, also the vrecommendation by Mr. Greenidee duated Septewher 6,
1923, * that this case be consideved cloxed for the year 1915, and the plea of
the taxpayer that the case ~honld not e reopened, due to the provisions o
secetion 1313, revonue act of 1921, *that in the presence of fraud or mistnke in
mathematical calcalagtion, the ifindings of facts in, and the decizion of the
commissioner upon (or in case the Scevetary is authorized to approve the
saine, then after such approval) the merits of any elaim presented nuder or
authorized by the internal revenue Inws shall not be subject to review by auy
other administrative officer, employee, or agent of the United States,' T recom-
mend that this ease be not reopened for the year 1417 and that the unit advise
the taxpayer that the letter of Jannary 24, 1923, should be {rnored.”

On November 6, 1923, Mr. Bright advized the taxpayer by letter to ignore
office letter of January 24, 1924, relating to a proposed additional assessment
of $721.2060.82 income and excess-profits tax for 1917, (Yshibit 1)

on Janundry 24, 1924, an agreement in accordance with seetion 1312 of ihe
revenue act of 1921, covering * Your income and profigs tax lability for the
year 19177 was excented and mailed to the taxpayver. (FExhibit 1)

On February 18, 1925, Mr. Grimes, chief, metals vaduation section, in a mewo-
riandum to.the commisstoner reconnnends * that an attempt be maude to colleet
the tax which should have been paid by this taxpayer, either by agreement
with the taxpayer or through legal proceedings on a charge of frand.” (EFx-
hibit J.)

CONCLUBION

Your engineers, after eareful review of this case, desire to point out particu-
Iarly:

1. That evidenee is lacking in the files in confirmation of the taxpayer's con-
tentions that this case was at any time prior to the 1,312 agreement officially
closed,
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2. That the unit is to be eritledzed for the lnck of action in determining the
taxpayer's finnl tax Hability, from February, 1921, when depletion was de-
termined for 1917, to January, 1921, when the additional assessment was made,

3. That ihe allowance by the unii, of cost ax the Maveh 1, 1913, value for de-
pletion was thelr ondy possible aetlon in the absence of additional Information,

4. That the taxpayer's tofal tux was not excessive as indicated by the per-
contage of tases to net income of the United Verde Mining Co. of 2549 per cent
as compared with 2001 finally determined for the United Verde Bxtension
Minlng Co,, hoth operating or same lode as adjncent properties, and the tax
paid, 1942 per cont, was rank inequity as hotween taxpayers,

O, That the additlonal assessment of $721,200.82 wan justly due the Govern-
ment and should, if possible, be collected,

¢ That mensured by the providdens of the regulations, the allowanee of a
discovery value of $31,000,000 to this taxpayer was proper, sincee, although an
extension of known ore bodies, this bonanza body had never been and conld
never have been included In ¢ probable ” or “ prospective ” ore or in any ofher
way comprehended in a prior valuation.

ExmmiT B

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE oF CoOMMISRIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, June 10, 1918.
Unrrep Verpe ExrENsioNn MivNise (o, .
New York, N. Y.

Siks: Reference is made to yonr income and excess profits tax returns for
the year 1917, which have been under consideration hy this offiee with a view
to determinkng the amount of tax to which you are lable,

A final conciusion has not been reached, but feom the consideration so far
given, It Is apparent that the ameunt of taxes owing will probably not be less
than that indicated below, This amount is in excess of that heretofore as-
gossed and is subjeet to further revision upon final awdit of your returns,

This amount should be paid to the colleetor of internnl revenue of your @is-
trict on or before June 15, 1918,

TOtUY tX o e e et o e e £2,123, R0, 35

Upon final audit, of your rveturns, you will he advized of the conclusion
reached, and i the amount determined to be due is In exeess of the amount
above stated, a further assessment will be made; it fess, yvou may file & ¢laim
for vefund of the amount overpaid,

Respeetfully,
Danin C. Roper, Commissioner.

Bxmmir ¢
UNITED VERDE EXTENSION MINING €0,

NoveEsmuer 245, 1919,
My I (' GRATON,
Mininy Neetion, Treasiry Anner, Washington, 1), €.

DeAr St Referving again o your letter of Novewmber 20, 1919, and our
reply of November 21, 1019, there arve certain additfonal matters in connection
with the assessing and fiving the fncome and excess profits tax for the year
1017 for this corporation that T would like fo have before the departinent,

The origiual yeguiations rvelating to excess-profits tax known ax regulation
41 were, ax 1 recall, issued some time in the early part of Febraary, 1918,
After the issuanee of these regulations, the weiter went to Washington and
saw Dr, D, 8. Adams in reference to the tax of the above compaay. T talked
with Doctor Adums nbout the facts of the United Verde Extension Mining
Co., explained its history, and discussed the form of a report reguired. T
explained that it was quite finpoxaibie by resson of the condition of the com-
pany books and s history fo fill in the report n that form. A report was
thereafter prepared and at this sugeestion an extra eopy sent on to the Com-
mizsioner of Internnl Revenue at Washington,  ‘This wax on oy about March
20 or 30, 1918,
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Thereafter I had many diccussions with Doctor Adams, with Mr. Ramstedt,
and other members of the depavtment's staff, who formed part of the Board
of Tax Assessors, The United Verde Extension ense was assigned to Mr,
Ramstedt.

Subseqguently in June, 1918, X brought up the case before Doctor Adams and

- he stated that in his opinfon the case was a ditlicult one: that the company
was clearly entitled te an axsessment to come within the provision of section
210 of the law as construed by the regulations, but that the Government wns
not in a position at that time to fx a representative tax as i had aot col-
lected suthelent data. He stated a tentative tonx would be sssensed.

Theratter the company recelved from the depavtment a letter, copy of
which I Inclose, fixing this tentatve tax and sabsequently in June, 198, paid
the amount thereof, In July and August in that yenr an examination was
made <of our books, papers, documents, and records by the auditor or fleld
agent. of the department, My, Abott, who I wux subseguently informed made
a report to the department in August, 1918,

I had many discussions with Mr. Abott in relation to his ¢laims that the
company was taxable in a further amount than the sum tentatively fixed, and
submitted to him one or two briefs on the subject, presenting the arguments
in the company’s fuvor. We had some further discussions and arguments in
the matter, but I was subsequently told by Mr. Abott that he was of the op'n-
fon that the tax as originally adjusted some time in May., (918, would be
assessed, and the company received a final notice, copy of which I forwarded
in my former letter to you,

It would seem, therefore, that this actien of the Government in finally fix-
ing the tax as disclosed in thelr letter of February 19, 1819, was based upon
a full examination and a complete report by the Government's fleld agent, and
after a full diseussion of the matter had been had and briefs filed by the com-
pany stating its contention. In fact, it Is as I anderstand, on this same
report and the same facts that the Government is now seeking to veopen the
case,

I respectfully submit that a tax which has been fixed after such o ful) dis-
cussion, examination, and careful determination by the department should
not be reopened and reassessed without any cause.

Very truly yours,
TAUL ARMITAGE.

Exmpir D

Quoted from memorandum dated September 4, 1923, frome I. T, Enes.

To: Mr. J. G. Bright, deputy commissioner.

Re: 1917 tax return of United Verde Extension Mining Co., New York, N. Y.
] L - *® L * *

COMMENTS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FOREGOING FACTS AND CONTENTION

(¢y The taxpayer's contention that bureau letter dated February 19, 1919,
finully fixed the tax liability for 1917 and closed the case is not reasonable,
and it would almost indicate a deliberate misinterpretation of the facts., ow-
ever, conterences have been held on this point at later dates, and from what
appears in the file of the case it would scem that at ome time-—that is, about
November, 1919—the case was considered closed for the yeay 1017, This under-
standing was, according te the taxpayer's version, had with Mr. Graton, valun-
tion engineer, natural resources division. Ilewever, a memorundum prepared
by Mr., Graton and dated December 8, 1919, does not support this eontention,
The taxpayer's representative also claims that he was again told in a confer-
ence with Messrs, King & MeArthur in the eavly part of 1921 that the 1917 case
was closed. However, the question of additional tax for 1917 was brought up
at a conference April 5, 1922, The taxpayer's representative was apparently
then told that the 1017 case was not closed unless such agreement was entered
into in writing.

In 2 memorandum prepared by Mr. W. A. Harrison, dated July 3, 1923, it
was stated that “ the taxpayer's representatives have constantly delayed action
in the collection of additional tax for 1917 by their contention that the case
had becn closed by the assessment of June 10, 1918, and abatement order No.
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8623.” 'This appears to be a very lame excuse, It will be noted from the fact
gbove that the first valuntion was made June 12, 1920, sad that a copy of this
valuution as approved was furnished the tanxpayer and that a revaluation was
made February 26, 1021, yet no assessment was attempted before Janungry 24,
1923, However, additionul tuxes were gasuessed for the years 19156 and 1016,
Marxch 28, 1921, and these taxes were apparently bused upon the second valua-
tion.

It I8 true the records did not show uany agreement as to the closing of the
case for 1917, bat if no such understanding existed as cluimed by the taxpayer
why was there no attempt made to assess the additlonal tax before January
24, 19237 It appears that the taxpiyer's representative convineed the repre-
sentatives of the bureau at the conferences held that the 1917 tax was a settled
question, but that no records were made, and the question therefore came ap
anew at Ianter conferences,

With reference to the taxpayer's claim that a case could not be reopened
under provisions of section 13138 of the 1921 revenue act and his reliance upon
the letter issued by the Secretary of the Treasury re revaluation, it appears
that the taxpayer has a good claim if he can show that the case was celosed,
The information in the files does not support his claim.

(b) With reference to the taxpayer's method of computing depletion it
appears that same is not correct; neither does the taxpayer's representative
¢laim that it ix, but states that when consideration was given under section
210 the question of depletion was a part of the same consideration, and that
when he agreed to the rates as used it was understood that same were to be
applied after the deduction for depletion, and that after depletion was dis-
allowed he does not agree to the rates.  (8ee conference memorandum duted
April 10, 1923.)

Claim is made, however, that even with the total depletion disallowed the
tax ax already paid is more than that paid by other copper companies. This
contention seems to be carried out by the figures for the corporitions claimed
by the taxpayer to be representative corperations,

(¢) With reference to the comparatives used in this case the following iy
noted :

(1) That the average depletion and deduction deducted by the representative
corporations is $1,239,815.80, whercas the appellant corporation has a deduetion
only of $70,234.903,

(2) That the average income of representative corporations is stghtly more
than one-halt of the appellant eorporation.

It is understood to be an oflice practice that when a case was originally
assessed by the advisory tax board under section 210 any later computation is
made under the same percentage of tax to the net income, and this case was
apparently handled in that manner,

It is believed that other corporations than those used can be found which
will be better suvited as representative eorporations,

I. T. Exgs,

Ixuisir B

SgpereMpeR 6, 1923,
Moemorandum for Mr. ¥ G. Bricur,
Deputy Commissioner.
(Through Mr. 8. M. Greenidge, head natural vesources division.)

Iu re: United Verde Extension Mining Co, of Delaware and Arizona, taxable
year 1917.

In accordance with your request as a vesult of the conference of September
6, 1923, with the representatives of the above taxpayer, I have prepared a
new data sheet and am embodying herein my recommendation and findings
resulting therefrom.

The rate of 21.29 per cent as shown by previous data sheets was arrived
at by the auditor in the case in an effort to sustain the rate of 21 per cent plus
determined by the old advisory tax board. It was felt that ths rate should
be sustained for more than one reason, but principally fer the reason that
it reflected a constructive capital under section 210 of $38,986.896.54, which
was more than $2,000,000 in excess of the discovery value allowed for 1918
by Mr. Cummins, of metuls valuation section, for both plant and equipment
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and ore reserves, and over $ROGD000 in excess of the value later determined
by Mr. Harrviron, of metals valuntion seetion,

This new data sheet is composed of the Calumet & Arizona Mining Co,, the
Bay Consolidated Copper Co., both operating in Arlzona, and the Chino Cop-
per Co, operating in New Mexieo, sand in every respecet they are similar to
each other, and after overcoming the abnormmlt es are similar to the tax-
payer's,  While their gross business is greater than taxpayer's, their net income
in lexs, for the reason that operations ave conducted nt a much lower per-
centapge of production coxt, Indicating most favorable conditlonz as to plang
operntions, loeation, ote, and o well-mapped-out pinn of previous develop-
ment, all of which as elatmed by taxpayer is not properly reflected in Invested
capital.  In addition, overhead charges, deprecintion, depletion, and vepairs
are far below these chavges by the concernd selected as comparatives or by
the majority of conceerns conducting similar operitions,

These conditions help to creite a large taxable income and a very high per-
centage of net to gross as compared with stmilar concerns,

The rate of 15,81 per cent ns determined by this new data sheot refleets n
constiuetive capital of SHAR3R0H.30. In the proposed additional assessment
of $721,260.82, hased on the rate of 20L29 per cent, taxpayer was not aliowed
depletion on a $4000,000 March 1, 1913, value. By the application of this
lower rate to the corrected net income as determined by allowing the $4,000,000
March 1, 1913, value, a total tax results of V.'.&HWH..»!L and the previously
recommended ml(litinmll assessment of $721,200.82 is reduced $301,406, which,
together with o smatl element of goki production vefleeting a tax on gold of
approximately $15.000, leaves a difference in the tax thus computed and the
previously proposed assessment of $RG6A06, or o tax in exeess of that already
pald of $154,854.82,

A low rate such as this new data ~hwt indu ates with its corresponding
large constructive capital under secetion 210 js g bad precedem to esyablish
at this time after determining a rate of 2129 per cent, which wax aceeptable
to the taxpuyer provided vet Income vemained unchanged, for the veason ihat
in determining the tax for 1918 taxpayer will expeet a rate and constenetive
capitnl under section 328 conslstent with the rate and construetive capital
allowed under seetion 210 for 1917, and the previous rvate of 2129 per cent
will justify a proportionately higher rvate for I8 consistent with the 1918
increased rates, while o rate of 15,81 per cent would eall for a reduced 1918
rate in proportion.

By allowing the previous rate and settloment for 1917 to stand instead of
the sate and tax as determined by the new data sheet and corrected incone
allowing $4.000,000 March 1, 1913, value the Government will lose approsi-
mately $154,854.82, but at the same time the United is placed i n better posi-
tion to equalize in 1918 any inegualities inndvertently favoring the taxpayer
ax a result of this settlement made in 1917,

VOLNEY INATMoN, Chicf of Seetion,

Sx it I°

NEPIEMBER 6, 1928,
Memorandum for Mr. Bright.
In re: United Verde Extension Mining Co., New York, N, Y.

As a result of your request for a recommendation by me in regard 1o the
above-mentioned taxpayer, I wish to say that | have carvefully examined the
entire file in this caxe and find that although the unit did not consider the case
as cloxed for the year 1917 there were some actions taken by the unit which
permitted taxpayer to consider its caxe had been finally aceted upon by the unit
for the year 1917,

An investigation of the amount of tax paid by taxpayer corporation and the
tax pald by similarly sltuated corporations leads me to belfeve that a recon-
sideration of this case by the unit will result in an ameount of tax being finally
arrvived at not materially different from the tax already paild.

It is therefore my recommendation that thix case be considered elosed for the
year 1917.

There is attached 8 memorandum of this date from the speeinl assessment
seetion explaining the new list of comparntives prepuved in this ense.

8. M. GREENINGE,
Head of Division,
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Exminir G
MEMORANDUM

Serrenvser 11, 1923,

My, Braig: I have made a thorough and complete investigation relative to
reopening the case of the United Verde Extension Mining Co, for the yvear
1917 in complinnee with your request of May B4, 1923,

In order that the unit might have before it all the facts in connection with
the closing of this case, a conferenie was sreanged with the representatives of
the taxpayer, Mr, Douglas and Mr. Neifert, at which conference there were
present the head of the natural resourcees division, an engineer from the metals
valuation section, and an auditor from the consolidated retorns audit seetion
of the natural resources division,  Based on the information furnished by the
taxpayer’s representatives at this conference, Mr, Greenddge, head of the
patural resources division, prepared o memorandum to e ander date of
August 6, 1923, setting forth all the tacts in connection with the closing ot this
case, without any recommendation as to the advisability of reopening.  in
order, therefore, that a elearer understanding might be had of certain facts
sot forth in the memoranduam of Mr. Greenidge, T arranged o further conference
with Mr. Douglas and Mr. Armitage in my office under date of Reptember 5,
at which time the following pertinent facts were diselosed :

1. That the letter from the nnit duted February 19, 1919, in which the stafe-
ment was made ** No further demand for payment of the amount allowed and
debated will be made upon you,” had no bearing on the question at issue and
should not be considered.  This was g stondard pavagreaph used by the old
claimy division on its actlon in the allownnee of abutement chiins whereln
there had been duplicate assessments,

2. That during the period from Febraary 19, 19, to Junuary 24, 1923, the
unit dealt almost entirely with the question of valuations for the yvear 1918,
and that during this period representatives of the natural resources division
ad in part led the taxpayer to beliove that ite case for the year 1917 was
closed,  The taxpayer was furnished a copy of an audit memorandum dnted
June 12, 1920, signed by the valuation engineer and approved by the chief of
the metals valuation section whercin the statemend is mnde that the case for
IN1T was closed under section 210,

3. That the taxpayer was entitled to and could prove a grester Maveh 1,
1913, value for the purposes of determining the depletlon deduction than was
allowed in the axsessment letter of June 10, 1918, the Ietter upon which the
taxpayer bases its elaim that the case for the year 1917 was closed.

4. That if the case was reopened in accordance with the facts as set forth in
the letter of January 24, 1923, and the revaluation as made by Mr. Harrison
was used as the basts for determining the amount of the depletion deduction,
the taxpayer would be able to fucrease this deduction considerably through the
proving of a greater March 1, 1913, value, which fact 18 admitted by both Mr,
Greenidge and Mr, Donahue, the assistant chief of the metals valuation sec-
tion.

8. That the taxpayer would be entitied to a lower rate of tax under the pro-
visions of section 210 than that used in the letter of January 24, 1923,

Previous to the conference arranged with the representatives of the taxpayer,
I had a review of thix case made by Mr. Enes, conferee of the consolidated re-
turns subdivision, and he has prepared a clear and concise stafement of the
facts in this case. This statement is attached and made a part of this report.
After the conference of September B, I agaln referred the case to Mr. Greenidge
for a reconsideration of the allowable depletion deduction and the old rate ax
used by the Advisory Tax Board in its letter of June 10, 1018. There is at-
tached & statement by Mr. Eaton, chief of the speclal assessment section in the
natural rescurces division, fully setting forth the facts covering the allowance
of a different rate than that used in the letter of January 24, 1923.

In view of the facts as set forth in the memoranda prepared by Mr. Enes and
Mr. Eaton, also the recommendation by Mr. Greenidge dated September 6, 1923,
“ that this case be considered closed for the year 1217, and the plea of the tax-
payer that this case should not be reopened, due to the provisions of section
1313, revenue act of 1921, *“ That in the absence of fraud or mistake in mathe-
matical calculation, the findings of facts in and the decision of the commis-

62919--25-—p1 17—0
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sloner upon (or fn the caxe the Seeretary s authorized to approve the same,
then aftey suell approval) the merits of any clal presented under or author-
fzed by the Internal revenue laws shinll not be subject to review by any other
administrative officer, cmployee, or agent of the United States,” 1 recommend
that thix case be not reopened for the year 1917 and that the unlt advise the tax-
payer that the letter of Junuary 24, 1923, showld be fgnored.

J. G, Brianr,
Deputy Commisnioner,

sxusrr L

VUxwren Vigoe Kxtension Mining Co,
- Necw York, N, Y.

Smw: Reference in made to your income and excess profits tax return for the
year ended December 31, 1917,

You are advised that office letter dated Janpary 24, 1923, relating to a pro-
posed additional ussessment of $721.260.82 Income and exvess profits tux for
1917 should be ignored.

Respectfully,
J. G. Bricur,
Deputy Commissioner,

Exmmr I
Janvawy 24, 1924,
Untren VEroe ExTensioNn MiNizg Co,
New York, N. Y,

Sins : There is Inclosed an agrveement, properly executed, in accordance with
section 1312 of the revenue act of 1921, covering your inceme und profits tax
Hability for the yeur 1917, This copy is for your files an evidence of the
execution of the agrecment.

Renspectfully,
J. G. Briuur, Deputy Conmissioner.

Exutnrr J
FeEsruany 18, 1925,
MEMORANDUM TO THE COMMISSIONER,
In re Unitéd Verde Extension Mining Co,, audit of 1917 tax retuen,

The followlng memorandum is prepared in accordanes with yeur request of
February 16, 1925,

There are attached the tollowing exhiblts:

1. Revenue ggent's report of August 41, 1918,

2. Conference memoranda of April 5, 1922, and April 10, 1923,

3. Letter of Douglass Armitage and McCann to the Secretary of the Treasury
under date of April 30, 1923,

4. Letter of Willinm A, Siefert, of the firm of Reed, Smilth, Shaw & Beal,
forwarding above laetter to the Necerotury.

b, Memoranda frem MceKinzie Moss, 1. I Blair, and E. W, Chatterton
forwarding such letters to the Income Tax Unit and returning memorandum of
Mauy 10, 1923, prepared by J. A. Grimes,

6. Memorandum of May 10, 1824, from J. A, Grimes,

7. Memorandum of July 3, 1923, by J. A, Grimes. (These two memoranda
glve the statun of the case and a chronological history of nctions by the
Income Pax Unit.)

8 Memorandum of July 81, 1923, by 8 M., Greenldge.  (This recites excerpts
from docunientary evidence in the case. and two lsts of compuratives on
pages 8 and 9. of which the Minml Copper Co. and the Unfted Verde Copper
Co, appenr on both lists, The Calumet & Hecla percentage of net to gross
Income, exclusive of dividends, was 41.7 per cent, it it does not appear on
the recond ling,) ‘ '

9. Memoraudum of 8, M, Greenldgo of August ¢, 1928, submitting his memo-
rindum of July 31, 1923, to Mr. Bright, .
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10. Memornndum of September ¢, 1023, from Voleny Eaton, chief of specinl
assessment section, natural resources divislon, showing o minfmuam additdonal
tax under any possible basiy of $354.5850-4.82 .

11. Memoerandum of September 6, 1923, from 8. M, Greenddge w 3, G Brigh
recommending that the case be considered closed for 1917,

12, Memorundum of September 6, 19238, from 8. M. Greenidge to J. G Bright
recommending that the case be considered closed for 1917,

13, Memorandum of J. G. Bright to Mr. Bladr, dated Neptember V1, 1925, and
recomnmending that the ease be not reopenied.

14, .\ memorandum from Mr. Bright direeting the caxe be elosed on the haxis
of the Indtinl tux paid has ot been found in the file, bat copy of audit letter
of November G, 9285 canceling the assessment letter of January 20 120 i
attached.

These memorandn are lnrgely self-oxplanuntery,

I took my memorandum of May 10, 1923, and July 3, 123, (o My, Brizht in
person and was advised that the case wis clearly open, but that it would not
he the policy of the bureaw to colleet any additional tax.

In Mr. Bright's memorandum of September 11, 1923, vefercnce is made to Mr.
Donahoe, and it = stated that he admitted that the depletion dedaction of the
taxpryer eould be inercased through the allowance of o considerably gronter
Muveh 1 1913, value.  Mr. Donahoe told e immediately after the conterenee
with Mr. Bright that he bad never admitted such a possibility, whieh iz diveetly
in contiict with any evidence in the ease. My, Greentdge suggested and st
tempted to get Meo Donnhoe to garree to a SLO00,000 Mayeh 1, 1918, viulae betore
the conforence with My, Prighi,

Mr, Greenddge's memoratdmn of September 6, 1923, recommaending the ense-
he closed without addittonal tax was made with full knowledge of the case, us.
wits the memornndum of Mr, Bright nuder date of Septemboer 11 19230 My
Greenfdge recommended n tax rate lower than a 1551 per cent tux, which
would have yielded SISL8HE82 ndditionsl tax, with full knowledge of the faet
thad the avernge rate of taxes paid by comparative companies on the two
batsexn given in hisx memorandum of July 31, 10238, would be;

Percent

Ha ]

Wiest basis. oo 0 L L . e
S

Second bowis e e e
The three companies appearing on both Tist< and thely faxes in pereentage of

net income ave
Perant

S0, 6%
PRt H
334

Coinmet & Heeln Mindng Co - 0 0 0 0 0 . e
United Verde Copper Co S . pem e e
Minmi Copper Co o 0 0 L L. Lo e e i

Average.. . . e e e L . a0, 86

U believe the portion of the documentary record comprising the attached
exhibits fully substatithites my statement that both Mr. Greenddge and Mr.
Rright violated their oath of oflice in reconunending that this ease be setiled
on the baxis of the initinl tax perid, add further viotuted the fenst which was
conferred upon them by their superior officers in recommending the finnk
settloment of this ease by 1312 agreoment. Sach an ageeement hins been sighed
By the Secretary of the Treasary,

It i my recommendation that an attempt be made to cofleet the tax whicly
should have been paid by this taxpayer either by agreement with the taxpayer
or through legil proceedings on s charge of frand,  If neither of these alieran-
tives prevails, 1 reconimend that ne dizcovery value be allowed in later years,
ax the only basis advanceed by the taxpayer s a claim that the Mareh 1, 1903,
viilne was $4000, There Is only one ore body in the mine, the mine had ne
valve exeept as a container of ore, and no discovery ean be allowed for eon-
tinuations of known ore bodiex under any of the discovery regulations,

Jonn ALDEN GRIMES,
Chief Metals Valuation Seetion,

(Whereupon, at 12,15 o’clock p. m., the committee adjonrned until
to-morrow, Friday. March 27, 1925, at 10 o’clock a. m.)
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MONDAY, MARCK 30, 1925

UNITED STATES SENATE,
SeLeer Coamrrree 1o INveEsTiGaTE THE
Buresu or Inreexan Revescr,
Washington, D. (',

The committee met at 10 o'clock a. m.. pursuant to call of the
vhairman.

Present: Nenators Couzens (presiding). Ernst, and King,

Present also: Mr, 1. . Manson, counsel for the committee; Mr.
Raleigh €. Thomas, investigating engineer for the committee; and
My, George (. Box, chief auditor for the committee,

Present on behalf of the Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mre. A, W,
Gregy, special assistant to the Secretary of the Treasury; Mr, ¢, R.
Nush, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue; Mr, J. .
Bright, Deputy Commissioner of Tnternal Revenue; and Mr. A. R.
Marrs. attorney. office of the Solicitor, Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Mr, Maxsox. T desire to cail the attention of the committee to the
mvested capital determination of the Pressed Steel Car (lo. for the
year 1917,

I will suy at the outset that my criticism of this settlement is
directed more to the regulation than it is to this particular case. In
other words, I do not maintain that this settlement violates the regula-
tions of the bureaw. 1 do maintain that the regulation itself is un-
sound. and I propose to show this case as an illustration of the effect
of the bureau’s policy with respect fo permitting expired patents to
stand as an element of invested capital,

The history of the case in the bureau is set forth in the memo-
randum prepared by Mr. Box, which I offer to be incorporated in
the record at this point but which I will not take the time to read.

(The statement submitted by Mr. Manson in connection with this
case is as follows:)

In re: Pressed Stecl Car Co., Pitisburgh, Pa.

This taxpayer was incorporated under the laws of the State of New Jersey
January 12, 1899, with an authorized capital stock of $25,000,000. All of this
stock excepting $3,000, which was fssued to the incorporaters, was issued in
exchange for the assets of the Schoen Pressed Steel Co. and the Fox Pressed
Steel equipment Co.

3451
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The assets ‘are described as follows

e - ,
Original Medavi |
entry Affidavit « Revenue
Al‘\"'}""_“l,’;“l Jun. i3, | and belef | agent
1809 IR0, Sept. 18,  Sept, 23,
schedule 1171 B () 11
No, 3
Cash L. . e e e e e | SLB00,000 1 81,500,000 $1, 500, 000
PaloBbs. . . it it i e e e e ] ee e e HO,000,000 10,000, 000
Gond will. ... _ .. .0 Lo e e v e B000,000 5,000, 000
Unfilled orders and contracts... .. ... ooovin e vvfonn ciwe b eeen o L 2,050,000
Material and supplies... ... ... o . B P ROO 000 . . ... 850, (60
Resleatate. ... ... . ... . . oo aee .. 35, 000, (04 T Tt
ALLOther RSSeES .. . L e e eaca o] 20,000,000 1 22,850,000 F K, 50, 000
25, 000, 000 i 25,000,000 | 25, 000, 060

On March 17, 1919, an apprailsal of the assets was made by F, N, Hoffstot and
Robert A. Bole, the former of whom was elected prestdent in 1901 and has heen
ocenpying that position from that time through the year 1917,

On September 23, 1919, Field Agent D, J. Chapin reported the result of his
fnvestigations of the taxpayer for the years from 1909 to 1917, inclusive,
stating:

“1 made an effort to obtain the records kept by the Schoen Pressed Steel (Cave
Co. and the Fox Steel BEqguipment Co., both at the Pittsburgh and New York
offices of the Pressed Steel Car Co, and was jonformed that they no longer ex-
fsted : fucther, the New York Audit Co, made an audit of the Pressed Stoel Car
Co’s books during 1902, bt this, too, has been mislaid and can not be locatoed.
My reason for wanting these records was to obtaln the scetunl value of the
tangible assets turned in for stock, xo not being able to locate the records of the
merged companies 1 visited the tax oftice of Atlegheny County to see what the
assessed value of the property located in Aliegheny County was at the date of
the merger, and obtained the following data:

Schoen Pressed Steel Car Cols plant axsessed value:

Langd (supposed to he about #0 per cent of actual value) .o . __. 61, 165
Bulldings (supposed to he about 80 per cent of actual value) o 40, 50
Muehinery (supposed to be about 50 per cent of actual value) ... K 000
MOt o e e e ot e e e 160, 115
Fo  Steel Equipment Clo's plant assessed value:

Land (supposed to be about 80 per cent of actual value) . $28, 050
Builldings (supposed to be about 80 per cent of actual value) ______ 36, 000
Machinery (supposed to he about 50 per cent of actual value) ... 76, 800
TOEAY e e m o o 140, 880

The following data was obtained from tax statement prepared by R. J. Morri.
son, assessor subdivision, section 3, Jollet, I1l, which I found attached to
vouchers paying the 1899 taxes assessed against the property acquired by the
new company in the files of the company, and which was supposed to represent
actual values at this time; at least the statement states so:

8. part W. 679% ft. of 1. 28 46/100 ft., 10 lots, T 66/300 RCPES e e $3, 500
W. 6791 ft. of N. 685 ft. of E. 28 36/100 ft., 10 lots, 10 7/10 acres._... 176, 000
4 block Bruce Hopkins and Bacon subdivisions, see. 3. ______._ 8, 000
E. 148 ft.of N, 11 ft.,, lot 1, lot B blocks. o 100
EX. No, 48 ft. of N, 11 ft., lot 2, lots § blocks. o 1, 600

188, 100
M O Oy o e m s e = om0 s e e $0, 000
Inventory, materials and supplies. o e 15, 000

Bulldings evidently are not assessed in IHinois, ag no record of buildings
can be located on the statement. 2o I have arbitrarily placed a value of
$50,000 on the hu'ldings, which, if anything, is high, as subsequent sale shows.
A letter from R, H. Hackney, superintendent, dated Marelr 2, 1901, found
attached to one of the vouchers, states that $175.000 ix too high for the 10:%
acres,
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The agent stated that the records of the tunxpayer were very Inadeguate
and that he recelved very little assietance from the taxpayer, who elnimed it
was a physicat Impossibility to separate some of thelr accounts into proper
components.  The apent further states that during the year 1917 machinery
and equipinent were charged to expennes instead of to cap tal acecounts to
the extent of $10,000 per month at Allegheny and 15,600 per month at McKees
Rocks.  As a result of his examination he recommended un additional tax of
$63.888.70 for the yenr 17,

On May @, 1920, an A -2 letter appralsing an additional tax of $332.422.70
was matled to the taxpayer. The latter protested to the proposed assessment,
submitting briefs and contended that the respective valunt ong for the tangible
and intangihle ackets shown by the agent and used by the bhurean were
erronteonts and unfoundeld. (A copy of thix letter ean not be found with the
case.)

The taxpayer was requested to assign and prove specific values of the
varfous assets, but its representative siated that it wae des'red to inélade the
entire $25,000,000 in invested capital under the classifiention shown under
the heading. “Atldavit and brief, September 15, 1020, in tuble on pnge 1 of
this report. .

The iseuex raised by the taxpayer were: 1, The amount allowable as in-
vested eapital for the $10000,000 eapital stock fssued by the taxpayer in
exchange for patents on the reorganization Jauuary 12, 184, 2. Was the
Income Tax Unit In errer in eliminating from invested eapital the sum of
S2.650,000, representing antilled orders and contracts exchanged for stock in
the prr value of thai amount at the time of organization January 12, 18097

The taxpayer carvled upon its books the assets sequired n exchange foe
the 8250000900 par value capltal steck issaed upon orsunization items as
follows:

Cash e e e e e R1500,000
Matevial and sappies_ __.__. __ . N0, 000
AL OLEOE QSSOUS e e e e e e e e e e L2600, 000

IR e e e e e et oo 25, (00, 400

It continued to so earry them untii Mareh 8 1919, when the segregation was
made after the Inw had limited for the purpose of invested capital the amount
which it could claim as good will to 20 per ecent of the outstanding eapital
stock as at December 31, 1016, Thereafter the assets were elassified as follows:

LT 1 T SV $1. 500, 000
I S e e e e e et e 0t e b 0 —— 10, 000,
GOOA W e e e e e e e e = e st e s i e 5, 000, K0
Al OLher 880 e e e e e R, 00, 000

O ] e e et e e o e st e o b o e e e e o e 25, OH), (N}

The unit originally disallowed the $10,000,000 representing the value of the
patents from invested capital on the grounds that the patents had expired.
The taxpayer contended that new patents had been aequired from time to time
and that even though the life of a patent had expired there still existed the
patent value, and if it had not been written off as depreciation that value
conld be claimed as invested eapital. This contention was made &t a confer-
ence held March 2, 1921, (Exhibit A)) The conferces agreed to the tax-
payer’s contention, but pointed out that it was not a question of whether the
value of the patents was extinguished at the expiration of the patent, but @id
the patent value claimed exist at the date of requisition, 1899, stating further
that from the evidence submitted the value of patents as claimed has not been
saisfactorily estublished.

Under date of December 11, 1922, confereex of the bureaun—J. G. Bright,
C. J. Mattson, and J. II. Ryan-~decided that the evidence theretofore sub-
mitted was Insufficient to establish the value c¢laimed for patents, and requested
the taxpayer to submit evidence showing how the estimate referred to under
paragraph 6 of the conference report was arrived at. (See Exhibit B.)

A memorandum made by J. H. Rran, anditor fn the case, to reviewer, dated
January 7, 1923 (Exhibit C), refers to a conference tinder date of January 6,
1023. A report of this conference can not be found in the cave.

Under date of February 1, 1923, an A-2 letter was prepared proposing an
additional tax of $121,482.18. The taxpuyer protested pgainst the assessment
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of this additional tax, and as a result, under date of April 30, 1924, un over-
nssgessment of $123,186.93 was found for the year 1917, The wunit allocated
$2,650,000 of stock to the untilled orders and contracts and disallowed this
amount as an intangible acyuired for stock in excess of 20 per cent of the
capltal stock outstanding March 3, 1917, The company protested thix action
und clnimed that with the exception of the patents and good will, the sums of
$10,000,600 and $5,000.000, respectively, all the assets aequired should be
considered as tangible property. It was necessory in order to have the value
of the unfilled orders and contracts included in invested eapital to elassify
that ftem as o tangible asset hecause of the fact that the good-will value of
$5.000.000 was the Hmitation on aecconnt of whivh intangible nm«tu conld be
vitlned nnder the 1917 act,

The working papers of the audiior for the year 1917 slmwluu how the
amouat determined as Investod capltal was arvived at ave pot ineluded in
the record, but from the fact that the invested eapital for 1917 appears to
have been In excess of 37,000,640 it appears that the item of $2,650.000 for
untilled orders and contracte was allowed ux invested capltal, as well as
£10,000,000 representing the value of patents.”

.

Schedule No, 8,

IxHmT A
Magcu 2, 1921,
CONBGLIDATED RETURNS SUBDIVISION: - PAXPAYER'S CONFERENCE

Taxpayer: Pressed Steel Car Co.

Address: Pittsburgh, a, .

Represented by : . M. HHoffstott, president Pressod Steel Car Co.r W, AL
Chamberlain, auditor, PPressed Steel Car Co.r WO N Seifevt, attorney,
Pittsburgh, Pa.; Barey Mohun, attorney, Washington, 0, ¢,

Al

MATTER DIBCUSSKED
ROOK LORS ON PLANTS SOLD

Supplementing remarks made at conferonce Janunry 21, 1921, Mr., Hoffstott
and Mr. Mohun advised of their inability to submit actual figures as to the
various properties acquired, but claimed that the method pursued by the
burean was ¢ gross injustice, due to the faet that the assessed values were
used to allocate by propovtion that per cent or the himp-sum purchase of land
and bulldings as the nssessed value of each property bears to the total nssessed
value. Mr. Hoffstott advised that he would submift an affidavit as to the
relative value of each property. :

Decision reserved pending receipt of the tuldltimml information.

VALUATION OF PATENTS

Mu. Mobun stated that he was of the opinion that the committee on appenls
and review had ruled that though the life of a patent had expired, there still
existed & patent value which could be claimed as invested capital.

Taxpayer alvo claimed that the sworn affidavit under date of March 8, 1919,
a8 submitted by the prestdent of the corporation and substantiated by Mr.
W. H. Schoen, who was vice president of the corporation from s inception
to 1002, should be accepted as the real value of patents acquired In 1819, as
through error in accounting methods pursued they had not been regregated
but included uvnder the caption * Good will” and that therefere the fompany
should not he penatlzed for such an error.

CONCLUSION

Mr. Mohun's contention regarding opinion of committee on appeals and
review as to the value of expired patent rights was held to be as contended ;
that is, that value of patents which were never depreclated could be claimed
to exist even after expiration of limitation of patent rights.

However, it is not the point as to the question whether value of patents Is
extinguished at expiration of patent-right limitation, but did the patent value
claimed exist at the date of acquisition.
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From the evidence submitted, the vaiue of patents as claimed has not been
satisfactorily established. Patents and good wiil were acquired in 1889 and
entered upon the books of the corporation under the caption * Good will,” for
which $15,900,000 of stock was {ssued. No segregation was made until March
8, 1918, and then only after department had lHinited for purposes of invested
capitai, sald good will to 20 per cent of the outstanding capital stock as at
Devember 31, 1916, in pursuance of article 57, regulations 41.

The basis on which taxpayer segregated patents and good will was merely
on an appralsal of companies a8 at the date of acquisition of 1809, which
stated: “All the specially constructed machinery * * ¢ dles; 1488 letter
patents * * % grders aggregating about $15,000,000: stock of material;
cash,” The company paid for such mixed assets 320,000,000, of which
$5,000,000 was consldered ax paid for tangible assets,

Considering that practically ne change in actual ownership took place, the
new covporation being contrelied more than 99 per cent by the members of the
partnership purchased and in the same proportion, and also consldering the
fact that the patents at the time of purchase were of problematic value and
that cogoizance must be taken of orders on hand, it is deemed that an arbi-
trary value as claimed by the taxpayer, after more than 20 years from the
date of purchase, is contrary to the spirit of the law, and, if accepted, would
give rise to unending claims through appraisals. '

In view of the many peculiar circumstances and conditions in this case, it i
recommended that it be considered by section 210,

Interviewed by—

C. T. HaIngs,
Consulting Stafl.

Mr. Arepr,
Review Division,
J. L. Caln,
Audit Section 4.

Wa, P. Binp,
Chief, Consolidated Returns Subdivision.

MsrcH 2, 1021,

Examsirt B
DeceMBER 11, 1022,

CONSOLIDATED RETURNS SUBDIVISIUN--TAXPAYER'S CONFERENCE

Taxpayer: Pressed Steel Car Co,

Address: Pittsbnuregh, Pa.

Represented by: F. N. Hoffstot, president; W. H. Chamberlain, comptroller;
W. H. Selfert, attorney; 0. G. Rlichter, accountant; N. C. Dornhoff, ac-
countant.

Credentials.

Year involved: 1917,

Matter presented: Brief. Taxpayer's brief, sworn to December 8, 1922, formed
the basis for discussion and decision. Bureau letter dated QOctober 27, 1922,

1. Inventory correction: Accountants employed by the taxpayer have ex-
amined the records for the taxable year 1917 and submit a statement showing
that the inventories of December 31, 1916, and December 31, 1917, were incor-
rect for the reason that the indireet or manufacturing expense applicable to
the work in process had not heen considered. Accountants have determined
the amount of this expense applicable to each of the inventories and have
alloesfed these amounts upon the basis of direey labor Included in the work in
process of inventory. These statements indicate that the Inventory of Decem-
ber 31, 1918, was understated $142,873.86 and that of December 31, 1917, was
understated $504,.367.76. It was stated in conference that amended returns
for 1916 and 1917 showing these corrections In the inventories have been flled.

Decision: Contention is allowed. Amended returns should he located.

2. Converting billets into plates: The evidence submitted shows that thir Is
an intercompany item which was omitted from consolidated income,

Decision: Correction accepted.

3. Depreciation: Taxpayer contends that the unit's reduction of invested
capital in the sum of $3,120.040.23, representing alieged insufficient depreciation

YN P—-25—pr 1T—-10 \
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for prior years, 18 in error and submits evidence showing that in addiilon to
depreciation charged off in the amount of $2,043,632.63 repairs amounting to
more than $6,000,000 have been charged to expense. It is contended that the
depreciution actually credited to the asset accounts, which approximates 20
per cent, is sufticient to care for the depreciation actually acerued.

Decision: Taxpayer was requested to submit evidence showing the natore
of the various classes of repairs charged to expense 8o that the unit would be
able to determine whether such items represented incidentsi repairs, replace-
ments, and renewals or additions and improvements. Unless this information
indicates some extraordinary condition with reference to these repairs, tax-
payer's contention should be aliowed.

4. Leaseholds: The unit has disallowed as invested capital- an item of
500,000, representing ¢ leases, agreements, contrncts, assignmments, ete,” which
was gequired by the Western Steel Car & Foundry Co. in 1902, The evidence
submitted shows that this asset was acquired by the subsidiary company for
$600,000 par value of ity stock. The lease acquired was a 1-yenr lease which
contiined a clauxe granting the lessee the option of purchase, At about the
time that the lease expired lesvee exercised this option and acquired the assets
under lease. Taxpayer's cluim i3 that the cost of the lease should not he
prorated over the life of said lease for the remson that this option clanse wag
the most valuable feature of the entire transaction.

Decision: Graunting that the value of the leaxehold, including the agreements,
contracts, assignments, and option, were fully worth the $500,000 paid therefor
at the time the leasehold was acquired, it would be Inconsistent to assume that
after the lease had expired, agreements fulfitled, contracts executed, and as-
signments made that the option remaining would represent 100 per cent of the
cost vilue., The fact that various agreements, contracts, ete., did have a value
is not disputed, which would indicate the necessity of establishing some value
less than 100 per cent to represent the value remaining due to the option
clause. Any reasonable value which can be established by the taxpayer should
be accepted.

5. Excessive interest for 1917: The evidence submitted shows that the unit’s
computation of the amount of average indebtedness to be restored to invested
capital on account of unallowable interest paid is in error,

Declsion: Correctlon accepted.

6. Patents and good will: The unit valued the assets paid in for steck upon
the basis of the average market quotations at about the time of the reorgani-
zation. As the result of this computation, the nnit allowed as intangible
values $10,498,750, which in turn was divided into £10,000,000 for patents and
$403,750 for good will, Taxpayer coutends that market guotations at about
this time did not indicate the actunl values of the assets,  In support of this

contention tuxpayer eomputes the value of intungibles upon the basis of earn-
ings for the five years subsequent to reorganization,

In this computation the taxpayer Includes with the average ot tangible
assets the item of patents and compates the value of good will upon the basis
of N and 15 per cent.  Taxpayer's computatien would indicate a value of
$T.600,251.11. The inclusion of the patents with the net taungible assets is
clearly an crror, but e¢ven with the correetion of this and other minor errops it
would appesr that the value shown by subsequent carnings was In excess of
that indieated by the stock guotations, Taxpayer also submits that at the time
of organization competent judges estimated that future earnings would approxi-
mate $2,650,000 annually and that the results of subsequent operations justified
this «stlmate. .

Decision: Taxpayer was requested to submit evidence showing how the esti-
mate referved to was arrived at and any other pertinent detafls in regard to
same.  Alco, some of the minor adjustment: made In computation of average
earnings and net tangible assets require further substantintion.

7. Proration of 1916 Income tax: Taxpayer contends that the 1916 income
tax shouid be prorated from the date due and payable, and not from the begin-
aing of the taxable year.

Decision: Contention dended, but taxpayer was advised that the accerual of
the 10168 tax for 1916 income-tax purposes would be made. Taxpayer agrees
to this adjustment.

8. Reserve for dividends: Evidence submitted shows that the unit failed to
inclwde in invested capital the reserve for dividends as at January 1, 1017,

Decisfon: Contention allowed.
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0. Capital chirges disallowed from income: Evidence submitted shows that
these ftems have not been restored to luvested capital.

Decision: Contention allowed,

10, Special commissfons: Taxpayer's brief requests the restoration to in-
vested capital of an item of $1,243,262.48, reprosenting what I8 termed special
commissions patd. It i stated that these payments were mide from 1899 to
1046, Inclusive, and were * for the purpose of having the railroad companies
adopt the pressed steel cars manufactured by this company to replace the
wooden ears then being used”  No further deseription of the nature of these
ftems is contained In the brief, but it wax stated in conference that these
wmounts represented special puyments made to various officers and employees
of railroad companies for the purpose of eliminating any active opposition of
such officials or employee to the adopting of this taxpayer's produet,

Deciston: While these expenses arve of an extraordinary nature, they clearly
would not be proper capital ebarges, but would be in the nature of charges
aupdnst current operationps.  Contention denied,

11. Bonus on contract : Taxpayer's brief states that during the fiest 10 days
of thisx corporation’s existence $950,000 was pald *in counection with the
ostublishment of this compuny’s businese” No farther explanation as to the
nature of this item i< contained in the brief, but it was stuted in conference
that an amount of 5100000 a year was required to be pald on a contract which
covered a purchase of materials, It was also stated that these amounts were
paid with the understanding that the Individual receiving sueh pryments would
refrain from entering into a competitive business,

Decikion: Insmueh as the paviments on this contraet were on the annual
mis and dependent upon the actions of the recipient, they were clearly
charges against cuarrent operations and did pot even have the nature of a
deferred c¢harge. Content’on denfed.

12, Organ‘zation expenses: Aeecountant's investigation showed that organi-
zation expenses of ST536.50 had beep charged to expense and not eapitalized.

Declsion: Amount sxhould be added to invested eapital,

Summary of decizions: Inasmuch as evidence submitted under po'nis 3, 4,
and 6 is incomplete, taxpayer was granted 15 days in which to submit further
data,

Fifth {-onfm'on‘oo.

ddditional information requirved.

Interviewed by---

J. G. Brienar,
Axeistant Chief.
. J. Marrsoy,
Canferee Teehnical Niaff,
J. . Rvaxn,
: Awrditor Audit Scction,

Decomber 11, 1022,

Wi, . Bign.
Chief Conxolidated Returas Subdivision.

Eximit ¢

AUBITOR'S BTATEMENT
Jaxvary 9, 1983,
REviewer: The taxpayer having taken exeeption to A 2 letter referred to in
auditor's memorandmn of October 5, 1922, filed another brief and held & con-
ference December 11 and 12, 1922, and also Janunary 5, 1923,
Mr. Bright, Mr. Mattson, and the auditor attended this conference,
The cuse has been closed in accorduuce with allowance made at the con-
ference.
All differences of opiuion should be referrved to Mr. Bright and Mr. Mattson
and not the auditor.
J. H. Ryan,

The pertinent facts, so far as they relate to the matter that I wish
to discuss, are as follows:
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The taxpayer was organized in 1899 as the result of a consolida-
tion of two car companies. One was the Schoen Pressed Steel Co.
and the other was the Fox Pressed Steel Equipment Co.

The Cuairman. Where were they l()cate((]l ?

Mr. Manson. I do not think the Fox Co., which was an English
company, had a plant in this country. The Schoen Co. had a plant
at McKees Rocks and a plant in Illinois. There was some litigation
over patents between these two companies. The steel car had just
been introduced and had become popular. It was manifest that if
this litigation between the two companies over patents could be over-
come the business would be a very profitable one.

The two companies were merged, and this company was organized
under the laws of New Jersey, with a capital of 225,000,000, It was
all exchanged for properties of the old companies and $1,500,000 of
stock was sold for working capital. There is included in the prop-
erty transfer of patents, which are accepted by both the taxpayer
and the bureau at a valuation of $10,000,000, and good will, accepted
by both the taxpayer and the bureau, at a valuation of $5,000,000.
In other words, out of the $25000,000 capital $10,000,000 is repre-
sented by patents and $5,000,000 is represented by good will.  This
makles (SOl per cent of the original capital represented by:patents and

ood will.
) All of the patents which were in force in 1899 had expived by 1917.
A patent only has a life of 17 years,

The Cuaigmax. Had there been any renc vas or attempted
renewals?

Mr. Maxsox. There had been many new patents taken out since
the company was organized in 1899, but the old patents—that is, the

atents which were included in the original capitalization of
$£10,000,000—had expired prior to 1917,

There is allowed as part of invested capital a surplus of approxi-
mately $12.000,000—something in excess of $12.000,000—the ecapital
of the company being $25.000,000 and the total invested capital being
something in excess of $37,000,000.

My position is that a patent, like a lease, is subject to deprecia-
tion, that that depreciation accrues from year to vear, and when the
patent expires as an element of property value the patent is gone.
and the property value incident to the patent itself has disappeared.

I take the position that for the purpose of determining whether
there is a surplus which may be ac’lded to the original capital, for
the pnrpose of determining invested capital, it is necessary to charge
off aull depreciation which has accrued before you can determine
whether or not there is a surplus.

This case does not raise the question of whether the charging off
of these patents would deplete the capital. The amount of surplus
allowed here is in excess of the valuation at which these expired pat-
ents were included in the invested capital. For that reason the case
merely presents the question as to whether, for the purpose of de-
termining whether there is a surplus, it is necessary to charge off
depreciation which has acerued upon patents which have expired.

The Cuamman, Have you any data there as to the amocunt of
taxes involved, or is that in the statement which you have introduced
in the record?
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Mr. Manson. That is in a statement which I have introduced in
the record?

The contention of the company, the taxpayer in this case, was that
inasmuch as this company had in subsequent years tauken out new
patents upon improvements made upon the basic patents its patent
account was as strong in 1917 as it was when these patents were
taken out by the company in 1899. For that reason it contended that
inasmuch as it had as much patent value, or us much value repre-
sented by patents in 1917 as it had in 1899, therefore the original
patents, which had expired and as agninst which capital amounting
to $10,000,000 had been issued, need not be depleted.

The Crammax. At this point, can counsel say how he would fix
the value of these subsequent patents?

Mr. Manson. I am coming to that.

The view tuken by the committee on appeals and review and re-
flected in the regulations is this: That while the patent itcelf expires,
{et, during the time that the patent is in force, a manufacturer is
wilding up a demand for parts, he is taking ont new patents, and
making new and improved machines, and that in that way the origi-
nal patent values becomes merged, or may become merged, in good
will.

The view taken by the vegulations is that the patent during ihe
period that it is running gradually becomes converted into good will,
aud that, for that reason, it is not necessary to depieciate an expired
patent for the purpose of determining invested capital.

The Cramyaxn. Whose contenticn is that, did you say?

Mr. Ma~sox, That is a summary statement of the regulations on
the subject. I will read those regulations-—-—

Senator Kive, You mean the regulations of the bureaun?

Mr. Manson. Yes; the regulations of the bureau.

Senator King. And that would be the view of the taxpayer, I as-
sume.

Mr. Manson, Well, the taxpayer took a little different angle in this
case. The taxpayer took the position that because it had been taking
out succeeding patents, its patent values in 1917 were as great as its
patent values in 1899, and that for that reason there was no justifi-
cation for depreciating the patent account.

The Cnamxyman. In other words, they did mot attempt, then, to
place any value on the subsequent patents; I mean by individual
patents ?

Mr. Maxso~, No.

The Cuaigymax. They just lumped them?

Mr. Maxsox. They just lumped them, and they say, * We have as
much value here.” The language of the brief is that * the patent ac-
count was as strong in 1917 as it was in 1899.” )

Senator Kive. Tf you were to get a patent for an engine, and be-
fore your patent expired, there are some little :mprovements upon
the stop cock or some other device in connection with it, you would
attribute to those little devices which you have patented in subse-
quent years the same value that Qyou did to the original patent which
was the basis of the corporation

Mr. Maxson. That is the view taken by the taxpayer.

The theory of the regulation is that the patent becomes converted
by the time 1t expires into good will.
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The CrajgMan, And they capitalize this good will?

Mr. MaxsoN. And they capitalize it; yes.

The CuamymaN. The rulings of the bureau authorize the capitali-
zation of good will,

Mr. Manson. The rulings of the bureau do not vequire the depreci-
ation of tle patent during the process of its expiration, with th-
restlt, of course, that when the patent has expired, if it was capital-
ized in the fivst instance, it is still capitalized.

The Cuamyax, Right there 1 would like to ask Mr. Gregg if he
knows whether or not the burean does permit the capitalization of
good will? ‘

Mur. Grrege. The law specifically permits it.

Mr. Mansos. 1L am coming to that. The law specifically provides
for that. .

The Cuairman. Under any and all circumstances?

Mur. Manson. No. Here is the provision of the 1917 act. I think
I can state it move briefly than by reading it, but it is section 207,
and T a~% to have section 207 incorporated in the record at this point:

SEC. 207, That as used in this title, the term *invested capital ™ for any
year means the avernge invested capital for the year, as defined and limited
in thix title, averaged monthly, .

As used in this title *invested eapital ” does not iselude stocks, bonds (other
than obligntions of the United States), or other assets, the income from which
i not subjeet to the tax impoxed by thix title nor money or other property
borrowed, und means, subject to the above limitations:

(n) In the case of a corporation or parinership: (1) Actual cash paid in;
(2) the actual cash value of tangible property paid b, other than caxh, for
stock or shares in such corporation or partnership. at the time of such puy-
ment (but in ease such tangible property was paid in prior to January first,
nineteen hundred and fourteen, actoal cash value of such property as of
Januury first, nincteen hundred and fourteen, but in no ease to exceed the
par value of the original stock or shaves specifienlly Issued therclor) : and (3)
maid-in or earned surplus and undivided profits wsed ov employed in the
business, exclusive of undivided profits enrned during the taxable vear:
Provided, That (a) the actual cash value of patents and copyrights paid In
for stock or shares in such corporation or partnership, at the time of such
payments, shall be included as Invested eapital, but not to exceed the par
watue of such stock or shares at the time of such payment: and (b) the good
will, trade-marks, trade brands, the franchise of a corporation or partnership,
or other intangible property, shall be included as invested caphual if the cor-
poration or partnership made payment bona fide therefor, specifically as such
in ¢ash or tangible property, the value of such good will, trade-mark, trade
bragd, fronchise or intangible property. not to exceed the actual cash or
actual cash value of the tangible property paid therefor, at the time of such
payment : but good will, trade-marks, trade brands, franchise of a corporation
or pavinership, or other intangible property, hona flle purchased, prior to
March third, nineteen hundred and seventeen, for and with interests or shares
in & partnership or for and with shares in the capltal stock of a corporation
(Issued prior to March third, nineteen hundred and seventeen) in an amount
not to exceed, on March third, nineteen hundred and seventeen, twenty per
centum of the total interests or shares in the partnership or of the total
shares of the capital stock of the corperation, shall be Included In invested
capital at a value not to exceed the actual cash value at the time of such
purchase, and in case of 1ssue of stock therefor, not to exceed the par value of
such stock.

(b) In the case of an individual, (1) actual cash paid into the trade or
business, and (2) the actual cash value of tangible property paid into the trade
or business, other than cash, at the tlme of such payment (but in case such
tangible property was paid in prior to January first, nineteen hundred and
fourteen, the actual cash value of such property as of January first, ninteen
hundred and fourteen}, and (3) the actual cash value of patents, copyrights,
good will, trade-marks, trade brands, franchises, or other Intangible property
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pald Into the trade or business at the time of such payment, if payment was
made therefor specificully as such in cash or tangible property, not to exceed
the actual cash or actual cash value of the tangible properiy bona fide paid
therefor at the time of such payment,

In the case of a forelgn corporation or partuership or a nonresident allen
individual the term *invested capital " means that proportion of the entire
invested capital, as defined and Hmited in this title, which the net income from
sources within the United States bears to the entive net income,

Under the 1917 law patents could be capitalized for the actual cost
of the patent. If stock was issued for the patent, the value of the
patent could be capitalized.

The Ciramrman. Let me ask you this question at this point; Sup-

osing a going concern: takes out one of these subsequent patents, as
it did in this particular case, and the patent costs them $200, for
(lexar:q)le. Is lf{mt all that is permitted to be capitalized under the

aw?

Mr, Manson. Under the luw that is all.

The Cuamymax. That is rather a ridiculous amount. is it not?

Mr. Maxson. Under the law a patent taken out by the company,
which might have a value of a million dollars, can only be capitalized
for the fees paid to the department, for the attorneys’ fees incident to
the preparation of it, and, I assume, the cost, if there was a labora-
tory maintained for the purpose of developing puatents, the eost of
developing and experimenting could be capitalized as a part of the
cost of that patent, but that is all that could be capitalized. 1In
other words, they can not capitalize the value of a new patent under
the law. .

Under the 1917 act a patent was considered as a tangible by the act
itself. The law limited the capitalization of intangibles to 20 per
cent of the amount of the outstanding capital in 1917, In other
words, not over 20 per cent of the outstanding capital in 1917 could
be ro}wvsmted by intangibles, and inclided under the head of in-
tangibles in the law is good will.  That is the 1917 act.

In 1918, however, the percentage of intangibles which may be
capitalized was increased from 20 per cent, as it was in 1917, to 25
per cent in 1918; but patents under the 1918 act are classed as in-
tangibles instead of tangibles.

Now, applying that situation to this case

The Cramyan. What particular year are yvou dealing with now?

Mr. Mansox. I am dealing with 1917.

This company purchased $5,000,000 which is classified as good
will. It is earrying that $5,000,000 in good will, which is the maxi-
mum amount of good will or intangibles that this company is per-
mitted to carry into its 1917 invested capital.

The Crnamsran. Because that is 20 per cent of the $25.000,000¢

Mr. Manson. Of the $25,000,000 outstanding capital.

Senator Kine. What were the tangible assets of the corporation?

Mr. Manson. The tangible assets of the corporation under the
1917 act were $10,000,000 patents and $10,000,000 of other assets, T
have not attempted to ascertain whuat those other assets were, be-
cause the only question that I am raising here is the propriety of
including the $10,000,000 of patents in the 1917 valuation, which
have expired ; that is, including the expired patents under the value
of $10,000,000 ir 1917 invested capital of this company.
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If we take the taxpayer’s position that its patent account is “as
strong,” to use the language of the brief, “ in 1917 as it was in 1899,”
and for that reason it is entitled to carry this capitalization of $10,-
000,000 as patents; that is. permitting the taxpayer to take invested
capital upon 8 basis of value rather than upon the basis of cost. In
other words, there is no contention in this case, and there is not a
word of evidence in the record that the patents taken out subsequent
to 1899 cost anywhere near $10,000.000. T do not think that anybody
would seriously contend that they did.

The Cramman. Is there anything in the record to show what they
did cost ?

r. MansoN. Noj there is nothing in the record to show what they
did cost?
) 'l?h?e Cuairman, The taxpayer never made any claim upon that
asis

Mr. Maxson. The taxpayer makes no claim upon the cost or tie
patents taken out subsequent to 1899.

I merely wish to call attention to the fact that if the taxpaye-’s
contention is sustained, that if it is entitled to carry into invested
capital $10,000,000 as patent< upon the theory that that is due to the
new patents it has taken out, it must be based upon the value of the
patents and not upon the cost of the patents. The bureau has in its
regulations specifically provided for the depreciation of patents by
permitting a one-seventeenth of the cost of a patent purchased, or
the cost of a patent taken out, to be depreciated each year during the
time that that patent runs. Now, while it permits a patent to be
depreciated—and, in my opinion, that is done in recognition of sound
accounting principles—while it permits a patent to be depreciated,
it does not require & patent to be depreciated. Tt leaves it optional
with the taxpayer as to whether or not he will depreciate the patent,
and for the purpose of determining invested capital, if the taxpayer
has not depreciated the patent, the regulation permits the carrying
of the full cost of the patent into invested capital.

Assuminﬁthut $10,000,000 was a ;)mpor value-——

Senator Kine, For those patents

Mr. Manson. For those patents, and was actually paid, and the
capital of the company as a result thereof is $25,000,000. 1 do not
maintain that if the company did not earn enough to take its depre-
ciation upon those patents its actual capital should be reduced for the
purpose of determining invested capital, but I do maintain that
where the company did earn enough—as they did in’ this case, be-
cause the record in this case shows that during this period of time
they had distributed dividends amounting to approximately $26,-
000,000 and they are allowed a surplus of $12,000,000-—before you
can ascertain a surplus for purposes of invested capital you must
charge off all of the depreciation which you could properly take, if
you elected to take it, otherwise you would have this situation: Let
us apply this now to any form of tangible property. ILet us assume
that you have a manufacturing plant which cost you $200,000. You
conduct a profitable manufacturing business. You do not charge
on your books any depreciation. The result is that your surplus,
which is accruing from year to year, is in excess of your actual sur-
plus by the amount of (f;preciation which has actually accrued. but
which you have not charged off. When you reach the time when the
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lant crambles to the dust, a new plant has taken its place which has
en built ont of surplus.

You can readily see that under those conditions, while you have not
increased your invested capital at all, you have an apparent invested
capital. If you are to permit a surplus, which when it was reduced
by depreciation was allowed to stand, you have an invested capital
of twice your actual invested capital, and I take the position that
when this law permitted surplus and undivided profits to be included
in invested capital the law necessarily contemplated a proper surplus
and a proper invested capital arrived at by the application of proper
accounting principles. I maintain that that is necessarily implied in
the law, and that before you can arrive at a proper surplus and a
proper amount of undivided profits you must firat take your depre-
ciation upon your tangible property, upon any leases you may have
if they have been capitalized,and upon any ores that you may have
if they have been depleted, and upon any patents thet you have if
they have expired.

Let us now take the view of the bureau as expressed in its regula-
tions that this patent value becomes gradually converted into good
will.

What does that mean? Let us assume that that is what happened
in this case, that the $10,000,000 of patent value which existed in
1899 gradually became converted to $10,000,000 of good will. You
have $3,000,000 worth of good will purchased. You huve $10,000,000
worth of good will which had avisen out of the conversion of pat-
ents into good will. You have $15,000,000 worth of good will which
you are attempting to capitalize upon the basis of $25,000,000 out-
standing capital stock. In other words, you have 60 per cent instead
of 20 per cent, which the law recognizes as being valid.

The Cuamsaxn. In other words, in this case, then, they have not
followed the law.

Mr. Manson, I maintain that the failure to depreciate those pat-
ents results in a failure to follow the law.

The Cuamrmax. But they do follow the ryulations?

Mr. Maxsox. They do follow the regulations.

The Cuammax., And your contention is that the regulations are
not in accordance with the law?

Mr. Maxsox. My contention is that the regulation in that par-
ticular is not in accordance with the law.

[ maintain that the law itself, as well as the regulations, draws a
very clear distinction between good will and patents.

The 1917 act specifically declares good will to be an intangible
asset, the amount of which is limited to 20 per cent. 'That same act
permits patents to be included at cost, regardless of their value in
relation to the capital. However sound or unsound that distinction
may be, it is written into the law, and that distinction must be rec-
ognized at all times, and to permit the theory of converting a patent
value into a good-will value is ignoring the very distinction that the
law sets up here, and it is permitting the capitalization of good will
in an amount three times the amount that the law permits.

Furthermore it. does this: Here they purchased good will at a
value of $3.000,000. To recognize good will at a value of $15.000.000
in 1917 is recognizing an appreciation in the value of the good will.
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The Supreme Court of the United States in the case of the La
Belle Iron Works ». United States (266 U. 8. 377) specifically de-
clared that for invested capital purposes cost only can be considered
and that appreciation can not be considered.

The bureau in its own determinations has several times determined
that any appreciation in the value of good will can not be added to
the value of invested capital. That has been held in A. R. R. 337,
Cumulative Bulletin 3, page 349, and A. R. R. 413, Cumulative
Bulletin 4, page 3481.

It is established that no appreciation in the value of capital assets
can be included in the 1917 value for invested capital purposes, and
that applies to good will as well as to anything else: but to permit
this theory to stand, that the value of a patent when it expires is
converted into good will, is to recognize an appreciation in the value
of good will which is forbidden by this decision of the Supreme
Court of the United States, as well as by the rulings of the bureau
itself upon that specific question,

I maintain that good will and patent value are distinet not only
un;ller this law, but they are distinct in theory and in principle as
well.

For instance, good will is something which arises out of the suc.
cessful proseention of a business, regardless of whether that business
is the manufacture of a patented or an unpatented article,

If T have a reputation for turning out a reliable article, for mak:
ing prompt deliveries, for amicably settling such disputes as may
arise; if I have u good selling organization and ample capital: in
other words, if T satisfy my customers, and ¥ bring my wares to the
doors of many people in such a way as to establish a tendency on
their part to come back to me and to send their friends to me to buy
the article that I manufacture, T am creating good will. That good
will is not dependent upon a patent. The article I manufacture may
be patentable. It may be covered by a patent. T might so manu-
facture that article that nobody will buy it. T may be nnreliable; I
may turn out an article that is defective: I may argue with my cus-
tomers and refuse to make good on defective goods that T have sold ;
and when my patent expires, my basic patent, somebody else can take
up that article and manufacture it, and do so much better than I do
with it that they immediately establish a very valuable good will in
conneétion with it, while my business management has heen such
that I have no geod will at all.

The Caamman. And your patent has thercfore turned out te he
valueless.

Mr. Manson. And the patent has therefore turned out to be value-
less.

I take the position that good will is something which grows out
of proper management; it grows out of adequate capital; it grows
out of good business judgment ; it grows ont of advertising; it grows
out of reputation for reliability; and the good will which arises out
of the manufacture of a patented article is no different whatever
from the good will which grows out of, we will say, the manufacture
of soap or cloth or many other things which are not patentable at all.
In boé)n instances, the good will has the same source, namely, in good
business judgment and in a reputation for honesty. In neither in-
stance is the good will due to the process. In neither instance 1s it
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due to the patent, und it constitutes no part of the patent, and there
is no such thing as the conversion of o patent into good will.

The best test of that is this: You may, during the life of a basic
patent, make improvements which you patent, and I may make im-
provements upon your basic patent which are better than yours,

Take a well-known automobile. T sce advertised frequently in the
papers different attachments to put onto a Ford car that are not
made by the Ford Co. ut all.

I recoliect about 15 years ago trying a case in Milwaukee, where |
was representing the Ford Co. 1 brought an action to restrain a
dealer from selling certain parts which he advertised under a sign,
“Ford parts for sale” The whole theory of that action was not
that he was infringing upon the patents, because he was infringing
upon no patent, but he was infringing upon the good will of the Ford
Co., under the principle that the law knows as uafair competition.
He was holding himself out in such a way as to lead the public to
believe that he was supplying something that was made by the Ford
Co., and we suceeeded in restraining him from continuing to do busi-
ness in such o way as to lead the people to believe that he was sup-
plying something that the Ford Co. was manufacturing,

I would suy that that was not a case of an infringement upon a
patent, but it was something that was entively different—an in-
fringement upon the Ford good will, which under the unfair com-
petition Jaw any manufacturer has a right to protect: and so L say
that good will is something that grows out of successful business
management. It can exist with a patent or it can exist inde{mndcnt
of a patent, and where a thing 1s patented and good will srises,
that good will is no more attributable to the patent than it would be
in a case where there was no patent at all.

The b st test of whether there is any value in this patent is this:
Take, for instance, a manufacturer before a patent expires, and
suppose the manufacturer assigns that patent to some one else, or
ASSLENS SONIC ONe a ri%ht; to manufacture under that patent. What
would the fellow take? If he had & license to manufucture under a
patent which did not prevent the original manufacturer from con-
tinuing his business, could it be maintained that the purchaser of
that license would take any of the good will which had been built up
by establishing a chain of satisfied customers? Could it be main-
tained, for instance, that when that man bought a license to manu-
facture under that patent, that would deprive the original owner
of that patent of a great chain of agencies that he had built up
throughout the United Sates?

The good will of a company consists in its success in estublishing
good agencies. There may be in a community a dozen men who
would like to deal in a certain particular thing, but there is one of
them who is a better man than the others, whose reputation for
honesty is good, who is a good salesman, and getting hold of such
men, getting them to handle your goods, is one of the most impor-
tant elements of good will.

Hﬁs that anything to do with the patent? Absclutely nothing
at all.

The Cuairman. I would like to ask counsel how he discriminates
between the two cases such as these?



8486 INVESTIGATION OF BURFEAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE ‘

An inventor gets a patent, a basic patent, on a completed article,

and he thereby gets a monopoly-—=

Mr. MansoN. Yes.

The CHairMAN (continuing). 'This article is an article which the
community sorely needs or desires. During the 17 years he may go
along in desultory manner, mistreating his customers and failing to
make good on defective parts, and yet in spite of all of those things
he has a successful business because of the monopoly——-

Mr. MansoNn. Yes.

The Cuamman (continuing). At the end of the 17 years he has
established agencies throughout the country. He has built up a big
sellinkr agency. He has sufficient capital. Then at the end of the 17
years he certainly has a much greater good wiil than somebody who
starts the day after the 17-year period has expired !

Mr, Manson. Oh, yes; that is certain.’

The Crairman. How would you capitalize the good will at the
end of the 17-year period ¢

Mr. MansoN. Under this law you ean not capitalize it.

The Craigman. That is the law ¢

Mr. Maxsox. That is the law. You must only capitalize in the
shape of good will what you purchased in the shape of good will.
You can not capitalize to exceed 20 per cent of your outstanding
capital stock.

n this case they started with a full amount of good will pur-
chased—$5,000,000—and that was the full amount of good will
which they could carry into invested capital.

The Cuairman. I understand that, but I was just wondering.
though, if during the continuance of the life of the hypothetical case
that I have just stated there was issued stock in excess of the actual
value of the tangibles, and assuming, for instance, that they had
issued $10,000,000 of stock on a capitalization originally of $10,-
000,000, then, under the law, if that $10,000,000 was in excess of the
tangible assets, only $20,000,000 could be capitalized?

Mr. Manson. You can capitalize good will to the extent of 20 per
cent of the stock.

The Cuamrman. Yes; that is what I mean.

Mr. Manson. Yes.

The CrarMaN. I am assuming in this hypothetical case that they
issue $10,000,000 of stock in excess of the tangible assets, then when
the bureau comes to value that $10,000,000 which is not represented
by any tangible assets they, under the law, are permitted to capitalize
© 20 per cent of it?

Mr. Manson. Noj not 20 per cent of the $10,000000. If the tan-
gible assets amounted to $40,000,000—-

The Crarman. Well, I am not talking about that. I am talking
about a $10,000,000 corporation with $10,000,000 assets and $10.-
000,000 stock for tangibles. They have $20,000,000, $10.000,000 of
which is issued either for patents or for good will. or whatever yon
call it, and then the bureau comes along and permits the recognition
of that $10,000,000 which they have issued in stock in excess of the
tangible assets.

Mr, Manson. Yes,

The Crairman. Do you understand the law to imply that only
20 per cent of that might be capitalized in fixing capital investment?
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Mr. Mansox. Yes: only 20 per cent.

The Caamman. That is what I want to know.

Mr. Gregs. On that point Mr. Menson has stated 20 per cent only
of the stock, not the value of the good will but the par value of the
stock.

The Crrairman. Yes; I understand that.

Mr. Maxsox. If it is $20,000,000, for instance, then $4.000,000
could be capitalized to cover good will.

Mr. Grece. Yes.

The Cuammax. T would like to ask Mr. Gregg if he thinks, in
view of this situation-—and 1 think, perhaps, he is ready to answer it
now—the regulations ought to be revised.

Mr. Greee. I am just as ready to answer now as I ever will be,
Mr. Chairraan.

Jounsel for the committee has raised one of the most interesting
and one of the most difticult points in the compntation of invested
capital, and without saying that I agree with him, there is a good
deal in the position that he takes.

The situation is this: Mr. Manson explained it very thoroughly.
but T would like to go over it briefly again.

Stating it generally the statute includes in invested capital prop-
erty paid in for stock, and there is no need at this time of getting
into the question of limitation on intangibles—property ]mi(f in on
stock am? earned surplus, The statute just says “earned surplus”
and undivided profits, or something of that sort. The statute gives
no definition of the term. It was up to the department to find ont
what constitutes * earned surplus.”

We have taken the position consistently that depreciation must be
recognized in computing this earned surplus, that deduction for
de%)rociatiml must come out before you have an earned surplus.

think that is sound, although it is very questionable as a matter
of law. but it is more questionuble on depletion than it is on de-
}m'ciutiun. and T imagine we will have a court decision on it before
ong. ,
The only case that has ever been referred to the courts was the
La Belle Iron Works case, where the court in the last sentence said
that that case was not before them and they expressed no opinion
on it.

On the tangible properties we have consistently held that the
proper d(g)rematitm deduction, in our opinion, irvespective of what
was done by the taxpayer, had to come out of earned surplus in com-
puting invested capital. We made the sole exception with reference
to patents.

n this connection T would like to say that the question, of course,
first arose under the 1917 act. When the department came to lay
down & definition of ¢ earned surplus” we called in the best account-
ants in the country to assist us in doing that. I suppose the man who
had mere to do with it that anyone else was Mr. Sterritt, the senior
member of Price. Waterhouse, ene of the leading accountants of the
country, and they wrote the definition of “earned surplus.”

The subsequent acts, however, did not change in this respect the
definition of “invested capital.” and we have kept practically our
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same definition of “earned surplus ”—what the accountants wrote as
the proper meaning of the term “earned surplus.” :

Let me read vou from article 843 of regulations 62, which was in
the regulaticns under the 1917 act and for every year since 1906:

Anr. 843, Surplus and undivided profits; patents,—From the standpoint of
assets a patent, or, more particulavly, & group of patents, is clogsely analogous
to good will. Their value Is contingent upon and measured by thelr earning
power. While patents have a definige life, there {8 & common tendency to ex-
tend that life by improvements upon the original, and in a suecossful business
the patent value merzes more ¢or less completely into a trade npme or other
form of good will. ‘Therefore, while deductions in respect to the deprecintion of
patents-based apon a normal Hfe peciod of 17 years arve allownble in computing
net fncome for the purpose of the Income tax, such deductions are not oblipp-
tory, but are optional with each taxpayer. Where sinee Junuary 1, 189040, a
corporation has exerelsed fhat option to it own henefit in computing s
tuxable net Income, the amount so deducred entn not now be restored e enm-
puting invested capital, Where, however, the cost of prtents has been choarged
against surplus, or otherwise disposed of in such 8 manner as not to henefit the
corporation in computing its taxable net income since January 1, 1909, any
amount so written off may be restored in computing Invested eapital if it be
shown to the satisfactlon of the commissioner that the amount so written of
represented 8 mere hook entry ascribable to a conservative policy of manage-
ment or accounting and did not represent f realized shrinkage in the value
of such assets, .

In other words, with reference to patents the position is taken that
having an option to charge off each year, a deduction of one-
seventeeth of the cost of the patent, both for income and invested
capital purposes, if that one-seventeenth is not charged off it may
remain in invested capital.

As 1 say, the question is a very close one and a very difficult one.
Sometimes it works to the benefit of the Government, and some-
times it works—and usually, as in this instance—to the benefit of
the taxpayer. :

However, when we held that that option, once exercised. was bind-
ing upon the taxpayer many of them were deducting depreciation
in the current years, but had famled to do so in the past, and. of
course, it reacted to the disadvantage of the taxpayer in such cases,
That question was referred to the Board of Tax Appeuls, and it has
been decided in favor of the taxpayer.

Senator King. So that the Government loses both ways, then?

Mr. Greca. Both ways.

The Cramnian. Let me ask you this, Mr. Gregg: Does the 20 per
cent limitation apply at any point there?

Mr. Gueca. The 20 per cent limitation comes into it, but I do not
think it is really material to this question. T think that—-

Mr. Maxsox. I take the position that, following the reasoning of
that regulation, the patent value is converted into good will. Now,
applying that to this case, they started out here with good will pur-
chased for $5,000,000. Assuming this patent value of $10,000,000,
which has disappeared as patent value, to have been converted into
good will, then you have $15,000,000 out of $25,000,000 of capital
represented by good will, while the law only permits $5,000,000 to
be represented by good will.

There is another point in this case that I neglected to mention, but
which I would like to call to the attention of the bureau at this time.

The working papers were not in the files, and for that reason we
were unable to determine what was done with this invested capital in
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1918, In 1918 we have this situation: Under the law the. patents
and good will are both intangibles, so declared by the statute. The
statute limits the amount of intangibles in 1918 to 25 per cent,
which would be 25 per cent of $25,000,000, or $6,260,000; so that in
1918, however you view this question, the most that can be allowed
for patents and good will is $6,250,000.

We do not know whether a change has been made in 1918, for the
reason that, as 1 say, we were unable to locate the working papers,
as they were not in the files. 1 do not mean to imply that they were
extracted, but they were not in the files, and T desired to pget this
case betore the commitice and wind up these hearings to-day, so I
did not wait until & Turther ~earch conld be made for then:.

The Crvmyan, Fooview of the fusi that you want to ssk Mr,
Beight some questions to-morrew, 1 think the burean might bring
down to ws what they find in connection with 1918,

Mr. Maxnsox. A« fur as those questions are concerned., T have
already asked Mr. Bright all thai I care to ask him, '

Mr. GreGe. We will bring that down to-morrow, Mr. Chairman,

Mr. Mawsox. If those papers have been located they could be
submitted to Mr. Box this afternoon and let him examine them.

Mr. Grrce. T think we can submit them.

Mr. Mansox. I think you have asked for them, Mr. Box, have
you not ?

Mr. Box. Yes.

Mr. Gueca, If the reduction was not mude, it was an inexcusable
error, because the statute of 1918 is very specific. There is no pos-
sibility of a misconstruction,

The point T wanted to make on this. Mr. Chairmun, in answer to
your question as to whether the regulations should be changed, is
this: The question is a very difficult one and it is a close one, That
is the best I can say for it, that it is a close question. This interpreta-
tion has been adopted since the 1917 law.

The Cuamrman. One of the reasons why Congress does not see fit
to change these things is because Congress does not know anything
about them.

Senator Kine. We do not know how they are being interpreted
or the effect of the interpretation as to whether it is disadvantageous
to the tuxpayer or injurious to the Government.

Mr. Greeu. I can not comment on that,

Senator Kixa. Unless some specific cases are brought to the atten-
tion of Congress, Congress would not know,

My, Grece. But vou have this situation with reference to this,
that there have been thousands and thousands of cases settled on the
basis of this regulation. 1t is applied uniformly in all cases. Even
if it is not sound it represents what 1 think 1s appavently a fair
and equitable rule. The value is there, and there is no real objection,
as a matter of principle here, why it should not be included in in-
vested capitai.

The Crareaan. T do not know about that. I do not admit Mr.
Grege’s conclusion that the value is there. I do not admit that
when a patent is capitalized at $10,000,000 the value is still there
when the patent has expirved.
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Mr, Manson, It is really & broader question thaen that, oven, in
my opinion. The question here is whether in detes .uininfg invested
capital it should be obligatory to take depreciation. In other words,
if it is not obligatory, it is clearly an injustice to the taxpayer who
does take up the depreciation, because, as I have indicated, you can
have a prosperous business and you just do not specifically charge
sny depreciation. That enlarges your profit-and-loss balance and
increases your surplus. A part of your surplus is vepresented by
the actual depreciation, but which has not heen charged off,

It strikes me that to permit a regulation to stand which makes it
optiomal with a tuxpayer as to whether he will take deprecistion for
invested-capital purposes is unfair to the taxpaver who takes it
The depreciation goes on, He tukes it in etfect, whether he takes
it on his books or not. :

If I pay $10,000 for a lease. when that lease expives that $10.0C
of value 15 gone. If I pay for a patent, when the patent expires
what I puid for that putent is gone. The depreciation on lmil(img:-e
and machinery is going on. Whether you take it or not does not
alter the fact that it has actuaily accrued. It is just a question of
permitting surplus to be set up. It does not recognize that a certain
physical fact has actually occurred. , '

he CrnairmaN. Whether the bureau thinks it wise to change this
regulation or not, it se ‘ms to me they might take it under considera.
tion, and they might also consider at the same time whether this
question of taking this depreciation should not be mandatory in-
stead of optional.

Mr. Grraa, Well, it is, Mr. Chairman, with respect to everything
except that.

The Cramman. I mean that I think that might be tuken into con-
sideration,

Mr. Greaa. Yes.

The Cuamsan. Beeanse if a patent expires in 17 years, it should
he mandatory to take it into consideration, and then the question of
good will conld be considered afterwards.

Mr. Greaa, It is mandatory with respect to everything but pat-
ents.  As 1 say, this regulation has been in effect since the 1917 act,
On March 15 last year the statute rans on the last excess-profits tax
vear. . It has been applied in thousands and thousands n} cases, I
personally would be very reluctant for that reason to change it and
upset so much work.

The Ciasax, In view of that statemeat. would it not have
some effect in figuring the profits of corporations in their taxes?
Do you not have to have the capital values there?

Mr. Gaeaa. No, sir: this regulation applies only to the excess.
profits tax. ‘

The Cuamman, Yes: but assuming that this same corporation
was permitted to fix ecapital on the basis that this taxpayer has
fixed it. would not the percentuge of eavnings that it paid to the
Government under the present laws be affected ?

My, Gneae, No: this does not affect that. He gets his valuation
of his patent for depreciation purposes, and he can take as a dedue-
tion bne-seventeenth each vear. But this does not affect that, There
is no difficulty there. This upplies solely to the excess-profits tax.
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Senator Kina, How does it affect, if it affects at all, corporate
profits for the purpose of the tax?

My, Grrea. Tt does not affect that, The regulation does not,

Senator Kina, How do you denl with patents in determining cor-
porate taxes!?

My, Greas, The taxpayer is entitled to tuke the cost of the patent
and tuke one-seventeenth of that cost as a deduction ench year for
depreciation.

Mp. Maxsox, From income!

Mr. Gueoc, From income,  But this reguletion, the merging of
good will regulation, has no application to that. It applies only
i the computation of the invested capital for excess profits tax
J)l“'il(i.\l’h.

The Ciovraras, In fixing the present tax at B2 ;wr cent, eor-
porste. do you not hnve to have invested capital at all?

Me, Guece, Nog sivs the guestion of determiving invested eapital
was removed when the exeess profits tax law was repealed at the
end of 1921,

The Cuaryax, Is that all you have this morning, Mr. Manson?

Mr. Maxson. Yes: that is all 1 have at this time.

The Chanevan, Have you anvthing that you destre to put into
the record at this time, Mr. Gregp?

Mr. Gureca, No, siv: we have nothing to-day.  We will be all pre-
pured when the committee meets nest.

The Cramsian, We will adjourn now until £ o'clock to-morrow
afternoon,

(Whereupon, at 1155 o’clock a. m., the committee adjourned until
to-morrow, Tuesday, March 31, 1925, at 2 o’clock p. m.)
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UNPYED STATES SENATE,
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ik Breesv or Istersan Revesor,
Washinyton, . (.

The commitice met at 10 o’clock w. m., pursuant to call of the
chairman.

Presentty Senators Couzens  (presiding), Watson, Ernest, and
Jones of New Mexico.

Present also: Mr. George G, Box, chief auditor for the committee.

Present on behalf of the Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mr. . R,
Nash, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, and Mr.
A, WL Grege, solicitor, Bureau of Internal Revinue,

Mr. Grece, Senator, may T inquire as to the plans of the com-
mittee?

The Cirateyvan, Mr. Manson is ill this morning, but after talking
with Mpr. Manson and with other members 0# the committee, I
would say that we thought we would go along every morning at
this hour as long as Mr. Manson could keep up the pace. 1 do not
know just what the details are. He telepllloned this morning that
he is unable to come down, but he has asked Mr. Box. the auditor
for the committee, to proceed with several cases that he is prepared
to go ahead with at this time.

My, Grese. What T was wondering about, Senator, is how long
the committee plans to continue in session?

The Cuamrman. It depends upon the amount of work. We
thought it would take at least'a couple of weeks.

You may proceed now, Mr. Box.

STATEMENT OF MR. GEORGE G, BOX, CHIEF AUDITOR FOR THE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Box. The first case that I will present this morning is the
case of the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co., of Wichita, Kans,

The Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co. was incorporated August 18, 1914,
with a capital stock of $12,000, representing the cost of leases and
development of a partnership formed in May, 1914, by J. C. Titus
and others who had acquired lesseholds on land in the vicinity of
Wichita, Kans.

Drilling was commenced and on August 3, 1914, the first well was
completed and a good flow of gas discovered. Other gas wells were
brought in afterwards, the gas being sold to the Wichita Natural
yas Co.
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In Junes 1916, after several oil wells in near-by territory had
heen brought in, this taxpayer sold an undivided half interest in its
leasehold to the MeMahon Oil Co., Tulsa, Okia.. for 3300000, On
March 8. 1917, taxpayer sold its other undivided half interest to the
Utilities Oil & Gas Co. for $1.865.000, but veserved all the o1l which
it had produced and stored in tanks. in all about 618000 barrels,
from the sale. It disposed of this oil during the vear 1917,

The taxpayer made a return for the vear 1917, veporting as in-
come its combined rale of oil and capital asset<. This retirn was
executed September 6, 19180 It shiowed net income of 82222385087
and-a tax hability of SI319582. 1L This tax, for some unexplain.
able reason, was never wssessed nor paid. The neome tax veturn
itself shows no evidence whatever of the tax holige collected, nor
does the record in the case. :

Ater a further period of 13 months an amended return was
filed by the taxpayer in December, 1919, showing a net income f
$LO6TI2L61 and a tax hability of $151.245.76. The latter amorant
was gecepted as the tax due, it was assessed and paid, and the ease
sent to the closed files.

Under date of March 16, 1915, Deputy Commissioner 1. . Speer
advised Mr. J. C. Titus. of the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co., that the
taxpaver and its stockholders were granted an extension of time
until 20 davs after notice of the final decision of the burean of the
tax matters then pending in which to file their return of annual net
income for 1917, This letter is Iixhibit A in this case,

On July 6. 1918, the collector of internal revenue at Wichita
advised the Commissioner of Internal Revenue that in his judy-
ment all returns made in connection with the 8lim Jim Oil & Gas Co,
were made for the sole purpose of defrauding the Government.
and requested that all of the returns connected with =aid compary
be referred to the very best men connected with the service in his
district for a thorough investigation. This lettcr is Exhibit B.

Early in December, 1921, Mr. Gus V. Winston, an accountant and
tax consultant, of Wichita, Kans.. informed Commissioner Blair
that he had knowledge of the tax violations of the Slim Jim Oil &
Gas Co.. and on a reaudit based upon the information given by him
an additional tax of $789,875.14 was assessed on July 21. 1922,

As stated above, the original 1917 return veported the profit from
the sale of the company’s capital assets as income for 1917, How-
ever, the amended return excluded this income. claiming the sale of
its leasehold interests, which was consummated March & 1917,
actually took place in 1916.

A claim in abatement was filed on December 26, 1922, by T. J.
McDonald, trustee for the Slim Jim Qil & Gas Co., for $789,875.14,
the latter having been dissoived in 1920, This claim refers to an
extensive series of hearings and an investigation of the corporation’s
books and valuation of its leasehold by a Government engineer.

A copy of the claim referred to is Exhibit C. '

Under date of December 19, 1919, J. C. Titus addressed a letter
to Mr. J. L. Darnell, of the Income Tax Unit, indicating that he
had been extended courtesies by the latter on a prior visit to Wash-
ington.

This letter is Exhibit D.
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Under date of June 11, 1921, Mr. G. C. Hold. internal revenue
agent in charge. wrote the Income Tax Unit. In this letter he
invited attention to the fact that upon a visit by Internal Revenue
Inspector B. C. Middleton to C. H. Taylor, of Oklahoma City. one
of the principal stockholders of the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co.. Mr.
Taylor offered a severe protest against the opening of his case,
stating that during the yvear 1918, after the Slim Jim properties
were sold at a profit of approximately $2.500.000, he and other
stockholders of the company visited the burean on numerous ocea-
sions during the vear 1918 with a view to bringing about a settle-
ment of the tax Liability of the company and its stockholders: that
he obtained a hearing with Mr. Powell and Me. Darnell. of the
natucal vesourees division: and that in conference with Comns-
sioner Roper finally agveed upon the tay liability of the company
and the stockholders of approximately $600.000, wnd that therefore
amended returns were prepared and filed on that basis,

This letter is filed as Exhibit E.

Senator Erxsr. What vear was that?

My, Box. The income forthe vear 1917 is being discussed.

Senator Erxsr. I was wondering when he came to Washington.

Mr. Box. Under date of June 11, 1921, was the letter from the
internal revenue agent in charge.

It appears from the record that in January, 1917, J. C. Titus and
(. H. Tayxlor. the principal stockholders of the taxpayer, each gave
to their respe-tive wives 19 shares of the capital stock of the corpora-
tion, representing one-half of their respective interests. ‘The revenue
agent who cxamined this taxpayver reported that in his opinion these
gifts were not gennine and refused to vecognize them. The question
was stibmitted to the solicitor. who decided under date of Februarvy
9, 1923, that the evidence submitted by the revenue agent was in-
sufficient as a matter of law to warrant a conclusion as drawn by
him and that in computing individual taxes of J. C. Titus and C. H.
Taylor for the year 1917 the gifts in guestion should be allowed and
the amount of additional tax for which they might be liable should
be redetermined and adjusted.

This decision of the solicitor is made Exhibit F.

Under date of Febraary 15, 1923, an offer in compromise was sub-
mitted by the representatives of the taxpayer agreeing to pay $118,-
368.57, without interest, in settlement and full satisfaction of all
claims for income and excess-profits taxes against the Slim Jim Oil
& Gas Co., and a further sum of $121,631.43 in full satisfaction of
all claims for individual income and excess-profits taxes alleged to be
due on the part of former stockholders in their individual capacity
for the years 1916 and 1917, without interest, the offer in compromise
of the additional taxes of the individuals being in fuli.

The offer in compromise is made Erhibit G.

By considering the sale of the capital assets of this taxpayer as
being consummated in March, 1917, the tax liability of $789,875.14
arose in favor of the Government for the year 1917, against which
there was an overassessment of $23,615.01 for 1916, making a net
balance due the Government of $776,260.13.

Under date of February 13, 1923, the Solicitor of Internal Revenue
recommended that the offer in compromise above referred to be ac-



3476  INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

cepted, as in his opinion it was proper and for the best interests of
the United States 1o gccept, uml “particudarly in view of the fact
that the taxes from the cm'gmmtiun were adjusted and the case closed
by & former comnitssioner.,”

The recommendation of the solicitor is Exhibit 1.

This recommendation of the solicitor was accepted and the com-
promise made on that basis. This resulted in the Governmeny ac-
cepting $LIRI6RALHT from the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co. in payment
of u tax lability of $776,260.13, or a less of $647,891.56 in taxes due.

This is a very unusual case, which the records fuil to satisfuctoril
explain,  In the fiest place, the original return was not filed until
Septenther 6, 1918, which may be aecounted for satisfactovily by
extensions granted by the commissioner, The tax Hability as shown
by this return was SLAILGGSITL Tt uppears that this tax was never
uid, nor even wssessed. An nmended return mdieating o tax La-
{yilit_\' of ¥IHL210.76 was filed in December, 1919, ubout 15 months
subsequent to the filing of the original return.

There are references in the record of numerous hearings had by
the tuxpayer with oflicials of the burcau prior to the filing of this
return.  Although nothing appears in the record of the case, the
coinniittee is in receipt of information to the effect that at the time
the offer in compromise was being considered by the commissioner,
Mvr. J. L. Darnelly who swas formerly chief of the oil and gas section
of the natural resources division of the burcau, was called in and
asked by the commissioner why he agreed with the tuxpayer to ac-
cept. an amended return on the basis on which it was submitted.
This included the understunding that the sale of the taxpayer's prop-
erties in 1917 should be considered as n 1916 transactien. Me. Dar-
nell’s veply was that he thought $450,000 was a large enough amount
for the taxpayer to pay.

Attention is invited to the fact that the taxes from this corpora-
tion were adjusted and the case closed by a former commissioner,
which seems to have been one of the reasons why the solicitor re-
frained from opening the case of this taxpayer and recommended
that the offer in compromise be ncecepted.

Treasury Department Decision 3240 (Cumulative Bulletin 5, p.
313), approved by the Sceretary of the Treasury October 31, 1921,
provides that when a case has been finally closed after the taxpayer
has had a heaving and been afforded an opportuaity to present argu-
ments in support of his contentions the ease will not be reopened
exeepting nm}vr certain conditions.  In the case of Penrose o, Skin-
ner (298 Fed. 335), decided in the United States District C'ourt of
Colorado, August 14, 1923, the court said, “The subsequent action
of Commissioner Roper in reopening the matter and compelling
the plaintiff to pay the taxes has little to do with the controversy
here, as 1 think no one will contend that a sueceeding commissioner
could overrule ot ignore the decision of his predecessor unless sich
decision were in law ervoneous or tainted with fraud.” For Treas-
ury Decision 3240 and dicta in Penvose . Skinner, above referved to,
see Exhibit 1.

In this case the record raises a strong suspicion of fraud, and
there is no inhibition to the opening of cases closed by a former
connuissioner when fraud is an element in the case, although from
the opinions referred to in the above-mentioned decisions it is very
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questionuble whether it is proper to reopen a case closed by a former
commissioner unless decisions were in law erroneous or tainted with
fraud.

Messes. Darnell and Powell, who it appears were active in the
conferences with the officers of this taxpayer

The Cnamyan. Just at this point I would like to know whether
you have discovered any evidence sustaining the burean for poing
on the 1916 transaction insteud of the 1917 transaction ¢

My, Box. 1 have not; no, sir,

The Cramarax. Are you willing to say that there is no evidence
in the files of the bureau to show why that was donet

Mr. Box. From my exanupation of the euse 1 think there is no
doubt that it was a 1917 transnction, and it appears in the records
in the ease, tanken as a whole, that from the time the original return
was filed until the amended return was filed, there were several
conference in the bureaw in which Mr, Durnell took part, and it was
there that the agreement was reached to file an amended return on
the basis on which it was filed.

The Cramman. And that was the basis for placing the transac-
tion buck in 1916¢

Mr. Box. 1916; yes, sir.

The Cuamman. But in those heavings there is no evidence as to
why that was done, as I understand it.

Mr. Box. There is not; no, sir,

Senator Joxes of New Mexico. What evidenco is there in the
record that would throw any doubt around the time as to when the
transaetion was consummated ¢

Mr. Box, I have not seen any evidence in the record.

Senator Jones, What sort of a sale was it?

Mr. Box. It was an out-und-out sale of the undivided one-half
interest of this corporation’s leasehold interests in the State of
Kansas.

Senator Jonks of New Mexico. There must have been a definite
date when that was consummated, must there not?

Myr. Box. The date was March 8, 1917.

Senator Jones of New Mexico, Then npon what ground could any
controversy have arvisen regarding the question of time?

Mr. Box. There is nothing thut I know of that shows that in the
record,  There is nothing to show even why 1916 was considered.

The Cuamstan, 1 suppose the reason given was becanse the tax
in 1916 was lower than it was in 1917,

Mr. Box. Much lower as n result of throwing it back in 1916, It
made an additional tax in 1917 of $23,000, The tax in 1917, based
upon the 1917 rates, was ahout $760,000.

Senator Jones of New Mexico. Was the case finally closed on the
basis of the transaction having occurred in 19164

Mr. Box. The case was finally closed; the corporation was dis-
solved in 1920, After this additional tax was assessed the trastee
of the corporation made an offer in compromise, and that was ac-
cepted, reducing the tax from 8760000 to about $118.000. There
wits n loss of abont $650.000 by aceepting this offer in compromise,
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Senator Joxes of New Mexico. Is there anything to indicate the
basis of th: reduction in amount? Was the year 1916 considered m
connection with the compromise proposal{

- Mr. Box. The company had, as I say, dissolved, and there were ru-
mors—it does not appear, of course~—

Senator Warsox, Was this a bankrupt concern in 1920?

Mr. Box. No; it was not. There was a question about the addi-
tional tax that the principal stockholders of this corporation owed.
They were trying also to get away from the payment of that tax.
and in this offer in compromise a part of the total smonnt was
offered in payvment of the additional tax in full.

The Caammaxn. To get back to Senator Jones's question, in com-
puting the compromise offer was the sale fixed as of 10167

My, Greas, © think T ean answer the question. I it was consid-
ered as a 1816 sule there would have heen no additional tux and theve
would have been no necessity for an offer in compromise. It wus
considered as a 1917 sale when we reopened, and they compromised
the liability which resulted from cnnsh&ering it as a 1917 sullv.

The Cuamryaxn. Then, do you know why the tax was reduced by
$650,000 in that compromise offer?

Mr. Grecs. I do not remember accurately. T was’ just going
through the record here, the statement prepared in the solicitor’s
office, giving the reason for the compromise. It was there, hut it is
not in this record. As I remember it—and I am very huzy on it—
the corporation had dissolved and the tax was against the corpora-
tion. We would have had to go into court to sue the stockholders of
the dissolved corporation. We could no longer assess the tax. There
was just one stockholder, as I remember, who was solvent, just one of
the stockholders who had received liquidating dividends, and he was
the one I think who paid all of the offer in compromise. It was very
doubtful how much we could have gotten if we had gone into court
and sued the stockholders.

The Crairyax. Would the bureau like to reply to this at a later
time?

Mr. Grrgo. Yes; we will later, when we get that brief, but I just
wanted to answer the Senator’s question.

The CHarrman. Yes.

Mr. Box. Messrs. Darnell and Powers, who it appears were active
in the conferences with the officers of this taxpayer, as a result of
which the 1917 sale of taxpayer’s capital assets was considered as a
1916 transaction, thereby ultimately resulting in the failure to col-
lect approximately $650,000 in taxes, subsequently resigned from the
service and have held powers of attorney to represent taxpayers
before the bureau in over 40 and 60 cases, respectively. '

A list showing the powers of attorner of Mesers, Darnell and
Powell is submitted as Exhibit J in this case.

The Cuamman. Does that complete the presentation of this case,
Mr. Box1

Mr. Box. Yes, sir.

{Exhibits submitted by Mr. Box in the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co.
case are as follows:)
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Examir A

MagrcH 16, 1918,
Mr. J. C. Trrus,
Bism Jim Ot & Gas Qo., Wichite, Kanas.

GentisMEN : Receipt is acknowledged of your letter of the 16th {nstant, in
which you request that the Slim Jim Ofl & Gas Co. of Wichita, Kans., and its
stockholders, viz, J. O. Titus, J. C. Titus, trustee for Tlitus Willlamson, Rentata
Titus, T. J. McDonald, 8. A. McDonald, A. H, Hill, G. F. Blssantz, J. H. Higley,
T. B. Richardson, E. C, Colvin, and A. C. Himmelwright, of Wichita, Kans., and
C. H. Taylor and A. M. Taylor, of Oklahoma City, Okla., be granted antil 20
dayns after notice of the final decision of the department on the tax matters of
sald company now pending within which to make thelr reypective Federal
income and excess-profits tax returns for the year 1917,

This extension of time Is requested for the rason that the returng are so
interwoven that accorate returng ¢an not be made untdl a decliston is reached
by this oflice,

In reply, you are informed that under the authorlty vested in the Com-
missioner of Internal Revenue by the act of September 8, 1914, as amended,
the 8ilm Jim Ot & Gas Co. and its stockhiolders named herelnbefore are
granted an extension of time until 20 days after notice of the flnal decision
of this office on the tax matters now pending in which to file their returns of
annual net income for the year 1917 with the collector of ivternal revenue for
their district.

A copy of this letter, or reference thereto, should be attached to each return
when it is filed.

By direction of the commissioner.

Respecttally,
L. F. Seexe,
Deputy Commiasioner.

Exnmir B

WicaiTA, KaNS, July 6, 1918.
Honorable CoMMfSSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washingion, D. O,

My Dear Sin: This reture 1040, as well as all other returns made in con-
nection with the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co, of Wichita, Kans., in my judgment
1s made for the sole purpose of defrauding the Government.

I am satlsfied I am correct In this matter, and would respectfully ask that
all thexe returns connected with said company be referred to the very best men
connected with the revenue agent service in this district for a thorough
investigation,

Yours most respecttully,
W. H. L. PerpPERELL, Collector.

Exnmir C
SLIM JIM OIL & GAS €0,, A CORPORATION, WICHITA, KANS.,

Character of asxsessment or tax—-Additional income and ercess-profits tax from
January 1, 1317, to December 31, 1917

Amount of assessment or stamps purchased. ... . ___. $TRI, R7H. 14
Reduction of tax liability requested {income and profits tax)_... 780, 875. 14
Aount 10 De BHBIOQ . e e e et e e e o e e 768, 260, 13
Amount to be refunded (or such greater smount as is legelly re-

1621 3 [ T U P, 23, 81h. 01

The undersigned, 2 former stockholder of the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co., hav-
ing vecaived not ¢e of assessment and demand for tax in the sum of $789,-
Ki5.14 agaiust «aid corporation on account of addit'onal income and excess-
profits taxes alleged to be due by it for the year 1917, recpeetfully submits in

92919~-25—p1 17—--11
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his individual capncity only, that the same should be abated and canceled for the
following reasons:

1. Becansq the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in December, 1019, after
an extensive series of hearings, Including an fnvestligation of the corporation’s
books and the valuation of its leaschold by a Gewernment engineer, and
whereln all the facts were placed befove the Government, directed the tiling
of amended returns on behalf of the SHm Jim Ol & Gas Co,, involving. the
payment qf Income and excess-profits tax in the sum of $451,2405.76; that suid
returns were accepted and the tax .shown to be due thereon pald, and the ease
tinally closed. ) L
. 2. That the suld’ Stim Jim Oil & Gas Co. Is no longer in existence, having
qgtgr the satistaction’ of its Federal tax Habllity proceeded to Hguidate its
assets and distribute the same gmoung its stockholders: that it has now en-
tirely ceased Business operations, and that since December 22, 1920, i has
ceaged to exist &s o corporate entity, us it {9 shown by letter of that date from
the Secretary of State of the Stute of Kansus, canceling its charter ; spid letfer
being filed in the records of thix ease In the Bureau of Internal Kevenne,

A That theve ave no corporate assets remaining with which f6 pay aus tax
or other Habillty.

4. That the assessment made and tax now demanded is erroneous and illegal
for the reasons et wup in the two bieiofs filed in bebalf of the undersigued
and the other former stockholders of the Slim Jim Ol & Gas Co. with the
Commisstoner of Internal Reveune on August 7 -and November 10, 1022, ve-
spectlvely, and the undersigned hereby adopts the contentfons therein made
in behalf of said Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co., the defunct corporation now assessed
additional taxes. The undersigned further respectfully refevs to cluims for
abatement heretofore filed by him and othér former stockholders of said
corporation, which claims have been aceepted by the honorable Collector of
Internul Revenue, wherein the same tax here invoived was assessed against
the former stockholders of safd corporation, and he adopts the contentions
there made as being applicable to the tax linbility now eclolmed to exist on
the part of said Slim Jim Ol & Gas Co, a defunct corporation,

The premises being considercd, the undersigned respectfully submits that
the aforesald tax assessment be abated aud canceled.

‘ T. J. McDoxALp.

Exmmsir D

Tre Suis Jiv O1L & Gas Co.,
Wichita, Kans., December 19, 1919,
Mr. J. L. DARNELYL,
Natural Resources Subdivision, Income Tax Unit, Washington, D. C.

Dear Sig: Please find inclosed amended individual income-tax returns for
the year 1917 for the following stockholders of the Slim Jim 01l & Gus Co.:

Tux Tux

3. NS e e $20,477.07 | T. B. Richardson. .. ....._ 3, 566, 69
Renata Titus e 19,868.63 | B. C. ColviBoe oo 2,537.31
C. L Taylor, e 21,134.98 | A. M. Himmelwright....... 2,432.54
A M Tayloro e 19,368,563 | J. H. Higley..oo ... B17. 80
T. J. McDonald. ... 7,085. 21 S
A H Bl 12,044. 70 TOtal v 111, 173. 40
8. A. McDonald. wcvuuu... 2,680. 04

This list includes all of the stockholders except G. ¥. Bissantz, who is now
in California, and a stockbolder holding one share of steck which shows no
tax. Mr. Bissantz's veturn shows a total tax of $817.31 and will be forwarded
to you immediately upon receipt of his power of attorney for which the wrlter
has wired,

Thanking you for the courtesies extended to me during my recent visit to
Wasbington, and wishing you & very Merry Christmas, I am,

8incerely yours,
J. C. Trrus.
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Exumir B

OKLAHOMA, OKLA,, June 11, 1921,
IncoMmE Tax Unrr,
Head Picld Audit Division, Washington, I, .:

During the present week Internal Revenue Inspector B, C. Middleton was de-
tailed to make an investigation of the income-tax iability of . H. Taylor,
Oklahoma City, 'The retained copies of his return in the possesston of Mr.
Taylor for the year 1017 disclosed that he had received approximately $600,000
dividends from the Slim Jim 0il Co, of Wichita, Kany, These dividends were
largely liguidating dividends, bat were not treated as such in his returns,. A
Iarge portion of them were alloeated to 1915 and 1916 earnings.

AMe Taylor offers o cevere protest agalust the epening of his ease,  He visited
this office and states in snbstanee as follows: That during the yenr I8 after
the Stm Jim propecties were solld at a protit of gpproximately 2,500,000, he,
with his representutives and other officers and stockholders of this company,
visited the burveau on mumerons ocenstons doving the vear 1918, and with 8
view to briagingg about o tinal settlement of the tax Hability of fhis company
und the majority stockholders therein; that he obinined a heaving with Mr.
Powell and My, Davoeli, of the nutural resources subdivision, gad that in con-
ference with the honorablie cominissfoner, Daniel €, Roper, floally agreed that
this company and its stockholders should pay a tax lability of approximutely
S600,000 ; thint amended returns were then prepared and filed upon that basis,
and that the gamount of tax with g few thoarand dollars additional was paid.

It is the opinion of this oflice that the dividends were largely Houidating
and subject to the normal tax, and also that the act of the taxpayer in
transferring about one-half of hia stock in the Sl Jim Oil Co. to his wife
during February, 1917, is a colorabie transaction, It will be understood that
one-half of his stock was transferved without consideration and that his wife
filed a separvate return in which was included one-half, or about one-half, of
the approximate $600,000 dividends received.

With these facts before you I respectfully request to be advised as soon
as possible 1P thix case was actually closed, or il this office should proceed
in the usual manner with its investigation of the tax lHubility of Mr. Taylor.

Respecettully, G 1
». C. Hovr,

Internal Recenue dgent in Charge.

xumir F

FEsRUARY 9, 1923,
In re: Slm Jim Ol & Gas Co.

DErCTY CoMMisstoNer CraarreRtoN: Inquiry has been made @s to whether
or not cortain transfers of stoek of the Slim Jim 0il & Gus Co. by J. €. Titus
and C. H, Tayior to thelr respective wives were bona fide gifts. It appears that
in Juanuary, 1017, J. ¢, Titus and C. 1. Taylor each gave to their respeetive
wives 19 shares of the capital stock of the siid company,

The revenue agent in hix report takes the position that these gifts were
not genuine for the reason that the shares of stock were not issued when
the corporation wae organized, or before large protits were contemplated.
The evidence submitted by him, however, Is insufficieut, as a matter of law,
to warrang such a conclusion., Therefore, in computing individual tax of
J. €. Pitus and C. IL Tayior for the yvear 1917 these gifts should be allowed
and the amount of additional tux for which they may be ligble should be
redetermined and adjoasted. The collector of internal revenue at Wichita,
Kans., should be advised and certificates of overassessment issued.

Inasmuch as the taxes involved are for the year 1017 it I8 requested that
this office be advised immediately of the correct additional taxes due from
J. C. Titus and €. H. ‘Taylor and the action taken by your office.

NEL8ON T. Harrsoxn,
Soltcitor of Internal Revenue.
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Hxuamir G

Eowanp F. CoLrapay,
CounsrELLor AT Law,
Washington, D, C., February 15, 1928,
Hon. Davio H. Braig,
Commdsegtoner of Internal Revenue,
Treasury Department, Waskington, D. C.

Dear Sir: In the matter of the claims of the United States for additional
taxes against the Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co., a corporation of the State of Kansas,
and against the stocktwlders thereof, we submit the fullowing offer in com-
promise settlement of Income and excess-profits taxes alleged to be due on
the part of the corporation, and the following further sum in payment of
Income and excess-profits taxes alleged to be due on the part of the stock-
holders of sald corporation in their individual capaclties, This offer in com-
promise and in payment is in Meu of and pursuant to various conferences
which have been had by us and certain of our clients with yourself and various
other officinls of the Bureau of Internal Revenue, and is submitted in gubsti-
tution for that contained in letter addressed to the Connnlssioner of Internal
Revenne under date of February 6, 1023,

Our cllents will pay a total sum of $118,388.57 without interest in compro-
mise settlement and full satlsfaction of all claims for income and excess-
profits taxes against the SHm Jim Ol & Gas Co.  Our clients will furiher pay
a total sum of $121,631.43 in full satisfaction of all claims {or tndividual in-
come and excess-profits taxes aileged to be due on the part of said former
gtockbolders in thelr individual eapacity for the years 1918 and 1917 witheut
Interest, The sums thus agreed to be paid involve an aggregate payment of
$240,000, of which said cllents are willing to pay $100,000 to the collector of
internal revenue at Wichita on or hefore February 21, 1923, and the halance
on or before June 30, 1923, or, In the alternative, and at thelr option, will pay
the entire sum of $240,000 to sald collector on or before February 28, 1923,
In the event of deferring the payment of $140,000 as aforexald our clents will
secure the same to the satisfaction of the collector through a bank in Wichita.

In making this offer it is understood that you, the collector, My, Motter, and
we gll have in mind that the corporation has forfeited ts charter under the
laws of the State of Kansas and 4, as we huve stated to you, dissolved; nnd this
offer {9 made for the purpose of settling and satisfylug uny and all tax clajms
of the United States for the calendar years 1916 and 1017 which ever have
been, now, cun, or might hereafter be gsvessed against said corporation, it
directors, and stockholders, and the persons whio were former directors and
former stockholders of the corpioration.  Acceptance of this offer by the Trens-
ury Department must, of course, be coextensive with these terms of offer.

In the event of the aceeptance of this offer we shall expect (o receive in
behalf of our clients a letter or other formal siatement setting forth the
acceptance of the offer, and showing that it is full, complete, and 4nal as to all
matters set forth or referred to herein. :

« Very respectfuily,
Epwarp ¥, GANN.
E. F. CoLLADAY.

Fxwmmir I

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR OF INTERNAT. REVENUE,
Washington, 2. O., February 13, 1923

To the COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL RFVENUE.

Sir: I have considered the proposition of an offer made on behalf of the
Slim Jim Oil & Gas Co. axd J. C. Titus,, C. H. Tayler, T\ J. McDonald, 8. A.
McDonald, A. H. Hill, T. B, kichardson, K. C, Colvin, A. Himmelweight, C. F.
Bigsante, J. 21, Higley, and J. C. Titas, trustee for Titus Willlamson, in settle-
ment of their labllitles, gs charged herein,

In view of the statement and recommendation contained in this brief, which
are made a part hereof, and the papers on il herein, I am of the opinion and
advise that it will be proper and for the best interests of the United States to
accept the terms proposed, $240,000, in full sertiement of all tux Habilities aris-
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ing by virtue of income received for 1916 and 1917 by the above-named corpora-
tion and individuals. Inasmuch as the total taxes due from the suid indi-
viduals amounts only to the sum of $121,631.43, 1t {8 recommended that the
sald sum of $240,000 be first applied to the full satisfaction of the tax Hability
of the individualg, and that the balance, to wit, the sum of $1183468.57, be
uecepted in compromise of the corporation’s tax, zluivh it iz thought proper
and for the best interests of the United States to hecept, and particularly in
view of the fact that the taxes from the corporation were adjusted and the case
closed by a former commissioner,
Respectfully,

——————— 1A

Solicitor.

Exmpir ¥
REOPENING OF CABES

TREASURY DEPALRTMENT,
OFFICE 0F COMMISSIONER OF [NTERNAYL IRREVENUE,
Washington, D. C.
To collectors of internal revenue and others concerned:

Where any case in the Burean of Internal Revenue has been finally closed
after the taxpayer, or other party thereto, has had a hearlng or fing been
afforded by written notice un opportuiity to present oral or written arguomnents
or statements of fact in support of his contentlons, the case will not be re-
opened except (1) where a showing 18 made of new and materlal facts, accom-
panied by an explanation, satisfactory to the Commissioner of Iuternal Reve-
nue, of the failure to produce such facts prior to the closing of the case, or
(2) where the case is materially affected by the change of regulutions or by the
final declsion of another case either by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue
or by a court of competent jurisdiction. The application for reopening a case
should be addressed to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, should stile
sucelnetly the facts and elrenmstances upon which the application ix baxed, and
must, he supported by the aflidavit of a person having knowledge of the {aets,

This deelsion {5 not to be construed as modifying the reguintions velnting to
the filing of cinims in abatement or claim« for refund, nor as denyivg the right
of a tnxpayer to a hearing or to an appeal at any state of his cise until the
case has heen finally closed,  After the taxpayer has exhausted his remedien
within the burenu, however, and the case has been finally closed, it will be
reopened only under the conditions stated In the decision,

12, H. Braig,
Commissionrs of Internal Revepue,

Auproved October 31, 1921,

AW MErtos,
Seerctary of the Treasury.

Avaurar 14, 1023,
UNITED SEATES DISTRICT CoURT, COLORADO, PENROSE . SKINNER. YO8N Frp, 335
“The subsequent action of Commissioner Roper in reopening the matter
and compelling the plaintiff to pay the tax hax little to do with the contro-
versy here, ns I think no one will contend that a succeeding commis:ioner
could overrule or ignore the dectsion of his predecessor, unless sueh decidlon
were in law erronconus or tainted with fraud.”’
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Exupie J

The following are the cases for which James T Darnell holds power of
&attorney :

Taxpuyer rate of execution
A QN COur e e et e June 5, 1923,
Avery Ol & GAY COu e e e et Mar. 24, 1024,
Brown, C. B., ANSOI, TOX e o e o o s ot e e Jaly 203, 1021,
Cumberland l'vtroleum Co., Cleveland, OB May 31, 1922,
Denman Bros., Sedan, Kuus .................................... e - May I8, 1823,

Greon, Willium, 120 Brondway, NSew York Clty, and Tampteo,
MO X IO o e e e e e e i e e OV, T, 1923

Harvey Gl Co., Texas... e e e e e e e 1, 1022
Sterling Ol & (}us (0, ‘lm(luml Uhiu v v e July 7. 12,
Ubrlch MU Work (Ltd.), independence, Kapsoooo oo oo 0 00 Mar 24, 1929,

Vietor Gasoline Co,, Tulsn, ORM - oo e e e . Jdlin, 1! 192,

Walsh, Edward I, Hmthmﬂllv Okla_ ... ... ... . .. . ey, 25, 1924

Walsh O4l Co., Tnlnu, ORI - e e e e e e Aug. :.’.2, 023,
Webster, C. 1., Cleveland, OKW oo o2 e e e Nept, 13, 1h22,
Zabriskle, Hage, Qray & Todd o .. oo e e Fel. 21, 1024,
Harvey, O, lease account, TeXnso oo I June 17, 1422,
Indiapa Creek Coal & Mining Co., Indinuapolls, Tndo - ... .0 L Sept. ¥, 1822,

TteX OI} €0, TORMS o ot oo e e e e e June 17, 1922,

Kewnnes 01l & Gas Co, 722 Ballite Bullding, Philadelphia, n_ .. . May 31, 1922,
Kunox Consolidated Conl Coo o o e s S0OPE D, 1022,
Knox County Fourth Veln Co_ ...

e s e on e e Do,

LAawrenee Gas Coo oo e e S, May 12,1923,
LAtEIe (8. W) Conl GO e i i e e e SODLL D, 1922,
Lynde & Darby, Tulsn, ()kln ....................................... June 17, 1022,

Markhem, Jehn H., jr., Exchange Nationnl Bank Building
Tulsa, OKMio oo it e e e e KO, TO1025,

Monarch Ol & Refinlng Co., Houston, Tox—— .. et e June 17, 1922,
Pactile Cont & M Con o o o o e e e o

Pagel Bros. O Co___...__ PR e e e My 27,1902,
Perkins-8nlder lease, 'I’mom o S e une 17, 1922,
Presidio Mining Co., 815 MlIx }lull(llug, .‘mu 1 runcl«(u « nlif‘, = Get, 23, 1024,
Rescue O Co,, ToXNS. o o o e e . May 25, 1023,
Ruyle Farm & O Co,, 'P(-\zwu__._w_ e e s e e e June 17, 1022,
Selby Ot & Gas Co, and Sclby-Clster Co,, 'l‘ulsn. ux\m e 1.
Staffer, . B, 3374 Sherldan Rond, € hlvnga . .. ... Fe¢b 26,1928
Shaffer, C. B (partnership No, 2). e Do,

Shaffer O & Retinlog Co,, 208 ‘wulh Ln‘wllo Streot, (‘hlwmn,

I e e e L e e e Jan, 15, 02
SBpowden & Meloelland . L oL L. Lo dune 16, 1922,
Snowden & MeSweoney, HOS Musdizon Avenue, \u\\ York ( ih ~ o Mav 1L s,

Hutndard Ol Co,, 26 Rrondway, New York City . .. . e Mar, T,19238,

Stoker, K. Breockenvidpge, TOX oo o e e e e June 17, 1922,
Superior O Co,, LexIgton, KV . v e e coam o mmror e 2 e = Oct. 10, 1922,
Tarver O Co., DRI, POX oo e o e e e oo 22 T 17,1922
Texnw Co,, Heuston, Tex. - ... R e e e Jdune 9, 1922,
Texhomu il & Refining (n. Wir]litu lulh 'l‘v\ e . Mar, 11,1924
Taltos, W, H. ___. e e My b au2s,
Walker & !’c-l'l\lm, ’l'u\m e e e e e June 17,1922,
White Plnins O] & Gas Co,, !wntm RV oo e e My 11,1922
Whson-Brosich Co, Texas oL o oo m. UV § ITTTHE B 1‘)"4

The following are the cases for which C. F. !’n\wll holds powers of attorney :
Taxpayer Ditte of execution
Arteslan O QO o e e e Mar. 3, 1024,
Benson, Andrew and (. W, (Benson Ol & Gas Co, ) lmlmmndvm ¢

Kuns . ... . e e e e e e MY TN, T2,
Blg Four ()H & (}uq ( 0 l‘ltMnnrgh. P e e U0t 21,1022,
Calumet Ol Co,, Los Am.,ol(-q [ D711 1 § U ‘\!m' 23, 19234,
Carnanhun l)rmln;: L YU UPUSRURIONDUURPPRI £ 1§ | -4 M [ 5 8
Celestine Ol Co., Talsn, ORI o e e e s Mor. 11,1024,

Central National O Co., Okmulgee, OKM e Feb, 17, 1022,
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Taxpayer : . Date of exycution
Champling H H, Eufd, ORI it e me s ema e . AUEL 1Y, 1924,
Champlin Retining Co, Enld, ORI v oo e e e e Ot B, 18923,
Champlin & Winkler (Iue.), Eastland, Vex. oo oo Sept. 19, 1924,
The Consolidated Gus, Ol & Manufactucing Co,, Independence,

JEBUIIB oot e e e e a5 i e Mny'is, 1923,
Coptinental Ol & Refining Co., Independence, Kans. ... o e Auy. 22, 1943,

Crosble & Gillesple Gasoline Plant, Tulsa, OKM. oo v D 11, 1023,
Cudahy OIl Co., Cleveland, ObMoO. ... o o, June 7, 1022,
DOABET, J. oo e et e s et e o MR 2R, 102,
Deaner, Mibhele Yoo ov o e ittt a0 e Do,
Dehbman Bros, Denwman, Arthur ., and Depman, John, e May 18, 1923,
Fegen, I K, Sedna, Kaus.ooooom o e e e Mur. 2110203,

Eeb, Ray L., New York, N, Yoo . al ool chmann oon. Nov. 30, 1923,
Bwing, P. W, Findlay, Ohlo. ... ... . e e Jdan B, 1923,

Fltzgernld, Chestnnt & Withington, Tulsa, Okla. ... ... ... Nov. 15, 1922
Floyd, C. W, Sedan, Kuts. oo v e e o e e o . Mar, 20, 1024,
Gillesple, 1. AL, Palsn, OKIB G ce vt i e . NOVL S, i 128,
Grithmg, J. S, Tl ORI e e e . Now, 12,1023,
Gritlin Producing Co.,, Talsa, Okla. .. . - . . oo oo Ot 17,1923,
Hurley Gasoline Co., Tulsg, Ok . oo o e o July 4, 124,

Independent Ol & GAB Comar o imet e e e e e - FUNG 28, 1O,
Invinctble O Corporation, Vivgiudn. .o .. . ... Jan 2, 3024,

King, A. V., Findlay, Ohdo. ... . . oo e e e . dan, 8, 1024,
TAberty National Bank, Taisa, OkIn. _ . . .2 Dece, 12,1023,
Lucado (H & Gay Co., Coffeyville, Kans. ... .o oo Feb, 13, 1024,
Lucado Ol & Gax Co,, Ladependednce, Isats. ..o o i s Heb, 12, 1924,
McMahon, C. Yo, Okmualgee, O oo e e e eeme o Meb, G, 1922,
Mary Ann Ofl Co, Independence, Bans e o Aug, 21, 1923,
Morton, . L, & Wm. P, Okmunlgee, ORI e e Febh, 4, 1922,

Morion, WIHam P o ot s e = ADEL 3, 1923,
Morton, W. W. & W. P., Okmulgee, Ol ooe e o 000141921,
Natlonal Retining Co,, Clevelnnd, Oblo. .. .o o July 7, 1922,

Norvthern O Co, Cleveland, OO oo e Do,
Plae, William B. .. - e e e o Nov, 26,1923,
Raycomo Oit & Gas Co,, Orrlek, Moo oo e Jan. 8, 1022,
Renmey, Browster .o o e e e e e 2 0O 2, T8R4,
BOMEIC, 10 e e e e et m e i e s INOVL 2, 1022,
Roby Corl Co, Clevelund, OBo. .. v e e o JANL 4, T8,
Roby-Somers Conl Co., Cleveland, Ohlo.. oo oo Dee, 22,1922,
Somers Coal Co., Cloveland, Ohdoo oo e Do,
South Western Gl & Gas Co,, Plttshurgh, Pa. o » Dec. 31, 1923,
Spring O11 Co., Independenees, KADS ..o ocmn i e eem Dees 11, 1923,
spurlock Petroleam Co., Cliveland, OhMo. oo e July 7, 1922,
State Line Ol & Gus Co., Independence, Kane_ o May 18, 1623,
STATEMENT OF MR. GEORGE 6. DOX, CHIEF AUDITOR FOR THE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Box. This is the case of E. R. Bradley, Lexington, Ky.

Under date of July 17, 1924, Revenue Agent E. R. Burch, of the
Louisville, Ky., district, submitted a report of his investigation of
the income of this taxpayer for the years 1919 and 1920. Submitted
with this report was a confidential letter of Revenue Agent in Charge
J. H, Mcb}(urtry, in which he stated that the taxpayer and his
brother were operating the Beach Club, a noted gambling house at
Palm Beach, Fla.; that no examination of the income from this club
had been made by the agent of the Louisville district and that he
believed if the affairs of the partnership were investigated in Palm
Beach that a considérable amount of income would be disclosed. A
copy of the letter is submitted as Exhibit A.

Inder date of November 14, 1924, the bureau requested the super-
vising internal revenue agent st Atlanta, Ga., to investigate the

*
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income of the partnership in order to ascertain the income to be
reported from this source by Mr. E. R. Bradley.

This letter is made Exhibit B.)

s a result of the examination made at Louisville, on account of
which the agent recommended the assessment of additional taxes of
the following amounts-—1919, $66,799.84: 1920, $87,768.64—the tax-
payer filed a brief in which he protested agamnst the findings, the
question involved being whether or not the losses incurred by tax-
payer on account of betting on horse racing in Kentucky, Louisiapa,
and other States are a proper deduction from the amount won by him
in transaction of the same character, the contention of taxpayer being
that in the States that legalize betting the losses were a proper
deduction and in the States that do not allow betting, the winnings
being illegal, were not income subject o income tax. A settlement
of this case was referred to Messrs. 8. Alexander and C. T. Hoffman,
Under date of January 12, 1925, they submitted their report, in
which they referred to the letter from the internal revenue agent in
charge at the Louisville district recommending that the income of
the partnership in Florida be examined, and called attention to the
fact that no books were kept by the partuership, and stated, in con-
clusion, that in view of the circumstances an investigation in Florida
would be of no advantage to the unit in closing the case, that the
case should be closed on the basis of the information contained in
the report from the Louisville division, and that the request for an
ingestégatiqn in Florida should be recalled. This letter is Ex-
hibit C.

In accordance with the request of Messrs, Alexander and Hoffman,
the buireau instructed the internal revenue agent in charge at Atlanta,
Gia., to suspend the investigation of the partnership of the Bradley
brothers, under date of February 9, 1925,

{This letter is made Exhibit D.)

In the meantime, however, an examination of the partnership had
been made by Revepue Agent C. K. Spillane, which was forwarded
to the bureau by the supervising revenue agent at Atlanta under date
of February 12, 1925, recommending additional taxes on account of
the receipts of the Beach Club in the following amounts:

1010 e e e e e e e = $i, 240, bS8

B0 e e e e it e bt e 02, 095, 26

d 2 e et e et i e o e 70, 818, 19
OLBE o e e e e e an o o e o e e i e 1 o 215, 180, 02

In this report the agent stated that the Beach ('lub is a most ex-
clusive restavrvant and café patronized b%y‘ yrominent and very well-
to-do northerners, not for the purpose o jining, but to gamble, for
this is their main feature and drawing card. He stated that no books
nor records pertaining to the gambling operations were kept, as the
taxpayer destroyed all memoranda carly every morning when the
gaming was over, and that he advised the taxpayer that uniess he
could produce some records the total deposits by him at the Farmers’
Bank & Trust Co. at West Palm Beach would be considered his in-
come, against which would be allowed any legitimate losses, and the
tax.computed on the difference, ‘

A conference has been requested on the findings, which has not yet
been granted on account of the absence of the taxpayer.
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It is contended that the fact that the partnership had no records
of its transuctions at Palm Beach was pot a satisfactory reason for
the conclusion of Messrs, Alexander and Hoffman that no advantage
would be derived from making an invegtigation of the partnership,
and - had their suggestion been followed a considerable amonnt of tax
in this case would undoubtedly have been lost to the Government.
. The Cnamman. It is my understanding, then, that the recommen-
dutions were not followed, and the case ﬁus'no‘t yet been closed. Is
that right!? ‘ . : ,

- Mr. Box. The case is not closed. The recommendations sug-
rested by Messrs, Alexander and Hoffman were not to be followed,
gut in the meantime they had been Tollowed, and as a result of that
this $215,000 was found by the revenue agent who made the exami-
nation in Florvidu. If the recommendation of Messrs, Alexander apd
Hoffman had been followed before the examination had been made
down there this tax, whatever it is, which is found to be due after
audit made in the bureau would not have been assessed.

Senator Jones of New Mexico.  Ias the case been .closed now?

Mr. Box. It has not been closed now. A -conference has been
requested.  The contention of the taxpayer is as to the legality of
this gambling wcome and whether the losses should be re;mrted, and
30 has stated that he will earry it to the Supreme Court for a
decision, ’

Mr. Grroe. IFrom the point of view of the burean, I Jo not see
how any good can come from our looking into it. The only eriticism
I can gnts‘ier is as to what might have happened if the recommenda-
tion of Messrs, Alexander and Hoffman had been followed, and
since it was not, it makes no diflerence. 1 do not see that we are
calied upon to answer.

Mr. Box. The burean did request a withdrawal of that letter,
which had formerly instructed the agent in Georgia to make an ex-
amination, but it was too late, as the ngent had complied with the
first request.

Mr. Gueca. As I understand it, the recommendation of Messes.
Alexander and Hoffman was that no field investigation be made,
since the taxpayer kept no books. They thought there wounld be ng
use in making 1t, but it turned out that they were wrong. The in-
vestigation did disclose some information, but there is nothing in the
record to show how they got it.  There is no danger in this case of
the Government losing any tax that is due, and T do not see—— -

The Cuammax, Only this, and T would like to point this out to
our voung solicitor: One of the criticisins of the committee’s in-
vestigators up to date has been as to the power that lies within the
bureau and with its subordinate oflicials to determine great points
of issue. In this particular case the recomimendation of these two
officials was adhered to, and the letter to conduct the investigation
was withdrawn, but through expeditions work on the part of the
agent they really got the information before the letter was with-
drawn. 1 think that is the point.

Mr. Greos, The committee is commending our Atlanta oflice and
is ¢riticizing the action of the bureau here.

Mr. Box. I would like to make the observation, Mr. Chairman,
that, in my experience with the burean, the fact that a taxpayer

G210 L5—p1 17— -12
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has no books or keeps no records is no reason whatever for not mak-
ingi‘am examination of his income.

The Crairman. I think it would be absurd to do otherwise.

Mr. Box. And the fact that in this case no records were kept
I think would be a reason, and more than a good reason, for muaking
an examination,

Mr. Grega. I will say that the bureau looks at it that way, too.
There are plenty of cases in which they say no books of record are
kept, and we take the gross bank deposits as net income and they
somebimes find records that they had forgotten about.

Senator Jones of New Mexico. In what officiul position were
these people who directed thut no investigation should be meade?

Mr. Greco, Mr. Alexander was the head of the division in the
unit at the time. .

Senator Jones of New Mexico. What unit?

Mr. Grega. In the Income Tax Unit.

Senator Joxes of New Mexico. And who was Mr. Hoffman?

Mr. Grece. I de not understand his connection with the case.

Mr. Nasu. I think I might correct that, Mr. Grege.

Mr. Alexander and Mr. Hoffman und Mr. Marrs were appointed
as a committee last fall to go down into the person. . audit division
and clean up some old cases that had been pending there, and which
nobody down there seemed to be able to get rid of. These were
what they call “nut” cases. Hoffman and Marrs were attorneys
from the solicitor’s office and Alexander was a representative of the
Income Tax Unit. I think this is one of the cases that committee
handled.

Senator Jonks of New Mexico. It would seem that their policy
is not to crack nuts but to throw them into the furnace.

(Exhibits submitted by Mr. Box ir case of E. R. Bradley are
as follows:)

WxHnnr A

'TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
INTEBNAL REVENUE SERVICE,
Louisvilie, Ky., July 17, 192},
CoMMIBBIONKE OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D, C.
{(Attention Assigtant Deputy Commissioner.)

Internal Revenue Agent 3. R. Burch submits the following contidential
report in the case of E. I, Bradiey, Lexiugton, district of Kentucky:

“X have the honor to advise that I have made un examination and report
covering the tax labllity of the above-named individual for the yoars 1919
and 1920, which report 18 Inclosed herewith.

“ Reference to this report will Indicate that no galn or loss in elther vear
was returned by the taxpayer from the operation of the Beach Club, a noted
gambling bouse at Palm Beach, This is opersted by J. R, Bradley and E, R.
Bradley, under the name of Bradiey Bros., and is a partnership, so I was
advised by Mr. Bradley.

“Mr. Bradley states in this connection that it is a felony to operate f
game of chance in Florida aund that the season for play covers a perlod of
lesy than three months cach vear, during January, February, and March, and
that it is only occastonally that the house makes a profit. He stated further
that owing to the unfriendly attitude of State official®s they were open for
play for short periods only during the 1819 and 1920 sensons, and as pruc-
tically all play s on credit or ‘I O U, the loss from ‘welchers’ was very
heavy during those two seasons and the house actually wound up with
heavy losses in those years.
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It s believed, however, that 1f the affalrs of the purtnership are investigated
in Palm Beach, that a cousiderable amount of taxable income will be disclosed,
No books are  opt by the partnership, Mr. Bradley very frankly stated, for the
reason that, teing under almost constant survelllance by the Ntate officlaly, it
wuslxmt constdered wise (o keep apy records that might inerbwinate him or his
brother,

*The sale of a cottage i 1920, ax well as the sale of other real estate owned
jolntly by Bradiey Bros., should be investigated at that end also,

“ 1t should be stated here, however, in justice to this taxpayer, that during
the course of the examiuation, he has been extremely frank and unreserved in
all his statements, courteous in manpner, and apparently anxious to do all in
his power to aid in the proper verification of his returns,  His records prior to
1921 are not In good shape, a8 he has never employed a reguiar bookkeeper, but
in 1921 and subsequent years his office and farm manager, Mr, Barry Shan-
non, seems to have Kept a good record of all transactions of Mr. LBradiey cov.
erfng buxiness done outside of the corporation, known us the Idle Hour Stock
Fuaym Co., and which keeps & good double-entry set of hooks.”

Report coverlug the tax lHabllity of this indlvidual is being transmitted under
even date herewith, covering the years 1919 ana 1920,

J. H, McMuRTRY,
Internal Revenue Agent in Charge.

sxnusiT 13

Novemper 14, 1024,
SUPERVISING INTERNAL REVENUE AGENT,
: Atlantn, Ga.:

Thiy office has for audit a repert from the internal revenve agent in charge
at Louisville, Ky,, covering an examination of the tux liability of K. R. Brad-
ley, Lexington, Ky., for the vears 1919 and 1920,

The revenue agpent states In g confidential report that this taxpayer operated
a8 gambling house at Palm Beach, Fla,, and no income was reported from this
source.

The following information is quoted from the confidential report ;

“ Reference to this report will indicate that no gain or less In either year wag
returned hy the taxpeyer from the operatlon of the Beach Club, n noted
gambling house at Palm Beach. Thiy s operated by 4. R, Bradley and K, R.
Bradley, undeyr the name of Bradley Bros, and s a partyership, so I was ad-
vised by Mr, Bradley.”

The revenue agent further states that it is helleved if the affairs of the part-
nership are investigated in Malim Beach that a considerable amount of taxabie
income will be disclosed,

It is requested that yon have an investigation made of the above-nnmed firm
in order to ascerfuin the income to be reported from this source by K. R,
Bradiey, Lesington, Ky.

Iiie to the fact that the vear 1019 s involved, {1 is respectfully requested
that the examination be expedited.

J. G, Braar,
Deputy Commissioner,

X ©
daxuvany 12, 14825,
In ve: k. IL Bradley, Lexinston, Ky,
Dreputy Commissioner Briour,
Tneome Tar Unit,
(Attention My, Lewis, head personal gudit division, for seetion 3.3

An investigation In this eaxe has boen regquested in the Atlanta division on
the basis of o statement made in o confdential letter from the Internal revenue
ngeat In charge at Louisville, Ky, which veads nx follows:

“ It s belleved, hiowever, that if the cFalrs of the partnership are Investi.
guted in Palm Beach that g consdderable amount of taxable ineome will bhe
diselosed,  No hoolis nvre kept by the pavtnership, My, Bradiey very {rankly
stated, for the reason that, being uuder almoxt coustant surveillnoee by the
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State officluls, 1t was not consldered wise te keep any records that might
incriminate him ox his brother,

“The sale of & cottage in 1920, as well an the snle of other real estate owned
Jolntly by Bradley. Bros., should be investigated at that end, too,

“It should be stated here, however, in justlce to this taxpayer, that during
the course of the examination he has been extromely frank and unreserved
in aill his statements, courtgous in manner, and apparvently anxious to do all
in his power to aid In the proper verification of his returny, iy records prior
to 1921 are not in good shapo, ns he has nevar employed o regulne bookkeeper,
but in 1921 and subsequent years his offlce and favin munnger. Mr. Barry
Shannon, seems to have kept &2 good record of all transactions of My, Bradley
covering businesy done ovatelde of the corporation, known ns the Yile Hour
Stock Farm Co., and which keeps a good double-entry set of hooks.”

With reference to the above statement, attention is ealled to the fuet that
no hooks were kept by the partnership.

In view of the clreumstances, it 1s concluded that an investlgation 1o
Ilorida would be of no advantage to the undt in closing the cnse,

The case should be cloked on the basis of the information contalted fn the
roport from the Louisville dlvislon.

‘The request for an investigation in ¥lorlda should be recalled.

By direction of the commissioner,

N, ALEXANDER,
C. T, Horrmax,

Gxpmrr D

TREASURY DEPARTMENT, *
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVIOE,
: February O, 102)5.
Ruernvising INTERNAL REVENUE AGENT,
Atlanta, Ga.:

Reference 18 made to buresu letter of November 14, 1924, i which you
were reguested to have an invesiigation made of the flrm of Brudley Bros.,
Paltm Beach, Fla., in order to ascertain the income to be reported from this
gource by k. R, Bradley, Lexington, Ky., for 1910 guad 1920,

A reexamination of the ¢ase has been made by this office. In view of the
attending clireumstanees, it s concluded that the case of K. R Bradley should
b closed on the basis of the Information contsined In ihe report from the
Lounisviile division.

You are therefore requested to suspend the examinatlon of the partnership
of Bradley Bros,, Palin Beach, ¥in,

J. G Biwarer, Deputy Commivsioner.

The Criaresan, Yonu may proceed with your nest case, Mr. Box.

Mr. Box. This is the ease of the Ainerican Blower Co., of Detreit,
Mich.

Thiz waxpayer was organized under the laws of the State of New
Yok in January, 1909, for the purpose of taking over the Americun
Blower Co. of Michigan and the Sirocco Engincering (o, continuinge
the business of <aid corporations, which consisted of the mapnfae-
ture and installaiion of blowers, ventilating, and heating svstems,

On Septeniber 26, 1921, Revenue Agent Leslie H. Rushbrook made
a report of his examination of the books and the records of this tax-
puyer. followed on September 23, 1921, by a supplemental report
recommending additional taxes, as follows:

00T e e ot e e e ——— ¥3:3, 605, 47
TR o e e e e e i 207, 332, 04
191D (OVEraS 0SS ONT Y - e e e e e e e o P 01,22
0 e e e i e e e S e o 39, 719. 16

The one item which the agent objected to and on which a penalty
for fraud was subsequently assessed in this matter was the manner of
treatinr inventory by the taxpayer. He states that he asked My
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Williamson, the auditor, and Mr. Brown, head of the cost depart-
ment, how the inventories were taken and priced, and both advised
him that the inventories were not taken at either “ cost ” or “cost or
market, whichever is lower,” as required by the regulations, except
that part of the inventory which consisted of sheet steel, which was
very small,  He states further:

A word of explanation was necessary as the Inventory is not taken according
to law ; sald inventery is taken on cards, the exact manner I wuas unable to de-
terinine, a8 both of the above-named men sald the quantities never 4 flered frem
thuse shown on the books, These cards are then sent to Mr, irown, head of the
cost department, who prices them in the case of raw sheet uteel, as above
stated, but only the one price is shown, that 18 the lowest; cards covering all
other material are then priced, but not on either cost or market: but Mr.
Brown sald a conferenee war held and if 1t was decided to depreciate the In-
ventory 20 per ceat, that amount was accordingly deducted from the last in
voice price, and the material priced accordingly. 1t is readily spparent that if
the last involce was a recent one, the inventory would be far below both cost
and market, and would not represent the correct status of the business; also
xaid method is clearly in violation of the income tax law and consequently sald
inventories are invalld in determining the taxable income for any pertod, ¥ * ¢

The total of the raw materlal per books before adjustment was $508,360.04,
which was reduced by $102,080.61, or approsimately 20 per cent. As the in.
ventory s not in existence-—

That is,-the inventory sheets—

and as there was ot such & drop in price in December, 1018, it would be allow-
able to take the ook figures ax I believe it is the rule that the book figures
are taken to repuesent the faets until proven otherwise, but after due consid-
eration and conference with Agents Ball and Thurston, office auditors, it was
decided that a 10 per cent deduction would give the taxpayer the benefit of any
doubt, * *» *

As will be recailed, T previously stated the above figures were per books, but
the compiiny went this one hetter and took an additfvnal $78301L.84 from their
inventory, veduciog the surplus a Hke amount, claiming this was an additional
10 per cent on raw materinl, but it actusily figured 19 per cent on their raw
mterial,  This dedaction fs not on thelr books and was tsken only to under-
state the income on their 18 tax return, However, Ernst & Ernst in prepa-
ration of thelr amortization claim and amended returns for 1918 passed this
through thelr sarplus account fn and out as of November 30, 1920, telling the
company that it would have to be on their books in order te get it by the
department, but said firm of accountants wade no effort to correctly state the
1918 income, though they knew sald inventory wius contrary to the law, * * #

I ndvised Mr. Willinmsen that approximated price which be suld they used
in all years was not In seccordance with the law, and he explained that the
original deduction of 20 per cent on raw materinl shown on the books in 1918
was to reduce to spproximate the January, 1919, market, and the additional
$78,301.84 taken but not on the hooks was to approximate the decline in
market after January 31, ap to the time they filed their return,. When advised
this was not In accordance with the law, he said they would take another
physienl inventory ax of Diecember 31, 1918, and price same according to the
law. 1 asked him how they could tuke a physical inventory three years late
after the material was nged up and no longer in existence, and he replied from
the books, for the quantities on our physical inventories never vary from the
book quantities, said inventorles heing in reality adjustment in costing only.

As a result of this report of the revenue agent, an A-2 letter was
mailed, to which a protest was filed by the taxpayer, and as a result,
on March 25, 1922, after the case had been appealed to the solicitor,
he handed down a decision in which he stated that “the reports
indicute a taxable net income for the year 1918 of apparently double
that which was reported by the taxpayer. This increase in net in-
come is due to a considerable amount of allowances and adjustments
particularly set forth in the supplemental and confidential reports of
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the agent, which will be herein detailed in so far as the more flagrant
items are concerned. 'The taxpayer in closing its books took an
arbitrary reduction of 20 per cent of the amount of the raw material
in its inventory, aggregating approximately $102,080.61, and for the
purpose of computing its taxable income this inventory was furiher
reduced by the amount of $78301.84. The agent calls attention to
the fact that this entry does not appear on the books for the year
in question.”

In conclusion the solicitor states that “the details above noted and
fully set forth in the revenue agent’s reports clearly make out a

rima facie case of fraud, and in the absence of evidence submitted

y the taxpayer there is no alternative for this office other than to
recmmnom* the assessment of the frand penalties for the taxable
years 1918, 1919, and 1920.” )

The case was again submitted to the solicitor who on November 17,
1922, rendered a decision to Deputy Commissioner Batson conclud-
ing with the following statement :

Thix office does not recede from or modily its former ophiion of Mareh 23,
1922, The file is refurned to you with copies of the three bitefs herein re-
ferred to.  Criminnl prosecution is pot deemed practienl aud the cose ix con-
sidered c¢losed in this office, . ’ .

On February 23, 1923, the taxpayer filed an appeal in” which ex-
ceptions were taken to the proposed assessment of additional tax by
the bureau.

On October 17, 1923, the solicitor, after a hearing given to the
representatives of the taxpayer, rendered another decision in which
he stated that “As to the 1918 inventory, taxpayer excepts to the
item ‘ understatement of closing inventory $249,115.15.”

The ¢pinion of the solicitor 1s Exhibit A.

1t appears from the record that the hook inventory of Decem-
ber 31, 1918, of raw materiaig, stock in process, finished parts
and produce, and supplies was $1,356,717.88.  This closing inventory
was reduced by the corporation by what is now claimed was a
physical inventory, to $1,035,248.88. Thereafter the president of
the corporaiion arbitrarily further reduced this closing inventory
by $78,301.64. The taxpayer now admits that the $78,301.84 reduc-
tion on the 1918 inventory wus improper, but it is contended that the
book inventory of $1,356,717.88 was not a true inventory und that a
physical inventory was taken which amounted to $1,035,248.88, which
amount it is not contended by the corporation should be accepted by
the Government in determining the net income of the corporation
for the year 1918.

The alleged physicnl inventory for 1818 hasx never been prodaced by taxe
payer. It Is contended that when the company moved its offices the 1918
Inventory ships had become so confused and damaged that they were ordered
destroyed, und only the totals of the prices which it i3 clatmed appeared on
the original inventory sHps are now submitted, with nothing to show the
material upor which these prices were based. * * »

It is further the opinlon of this office, under all the evideuce, thut the in-
ventory for 1018, as represented by the hock values, more truly refiects the
situation and should be used in computing income for 1818, = ¢ =

It appears that the acts of the ofllcers of the corporation in 1920 indicating
frand were attempts to cover up and justify the frand committed in 1918 and
did not relate directly to the 1020 return. The evidence showiug the fraudu-
lent nature of the 1918 return consists of a serles of acts by the officers of the
corporation clearly showlng an attempt to defeat tazes, ¢ = » ‘
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Although the reduced closing inventory for 1918 was used in the return
for that year, the sume reduced inventory was not used as an opening in-
ventory for 1919, the $78,301.84 reduction not belng taken Into couslderation
in the 1919 opening inventory.

It appears that in 1920 when taxpayer was confronted with this situation,
in order to cover up an attempt to justify the acts of the officers relating to
tlie year 1918, o meaningloss entry was made on the books debiting aud credit-
ing surplus with the amount of $78,301.84,

In conclusion the solicitor states that “ assessment should therefore
be made of the ad valorem fraud penalty for 1918, using the true
book inventory instead of the alleged physical inventory for 1918
and using the physical inventory for 1920 and eliminating the fraud
penalty for the year 1920.”

On November 24, 1923, Assistant Secretary of Coramerce J,
Walter Drake addressed a letter to the Commissioner of Internsl
Revenue in which he states that his friend, Jumes Inglis, president
of the American Blower Co., of Detroit, has a tax matter up in the
department in which he is greatly interested; that Mr. Inglis has
given him some of the details, and that he has a good understanding
of the case as covered in a letter from the Internal Revenue Bureau
dated November 20, 1923. He states that “to my mind it is impos-
sible that sny tax return filed by Mr. Inglis or his company could be
fraudulent in so far as he is concerned. 1 have known Mr. Inglis for
many years and at one time was associated with him in business.
He is one of the outstanding figures in the business community in
Detroit, and without qualification I can say that I do not know of
any business man whose reputation for absolute integrity is higher
or more widespread, certainly not among the business men of Michi-
gan. If the penalty imposed upon his company is the result of any
charge or implication that he has a fraudulent intent or any knowl.
edge of a dishonest return, I feel that by all means there should be a
thorough imvestigation of his claim by some prominent official of
your department who would take into considerstion the statements
I bave just made, and which can be materially substantiated without
the Jeast difficulty by inquiry as to the standing of Mr. Inglis and the
reputation of his company.” The following lead-pencil nrotation
appears on this letter, * Secretary Denby phoned November 27.”

This letter is Exhibit B.

Senator Warson, Who wrote that letter?

Mr. Box. Assistant Secretary of Commerce Mr, J. Walter Drake.

Senator Warson. And he wrote it to the Commissioner of Internal
Revenue! ,

Mr. Box. He wrote it to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

Senator Warson., What was the date of that letter?

Mr. Box. November 24, 1928. :

Under date of December 17, 1923, Mr. B, H. Littleton, who con-
sidered the case in the solicitor’s office, wrote a memorandum for the
file covering the action taken by the burean in this matter. He
states that on December 4 the commissioner granted the representa-
tives of the taxpayer a hearing, as he desired to hear what they had
to say concerning fraud, and directed the unit to withheld the assess-
ment until after the hearing.
h'}';l‘heﬁmmmmndum referred to is made a part of this case as Ex-

ibit C.
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The argiment made at hearing was substantially the same as mude
before the solicitor’s office, excepting that the taxpayer, with greater
stress, laid the blame for the fraudulent features of the 1918 return
upon Mr, Williamson, former bookkeeper, and upon the fact that

r. Williamson had embezzled the sum of $68,000 from the corpora-
tion. Mr. Inglis took personal responsibility for the eut of over
$78,000 in the closing inventory for 1918—-

Senator WarsoN, %Wr. who?

Mr. Box. Mr. Inglis, the president of this taxpayer, the American
Blower Co.

Senator Warson. Yes.

Mr. Box. Although he tries to lay the blame for this frandulent
return on his bookkeeper, who, he states, had embezzled some money
he takes the blame for making this cut in the inventory which crused
the decreased income and which was the fraudulent act. He gtates:

* * + the fallure to make proper entries on the books awd the faflure
of the 1910 return to show an opening inventory or a balance sheet, and also
the faflure of the taxpayer to make an amended return after It was dis-
covered, and after adice had been plven the taxpayer by ity accountunts that
the seventy-eight thousand cut in the inventory was not justifled, and thet
correct entries had not been wmade on the beoks, .

The memorandum states that the commissioner said that * the case
was g very ugly one and it was not entirely clear thai taxpayer had
not attempted to defeat taxes in 1918 by the methods used, and that
while perhaps the book inventory did not represem  he true value of
the materials on hand at the close of 1918, yet the physical inventory,
according to the information in possession of the (xovernment, was
appuarently much lesy than the value that should have been retvirned;
tlll)at the fact that the principal evidence upon which the Govern-
ment would rely as to frand was conteined in statemenis msde by
Mr. Williamson, the bookkeeper, the Government would be in a
rather embarrassing situation if called into court to sustain the fraud
by his testimony, in view of his admitted embezzlement.”

The Cuareman. Who admitted the embezzlement ¢

Senator Ernar, “Of his admitted embezzlement.”

Mr. Box. “Of his admitted, embezzlement.”

The Cuameman. Whom do they mean when tiv v it was ad-
mitted ?

Mr. Box. Williamson, the bookkeeper.

The Cramyan. He admitted the embezzlement, i het

Mzr. Box. The records do not show that he admitt»d.  ‘The records
show that he embezzled, and he offered to testify hefore the solici-
tor. Then later when he was called on his wife telegruphed that he
was 11l and could not come; so there was really nothing in the record
to show that he admitted that he was an embezzler.

Mr. Littleton further stated that “prior to the conference of the
15th Mr. Miller stated to me”—Mr. Miller was the representative
of this taxpayer before the department—“that if the commissioner
should conclude that the fraud pennity should not be assessed for
1918 the taxpayer would be willing to increase his inveatory as used
in the veturn for 1918 by some sixty thousand dollars in addition
to the seventy-eight thousand, involuntarily paying texes thereon.”
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This information was conveyed to the commissioner, who instructed
Mr, Littleton to state to the taxpayer’s representatives “ that hefore
he reached a final decision relative to the inventery and the frand
penalty, if the taxpayer desired to submit a proposition to determine
the uet income for 1918 by decreasing the book inventory and iu-
creasing the physical inventory by a like amount, computing the
additional tax thereon and agreeing to voluntarily pay the taxes
with G per cent from 1919, when the tax became due, at the time the
report was made he would give such proposition consideration, and
that if they did not desire to dispose of the cuse in this way thay he
would render his decision.”

COn January 11, 1924, Mr, Littleton prepared another meinorandum
in which he states that another conference was given the taxpayer
by the commissioner on January 10, at which “Mr. Inglis stated to
the commissioner that they had computed the tax for the years 1617
to 1920, inclusive, on the basis of increasing the alleged physical
inventory and decreasing the book inventory half and half, or until
the two mnventories met.” The additional tax for 1918 computed on
that basis amounts to $232,509.13 and the net additional tax for the
years 1917 to 1920, inclusive, less the overpayment for 1919, amouuts
to $240,824.45, without interest or penalties. Mr. Inglis stated to the
commissioner that he had u certified check 1 $240,824.45 and
wanted to submit that in full satisfaction of all liubility and in full
settlement of the case.

{The memorandum of Mr. Littleton is Exhibit D.)

Myr. Inglis was advised by the commissioner that as a result
of the hearing granted this taxpayer heretofore and by reason of
the statement that the taxveyer desired to make an adjustment
of the Intter matter, it had been stated to them that he would consider,
without binding himself as to what his final decision might be, a
proposition from them to pay the additional taxes on the basis
above mentioned, which was found to be $240.824.45, and in lieu of
penalties for the year 1918 to pay interest on $232509.13 at 6 per
cent from March 15, 1919, the date the tax became due, up to and
inclading Docember 31, 1823, He was advised that the offer to pay
the tax would not be considered as in full settlement of the case. g‘he
interest at 6 per cent, computed as above mentioned, would have been
$66.846.44. The memorandum states further that after Mr. Inglis
left the room the commissioner stated that * he thought perhaps he
would be justified in considering the proposition from the taxpayer
to puy the tax of $240,824.45 and 5 per cent interest from March 15,
1919, to December 31, 1923.”

Mr. Inglis was advised of the commissioner’s opinion, and on Feb-
ruary 4, 1924, the taxpayer tendered to the collector of internal rev-
enue at Detroit, Mich., Form 656 (offer in compromise), with check
for $206,562.05 in settlement of all additional taxes, penalties, and
interest for the years from 1817 to 1920, inclusive. This check cov-
ered taxes and interest as follows:
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Aduftionn! vnren
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Tuterest on the 1918 additional tax, $232,500.18, trom Mar. 15, 1919,
to Dee. 1, 1923, at S per eent. .. o B0, THT. G0
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Under date of March 12, 1924, the Solicitor of Internal Revenue
recommended that the check for $296,562.05 be accepted in payment
of the additional taxes for 1917, 1918, and 1920, less an overpayment
for 1919, and compromise of the ad valorem fraud pmm’ties for
1918,

Had th> net income for 1918 been computed by using the book
value of the inventory the additional tax would have been %267,
332.09. TInstead of using the book value the inventory was estimated
at the average of the book value and the value placed upon it by the
taxpayer, which latter figures could not be substantisted.

The bureau could have demanded for additional taxes for 1918,
penalty and intercst thereon, the following amount:

Additional taXes o e $267, 132,09
Fraud penalty, &0 per cento....ooo... . e e e e 22 e e e o 183, 646,04
Interest on additional taxes at 6 per cent from Mar, 15, 1919, to
D, B, 02 e+ e e e e et T4 807 U8
TPOERL e et e e e o e e 475, 805, 41
Additional taxes and interest at 5 per cent paid for yeur 1918..... 288, 246, 7¢
Amount walved. oo v e e ot e e e 187, H38. 68

The amount which the Government waived by allowing intervest
at H per cent instead of 6 per cent, regardless of the fact that no
fraud pennity was assessed, was $11,147.52,

In My, Littleton’s memorandum, dated Decewmber 17, 1928 (Ex-
hibit C), reference is made to a hearing in the commissioner’s oftice
on December ¢, at whick he stated that the taxpayer “with greater
stress laid the blame for the fraudulent features of the 1918 return
upon Mr. Williamson, former bookkeeper, and upon the fact thai
Mr. Williamson had embezzled some $68,000 from the corporation.”
It is plainly evident that this statement was a mere camouflage and
the taxpayer was endeavoring to mitigate the fraud of its president,
who admitted at the hearing his personal responsibility for arbi-
tearily reducing the inv ntory $78,000 after his instructions to have
it priced at values lower than either the cost or market, as required
by the regulations, and failing to make amended returns to covrect
error after his accountants had advised him that his former pro-
cedure in handling the inventory was incorreet and not justified.

His intent in this matter is clearly shown by his attempt to veduce
his 1919 income by using an inventory as of Jannary 1, 1919, over
78,000 greater than the closing inventory for the year 1918, used
in his return for that year.

That coneludes the presentation of that case.
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Mr. Gurae. May 1 bring ont just a couple of points there, Mr.
Chairman.

In your computation of the amonnt of the tax which conld have
been coliected., vou used, of eourse, the book inventory ¢

Mr. Box. The book inventory is used; yes.

Mr. Grrae, The taxpayer contended “for what he claims to he a
physical inventory, which he was unable to substautiate in detail?

Mr. Box. Yes.

Mr. Grece. And the commissioner, in his settlement, split the dif-
ference, not knowing which was right?

Mr. Box. Yes,

Mr. Grrce. Then, on the basis of the tax shown by splitting the
difference with reference to the inventory, he collee ted interest at
5 per cent, and the settlement was made on that basis?

Mr. Box. The additional tax was assessed on the average between
thie book inventorv and the physical inventory, and the tax at 5 per
cent was computed and colleeted.

Mr. Guece, And you eriticize the use of the 5 per cent interest
rete; in vorr computation of the amount of the tax which might
have been collected, vou compute interest on the entire amount at
G per cont. when. as a matter of fact. in 1918 we had no authority
for assessing any interest.

Mr. Bos. That is very true, but the interest on the additional tax
was substituted for the fraud. They assessed and collected the 5
per cent fraud penalty and that tax.

Mr. Grece. Yes: but in your computation vou put in bhoth the
frand penalty und 6 per cent.  You have here 6 per cent interest,
$70L000. We had no authority to assess that, There w 2s no interest

ronning for the vear 1918; the statute made no provm(m for it; so
the commnssioner, when he used the interest rate of 5 per cent, mullv
got 55,000 more than we were entitled to, which, if you apply that
ot or e e penalty for the frand, sconis (o me o givee a very
fate settlement,

Mr. Box, He did econsider 6 per eont fivat, and afterwards reduced
it to H per cent,

Mr. Grece. That is tene, but we conld not demand either as
interest.

Me. Box, Could you not have demanded the fraud penalty?

Mr. Geeaa, OF course, that was the qu(wtmn.

The Croarsiax, As T understand, Mr. Gregg, then vou collected
an illegal intevest charge?

Me. Gruca. Not that is what T was going to sayv. e determined
the tax-to be so much, and then sphit the (hih- ‘enee on thas debatable
iteme, Then he took oy a compromise of the frand penalty & per
u»m interest, That was in cempromise of the fraud penalty. I want

to bring out the fact that we were not entitled to charge any interest,
The amtut“ provides for that, and the report made to the committee
i using the interest is wrong to that extent,

Senator Warsox, Is your “eviticism of this cuse the fact that the
wan was not pww('uiml criminally.

Mr. Box. No: my criticism is that the book inventory was not
used. aned that the fraud penalty was placed at such a small amount.
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The Cnatgvan. I think also you intended to imply sowe eriticisur
to the effeet that there was influence nsed through cononunieations
from other departments of the Government,

Mr. Box. Yes.

Mr. Grece. JTowever, the final settlement of the case was that
we collected the tax which we determined or thought was correct in
our judgment. und we got $55,000 because of the alleged fraud.

The Cuamman. 1 do not dispute that you collected what you per-
haps theught was the correct amount of the tax, but T think it can
well be pointed out that you assumed an inventory which was not in
evidence and reduced the book value to a point which was not justi-
fied by the books either in 1918 or at the beginning of the tax in 1919,
where the old book inventory was carried over.

Mr. Greeu. It "vas not carried on the books. Of course, we do not
use book inventory figures, necessm'nl?r.

The CHamaan. Buw you had no other basis for any figares in this
case,

My, Grree. The statement was that the physieal inventory would
have shown less than the book inventory, and we split the difference
bet ween the physical inventory and the book inventory.

The Cunaikman. Then, when any taxpayer says that his physical
inventory is less than the book value, you assume tl.at that is corvect?

Mr. Greea. I do not think a general statement of that sort could
be made.

The Cuamyax. But it was dene in this case,

Mur. Grese. This is one of the peculiar cases that we get so often,
where the evidence is not entirely satisfactory, and we make the best
settlement we can,

(Exhibits submitted by Mr. Box in the American Blowec Co. case
are as follows:) .

Exurmur A
Ocrose 17, 1923,
In re: American Blower (o,
Drepity Commdssloner Brisuy
(For Speclal Adjustment Hoeetion),

Reterence is mude to your memorandoum of Maveh 7, 1923, U SA A
OJT-1028, {ransmitting the ontire file in the case of the gbove-named taxpayer
for the years 1817 to 1920, fnelusive, together with appearl from the proposed
assossment of addittonal taxes for the yeers 1917 to 1020, inclusive, and the
ad valorem fraud penaltios for the years 1938 and 1920 as outlined in regis-
tered letter of January 24, 1923, Upen the receipt of the A-2 letter dispatched
Aungust 23, 1922, this taxpayer protested the proposed assessment and an oral
hearing was geanted the taxpayer. which was held in this office on October 20,
1922, at which the president, vice president, and comptroller of the corporation
and fis attorneys and two accountants were present, and at which hearing your
unit was represented, At this hearing taxpayer's representatives snhmitted
and argued numerous exceptions in all of the vears, including exceptions to the
ftem “ Understatement of closing inventory, $249.115.35," in 1918, On Novem-
ber 17, 1022, this office forwarded the entire file to your unit, with memorandam
recommending some adjustments in taxable items, and standing by the original
recomunendation of fraud penalties In memoraadum of Mareh 25, 1922, which
adjustments were reflected in the reglstered letter of January 24, 1923, On
February 23, 1923, taxpayer filed its appeal, fn which appeal the followlng
exeeptions were taken to the proposed assessment

1. [nvemorles: The hovean hns anjustifiably altered ihe inventory values as
dotermined and reporied by the taxpaver, and has adopted inventory values
which are not on the busly of * cost or market whichever iy lower” to which
basts the taxpayer is entitled.

2, Wear and tenr: The burepu has allowed the same rates of wear and
tear depreciation in the taxable years Involved ay for years involving normal
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condittons, and hws allowed no addittonal depraviation because of overtime
aud beeause of conditfons existing during these years involving upusunl wear
aud tenr, whevens the netual wear amd tear was much greater than normal.

3. Depreciation of patenis: The bureau has failed to allow to the taspayer
adegante deductions for the taxable years ax to patentds owned.

4 Bxpense tems: The burenn appears to have erroneously capitallzed cor-
tain expense items,

4. Penalties: The burean has imposed certain peaalties, which penalties
~hoeuid pot have been imposed, and are not in accovdance with law,

On October 2, 1924, wnxpayer, pursuaant to request made, was granted an
oral hearing on the apveal in this offiee, at which hearing James Inglis, presi
dent s W, G B, Miller, viee president and treasurer; W, F. Motler, fermer pur-
chaising avent ; . 1, Orton, former mangger of the cost department; K, M.
Brown, former assistant manager of the cost department ; Rtobert N. Miller,
O, 1. Chemillon, J. D, Watking, atterneys; E. 8. Wellmer, ageut; and O, I,
sjonder and George 1. Bailey, nccountants, appeared, sand at which bhearing
My, Regis of your unit wuas present,

At the opening of the hearing Mr. R. N, Miller, attorney for the taxpayer,
stated that only two exceptlons to the registered letter would be discumsed,
namely, 1018 and 1920 Inventory adjustments and assessment of fraund pen-
olties.  Ir was specifieally stated that taxpayer conceded ah items contained
in the registered letter except those above-mentioned and that other excep-
tions set out in the appes! would not be wrged.  This, therefore, leaves excep-
tlons 1 and § relating to the 1918 and 1920 Inventory adjustments and avsess-
ment of grand penalties for the years 1918 and 1920 for declsion,

The grguments made, and oral testimony, the briefs and supporting data
filed by the taxpayer and e attorneys, and the reports and other ovidence
submitied by the tield agents have been given careful consideration and the
following conciusions are renched:

Ax to the 9IS inventory, taxpayer excepts o the item * Understatement of
closiingg inventory 3249115157 It gopears from the record that the books
juventory st December 31, 1818, of raw waterialy, stock in process, tinished
pavt~ and apparutus, and supplies was $1L,356,717.88.  This closing inventory
wits reduced by the corporation by what i now clsimed was g physteal in-
ventory to SLOSH 2888, Thereafter the president of the corporation arbi-
trearily further reduced this closing lnventory by $78,301.84, The taxpayer now
admits that the $78,301.84 reduction of the 1918 inventory was improper, but
it is contended that the book inventory of $1L306,717.88 wus uot g true inven-
tory and that o physicul inventory was taken which amountted to $1,005,248.88,
which amonnt it is now contended by the corporation shauld be accopted by the
Govermment in determining the pet lneoine of the corporation fey the vear 1918,
he alteged physten! Inventory for 1S has pever been produced by taxpay ey,

It is contomded that when the compuny moved s ofices the #1918 inventory
slips lnd become so contused and danpgied that they were ordered destroyed
aid only the total of the prices which @ ix claimed appeared on the originnl
inventory slips are now submitted with wothing to show the matervinl upon
which these pricos weve based, 10 is claimed that the stoek in process was
inventoricd ar au average cest oover the dear S aund the raw materinls
si mnrket, The matter of the inventories wax ope of the sxceptions taken
at the tirst hearing, and prior to “he hearing held on Getober 2, 1923, this
otice made an independent investigntion velative to the 1S inventory, seeuring
affilavits frow the former avditor, jonbaier of the purehnsing department,
monnger aid assistont managrery of the cost depirtment. who were employed
by this faxpayer ap to (919, these men belue Thomas U Willamson, Cormer
awditor: W, . Metler, former manacer of the picchasing department, who
intentoried and priced the waw nenerinds: o MO Brown, former assistant
wannger of the cost deparfmoent, who ipventoried and priced the stock in
process: and G010 Ovton, former maaanger of the cost depariment. who super
viced the daking of the U9 inventors,  The former anditor, Thomns 1L
Willinm=on, nuude aflidavit that the book inventory was used in closing the
Looks For 1918 that theveafter about the middle of JJanuary, 1919, the president
and vice president of the corporation at @ conferenee with the pen above
nieationed, designiied iwo of the namber to vheck over nud reprice the inven-
tory aad use sl possible menns to redhwee the sane ;) that o< g result of the
ehieeh and repeicing the inventery was reduced from XEAMTITSS to SLOGS,-
DHSNNG that Inter, aiter the books Juel been audited aud certified to, the presi-
dent, Japies Inglis instyucted him to turthee redace the insentory by SENS0EML
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The former auditor foarther teatitiod that the rednctions of the Inventory were
for the purpose of defesdng tixes,

In attidavit secured from C, I, Orton on June H, 1028, he stntes that he and
the audltor and the purchesing agent were called together by the president
and vice president and the matter of inventory discussed ; that et the meoting
the matter of decline in prices was discussed ana that letiers from vendors
were read Indleating that prelees were to be less than they had been in the
past ; thut it was declded that the prices would be less than the prices pre-
valling durlug the latter prre of 1918; that the reduction in inventory was
made partly to average up the cest of the materinl over the year 1R, siuce
much of the materinl was pucchased during the early past of the years
prices less than prevabled duving the latter part of the year, and partly to
allow for the contempluted decline in the market; that it was considered that
this would bring the prices to a basis of what they considered would be a fair
cost at that time, .

W. E. Metler, former purchasing agent, states in his affi'avit that to the best
of his memory he arevived at the inventory prices on raw materials bused on
what he thought this material would be worth on the open market, taking into
conslderation the fact that it would not be worth the market value at thet
time on account of specinl sizes and designs,

This evidence, taken into conslderation in connection with the revenue
agent’s confldentinl report and the absence of the physieal inventory, and in
connection with the further apparent fact that, due to Government control,
prices of materials dechned i{n the latter part of 1917, and in 1918, due to the
armistice, material and labor were relatively cheap, which last-mentioned
fact would have a tendency on an average cost basis to make the physical
irveniory greater than the book Inventory, leads this oftice to believe that the
alleged totunl of the physical inventory is not a fair vaination for 1918, ¥t i
further the opinion of thisx office under all the evidence that the lnventory
for 1018, as represented by the book values, more truly reflects the situation
and should be used in computing income for 1918, Your attention is invited
to the athidavits of the former purchosing agent and cost manager to the effect
that the American Blower Co. was on g 100 per eent war basis, At the time
of the investigantion the agent was informed that the corporation was on a 30
per cent war basis,

As to the contention of taxpayer that the physical inventory for 1920 should
be used, it appears from examination of the actual physical inventory and
comparizon of prices used that the amount shown by the physiesl Inventory
is representative of the values of the materlals and stock In process, and it
ix the opinion of this office that the physiesl inventory for 1920 should be used
{n ecomputing the tax for that year.

Ad t e assesswment of ad viderem fread penaltios, the softfee i« of the
opinion that the rveturn for the gvear 1918 wax wiltfully sadse, with intent
to deleat tuxex, and that the fenud penalty for that year should be assessed,
but as 1o the year 18920 the evidence of willful intent is not sxufficiently stvong
to warrant the as<essment of peonalty for filing false and fraudulent retuen.

It sppears that the acts of the officers of the corporation In 1920 indicating
frand were sttempis to cover np aud justify the frand committed in 1918 and
dld not relate dirvetly to the 1920 return,  The evidenve showing the fraundu-
lent nature of the 1918 return consists of 4 series of gets by the officors of
the corporation, clearly showing an attempt to defeat taxes, Comment has
already heen made converning the manner in which the inventory for 191x
wite taken and reduced approximately 310208461, In accordnnee with instruc-
tions of the president for the purpoxe of reducing rhe taxes, and thereafter
arbitrarily cut K78401.84 after the books had heen elosed amd certified fo.
Although the rveduced elosing inventory for 1918 was used in the return for
that year, the same reduaced inventory was not used as an opening inventory
for 1919, the STR30484 reductien not heing taken into considergtion in the
1919 opening isventory, 1t appears that in 1920, when tuxpayer was cons
frouted with this situation, in order to cover and attempt to justify the gets
of the officers relating to the year 1918, a menningless entry was made on the
books debiting and erediting surplus with the pmonnt of R7R301R4 in addi-
tion of this, av «~tated in former memorandum. depreciation of S25970.05 in
exeoss of the ameuant charged on the bonks was taken on the 1918 retarn,
and'an additional allowance for bad debts in THIR for S25,000 was also taken
in the return, bat this was not shown on the books,
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Assessment should therefore be made of fhe ad valorem fruoud penalty for
HHIB, using the (rue book inventory instead of the alieged physieal Inveotory
for 1918 wud wosing the physleal Inventory for 1920, und clwinating frand
penalty for the yenr 1920, The adminlsteative file s herowlth returned.

Nwpson P, HART80N,
Solicitor of Internal Revenus,

Exiwnsit B

DEPARTMENT oF COMMERCE,
OFFICE OF ASSISTANT SECRETARY,
Washington, November 24, 1924,
Hon. D, H, BLAIR,
Commissioner of Internal Rervenue,
Treasury Department, Washington, D, O,

MY Desaz Mr, Braiz: My friend James Inglis, president of the American
Blower Co. of Detroit, has a tax matter up in your department in which I am
greatly Interested.

Mr. Inglis hay given me some of the details, and I have a good understanding
of his case as covered in a letter from your nffice over the siguature of Mr,
Kright, dated November 20 last,

While I ean not express opinion fs to the correctness of the amount of tax
assessed without pennlty, I am assured by Mr. Inglls that the amount is
grossly exceessive. T am, however, qualified to give you an opinion upon the
(uestion of fraudulent. return which bas caused the imposition of an extremely
large penalty. To g mind it Is hapossible that any tax return filed by Mr,
Ingils or his cowpnny could be fraudulent in so fur as be is concerned, I
have known My, Inglis for many years and at one time was associated with
him in business, He Is one of the outstanding flgures in the business coni-
munity in Detroit, and without quaiiticaiion 1 ean say that I do not know of
any business man whose reputiation for absolute integrity is higher or more
widespread—certainly not among the business men of Michigan.

1{ the penalty imposed upon his company i< the result of any charge ov im-
plication that he has a fraudulent intent or any knowledge of a dishonest re-
turn, I feel that by all means there should be a thorough investigation of his
claim by <ome prominent official of your department who wonld take into
vonsideration the statements 1 have just made nnd which cun be amply «ab-
stantinted without the least ditticalty by inquiry ss {0 the stoding of Mr,
Ingdix and the reputation of s compuny.

Youam quite pwore that mpuy of these enxes come before you, and ¥ wousld
not write in conneetion with thix one execept for the beliel that i may be
necessary that you should direct some one who has perhaps not had any
routine connection with the care to review it for you in view of the great
injustice that may be done to the Aweriean Blower Co, and the greoater wrong
Lt omay be done to Mr, Inglis himself by fastening the charge of fraud upou
Itim,

Both of thexe points T sheuld lke an opportunity of discuscing with you.
I expeet to he abeent from the ety wntll Wednesday moraing and wonld
apprecinte your ghving me a Hitle time to disenss this matter with you on mv
Fetarn,

Very truly yours,
. JoWarter Drave.

ixnnur O

Dueryper 17, 19203,
Memorandum in ve American Blower Co,

In the above cose after fingd memorandum of this othee dated October 17,
1923, My, James Toplis, president of the Ameriean Blower Co., and Ius atior-
neys, Messres, Miller and Chevatier, and his aecountant, Mr. Bailey, of Erust &
Lrnst, made request of the Commissiouner of Interna) Revenue that he grant
the taxpayer, a corporation, a hearing in order that they wmight present to
him thedr veasons that the fraud pepaliy should not be gesessed and that the
physical inventory for 14918 should be used, The Lueome Tax Unit had tor-
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wardad to the corporation the stateent of the ameunt of tax that would be
wanpnzed, from which statemoent there was iy faxther appead. The corpora.
tion received this statement aud obtalned an Interview with the commisstones
botore the ussessment wenl out, I appenved from the statement whiech had
been dispatehed thot the anit hud usied the book inventory for 1917, 1918, and
1919 wien the memorandam of th's oftice wis to the effect that the bhook
inventory for 191 ~bould be used and that the other years should stand us
outlined in the registered fetter, using the physical inventory for 1920, no
excepdion being taken by the tasgmyer for any of the yeurs exeept 1918, The
e of the hook inventory for 1917 and 1909, which was incorrect, revalted in
a darger (ax thon that shown by the registered fetter, For this reasoir and
For (ke denson that the commisaioner desired te henr what they had to say
copcerning frand, he divecied the unit to witnhold the assessmoent and granted
the*taxpayer and his aitorneys a hearing which was held in his oftice on
Tucsday, December L

Procent 2t the hearing represeuting the taxpayver woere Mr. Robert N, Milier,
attorney o My Bailoy, accountant of Ernst (& Fenst: My James Inglis, presi-
dent o) the American Llower Coc:and My, Gibba, of Detrvolt,  Sitting with the
conuissioney were W, el auditor of the special adfustment section, and
B. H. Littleton, of (he solicitor’s oflice,

The arvgient muade gt the hearing was substantially the same a3 made
betore the sol:citor’s ofiee, exvept that they with zreater stress Inid the blame
for the fraudulent features of the 1918 retury apon Mr. Willlamson, former
bockkeeper, sand upon the fact that Mr., Willnson had embezzled  some
FOSO000 from the corporation,  The representatives of the taxpayer and M.,
Inglis were closely questioned concerning the 10 per cent cuty or STRO000, in
the closing inventory of 1918 tor which cut’ Mr. Inglis took personal respon-
dgibility, sayiog hat he felt he was Justiticd from o budiness standpetnt @ the
failure to make proper entries on the books and the Mailure of the 1Y retarn
to show an opening inventory ov a balance sheot, and alse the failure of the
taxpayer to mike au amended return, after it sog discovered and after advice
had Leen given the taxpayer by its aceonntants that the ¥78.000 eut in the
inventory was ot justilied and that correct entries had not been made on the
books,

The matter of the destraction of the 1920 Inventory was ufso discussed and
it owas insisted most vigorously by Mro fngiis that they did not appreciate
ihe wmportance of retaining the Inventory and that it was destroved heeguse
of the confused =taie in which It had gotten, and that it destruaction was not
in any way conniected with the desive of the corpagiition te prevent the Gov-
ertmpent frow havind aecess to it. Phe Commissioner of lntersnl Revente
advived the represenintives of the taspayer that he would consider the epase
iwd ceach o conclusion relniive thereto,

O Sarurday, Decomber 1, the commbcioner enlled e atal vegues fed that
I eome to s oflice at 2 o'clovk and have the guditor, Mre, ‘1all, also present
for the purpose of diseussing the case. Dhurimr a pavt of the discussion of the
eise betweenn ux Mr, Hinetson was prexent,  The commissioner stated that the
CHNe wWas 4 very ugly one aid that it was not entively eleur that taxpayer
had not atempred to defeat taxes in 1918 by the method uwsed ned that while
perhaps the hoek imventory did not represent the true value of the materials
on hand at the viose of 1918, yet the physical inventory, according to the
information in possession of the Government, was spparently wmuch less than
the value which shonld hitve been retarned; that the faet that the priverpal
evidence upon which the Government would rely as to the trawd, was con-
tained in statements made by Mr. Williimson, the bookkeeper, the Government
would be in rather an embareassing situntion if called into court to sustain
the fraud by his testimony in view of hiv admitted embezziement,

P’rior to the conference on the 15th Mre, Miller stated to me that if the
compnis=toner should conelude that the frawd penadty shovld not be assessed
for 1918 the taxpnyer wonldd be willing to incren~¢ his inventory, as used in
the return for 1918, by zome %60.000 in addition to the $TS000, and volunfarily
piy the tax thereon, I informed the comndssioner of this statement on hehalf
of the tnxpayer and at the conclusion of the diseussion of the cose the commis-
sioner fnsteueted me to state (o the taxpayer’s representative that he regavded
the case ax 8 very uely one and that before he reached a tinal deeision velative
to' the inventory aud the fraud penalty if the taxpayer de<ired fo submit n
proposttion to determine the net income for 1918 by decveasing the book fn-
ventory and incrcaxing the physieal fnventory by o Jike nmont and compute
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the additions! tav (hereen, nud agred to voluntarily pay that tex with ¢ per
eent from 1919 when the tax beeate due gt the tlme the report was mude, he
would give such proposition considrration end that it they did not desire to
dispose of the case In thly way that. he would render his declslon,

On Monday, December 17, T ealled Mr. Miller, and he and Mr. Inglis came
to this office; in the prosence of IMr. Cainon [ informed him of what the
commisgioner had sald and they s'ated thut they woeuld think the matter
over and let me know in a day or two,

B H. T

Evymr D
Januvary 11, 1424,
In re: American Blower Co.
Memorandum for file.

On January 9, Mr. Jumes Inglis called at this office and stated that he
desired to have another talk with the commissioner concerning the case of
the American Blower Co. and asked If I thought the commissioner would
objeet ro seeing him. I told him that ¥ did not know swhether the ¢ommis-
sfoner would see him or pot, but that he should discuss it with the comiis-
sloner's seeretary. The commiscioner’s office telephoned me that appointment
had been made for 11.45 January 10; the commissioner asked me to He present
at the conference.

Mr. Inglis stated to the commissloner that they Lind compuied the tax for
the yvears 1917 to 1920, tncluxive, on the basis of increasing the alleged physi-
cal inventory and decreasing the book Inventery half and half, or until the
two inventories met. 'he additional tax for 1918, computed on that basls,
amounts to $232.500.13, and the net additfonni tax for the years 1917 to 1020,
inclasive, less the overpuyment for 1919, amounts to S240,82443 without inter-
est or penalties,  Mr. Tnglis suted to the commissioner that he hud g certified
choek for 824082145 and wanted to submit that in fall satisfaction of all
Habliity and in full settlement of the ease. Mre, Inglis was advised by the
commissioner that as a result of the oral hearing granted this taxpayer here-
tofore, atd by reason of the statement that the taspayer desired o make an
adjustment of the whole mutter, it had been stated to them that he would
consider, without bhinding himself, as to what his final deelsion might be, o
proposttion from them to pay the additionsi tax en the hasis above-mentioned
which was found to amount to $240,82445, aud in Heu of penalties for the
year IS to pay interest on B232508.13 at 6 per cont from Mureh 150 1919,
the dufe tax beenme due, up o and inchuding Pecember 31, 1020

e, Inglis was mdvised that (he offer o pay the tay sonld not e eonsitdered
ws i fudl seitfentent of the eose. 3 Inglin stnted (o the commbaioner that
he did not know what the tixpaser contd do IF §t Liad o pay 6 per cont interest,
smounting {o S66.846.44, in addition to the amount Lo offerad, thereupon the
commiissioner nskoed Mr, Tngdic to wait in the cuter ofice until we conld diveass
the ease.

After My, Tnelix Joft the room the commixcioner ~tated that he thought
perhapy e wounld he justified in considering the proposttion frowm the (axpayver
to pav the tax of 824082445 and & per cont interest from Mareh 135, 1919, (o
Deeccmber 31, 1923, Thercupon T owent out and uwotined My, ITnelis that the
commiszcioner had stated that he would not consider the offer to ymy the taw
alone it that If he would submit an offer thvough the colleetor of Juternal rev-
ente to pay the correct aditional tax thus computed and, in gddition thereto, pay
intere«t on the 1912 additlonal tax ot the yoate of 5 per cont up fo and inelnding
Devcenmber 31, 1923, he wonld give the sane cavetnd consideratinon My, Inglis
Teft stating that he would think the matter over and let me know,

L1700 4 O O

The Cuarrman. Have you another case to present this morning,
Mr. Box?
Mr. Box, Yes sir
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STATEMENT OF MR. GEORGE G. BOX, CHIEY AUDITOR FOBR THE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Box, This is the case of the Draper Corporation, Hopedale,
M.

Thix tuxpayer was incorporated on July 3, 1916, under the laws of
the State of Maine,

It is » manufacturer of textile machinery.  The business origi-
nated in 1516 and was condueted as n partnership nutil 1897, when it
wits incorporated ax the Draper Co. under the taws of the State of
Maine.

The Draper Corporation was capitalized at 17,500,000 and we-
quired all of the stock of the Draper Co. The taxpayer issued 21,
shares of its common stock in exchange for one shave of the conmon
stock of the Draper Co., and 1Y) shares of its common stock for one
share of the preferred stock of the Draper Clo,

In the alleged reorganization of the rompany the assets of the old
corporation were carried on the books at the same values; with the
exception of patents, the value of which was increased from $100.000
to $0,000,000. The records indicate that there were over 1.200 pat-
ents at that time, which had an average life of slightly less than
Seven vears.

The questiens which have caused the burean considerable trouble
in deciding are whether or not the inerease in patent value written
vpon the books in 1916 should be allowed for invested capital pur-
poses, and if the increase is allowed, whether deprecintion on patents
should be allowed as a dednetion from income for each year from
1916 to the date of termiuntion of the patents.

The taxes for the yesrs 1917 and 1918 are involved and are still
unsettled.

The records are not altogether clear as reflecting the treatment of
this case in the depurtment. It would appear that the case was
oviginaily handled by the bonrd of tax vevievwers and aswessment of
an additional tax of S210.200,089 wis made o letter of July 190 1915,
weder section 210, articles 18, 240 and 32, et of 1917,

The tuxpayer tiled claim in abatement for this additional tax, in
the meantime appearing, through counsel, before the advisory tav
hoard,  As a result of this hearing the advisory cax board issued
valing on depreciation, disallowed by the unit on patents, which
ruling was set forth in memorandum No. 22, This memorandum is
Fxhibit A,

The case was then referved to the manufacturing section to make
assessment based upon this ruling and disallowanee of depreciation
on patent value. This additional assessment was made based upon
taxes as returned and independent of the assessment under seetion
2100 Claime in abatement was filed by the taxpayer for this addi-
tional assessment,  The case was then assigned to munition agent,
J.T. Shock, a speeial representative, but it appears that considerable
objection was made by the taxpaver relative to a field adit of its
records, and from June 5 to November 19, 1919, the investigation was
held in abevance, The field awdit was completed January 30, 1920,

JSThe tield andit report, in due course, was assigned for review.,
Assessient letter based upon facts developed through feld andit
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wis madod on June 3001920, coverimg additional tax of $3322062.01,
Numerous conferences were held, aned after due consideration being
griven objections raised by the taxpayer, revised axsessment letter was
constructed and mailed Jaly 50 1921, showinge an additional tax
Hability of S28T301.20 for 1917,

Claim in abatement was filed by the taxpaver.  The question was
submitted to the committee on appeals and review for consideration,
aud under date of January 15, 1923, 1t decided  (recommendation
290) that the action of the Income Tax Unit in the assessment of
additional taxes for the vears 1917 and 1918, due to disallowing
depreciation on patents in accordance with advisory tax board memo-
randum No. 22, veferved to above, be sustained,

The above recommen:lution is Ixhibit B.

Taxpayer appealed from the latter decision, and the ease was
again referred to the committee on appeals and review,  Under date
of March 27, 1924, the committee decided (recommendation 7336)
“that the arket value of the patents as at date of aequisition,
November 200 1916, was 55,000,000, which value should be aceepted
Iy the unit for both invested capital and depreciation purposes,”

(The above recommendation, is Kxhibit (')

The case was returned to the burean and referred to the auditor
who had previously worked on it for the purpose of taking final
action,  Lie, however, prepared a brief, under date of September 17,
124 and forwarded it to the deputy commissioner for signature,
with i view to having the Solicitor of Internal Revenue consider the
guestion, the committee ot appenls ond review having been abolished
Ly the revenue act ef 1921

A~ the auwditor took exception to the last deciston which was made
by the committee, it was retiened to the Solicitor for consideration,
because the Ald committee that made the decision had heen abolished.,

It appears that the principal giestion in this case is that of whether
or not a reovvanization actually took places as upon it depemds
whether the mereased valie of patents 1= allowable as ipvested
captinl, and whether a dedaction on accornt of deprecintion of
patents is proper,

The records show that under date of Jalv 5, 1916, a circeular letter
wirs addiessed to the stockholders of the Draper oo a part of which
s quoted as folows:

For vavions reasons it is advisable that the eapital stock representing the
assels of the Draper Coo should more peariy represent the aetual yvalue of the
property, Furthermore, the salue of the shares of e present Draper Co, s
so hizh as to interfore seriously with the mavket of the stoch, We ave adyvised
that the preposed exchange of stock i< the simplest sind most practical way of
stvtiring (he desieed rosoltse We thepetfove beliove it 1o he advantageous to
the compuny nnd s woekholdors,

The preferved stoek of the present Draper Co, wae issted at the sriginal
ovgan.zation of the company, when its assets were much smaller than at
present, and when atd the stork, both common and preferred, wias closely
heldo The wmount omtstianding iy comparatively =imall, We have, therafore,
provided that the new company should onldy huave one class of stoek,

Thai is the time that the alleged reorganization took place, or
along abont that time. When asked for a balanee sheet, as at Jaly 1,
1916, the date the slleged veorganization took place, the corporation
submitted a balance sheet which it elaiimed was ™ a very accurate esti-
ute of the hooks on the day of transfer.”
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Under date of March 23, 1922, Mr. C. F. Butierworth, assistant
treasurer, declined to furnish a list of the stockbolders of the two
commpanies. When in conference representatives of the corporation
stated that all holders of stock in the old corporation exchanged
their stock as provided for in the circular.

The books of the Diraper Corporation were simply a continuation
of those of the Draper (0., so i’z)n' as current transactions were con-
cerned. There was no closing of the books at the time of the alleged
reorganization, but merely an increase in the asset represented by
patents, as above mentioned.

From the evidence in the case indicatingr that the same stockholders
owned the stock in the new corporaiion in the same propoitions as
they held in the old corporation; that the books were not closed;
that the only effect of the alleged réorganization was an increase
in the asset, patents; and that sccording to the circular letter of the
company of July 5, 1916, above referred to, it appears that the action
of teking out a new charter was for the purposs of adjusting the
amount of capital stock so that it would represent more clearly the
actual value of the assets; it is very questionable whether a vecrgani-
zation took place that should be recognized by the Internal Revenue
Bureau to the extent of allowing the appreciated value placed on the
patents in computing invested capital.

The case was before the solicitor for decision when called for by
the committee and has not as yet been closed, but attention is invited
to the fact that the first decision in this case by the advisory board
was May 21, 1919, six years ago, and it would appear that the case
should be finally disposed of without further delay.

Those are all the cases that we have to present this movning, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. Greas. In connection with this last case, the objections on the
part of Mr. Box, as J got them, was, first, the delay which, of conrse,
we plead guilty to. I think the delay in onr ¢losing of some of these
eases has been fully explained to the committee. and there 13 no need
of our taking further time on that now.

The other objeciion was (o our consitdering this reorganizstion 1
i916 and allowmg the new corporation to sef the assets up on it
books at their then value. In looking through the files I find that
there is an old advisory tax boerd memorandum, dated May 21, 1819,
signed by Dre, TS0 Adams, which bolds that that was reorgunization,
justifying them in setting up the new values on their books. There
18 a subsequent one, signed by Mr, Kingman Brewster, reaching the
sgame (‘(mc‘usi(m, and & third one, signed by Mr. Hamel, who is at
the present time the chairman of the board of tax appeals, veaching
that conclusion. It was gone into three times very thoroughly in
the department, and on each oceasion the same conclusion wis
reached. [t would seem to me from the record that they give
sufficient detailed reasons for the department’s treating thiz as o
reorganization,

That leaves only the matter of delay.

sSenator Erxsr, What Mr. Adams was that that made that veport?

Mr. Grece, Dro TS0 Adums,

The Coammax. Of Yale?

Mr. Greea. Yes,

Mr. Box. Is Doctor Adams a Inwyer?,
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Mr. Greea. No. The first was made, ns T say, by the advisory tax
board, the fawyer of which was Mre. Fred Field, of Boston, and he
is & very able lawyer. ‘The other two were also signed by very able
luwyers,

Senator Joxes of New Mexico. How ean you value patent righta?

Mr. Grece, Tt is very difficult, Senator, but we have to do it. The
law specifically sayvs that patents go into invested capital at their
value at the time paid in for stock. We have to put & value on them,
and it is natarally a very difficult thing to do.

Seuator Joxes of New Mexico. Apparenily in this case they had
been carrying those patents on their L(mks at $100,000 and when it
cones to the question of taxation, invested capital, depreciation, and
so on, they changed that value to $5,000,000.

Mr. Grece. I might say that they changed it before the tax situa-
tion arose. They changed it on their books on January 1, 1916,

The CuamyaN. Ves: but not until the tax laws bad been passed.

Mr. Greaa. No exeess profits tax Inw had been passed.

Mr. Bex. Was there aot a great deal of discussion tn the press, or
in certain ¢narters, at any rate, about the excess-profits tax, about
19164

Mr. Greca, T do not know. The first excess tax profits law was
not passed until October 3, 1917, There may have been some talk
about it.

Senator Joxks of New Mexico. There was depreciation allowed
under the law, was ther» not?

Mi. Grece, Yes, sir.

The Cuamsax, And. of course. the depreciation on $5.000,000
voeuld be much greater than it would be on $100,000,

Mr. Gurca, Of course, in 1916 the tax situation wus not particu-
larly scute. The tax rate was not high enough to justify a reorvgani-
sation for taxation purposes.  The rvate was just 2 per cent.

The Criamyax. T think Mr. Manson will be able to be present to-
morrow morning, atdd if there is nothing further now we will ad-
Journ until 10 o'cloek to-morrow morning. Mro Manson as 3l this
morning and has not heen able to come here,

(Kxhibits in Draper Corporation case submitted by Mr. Dox are
as follows:)

oxmmir A
SECTUNN 324 ~INVESTED CAPITAL

Seefion 226, Avticle NE£V 0 Surplus and nodivided | rofits patenis,
Nection 21108, Article 167,

Clidm of the X Corporation for valuation of $5,000,000 for patents conveyed
te It at the date of its organization, Jaly 1, 1916, should be allowed. Such
patent valuation, however, i« maintnined by expenditures for new patents and
{0 some extent merges into good will; therefore no altowance should be made
for annual depreciation of patents,

Mav 21, 1919,
Mr, COMMISSIONER
(Foxr Mr, Callan) :

The X Corporation filad an execessprofits tax return for the year 1917, show-
ingr g net income subject to exeessprofifs tax of RGO IN02 aud an invested
capital for the yeae of SIGAHTHISKL, with n ¢ per coent deduetion and an
exeexs-profits tax of K2080.7 L
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The guestions at Issue are two: (1) The value of certnin patents paid in
for eapital stock of a par valoe of $5,000,000, and (2) the allowability of «
deduetion of $315, 740 from lnconw in T on account of deprecintion of
patents,  'Phese gquestions were considered by the fas veviewers who held o
Learing thercon ut which the taxpayer was represented by two of its offleers
pud by counsel, The tax reviewers did not reach g conchiston and the juatter
was informally reforred by them to the advisory tax board,

The coneern is wn ohd one, having been established in 1816, For a long time
the business was conducted as apartuership, but in 1897 it was organized (or
roorganized for present purposes it Ix immaterial which) Into the ¥ Co.,, which
eperated the business until on or about July 1, 1916, when the X Corporation
was orgonized, The Y Coo at July 1, 1916, had outstanding the followin,]
capital stock:

22, 000, 000
6, 000, 000

The capitalization of the ¢ Corporation s 817,500,000, and this stock under
the plan of organization was i=sued as fellbhws

{¢) For each share of common stock of the Y Co,, par value £100, there was
issued In exchange two and cne-half shares of the common stock of the X
Corporation, par value $250. or a total of $15.000,000.

(b) For cach shave of preferred stock of the Y Co, par value $100, there
was issued 1o exchange one and one-fourth shares of the common stock of the
N Corporation, par value $125, or a total of $2,600,600. In form this wax an
exchange of stock dor stock, but in substanee the X Corporation aequirved the
ussets wnd assamed the Habilitiox of the Y Co, and i has so treated the
iransactions vpon its own books und desives to xo treat it for purpo~es of
income and cxcess-profits taxation.  In view of the value of the property
acquired it v immaterial, for present purposes, whether the N Corpoeration
acquired the capital stoel of the 3 Coo oy avquired its assets,  Inoeither cuse
the vabue claimed tfor the capita  stock issued by the Y Co. 15 supported by
adequitte evidence, and prior to January 1, 1917, the arsets of the Y Co. had
actually been transferred o the X Corporation.

The X Corporatinn {ook over the assets of the Y Co. at taciv book value,
with the exception of the item of patents, For muany yesrs the X and Y con-
corn has been a leader in the development of machinery for the manufiacture
of text le goods,  When the business was acquired by the Y o, in 1807 a
valuath .o of $H00,000 was placed upon the patents, and so far as the record
discloses this valuation does not seem to be unreasonable.  Between 1897 and
1016 the ¥ Co. had written off against its surplus acceount varietus swounts
whichh reduced the patent account eventually to $100,000, which was con-
“idered a nominal awmount and in ne sense an indication of the real value of
the patents. Noue of these write offs were taken as deductions in computing
net tncome for Federal taxation purposes. Between 180T und 1986 ihe com-
pany developed o Tnvge number of new patents and maoy of the old patents
capired.

Daring these years, however, the business of the company hus ot been
dapendent upon any single patent, but rather upon g large group of patents,
which in the aggregate have afforded the company ample protection. The
toti) nuwmber of patents ix in the weighborhood of 1,200, and it has been the
compuny’s policy through constant experimentation to improve its machines
aud devices, bat as the pioneer stage of the industry has long since been
passed, the advancement that can be made is not by revelutionary dixcoveries,
it through improvements, many of which ave of minor chargeter and would
menan little standing by themselves, Taken as a whole, however, these im-
provements form a wall of defense that secms impreginable,  The company has
also purchased patents that have been developed by others, and it has defended
its elaims with appsarent success throuvgh litigation.  All expenditures for the
development off patents, experimentation, purchase of patenis, and patent
dtigation were writen off as current expenses, and while the amount of these
expenditures is not definitely stated in the record, it is admitted that it is
large,

In the reorgunization of the Y Co. in 1916 a valuation of 35,000,000 was
placed upon patents, and the X Corporation seeks to maintaln thix as a fair
value of the property acquired st the date of reorganization. It is evident
that the patents have a large value, Whether thix is 85,000,L00 or some other
awmount may be open to question, but upon the basls of earnings nnd alvo wpon




INVESTIGATION OF BUREAU OF INTERHAL REVENUE 3500

the basis of the xelling prive of the stock of the corporation, the valuation
claimed by the company appears to be justitted, I s (hevefore teeommended
thui the clgim of the X Corporation to value of patents acquived by 1t at
July i, 1916, in the sum of $5 000,000 be allowed,

The Y Co, hay presented evdence clansifying jts patents ax of July 1, 1916,
inte 2 muin groups, with 19 subordinste groups under the firgt division and ¢
sabordinate groups nider the second, showing the average life of the patents
in cach group. In the ageregate there are 1,284 patents, with o total average
remaining life after July 1, 1916, of 6.97 years, Upon the basis of a valuation
of $3.000,000, but not asing the average Iife factor of V7 vears, which was
not ascertained until the return was under audit, the company has taken in
ity 1997 retura a deduction of §515,745 for deprecintion of patents, This
clnim should be denied.  As stated above, the Y Co, throughout the years of
its existence maintained the value of ity patents through expenditures for
experimentation, litization, and the purchase of patents, and all of thexe ex-
penditures were taken as deduciions from current income, "The X Corporation
s proceeded upon the same buxiness plan, and has continued the experimental
and othe » work looking to the development of new devices and the acquisition
of new patents, While the expenses thus inceurred during the taxable year
(except for one item of legal patent expenses) have been merged with the other
expenses of the business, it is evident that they are large. Thus the whole
polley of the company continues to be that of maintaining its patent position
through the development und acquisition of patents upon varieus fmprove-
ments, &0 that as a basfe or important patent expires there will he a sutfieient
group of improvements upon the device to render the unimproved deviee as an
unmarketable commodity,  Furthermore, it is well recognized that in many
eases the value of a4 patent upen its expieation ix found te have merged into
the good-will value of the business,  The present cuxe is an exeellent illustra-
tion of this fact. A very large portion of the textile mills of the country ave
equipped with X machinery, and for this cquipment they must buy X repnir
parts (and this ix always a highly profituble part of a machinery manufae-
trer’s business), and in the eave of milt makine plant additions, it X equip-
ment is already in use the chanees are highly favorable for the purchise of X
equipment for the additional plant. To put in other equipment mesans, asmong
other disadvantages, that the mill must earcry two stocks of supply and repair
parts, and cun not readily interchange s employees from ence Kind of eguip-
ment to another. ‘has, if all the X patents were to expire concurrently on a
given date, the business could doubtless be mainteined at a high level for
vears, because of the wood will which has been built up under the patent
protection.  The history of the predecessor corporation shows conclusively that
the patent vatue has been maintained @ in fact, more than maintained, hocnuse
the compauy in H7 claimed only a patent value of XEOG0.000, while in 1916
fHocas demomadrnted o valus of X5000,000,

The N Corporation has ~ubmiticd satisfadtory proof showinge that for 20
vours, althogh the bosde patents which were i existence gt the beginning of
the period have expived, the value of the pifents has bheen mere than main-
tained by weans of bmprovements apen the ovicinal devices,  Tlaving proved
this, it hav failed vo produce any evidence that the value of the patents will
he exlaasted before July 1, 1923, or oven that the tota! value will be impaired
in the near future,  Hs expenditaees daring the year 1917 for the malnte-
nance of patents have heen deducted in ecomputing ner income, as is usnally
doue In sneh g business, and the oxperiencee of the prst demonstrates that the
inteority of the company’s assets s amply mmiatained thereby, It is there-
fore recommended thar the deduetion of the X Corporation ia its 1917 income-
tax return of the swm of SH1G5,745 for depreciation on fts patents be  dis-
allowed, '

T, 8 ApAas,
Chairman Advisory Tar Board,

Accepted for the guldanee of the Income Tax Unit.

Daxien O, Rorex,
Commissionsr.
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. ExHisiT B
RECOMMENDATION NO. 2200

COMMITIEE ON APPEALS AND HEVIEWS,
January 13, 1923.

In re: Appeal of the Draper Corporation, Hopedale, Mass,

Mr. COMMIBBIONER
(For Deputy Commissioner, HHead Income Tax Unit) :

The commitiee has had under consideration the appeal of the Draper Cor-
poration trom the action of the Income 1Tax Unit in assessing additional taxes
for the years 19i7 and 1918 due to:

1. Disallowing depreciation on patents in accordance with Tax Board Memo-
randum 22,

2. Disallowing claimed value of assets acquired by appellant as a basis for
paid-in or earned surplus. ’

3. Accrual of mutual insurance, v

4. The use of beok rather than actual cash values in the computation of
profit or loss on sale of securities.

5. Disallowing sufficient depreciation on plant items.

Oral hearjngs have been afforded the representatives of the appellant.

The Draper Corporation was organized under the laws of the Stiate of
Maine July 3, 1916, succeeding to the busines< of manufacturing machinery
for use by manufacturers of textile goods formerly conducted by the Draper
Co., which had been organized in 1896. The appellant company had as author-
ized capital stock of a par value of §$17,600,000, all of which was given in
exchange for the stock of the Draper Co.

Draper Corporation: $15,000,000 common and §2,600,000 preferred, total
$17,600,900, exchanged for $6,000,000 common and $2,000,000 preferred in the
Draper Co. Total par value, $8,000,000.

Under date of July 5, 1916, notice was sent the stockholders of the proposed
arrangement by which the stock in the Draper Co. should be surrendered in
exchange for stock in the Draper Corporation. Within a few days after the
notice nearly all of the stock in the Draper Co. had bheen surrendered. On
November 20, 1916, when less than 500 shares of common stock of the Draper
Co, remained outstanding. all of the assets of the Draper Co. were transferred
to the Draper Corporation, subject to all of its liabilities, and subsequently
the remaining common stock of the olll company was surrendered on the same
basis as the rest of the stock.

The appellant took over the assets of the Draper Co. at their book value,
with the exception of the item of patents, which was written up from $100,000
to $5,000,000. No other change was made in the books and the books were not
closed until the end of the year.

The appellant’s claimed value of $5,000,000 for patents was considered in
Advisory Tax Board Memorandum No. 22, and the conclusion reached in that
ruling was that the $5,000,000 should be allowed for invested capital purposes
at date of reorganization, subject to the statutory limitations, but that as the
value of the patents had so merged into good will no depreciation on that value
could be taken as a deduction from income.

After a careful consideration of all the facts presented and a review of
Tax Board Memorandum 22, the committee is of the opinion that the evidence
fails to prove that the value of the patents and good will will be impaired,
much less exhausted, in the near future, and affirms the conclusions in the
above-mentioned memorandum,

It is the contention of the appellant that it is entitled to include as invested
capital the cash value of the assets acquired from the Draper Co., rather than
to have its invested capital determined by the value at which these assets were
carried on the books of the predecessor company.

After a careful consideration of the evidence presented it is the opinion of
the committee that the assets of the Draper Co. were in effect acquired by
the appellant as of July 1. 1918, and the appellant is permitted under the
statute to include in invested ecapital the cash value of the assets as of the
date acquired, but that under the regulations and the established precedents of
the bureau governing cases wheie shares are issned for a mixed aggregate of
tangible and intangible property no paid-in surplus may be allowed in the
instant case. '

\
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It appears that the appellant bas charged to expense in the year paid the
total of mutual insurance premiums, without regard to the length of the life
of the policy, and reported as income the refund preminm in the year received.
Objection Is made to the action of the unit in disallowing as expense in any
yeur amounts of prepaid insurance.

After a careful consideration of the evidenve presented it is the opinion of
iho committee that the insurance preminms paid in any year should be appor-
tioned over the life of the policy and acerued on that basis, and that as there
is no method of accurately prodicting the awount of the refund premium it
~hould be reported as income in the year received.

The Income Tax Unit has conceded that upon proper substantintion the fair
maiket value as at acquisition by the appellant of the securities and plant
items should be the basis for the computation of profit or loss on the sale of
securities and the basis for depreciation allowance on the plant items,

1t is therefore recommended in the appeal of the Draper Corporation that
the action of the Income Tax [Mnit in the assessment of additional taxes for
the year: 1917 and 1918, due to disallowing depr eiation on pe.ents in ae-
cordance with the T. 3. M. 22, and disallowing, because of conditions and
limitations preseribed in the rvegulations, the claim for paid-in surplus, be
sustained. It is further recommended that the mutual insurance premivms
paid in any year be apportioned over the life of the poliey and acerved on that
basis, and that the amount of the refund premiums bhe reported as income in
the vear received : and that upon proper substautiation the fair market value
as at acquisition by the appellant of the securities and depreciable assets he
used as the basis for the computation of profit and loss on the sale of securi-
ties and the basis for depreciation allowauces.

KiNGMAN BREWSTER,
Chairman Conunittee on Appeals and Review.

Exumir ¢
RECOMMENDATION NO, 7336 (NOT TO BE PUBLISHED)

COMMITTEE ON APPEALS AND REVIEW,
March 27, 1924,
In re: Appeal of the Draper Corporation, IHopedale, Mass,, years 1917 and 1918,

Mr. COMMISSIONER
(For Deputy Commissioner, Head Income Tax Unit) :

The committee and the solicitor have had under consideration former recom-
mendations in the appeal of the Draper Corporation from the nction of the
Income Tax Unit in assessing additional taxes for the years 1917 and 1918,
due to—

1. Disallowing depreciation on patents in sccordance with advisory tax
hoard ruling. )

2. Disallowing claimed value of assets acquired by the ngpellant as a basis
for paid-in surplus.

3. Denying as cost to the appellant the cash surrender value of mutual in-
surance premiums acquired with the other assets,

After thorough consideration of the evidence of record the following con-
clusions have been reached:

(1) That the assets of the Draper Corporation were acquired by the ap-
pellant on November 20, 1916.

(2) That the market value of the patents as at date of acquisition, Novem-
ber 20, 1916, was $5.000,000, which value should be accepted by the unit for
hoth invested capital and depreciation purposes,

(3) That on acount of the large number of patents and the difficulty of
attributing values to particular patents, depreciation should be based upon
the aggregate value of the patents spread over the average life thereof.

(4) That no part of the patent valuation, $3,0600.060, should he excluded from
invested capital on the ground that a paid-in surplus can not be based upon
intangibles acquired with stoek for the reason that in this case the assets of
the Draper Co. were not acquired with stock of the appellant corporation, but
were gequired with tangible property—stock of the Draper Co.

92019—25--r1 17—13
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(6) And. that the cash-surrender value of the mutuai-insurance policles as
glven by the insurance companies should be taken as the value of these policles
as at the date of acquisition, and the amount to be charged off as insurance
expense for the year should be determined by the difference hetween the cash-
surrender value at the beginning and the eng of that year.

That part of the committee’s recommendation dated January 13, 1923, and
that part of the advisory tax board’s memorandum dated May 21, 1919, cov-
ering this case inconsistent with this recommendation are hereby revoked.

It is recommended that the Income Tax Unit revise 1ts audit in accordance
with the findings as above outlined.

CuARLER 1), HAMEL,
Chairman Committee on Appeals and Review.
Approved :
- D. H. Bram,
Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

(Whereupon, at 11.30 o’clock a. m., the committee adjourned until
to-morrow, Tuesday, May 5, 1925, at 10 o’clock a. m.)
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TUESDAY, MAY 5, 1025

UNITED STATES SENATE,
Srecrarn CoMMITTEE 10 INVESTIGATE
THE Burkav or INTERNAL RevenNve,
Washington, D. .

The committee met at 10 o’clock a. m. pursuant to the adjournment

of yesterday.
resent: S nators Couzens (presiding), Watson, and Ernst.

Present also: Mr. George . Box, chief auditor for the committee.

Present on behalf of the Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mr. C. R.
Nash, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, and Mr.
A, W, Gregg, solicitor, Burean of Internal Revenue.

The CrairmaN. You arve prepared to submit some matters to the
committee this morning, Mr. Box?

Mr. Box. Yes, sir.

The Camman. You may proceed.

STATEMENT OF MR. GEORGE G. BOX, CHIEF AUDITOR FOR THE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Box. This is the case of the estate of George A. Joslyn, of
Omaha, Nebr,

My, Joslyn died in 1916 testate, leaving a few specific bequests
m)(; the residue of his estate, approximatvl,y $7,000,000, to his
widow, ’ '

When the estate tax investigation was made of the retuin, the
total estate of the decedent was taxed, but the widow claimed that
und. r the law of the State of Nebraska she had an inchoate right
to one-half of this estate, and on account of there being no children.
in lien of dower, that her half interest was not taxable under the
1916 act.

The 1916 act provided, among other things, that only the integest
of the decedent was taxable.

The attorneys for the widow, who was also the executrix, filed a
claim for the refund of the tax on the one-half interest, which the
widow claimed was hers, and not taxable under the will.

This claim was denied. T think it was in the year 1918 that the
claim was denied.

In the year 1920, in the case of United States v. Field, the Supreme
Court held that the interest of a widow in the estate of her husband,
in the State of Illinois, was not taxable by the Federal Govern-
ment for estate tax, and it is very evident that the same kind of a
law is in effect in Illinois as in Nebraska. Also in Randolph ».

3513
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Craig (267 Fed. 993), a case decided in the State of Tennessee, the
same decision was made.

As the result of these decisions, the estate tax regulations were
amended by Treasury Decision 3165 on May 18, 1921,

Two years afterwards, or in May, 1923, two men by the name of
Kay. who were formerly employees of the estate tax division, visited
Omaha, called on the firm of attorneyss who represented this
widow, and stated to them that on account of their knowledge of
the estate tax law and the decisions which were in effect in the
bureau at that time, they thought they could secure a refund of part
of*the tax. They were employed, and received a power of attorney
from the widow. The power of attorney which they secured gave
them the power of substitution. They not heing authorized to prac-
tice before the bureau, substituted *an attorney by the name of
Hamby, in Washington, to prosecute the case.

The bureau considered for some time whether they would acknowl-
edge this power of substitution from Kay and Kay, because of their
previous activities in getting this kind of case under the same cir-
cumstances. So the Kays got a power of attorney direct to Hamby.
Then Hamby was allowed to prosecute the case.

After a lapse of about 10 months.the bureau found that there
was a refund due this widow of $322,174.27. A certificate of over-
assessment was icsued i June, 1924, for that amount, and interest
from the date of payment to that time of $131,961.55 was paid—
in all about $453,000.

The record of the case shows that suit was brought by the Kays
against the widow for their fee. She refused to pay the fee on the
ground that they had made misrepresentations to her in securing the
job, but that does not enter into the case.

The bureaun, in corresponding with the attorneys, stated that they
had made a thorough investigation and tried to find out if there
was any leak in the estate-tax division whereby they were getting
this information, or whether they got the information before they
left ; but, regardless ¢f that fact, it seems to me that if the bureau
had. after amending their regulations in 1921, brought this claim
up there would have been no opportunity for Kay or any other
employvee of the bureau to come in and take such an unethical action
as was taken in this case.

In other words, the Government had $322.000 worth of taxes of
this woman, which she had made a claim for. Regardless of subse-
quent decisions, after the case had heen closed, no action was taken
to refund that money which was rightfully hers.

Mr. Grese. As I gather from your remarks, Mr. Box, the criti-
cism of the bureau is that this closed case, a case which was properly
closed, and in which a refund was denied under our rulings at the
time it was closed, was affected by a subsequent decision of the Su-
preme Court, that we should then, on our own motion, have some-
body in the department who remembered this claim, to go and look
it up, open it, and make a refund on it, or else that we should have
gone through the files to see if there were any of those cases that
were affected by the decision, and made the refund ourselves, so that
it wou;d not have been necessary for the widow to Lave taken any
action

\
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Mr. Box. I think the bureau should have a system whereby claims
especially of large amounts which have been turned down erro-
neously, should be refunded when there is authority for it.  Accord-
ing to this Supreme Court decision, there is no question but that the
Government had over $300,000 worth of taxes which had been erro-
neously collected and to which the Government had no right.

Mr. Grrce. And the first time that was calied to our attention
after that decision we refunded it.

Mr. Box. Yes; but atter somebody who was in the bureau had gone
to the taxpayer and had made representations to the taxpayer.

Mr. Grrcs. We would have done it just the same, even 1f she her-
self had written in a letter calling our attention to it. The last time
1 looked into this matter we had 68,000 claims pending in the Income
Tax Unit alone, and after having had a decision adverse to us we
can not examine all of those claims to see if somebody is not entitled
to a refund. Tt seems to me the taxpayers should look it up and
protect their own rights in the matter.

Mr. Box. How was the widow to know of this refund after vou
had changed the regulations, and after she had done all she could in
filing the claim in the first place?

My, Nasu. Mr. Chairman, this Treasury decision was public in-
formation at the time it was issued. Qur 'Treasury decisions are
published every week, and the attorneys in this ease ought to have
been familiar with that decision. Practically every attorney’s office
in the country gets our weekly Treasury decisions.

Mr. Greca. And they certainly ought to be familiar with a
Supreme Court decision, which is in itself a matter of public record.

Mr. Nasu. Mr. Chairman, I am quite familiar with this case,
Kay and Kay. two brothers, were formerly employees of the estate
tax unit.  After they resigned they attempted to be admitted to prac-
tice before the Treasury Department. They never have been admit-
ted to practice, and the Treasury Department has never looked with
any favor upon them at all: but they did in some way secure informa-
tion as to certain cases that were pending in Nebraska and Iowa in
which this community property issue was involved.

Senator Warsox. Who are Kay & Kay?

Mr. Nasu. They are two attorneys here in Washington formerly
employees of the estate tax unit.

Mr. Box. Would it not be practicable in cases of this kind, Mr.
Nash, to have a file whereby an amended regulation would automati-
cally call it up, so that the taxpayer would have the claim opened up
with?nut giving temptation to employees in the bureau to take up a
case? '

Senator Erxsr. Mr. Box, the trouble is that nearly every lawyer.
and especially in a case of any magnitude, is watching that all the
time to keep tab on 68,000, to see if some decision of the Supreme’
Court might not affect some one of those; you can see where that
would lead to.

Mr, Box. T admit that the lawyers in this case were asleep.

Mr. Nasi. Mr. Chairman, we might do it on the estate-tax cases,
- because they are not so numerous, but on the income-tax cases it
would be a physical impossibility. There are 68,000 cases pending,
besides hundreds of thousands that have already been closed. We
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now have a decision on the income-tax eases, known as the Alworth-
stevens deeision, whick has just been handed down by the Supreme
Conrt and which is probably going to affect thousands of cases that,
have already been closed. Those cases have been closed in the reg-
hr order of business during the past five years, and we could not
hegin to make a search of our files to see how many cases this
Alworth-Stevens decision is going to affect, and unies. ke taxpayers
raise the issue themselves, they probably will not get any refund.

Mr. Gredo, That is properly a funcetion of the attorneys of the
taxpayers, it seems to me,

Jhe Cuawenax, But this ease was disposed of. This widow’s
attorneys had undoubtedly been paid and were discharged,  They
may have had a row and had no further imtevest in her ease, Do -
nnderstand that in an event of that kind there is no responsibility on
the part of the Government to the taxpayver. and that some attorney
that she has had three or four years previously must be held respon-
sthie for guarding her interests after he had been paid and dis-
charged? 1 am not saying that T have any practical solation for it,
but I do say that there s a responsibility somewhere: and the re-
sponsibility should te fixed as between the Government and the
taxpayer. so that the taxpayer may get justice,  We have been com-
plaming right along in these cases because we thought the Govern-
ment was too lenient with the money of these taxpayers, and onr able
younyg solicitor has told us that there are a number of cases where
it was too severe with the taxpayer. I said, * Well, we will probably
find some of those before we get through.™  Now, here is a ease in
vegard to which T believe the hureau has not bheen as Hberal and fair
with the taxpayer as it should have been. 1 believe some system
ought to be devised or some statute passed whereby the taxpayer
will get justice, and especially widows and orphans, where their
attorneys may have been through with the case and could not mor-
ally or legally be held responsible for making a claim,

Mr, Grraa, We would be very glad if some methoa could he de-
vised which would give justice in all cases. However, I do net feel
that there is any possible eriticism of the bureau in this case. We
closed the ease properly. It was in aceordance with our existing
rulings, and the Supreme Court subsequently reversed us. Now, it
seems to me that inan estate of this size someone vepresenting the
taxpayer should he intevested enough in it to wateh it closely and to
have taken advantage of the Supreme Conrt’s decision, 1 do not
think it is up to the burenu, when it has properly disposed of it, to
then keep tab on it {o see if some subsequent event may allect it,
He would be highly desirable to do as you say. but having passed on
it properly once, I think then, as a practical matter, we have done all
we can. We can not keep a suspense file forever to see if those
euses may be affected by some subsequent decision,

The Coamesran, s a matter of fact, somebody did keep tab on it
and that is one of the publie eriticisms, that emplovees of the
burean do keep tab on these eases, and then when they are removed
or resign they go out and tip off th- taxpayers as to how they may
get their money back, and they get a rake-ofl for doing it.  That is a .
wrong Kind of method to enconrage,
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Mr. Greas. Tt is wrong, and I am perfectly certain that we are
not encouraging it.  We have had intelligence men following this
for years, trying to cateh them.

The Ciiamesax. Nog the system is encournging its T do not say
that vou are,

Nenator Warsox, Sepator, do you say that after this decision which
has been recently rendered, a good many of those eases down there
should be opened up. those cases that might be affected by this de-
ersion? I yvou were to do that you would have to have a special
foree in the bureau.

The Cramesrax, 1 said i the beginnine of my remarks that T do
not have any solution at this time hut 1 do believe that some solution
slould be had of these problems, so that these msiderg can not go
sround and prey upon the taxpavers,  Here were the emplovees of
the estate tax nnit, who, from their entrance into the burean, kept a
memorandum of all of these eases, and immediately the Supreme
Court decided the question, they have gone around and solicited all
these easos and got a rake-off from the taxpavers for doing something
which they were not justified in doing and for wkhich the taxpayer
should not have had to pay.

Senator Warson. Was that done!?

The Cramsan. That was done, and that is the reason why those
cases come up here. Two employees by the name of Kay went out
and solicited this account,

Senator Frxsr. Of course, you have to have employees, and you
enn not always be assured that those employvees will do their full duty
while in the employ of the Government or after they have left it.
1 you conld adopt some practical rule of making every man honest,
Loth while he is in the employ of the Government and after he has
left it, you would get some practical solution of this question,  But
there is no practical solution to it; there is no way of doing it.

The Cramaax, Well, I ean not admit that,

Senator Krxsr, No: but 1 say there is no way of keeping a man
who s dishonestly inclined from acting dishonestly.  They have
done it since the world began, and they wiil continue to do it. 1
think it is an absolutely absurd contention.  You arve trving to say
that because of o Supreme Court decision. although there were
tindreds of thousands of eases already determined and 68,000 pend-
inge, that somebody onght to have rashed off to these people and said.
“Herve. we have made a mistake: take vour money back™ As a
practical question, 1 do not think theve is anvthing in it for that
renson.  You have mentioned one case, and without knowing any-
thing about it. 1 think the chances are a thousand to one that
i any case of any size the attorney for the taxpaver who had been
following that ease noticed that decision,and ealled it up subsequently
#nd had a refunder.  Now, the number of cases in whiceh that is not
done—1 imagine there i no way of counting them up-—would be
infinitesimal as comparved with the total number of cases pending,

The Coxmmas. I am not sure that I understood you. Did you
say that the attorneys looked this ease up?

Senutor Krxst, Nog I am not talking about this case. I speak
generally. For instanee, I am an attorney. Suppose my firm had a
case before the department and the department decided it adversely.
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Subsequently a decision of the Supreme Court was vendered which
entitled my client to a refunder. I would not have to have anybody.
in or out of the department, come to me and tell me about it. Our
firm gets those decisions; we note them regularly, and we ourselves
would notify the elient that that client was entitled to a refunder.

As T say, as a practical question this does not present any difficulty.
It is solved, and solved by every 1z w firm in the United States that
knows how to leok after the rights of a taxpayer.

Mr. Box. In this case, when the claim was made originally, it was
contended the pavment of the tax on the widow’s interest was
erroneous, and everything was done which could be done by her to
protect her own interests,

Senator Fpxsr. She had a elaim at that time?

Mr. Box. A elaim was made on the very point that the Snpreme
Court decided, and that was that she was paying a tax on an interest
which the decedent did not have. Tt was her interest.

Senator Kensr. I understand that fully, and I also understand that
the department rendered this decision, whether rightly or wrongly,
and then when the decision which the department had rendered
was shown to be wrong by the decision of the Supreme Court. I say,
where were her original attorneys in the matter that thev did not
know what the decision of the Supreme Court was and how it
affected any finding of the department? I say that in nine hundred
and ninety-nine cases out of a thousand you will find that the attor-
neys who represented the taxpayer orviginally are keenly on the look-
out for any decision affecting any matter that they had before the
department.

fr. Greaa. They certainly should have done so in this case, because
they raised the very point when' they filed their return which was
subsequently decided by the Supreme Court. It seems to me that
they would watch that question closely enough to have known that
it was pending in the courts and that they should have taken advan-
tage of the decision of the Supreme Court when it was handed down.

Mr. Nasu. This is not an isolated case in that conununity. There
are hundreds of such cases in Iowa and Nebraska that were affected
by this decision, and I presume all of them received refunds.

Senator Er~nsr. That is the point exactly. It is a practical ques-
tion. That is the point I am making, and that does not amount to
anything.

Mr. Nasu. Kay & Kay did reach a number ¢f taxpayers in that
vicinity. They did in many cases just what they did in this case—
they went out and solicited the business and got a contract to divide
the refund between themselves and the taxpayer.

The Cuamman. This has developed an evil which has not been
apparent in the record as yet, and notwithstanding the statement of
Senator Ernst, T still say that the (Government has some responsi-
bility to its citizens, and the Government should not be expected to
rely upon attorneys to protect its citizens.

Mr. Nas. Well, the purpose of our publishing Treasury decisions
and rulings and the purpose of publishing the decisions of the board
of tax appeals is to keep the public informed of the Government’s
pesition on disputed points.

Senator Ernst. The courts of this land, with all of the experience
which they have had from the beginning of our Government up to
the present time, find very great difficulty in protecting the rights
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of those that ~ppear before the courts, unless the attorneys for the
parties do their duty, and that is where it will have to rest.
The CHARMAN. You may present your next case, Mr. Box.

STATEMENT OF MR. GEORGE @&. BOX, CHIL'F AUDITOR FCR THE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Box. The next case is that of the Roessler & 1lasslacher
Chemical Co., of New York.

This corporation was incorporated under the laws of the State
of New York in May, 1889, for the purpose of dealing in the manu-
facture of chemicals, It was capitalized at $650,000. On January
24, 1911, the capital was increased by the issnance of 6,500 shares,
at $100 each, making a total capitalization of $1,300,000,

For the years 1917, 1918, and 1919 the taxpayer owned 100 per
cent of the stock of the Mexican Roessler & Hasslacher Co. of New
York City; 59 per ¢ent of the Niagara Electro Chemical Co., Ningara
Falls, N. Y.; and 51 per cent of the stock of the Perth Amboy
Chemical Works, Perth Amboy, N. J.

The Income Tax Unit decided on June 3, 1920, that the last two
above-named companies were not affiliated with the taxpayer. It
was subsequently decided by the unit that these companies were affili-
ated with the taxpayer.

A complaint has been received (that portion of which relating to
this case appears as Exhibit A) from D. F. Hickey, formerly a
reviewer in the affiliation section of the Income Tax Unit, and now
employed in the estate tax division, against the action taken by the
unit in holding that the taxpayer was affiliated with the Niagara
Electro Chemical Co. and the Perth Amboy Chemical Works for
the years 1917, 1918, and 1919.

The complainant states that subsequent to June 3, 1920, at which
time the original ruling was made that these companies were not
affiliated, when the taxpayer was notified by the bureau that the
two corporations in question were not associated nor affiliated with
the taxpayer, the case was appealed to the committee on appeals
and review, and while before the committee additional data in the
form of elaborate briefs were filed, whereupon the case was sent
back to the unit for reconsideration in the light of the additional
information. )

He states that it was given to Mr. H. L. Robinson, who was his
chief, for examination. The complainant wrote an extended opinion
on the case. (Exhibit B.)

Thereafter Mr. Robinson, his chief, told him he concurred in his
views, but that “ we nevertheless were going to have to give it to
them,” after which he sent the case to Mr., Rusch, assistant head of
the consolidated returns subdivision of the special audit division.

He states that subsequently the case came to his desk for review
and he noticed that afliliation had been allowed, regardless of the
propriety or legality of so doing. The complainant claims that the
precedent set by this case is very bad and that when the question
of ruling for the vears 1920 and 1921 came up the taxpayer set up
the incorrect ruling for prior years as an argument for getting the
same favors for 1920 and 1921. The complaint is made that this
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taxpayer was permitted to escape paying just tax for 1917, 1918,
and 1919, owing to the incorrect reversal of the proper ruling pre-
viously made for those years.

The records show that on March 21, 1922, My, I1. L. Robinson for-
warded the memorandum of Mr. Hickey to Mr. Rusch, asking for.
instructions as to how the case should be closed.

(‘This memorandam is made Exhibit C.)

The next action taken by the burean, as it appears from the
records, was on April 8 1922, when the taxpayer was advised by
letter, sigmed by William P. Bird, ckief of the subdivision (xhibit
D), .that the taxpayer was afliliated with the Niagara Electro Chemi-
cal Co. and the Perth Amboy Chemical Co. for the years 1917, 1918,
and 1919, :

As cortain minority interests in the two last above-named com-
panies were owned by Germans, the stock of these individuals was
taken over by the Alien Property Custodian.  On November 1, 1921,
I. M. Meekins, general counsel for that official. requested the Com-
missioner of Internal Revenue to grant him a hearing, together with
counsel for the taxpayer, on the matter of afliliation, as he stated
that he sought to **subserve their best interests ™ —that is, the stock-
holders whose stock they had taken over,

Subsequently a memorandum was filed by counsel for the Alien
Property Custodian, which was undated and unsigned. wherein the
suggestion was made that the matter of afliliation of the corporations
in question be referred to some officer of the bureau having broader
discretion than the officers of the Income Tax Unit. As a result of
this communication the matter was referred to the committee on
appeals and review and treated as an appeal.

Oral hearings were held before the committee on November 8,
1921, and February 27, 1922, which were attended by Mr. L. E.
Rusch, for the Income Tax Unit, and Mr. 1. M. Meckins, counsel for
the Alien Property Custodian, and accountants and attorneys for the
corporations in question.

gcnator Ernsr. What is the date of that in 1921

Mr. Box. The oral hearings?

Senator Ernst. The hearings that you have just referred to.

Mr. Box. November 8, 1921, and February 27, 1922, I think there
were two oral hearings held. The chairman of the committee on
appeals and review referred the question of consolidation to Mr.
I. E. Rusch and transmitted additional evidence (briefs, ete.) on
February 27, 1922. Apparently the case was then turned over by
Mr. Rusch to Mr. Robinson and by the latter to the complainant.
whereupon his memorandum (Exhibit B) was written.

It appears that the general counsel for the Alien Property Cus-
todian was very active in the settling of this case.  As stated above.
before the matter of affiliation was decided upon he filed 2 memoran-
dum requesting some officer of the bureau having a broader discre-
tion than the officers of the Income Tax Unit to consider the case.
After the decision was rendered that the companies were afliliated
it appears that Mr. Meekins called on the commissioner; that he was
sent by the latter to Mr. Bird, chief of the consolidated returns sub-
divjsion, with the request that the latter give Mr. Meekins special
consideration and discuss the status of the case of the taxpayer.
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It appears from a letter dated May 11, 1922, from Mr. Bied to
Mr. Bright (lixhibit E) that Mr. Meckins advised Mr. Bird that
the case was in Mr. Bright’s section; that Mr., Putnam had heen
working on it, and he asked particularly that the case he completed
by Mr. Putnam as soon as he returned from the training class.

On October 17, 1923, a letter was written to the taxpayer super-
seding the letter of April 8, 1922, which declared the companies in
question not affiliated for the years from 1917 to 1921, mclusive,
(Exhibit 1)

Under date of January 3, 1924, Mr. Lawrence A. Baker, attorney
for the taxpayer. wrote a letter to the deputy commissioner (Exhibit
(i) transmitting certain aflidavits expressing the hope that—
vou will direet the withdrawal of the recent letter from the consolidated
returns section Indicating that the gquestion of affilinton of the Niagara Electro
Chemieal Co. and 1"erth Amboy Chemical Works with the Roessler & Huass-
lacher Chemical Co, might be reopened,

Under date of January 5, 1924, Deputy Commissioner DBright
addressed a communication to Mr. Lohmann, chief of the consoli-
dated retirns division (Exhibit H) transmitting aflidavits referred
to above (Exhibits I and J). stating that in his opinion ** the action
of the unit in affiliating these companies should not be disturbed and
that the letter to the company, dated October 17, 1923, reversing the
previous ruling should be withdrawn in so far as the years 1917,
1918, and 1919 are concerned, and the case considered closed.” This
left the case with the three companies affiliated.

On January 10, 1924, the Jetter of October 17, 1923, was rescinded
and the taxpayer was advised to attend a conference to consider
the question of affiliation of these companies for the years 1920 and
1921, 2his eonferénce was held on February 1, 1924, It is admitted
that the same facts existed in regard to the stockholders for these
years as existed during the years 1917, 1918, and 1919. As a result
of this conference. report of which is made Exhibit K. the Niagara
Electro Chemical Co, was held by Conferee S. A. Linzel to be
aftilinted with the Roessler & Hasslacher Chemical Co., and the Perth
Amboy Chemical Works to be not affiliated for the years 1920 and
1921.

Mr. J. K. Polk, auditor, in signing the conference report. dissented
from the conferee’s opinion thet the first above-named company
should be afliliated with the taxpayer.

Although this case was refen'ej to the committee on appeals and
review for a deecision late in 1921, it was returned, after hearings
were held, to the unit without a decision being given. and the
question .of afliliation has not been decided by the committee on
appeals and review or the solicitor, in spite of the fact that such
difference of opinion existed in the bureau in this matter.

It is apparent that the taxpayer, the Niagara Electro Chemical
Co. and the Perth Amboy Chemical Works, should have submitted
separate returns for the years 1917, 1918, and 1919, which would
have resulted in the collection by the Government of taxes in the
sum of upproximately $671,409.13 in excess of those paid by the tax-
payer on the consolidated returns which they were authorized to
submit by the bureau.
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In conmection with the examination of this case the committee
was advised by Mr. L. C. Haugh, former chief of the inventory
section of the Income Tax Unit of the Internal Revenue Bureau. that
he visited the taxpayer for the purpose of making an investigation of
its inventories for the years 1917, 1918, and 1919,

He stated that when bhe appeared at the offices of the taxpaver
and advised them of his purpose he was informed that the inveniory
records themselves were not available at the time, as thev were
stored in a warchouse down on the water front of New York City,
and they endeavored to obtain his consent to take the company’s
bosk figures for the imventory instead of making a detailed audit
of the inventory sheets themselves.

Upon being advised that he would not consent to such a procedure -
he was told to return that afternoon. * He called again that day and
twice the following day. upon the last visit of which he was informed
by the treasurer of the company that the records would not be shown
to him until after their attorney had been consulted.

Mr. Haugh then visited the collector of internal revenue in New
York and related his experience to him, whereupon he snggested
calling on the United States attorney, which was done. The latter
expressed a desire to immediately issue a subpeena for the necessary
records. It was finally decided to communicate with the bureau
before such procedure was followed if the records were not forth-
coming the following morning. However, when he appeared and
again requested the inventory sheets they were produced for him.

He states that many errors were found in the inventory, some of
which he felt were not mere mistakes. and-that in visiting jobbers in
chemical supplies and manufacturing chemists for the purpose of
checking up on the market prices of different articles which taxpayer
had included in its inventory he found that many items on the tax-
paver’s inventory were considerably underpriced. He stated that
some items were omitted in the 1918 inventory comE)lemly, whereas
they appeared on the 1917 and 1919 inventories, and he obtained evi-
dence that the articles were on hand during the whole of the year
1918. Another item was placed as at “no value.” whereas he found
upon questioning one of the taxpayer's dealers that the market value
at the mventory time was $100 per ton, and that the taxpayer was the
only concern in the United States from which the article could be
purchased by the informant.

He states that in his conferences with different Government offi-
cials in New York he gained the impression that there was a general
feeling among them that they were waiting for the opportunity to
obtain some evidence against this taxpayer from which they could
commence a prosecution, as it seemed to have a very unsavory
reputation.

Of course, the last part, in regard to this inventory, has nothing
to do with the complaint filed by Mr. Hickey. I added that be-
cause it came to my notice.

Senator Warson, Has that case been closed ¢

Mr. Box. It has not been closed.

Senator Watson. Has the question of affiliation been definitely
settled ?

Mr. Box. The last action on the question of affiliation was after
that conference report, where the conferees decided that one cor-
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poration was affiliated with the taxpayer and the other was not,
and the auditor dissented from the opinion that the first corporation
was affiliated with the taxpayer.

Senator Warson. So it stands yet an undetermined proposition ?

Mr. Box. That is unsettled as yet.

The Cuamman. Do you recall what percentage of the holdings
were in these affiliated companies?

Mr. Box. Fifty-one and fifty-nine per cent.

The (mammman. Is it your understanding that in a case of that
kind that constitutes control under the law?

Mr. Box. For the year 1917, as I understand it, the question of
control did not enter into it. In 1918, 1919, and 1920 the control
was inserted in the law, but for the first year it was not a matier
of enmtrol.

The Cuamsan. As I understand from your reading of the report,
the case has been correctly decided so far as it has gone; is that
correct ?

Mr. Box. Yes; in my own opinion.

The CaairmaN. Yes.

Mr. Box. Neither company should be affiliated. The complaint,
of course, in the case is that instead of having the decision made
by the solicitor or the committee on appeals and review, it was not
done. Although the case was referred to the committee on appeals
and review a decision was not rendered by it, but it was returned to
Mzr. Rusch, who gave orders to have certain action taken.

Mr. Greoe. But it has not yet been finally closed ?

Mr. Box. It has not yet been finally closed.

Mr. Grece. I happen to know, because we were discussing it——

Mr. Box. That i1s my understanding of the case. I do not see
any action in the case showing that the additional tax has been paid.

Mr. Greaa. Well, the citicism is that the department considered
at one time holding them affiliated. Is that the only criticism of
the case?

Mr. Box. The criticism is of the action taken in the bureau, and
that is the criticism by the complainant.

Senator Erxst, For doing what?

Mr. Box. For giving instructions to rule them affiliated, when
they were not affiliated, according to complainant’s opinion, and if
they were not affiliated, or regardless of what the condition was, it
should have been decided by the legal officer in the department or
by the committee on appeals and review.

Mr. Greca. T will answer the first criticism first, that it should
have been decided by the legal officer.

The solicitors office is now and has been growing tremendously
for the last couple of vears, and is unable to handle all of the work
that it has. At the present time there are about 3,000 of these affilia-
tion questions pending in the unit, questions as to whether corpora-
tions arve affiliated, and I think it is quite apparent that those 3,000
cases could not all be dumped over onto the solicitor’s office.

On the next point, as to whether the department was right in
considering any of them affiliated, I would like to give the committee
just a little history on that.
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The statute says—and it is the same for 1917 as for subsequent
vears, and T want to give you the exact language, section 240 of the
revenue act of 1921:

* * * {f one corporation owns.directly or controls through closely affili-
ated interests or by a nominee or nominees substantially all of the stock of
the other or others,

Now, nobody has ever known just what that meant. We have
always been in great doubt about 1t. You will remember that when
the 1924 act was up for consideration, I brought out the fact for the
Treasury that we had so much difficulty and that we had so much
uncertainty that the committee adopted an arbitrary rule setting 85
per cent as the dividing line.

Senator Warson. Yes; I remember, that.

Mr. Greac. To remove all of this doubt which existed ?

Senator Warson. Yes.

M. Greeca, That was done in the 1924 act?

Senator WarsoN. Yes.

Mr. Grece. Back under the old act we do not know yet what the
rule i, We have had about 50 cases up to the board of tax appeals
to try to find out what it means. We have gotten decisions in about
tive of those cases, most of them reversing the positien of the de-
partment, saying that we have been too strict in our interpretation
of the law, and we still, even after those five cases have been decided,
do not know what to do with it.

Senator Warson., Those were cases originating before 1924¢

Mr. Grece. Yes, sir; they were cases under the old act.

Senator Warson. Since 1924 you have had a yard stick to go by?

Mr. Grece. Since 1924 it is just a mathematical computation.

Senator Warson. Yes.

Mr. Greoe. It is perfectly simple. ,

Senator Warson. Well, fras there been an effort to determine the
question arising before 1924 by the 85 per cent rule?

My, Grecs. No, siv; because the statute is entirely different, and
we did not teel justified in applying the 1924 statute back to the old
vases.  We do not know what the right rule is under the old act. Y
think from a reading of the act it will be self-evident that nobody
can say what is right and what is wrong on it.

The Cuamrman. Just what rule has the bureau applied, then?

Mr. Grege. We have applied two rules, at one time or another
We have reversed our position once, and it looks as if the board of
tax appeals may make us reverse it again.

This is a very long story, if the committee wants to go into it.

The question arose about two years ago. It became acute when
some case got to the solicitor’s office, and we differed with the action
that the unit had taken on it, so it was decided to issue an opinion
laying down general rules with reference to affiliation. The so-
called Solicitor’s Opinion 154 was issued, and it was rather liberal
in the definition of affiliation. It was very carefully considered,
and it took a liberal view. .

Senator WarsoN. Which way?

Mr. Grege. Toward allowing affiliations.

Senator Warson. Yes.
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Mr. Gresa. Mr. Hickey at that time objected very strenuously,
and I, with four others, listened to him for about two days, giving
his views on it.

Senator Warson. Who is Mr. Hickey ¢

Mr. Greae. He was an employee of the Income Tax Unit at that
time. He is now an employee of the estate tax unit.

The Cuairman. I think he could, too.

Mr. Grege. When 154 cume out, 8 committee was appointed com-
posed of Mr. Winston, Undersecretary; Mr. Moss, Assistant Secre-
tary; Mr..Page, who was chairman of the Tariff Commission; Mr.
Beeman, of the Legislative Drafting Commission; and myself, Mr.
Nash presiding, to listen to Mr. Hickey to decide whether 154 was
right.  We handed down a decision, the five of us, to the effect that
we agreed with the opinion in substance. The commissioner subse-
quently decided, however, that he thought the best thing was to
rule strictly on the matter of affiliation, and let the matter go to
the board of tax appeals, where we could get an opinion,

On this matter of affiliation, I might say that Mr. Hickey, so far
as I know, has been alone. Two solicitors have been of an opinion
directly contray to his views. The five of us who heard him for two
days could find no basis whatsoever for his arguments. The board
of tax appeals, when it got to them, took the same position. So I
do not regard his criticisin as being entitled to any great considera-
tion.

Senator Warson. Is that the present board of tax appeals?

Mr. Grece. Yes; it is an independent board created by the 1924
act.

Senator Warson. Yes,

The Cramman. Was that opinion withdrawn ¢

Mr. Greca. That opinion was withdrawn. ,

The Cuairman. Was that because the commisisoner agreed with
Mr. Hickey's contention ?

Mr. Grece. No, sir. It was because the commissioner thought it
was a big question, and that we should probably let it go to the
board of tax appeals for decision.

The Cuameman., When did that happen?

Mr. Grece. That happened, I should say, about a year ago, as
I remember it. Since then we have gotten about five decisions from
the board, which are directly contrary to Mr. Hickey’s position, and
it is rather interesting to note that he stiil continues to send memo-
randa to the commissioner, telling the commissioner that the tax
board is likewise wrong and that we should pay no attention to the
board’s opinion. :

Mr. Box. Mr. Solicitor, has the commissioner acquiesced in those
decisions of the tax board?

Mr. GreGe. Not yet.

Mr, Box. Are not some of those decisions of the tax board con-
trary to each other? :

Senator Ernst. That is, contrary to the commissioner?

Mr. Box. No; some of the board’s ewn decisions. Are they not
in conflict to some ext nt?

Mr. Grece. I do not think so. The board does not think so. The
board is cemposed of a very, very able group of lawyers, quite
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familiar with tax matters, and they do not think there is any conflict
in them, and I do not. 1 think the board’s position was clearly
right, '

Mr. Box. I have not read the board’s decision, but I have heard
talk in the bureau by affiliators that they were in conflict, end
that it wus up in the air at the present time on affiliation.

Senator Ernsr, If the decisions of the board were in conflict, one
with the other, it would not be the only tribunal that has ruled
several ways on the same subject. :

Mr. Box. But the department has not yet acquiesced in their de-
cisions, as Mr. Gregg states.

Mr. Grece. We have not said that we did not disagree. We have
not acted as yet. .

The Cuaraman. But you will be required to act before it is
finally closed?

fl\fIr. Grece. Yes; we ave going to act very shortly on it, as a matter
of fact.

The Cuamrman. In answer to the question that I raised a while
ago you said, in applying this affiliation section of the statute, you
had used two methods. Am I right in that?

Mr. Grroe, And I then continued to exp.ain about 154, as to how
it had been issued by the soliciter, and 1t was subsequently ov r-
{ule;i and withdrawn by the commissioner. That is what 1 meant
)y that.

}The Cuamrman. Yes. In applying this affiliated section of the
statute, has the application been uniform in all cases?

Mr. Grece. T can not say, Senator. There have not been a great
many of that class of cases finally settled. That is the section we
are having the most difficulty with.

The Cuarman. Prior to the creation of the board of tax appeals,
what was the rule in force in the unit on such cases?

Mr. Grree. I do not know, sir.

The Crammyan. In other words, the bureau never issued any regu-
lation in the matter?

Mr. Grece. Yes, sir.

The Cuamyan. I am very much interested in this whole question
of afliliation, and I would like to know just what rule was applicd.
because that is one of the sections of iie Unit where a great discre-
tion was evidently allowed to the subordinates.

Mr. Grece, Here is the regulation which was in effect for all years.
The question arose as to the interpretation of this regulation.

The CHarrMAN. That was before 1924.

Mr. Grece. Yes, sir.  This is under the old act. This is all settled
now.

The Cuairyan. That is all settled, but the cases are not all settled.

Mr. Greca. No, sir.  So far as the law is concerned it is all settled.
This is regulation 45, article 633 :

Corporations will be deemed to be affilinted (@) when one domestic cor-
poration owns directly or controls through closely affilinted interests or by a
nominee or nominees substantially all the stock of the other or others, or (b)
when substantially all the stock of two or more domestie corporations is owned
or. ¢ontrolled by the same interests. The words * substantially 1! the stock "

can not be interpreted as meaning any particular pcreentage, but must he
construed according to the facts of the particular case. The owning or con-
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trolling of 95 per cent or more of the outstanding voting capital stock (not
including stock in the treasury) at the beginning of and dvring the taxable
year will be deemed to constitute an aftiliation within the meaning of the
statute. Cousolidated returns may, however, be required even though the stock
ownership Is less than 95 per cent. When the stock ownership or control is
less than 95 per cent, but in excess of 30 per cent, a full diselosure of athlia-
tions should be made, showiug all pertinent facts, including the stock owned or
coutrolled in each subsidiary or affiliated corporation and the percentage of
such stock owned or controlled to the total stock outstanding.

The Cuairman. What is your interpretation of the word “con-
trol” as used in that regulation and in the statute?

Mr. Grece. That, of course, is one of the most difficult questions
that we have, and that is the one that Mr. Hickey feels so strongly
on. 1 think “control ” means “ control,” whether legally enforcea‘i)le
or otherwise.

Take a typical ease where that (}uestion comes up most. often.

Assume a parent corporation which organizes a subsidiary. Sup-
pose it is a subsidiary to take carec of one of its smaller activities
and there is a profit-sharing arrangement giving the president of
that subsidiary, or the manager of it, 25 per cent of the capital stock,
to enable him to share in the profits, and giving him an interest in
it, with a provision that if he terminates his employment with the
company he must offer his stock for salc to the company, and that he
can not sell the stock to an outsider without offering it first to the
company. That is ?uite a common provision, and that is a case
where the question of control arises most frequently.

It seems to me quite plain that in such a case as that the parent
company controls the stock owned by the president of this subsidiary
company. He can not take any action contrary to the interests of
the parent corporation. He is completely under their control; he is
a creature of theirs: his employment depends upon their action, or
the continuation of his employment does, and he is never free to act
with reference to that stock as a practical matter.

Senator Warsox. There are a good meny cases of that kind,
though, where it is not so apparent, are there not ?

Mr. Girece. Yes; from that case they shade off until they get much
more difficult.

The Crnamyan. In that case, I do not think anyone would have a
very violent disagreement with your decision. but they are not all so
simple as that.

Mr. Gzece. Noj but it shows clearly the question.

The Cramvax. In this particular case which has just been re-
ferred to by Mr. Box, where there is an ownership of 49 and 51 per
cent, is that, in your opiniou, an affiliated company?

Mr. Grroe. I am very doubtful of it. Frankly, I do not think
that much of stock ownership is sufficient to constitute an affiliation,
although T would like to bring out this fact that Mr. Box did not
bring out: The intercompany transactions between those two com-
panies were numerous; they were run as one business organization ;
they would transfer properties between the companies and lend
money between them without interest, and such things as that. They
were run as one corporation, and there was no attempt to accurately
allocate the income of the group between the different corporations.
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That is what influenced the people in the consolidated returns divi-
ston in recommending the afliliation.

The Cuameman. In a case of that kind, is there not great damage
likely to be done to the minority stockholders if they can be switched
around by the bureau?

Mr. Grese. No, sir; it does not affect the minority stockholders.
You see the tax is much less if the corporations are affiliated.

The Cuamman. The tax is less?

Mr. Grece. Usually.

The Cuamman. Yes.

Mr. Grece, Sometimes it works the other way, but usually the tax
is less if they are affiliated than if they are not affilinted: but after
the tax is defermined it is apportioned between the different corpora- -
tions in proportion to the income atuributable to each; so it does not
affect adversely the interests of the minority stockholders.

Senator Ernst. Take a case such as you have mentioned, where
the business relations between the two companies are so very close
and intimate, as in this case, for instance. How would you say that
would affect their determination?

Mr. Grrce. That affected it to this extent: If those condition are
present, intercompany transactions, buying and selling between the
companies at prices other than the actual market prices; if those
conditions are present, you can not get an accurate determination,
either of income or invested capital, without consolidating the cor-
porations. T think that is perfectly apparent. Unless they are
run as separate enterprises, financially independent of each other,
you can not, except on the basis of the consolidated return, get the
accurate income of the group or the correct invested capital.

The Cramryran. I can visnalize, howéver, by a conclusion of that
kind great opportunity for manipulation.

Mr. Grece. Well, that s the point I am coming to. The manipu-
lation has no effect if you consolidate it.

The Cuairman. Well, but there is opportunity for manipulation.
By the plan of making a consolidated return they can manipulate
their business so that the fact of the afliliation does reduce the tax.

Mr. Grece. Not by manipulation between the companies, because
in making the consolidated return we absolutely ignore the inter-
company transactions, They are wash transactions, just like taking
money out of one pocket and putting it in another.

The CuaikmaN. Yes; but you can take a company such as was
referred to in this case and have it operated so that it shows a great
loss, and that loss by affiliation was deducted from the profits of the
successful corporation.

Mr. Grece. Yes, sir; but would anyone want to conduct a corpora-
ticn at a loss just to get——

The CuairmaN. No; but after the corporation had shown a loss
the taxpayer then might claim a right to file a consolidated return
:p absorb the loss and to reduce the tax on the profitable corpora-

ion.

Mr. Grega. Yes, sir; that is true; but, of course, that comes back
to.the point: Are they affiliated? If they are affiliated, they should
be allowed to do that. If they are not affiliated, they should not
be allowed to do it.
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The Cnamrman. For instance, 1 have been going over the case of
the Union Trust Co., the Mcllon National Bank, and I think the
Union Savings Bank. In that case, if I remember correctly—and I
do not have it before me—they were not affiliated, and the bureau
decided that they were not affiliated, and yet, if I remember cor-
rectly. there is almost exact ownership, but they had different char-
ters, and under one charter they could not do something that they
conld do under another charter. By deciding that they were not
affilated there was some eighty to ninety thousand dollars in taxes
saved. I point that out as an mstance. We have not presented that
case, because in talking it over with counsel it has seemed to us to
be a pretty close case, and counsel has not decided that the bureau
is in error in it. It is a case, however, which parallels this case
somewhat, in that the decision as to affiliation or nonafliliation can
save the taxpayer a great deal of money, either one way or the other.
T it is decided to be not afliliated in this case, it caves the taxpayer
money ;: but in most cases, indeciding that they are afliliated, it saves
the taxpayer money.

Mr. Grece, That is what T say, Senator.  Sometimes the corpora-
tion pays more tax by affiffation than if it was not affiliated. but
usually they pay a less tax.

The Cramyan. Yes.

Mr. Greca, Of course, it materially affects the tax of the company
in the majority of cases. Otherwise, there would not be the argu-
went and dificulty abont it that there is.

Mr. Box. In regard o the matter of control, it scems to me that
it leaves too much to the discretion of the taxpayer as to what kind
of a return he shall file.  For instance, as Mr. Grege has said, if an
officer of the company owned a certain percentage of the stock and
controlled other stock, and if he thonght that he could save the tax
by filing a separate return, he would not disclose to the Treasury
Department the fact that he controlled the other stock, and would
therefore file a separate return: whereas, if he could save the tax by
filing separate returns. he would merely set up in his argument that
he controlled this stock and was entitled to file a consolidated return.

Mr. Grrae, That assumes that we will not get all of the facts.
Of course, sometimes we do not get all of the facts,

The Cuarman. I think that is true: but I can see where a man
could, in one case, have his wife own 49 per cent of the stock and in
his return claim affiliation because he controlled his wife’s stock,
and in another case claimed that he did not control his wife’s stock,
reversing the actual results. ,

Mr. Greoe. If 1 may point out, Senator, that was the action of
Congress in putting the test of control in the statute, and we finally
ot them, in the 1924 act, to take that out as a test.

The Crramryan, I think you did a good job in that case, and the
thought that the investigators have had in mind was to see that the
cases that have not yet been closed will be uniformly decided as
nearly as possible.

Mr. Greco. If the.representatives of the committee agree with
Mr. Hickey on the question of control, they will be just woout the
first that I have seen that do.

The Caamman. Well, unfortunately, Mr. Manson is ill. and I do
not know what his cenclusions on the matter are.
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Mr. Greco. The board of tax appeals has taken the other position.
after a most careful consideration of it.

Mr. Box. Mr: Solicitor, you stated that Mr. Hickey stands abso-
lutely alone in his contentions. Is it not a fact that several of the
other employees who have made a specialty of aftiliations agreed
with Mr. Hickey and have stood with him?

Mr. Gregi. Two others have stood with him; that is, of his asso-
ciates down in the consolidated returns division. I referred to
everyone who had considered the question who is in-a position of
authority, starting with the chief, the assistant chief of the con-
solidated returns division. the head of the Income Tax Unit, two
solicitors, the five of us who sat in at the conference, and now the
board of tax appeals, have all disagreed with him. )

Mr. Box. Did not Mr. Crewe agree with him in submitting his
brief to the board of tax appeals?

Mr. Grece. Two people argued our case before the board of tax
appeals after the commissioner had taken this position. After the
commissioner had taken this position—-

The Cramman. You, of course, had to support him?

Mr. Grege. Our office had to support him. T do not know whether
Mr. Crewe did or not. I do know that My, Milliken, of the solicitor's
office, went over there and made a very excellent argument—the best,
I think, that could have been made in support of the position that the
commissioner had taken, when he did not agree with it in any par-
ticular.

The Cramman. Have you any other case now, Mr, Box?

Mr. Box. Yes, sir. 1 would like to ask Mr. Gregg if he wili give
us a reference to some of these decisions wherein the solicitor re-
versed Mr. Hickey’s ruling, the case where Mr. Hickey ruled

Mr. Greco. I did not say that the solicitor ever reversed Mr.
Hickev. I «aid the question became acute when cases from the unit
were coming up to the office, many of them holding afliliation where
we did not think that they should be aftiliated, and as a result of
the question arising in that way—I do not know who handled it in
the unit, whether it was Mr. Hickey or anyone else—as a result of it
arising in that way, it brought the whole question up, and solicitor's
opinion 154 was written, I doubt, as a matter of fact, that Mr,
Hickey made any of the rulings which the solicitor's office reversed.
because he was always against afliliation, and the ones that we were
reversing, which gave rise to opinion 154, were cases where the unit
had ruled that they were affiliated. and we disagreed.

Mr. Nasu. I think they were cases that went up on refund claims,
and were brought to the attention of the solicitor in that manner.

Mr. Greca. Yes; they were brought to the attention of the solici-
tor after the unit had ruled on them.

Mr. Nasu. I might add, Mr. Chairman, that we changed our or-
ganization to get a closer control of the decisions on questions of
sffiliation, about a vear and a half ago. Under the old plan of
organization, there was a small group in each audit section who
would first pass on the question of afliliation, and then the cases
would go on to the auditors for audit. In that way, each little proup
of men that were passing on affiliations gave their own views, and
there was not the uniformnity of decisions that there should have been
it determining these questions; so about a year and a half ago we
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ereated an affiliation section and put it directly under the control
of the deputy commissioner.  All questions of affiliation are now
referred to that section, and must come out through the one head;
<o we do get a more uniform application of the regulations.

The Cuamemax. Have you any idea how many aftiliated cases have -
heen closed ¢

Mr. Nasn. About 30,000.

The Cnamyax. And you think that as a result of their passing
all through this one channel. vou have secured uniformity in decid-
ing them?

Mr. Nasu. We arve getting more uniformity in our decisions than
we did before.  Of course, many of these cases depend upon the indi-
vidual judgment of the man that has the case before him, but his
work is now subject te review, and if it is a close question it is sub-
jeet to the serutiny of the head of that section. We had a meeting
m the commissioner’s office just the other day on this question, and we
are now waiting until we get one or two more decisions from the
board of tax appeals covering other points at issue.  When these de-
cisions are recetved we will then try to work ont a uniform policy
that will quite likely be better than the one we now have, ;t is a
question that has never been decided in the courts. We have waited
and waited for somebody to take one of these cases to the courts, so
that we could get a court decision, but we have never had one.

The Camryan. T suppose it will actually get to the courts before
ven et through, beeause some of these taxpavers will disagree.

Mr. Grece. We had one case in court. and we were quite hopeful
that we would get an opinion on it.  The court decided the case and
wrote no opinion on it.  That was about three months ago.

Senator Fr~sr. In what court?

Mr, Grece, One of the district courts: T do not remember exactly
which one.

The Crnamryan. All right, M. Box.

Me. Box. 1 would like to state for the record that 'Treasury Deci-
sion 2662, in defining part of this law, stuted as follows:

The words * all or substantinlly all of the stock ™ as used in the above defini-
tion will, until further notice, be interpreted as meaning an ownership of
93 per cent or more of such stock by the same taxpayer during the taxable
year.

The Cramsax. When was that ruling issued?

Mr. Box. T have not the date of it.

Mr. Gerce. I assume that that is the ruling which the commis-
sioner issued when he decided not to follow solicitor's opinion 154,

The Craryvax. You did not read that just now when you read
that interpretation?

Mr. Greea, No: 1 was reading the old interpretation, back under
the old law. T was reading regulations 45,

Mr. Box. I have not the date of it. It was subsequent, of course. to
the regulation, because it was in explanation of it.

Mr. Nasu. Regulations 62, on the 1921 act, says:

The owning or controlling of 95 per cent or more of the outstanding voting
capitel stoek (not including stock in the treasury) at the heginning of and
daring the taxable year will be deemed to constitute an affiliation within the
meaning of the statute,
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Then it goes on and makes an exception down to 70 per cent.
( Exhibits submitted by Mr. Box in Roessler & Hasslacher Chem-
ical Co. case are as follows:)

ExuBit A
ROESSLER & HASBLACHER CHEMICAL €0, NEW YORK CITY

Although 1 had been in the unit from April 19, 1919, it was not until early
in 1922 that 1 encountered a case where plainly the law was fransgressed. It
was then in the afliliation section of the then existent consolidated returns
subdivision of the special audit division. Mr. I L. Robinson was my chief.
Mr. L. ¥, Rusch was assistant head of the division, and Mr. Williamm I’. Bird
was head of the division. 1 was reviewing cases and attending taxpayers'
conferences, (Chief and assistant chief of the subdivision is meant,) g

Unter date of June 3, 1920, Rossler and Hasslacher had been notiied by
the bureau that two other corporations with which this company was asso-
ciated were not atliliated with it. The case was subsequently appenled to the
committee on appeals and review and while before the committee additional
data in the form of elaborate briefs were filed, whereupon the case was sent
back to the unit for reconsideration in the light of the additional informadion.
1t was given to me by Mr. Robinson for examination, The years 1917 to 1919,
inclusive, were involved.

It was found that 41 per cent of the capifal stock of one of the associated
corporations was owned by Germans, English, and &mericans who owned no
stock whatever in either of the other two companies, while in the case of the
other associated company 49 per cent of the capital stock wax owned by
Germans exclusively.  With such large minority interests outstanding it was
clear that no affilintion could be allowed if any attention was to be paid to the
statutes controlling, regardiess of the claim of the extent to which infercom-
pany transactions had been carried on and corporate entity disregavded. It
will be remembered that German and British aliens largely composed the
minority interexts mentioned. These peoples had been fighting each other
during 1917 and 1918, Moveover, the German minorities had been taken over
by the Alien P'roperty Custodian, an added reason tor denying attiliadon in
this case.

I wrote an extended opinion on this case covering the various phases of it,
and indicating the obstacles in the allowance of atfiintion.  Mr. Robinson told
me he concurred in my views, but that we nevertheless were * going to have to
give it to them.””  Subsequently, he sent the caxe to My, Rasel, with the request
that he be advised of the ruling to be made, calling Mr. Rusel's attention te
my opinion,  Later on the case came to my desk for voview, gud I noticed thar
affiliation had been allowed, regardless of the propriety or legality of ro
doing. 1 ascertained that my dissenting opinion was still in the case, signed
the work record. and sent the caxe along in the regular way, I was at that
time a new mun in the consolidated returns subdivision, comparatively, and
there ~cemed to be nothing more that I could do in the matrer.

This case sot 8 very bad precedent and was heard of outxide ‘the unit as
well as Invide. Besides, when the question of ruling for the years 1920 and
1921 came up, Roessler & Hasslaclier set up the incorrect ruling for prior
vears as an argument for getting the same favors for 1920 and 1921, The
case was taken up with Deputy Commissioner DBright some monthis ago, in-
stead of with the conunittee on appeals and review, and lay inactive for a
long time. When Solicitor’'s Opinion No. 154 was issued, orders were given
to rule all three companies affiliated for 1920 and 1921, but these orders were
subsequently counfermanded when it was found that a conference on the case
had been set for February 1.

After the conference of February 1, 1924, Mr. Linzel, of the technical staff
of the consolidated returns audit division, who was ranking conferee at the
conference, made a ruling allowing affiliation of Roessler & Hasslacher with
the other corporation having the 41 per cent minority, but escluded the ¢om-
pany with the 49 per cent minority. As Solicitor Iartson himself said when
apprised of this remarkable display of absardity, such & ruling is not sup-
ported by anything. there being no affiliation at all in this case, Mr. Linzoel,
as I informed you in my letter of February 15, 1924, based his ruling upon
Solicitor’s Opinion No. 134 The solicitor says he is wrong in his, under-
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standing of 154 T also say Mr. Linzel ix absolutely flouting the plain letter
and import of the Iaw when he rules even one of the associnted companles
affiliated—as does the other conferee In signing the conference memorandam
as a dissenter—but 1 wounld not venture to say any man was wrong in his
understanding of the revolutionary 154" It Is wholly objectionable itself.
The silly rulings already made under it prove that conclusively,

These Roessler & Hasslacher people were permitted to escape paying their
just taxes for 1917, 1918, and 199 owing (o the incorrect reversgl of the
-proper ruling previously made for those years. It is time they were made to
obey the laws uand pay their taxes for 1920 and 1921, It is cases like this
that encourage wrongdoing in the unit. Please note that the original ruling
was made June 3, 1920, at a time when, accovding to Mr. L. I, Lohmann, the
*lberal ' class of rulings were in force—were beiny made. Strange, is it
not, that these companies were denied atfiliation if they were entitled to it
and if we were *liberal 7 in those days? They were not entitied to it under
any real rule.

Exmeir B
MEMORANDUM

In re: The Roessler & Iasslacher Chemienl Co., Niagara Electro Chemieal Co.,
Perth Amboy Chemical Works,

Mr., H. 1. Ropinsox,
Chief Afiliations Section.

In compliance with your instructions the matter of the afliliations of the
above-numed corporations during rthe taxable years 1917, 1918, and 1919 has
been reconsidered.

This scection has ruled these companies not afilinted during the years indi-
cated, basing such ruling upon dara contained in the questionniire submitted
by the Roessler & Hasslacher o, for all years involved.

In the reconsideration of this ease the questionnaires, memorandum gub-
mitted by 1. M. Meokins, general counsel for the Alien Property Custodian,
with his letter dated November 21, 1821, and the printed brief, composed of
various schedules of data and of aflidavits by four of the officers and em-
ployees and one of the attorneys of and for these corporations, have been
examined and studied.

It appears that the Roeessler & Hasslacher Chemical Co,, which will herein-
after be referred to ax “ R, & H.,” has bheen the financial, purchasing, eper-
ating, <elling, and administrative agent since 1895 for the Niagura Electro
Chemien! Co., hereinafter referred to asg * Nisgara,” and since 1903 for the
Perth Amboy Chemical Works, hercinafter veferred to as P A, C0 W, and
that the latter two companies are virtually unknown to the general publie,
and even to the postal autherities and financial institutions at Perth Amboy.
N. J.. where nearly all of the plants of the group are located, practically
all of the husiness of these corporations being doue in the name of * R, & H.”

The questionmtives show that during the years in question R, & . owned
59 per cent of the common stock of Niagara and 51 per cent of the common
stock of I, A. C. W., no preferred stock in any of these companies heing out-
standing. Only one of the stockholders of R, & 11, owned any stock in either
of the other two corporations, such stockholder being @ German concern which
owned 36 per cent of the stock of R. & H. and 11 per cent of the stock of
Niagara, this being the only instance in which the cutstanding minority inter-
ests, 41 per cent in the case of Niagara and 49 per cent in the caseof I'. A, C. W,
were affected. The minority interest in Niagara was thereby reduced to 30
per cent, the holdings of the Gepman concern, however, in R. & H. and Niagara
being obviously matevially disproportionate.

The taking over in 1918 by the Alien Property Custodian of stock in these
corporations held by German interests has ne bearing upon the question of
affiliation ; it, therefore, follows that the only issue involved is the effective-
ness of the minorities mentioned.

It being evident that these minority interests are not subject to any agree-
ments, but on the contrary are held unconditionally, the nature and extent of
the relations existing between these corporations must furnish the only grounds
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for affitiation, if any such be found: and such relations must destroy the effec-
tiveness of the minorities referred to in order to do that,

In support of the premise stated, reference ix made to articles 631 and 635
of repulations 45, which stipulate that the provision of the statute requiring
affiliated corporations to file consolidated returns is baxed upon the principle
of levying the tax according to the true net income and invested capital of a
single business enterprise, even though the business is operated through more
than one corporation, and that a single business enterprise, and therefore affilia-
tion exists when the stock of one or more corporations is owned or controlled,
in substantial entirety, by another corporation, or ~hen substantially all
the stock of two or more corporations is owuned or controlled by the same
futerests in substantinlly the same proportions.

The test of affiliation, therefore, is ownership or control of substantially
all of the stock of the corporation or corporations with which affilintion is
claimed.

In this caxe all or substantially all of the stock is not owned by R. & H,
and with the questionnaires alone as the basis for vonsideration of the ques-
tion, the bureau could not require consolidation, In fact, the questionnaires
amply =upport the “ not affilinted ™ ruling heretofore made,

A study of the memorandum of the general counsel for the Alien Property
Custodian, and of the affidavits of the officers, employees, and attorney for
R. & 1. does not disclose control of the outstanding minorities in Niagara
and P, A, . W. in the sense contemplated by the regulations and the procedure
of this seetion, although control of these companies in the popular sense flows
to R & I asx a matter of course, beeause of its ownership of the majority
of the capital stock.

All of these corporations have been engdged in highly technical businesses
of the same general nature for many years and certainly have passed beyvond
the experimental or doubtial stage as to their suceess, It does not appear
that during the years in question Niagara or P. A, . W, needed or received
financial support under cirecumstances which would prompt the minority
interests to surrender, even temporarily, their right to vote their stock as
they pleased, regardless of the wishes of R, & I, and there is no ¢laim
made that such wae the ease. On the contrary, both Niagara and P. A. C. W.
appear to have been very successful all along on their own account.

It is shown also in the aflidavits and the schedules mentioned, as well as in
the questionnaires, that agreements between I, & II. and the other two
companies are in existence, governing charges for the various services per-
formed by R. & IL, aud the other two corporations have been assessed accord-
ingly. It i= true that there is apparently some conflict between the question-
naires and the schedules as to the amounts chiargzed to Niagara and P A C. W,
and paid by these companies: and it is also noted that it is elnimed that in
some instanees R, & . ix not compensated for capital investments inuring to
the benefit of Niagara and . A, C. W, The indications ave, however, that
such situations are covered by asreements, not disclosed, which afford advan-
tnges to R. & T1.

As to exchange of the use of equipment between Niagara and P A, €. W,
it would seem that such reciprocal accommodations might he expected in any
ease where plants ave in the =ame line of business and in close proximity to
each other and operating under business agreements eliminating competition,

In thiz ease the minority interests in Niagara and P. A, (. W., having
distinguishing characteristics and being quite large, have apparently been
alert to prevent any shifting of profits to R. & H.. and as these two companies
have heen quite successful, there was no need of surrendering contrel of the
minorities in order to get aid from R. & H.

It appears therefore that R. & H. not only did not own substantially aill of
the stock of these other two corporations hut did not econtrol it either.

The fact that Niagara and P, A. C. W. made a much higher percentage of
profit on their invested capital than did R, & H. during 1917, 1918, and 1919
may bhe attributable to some degree to favorable contracts and working agree-
ments with the Iaiter company, but it does not appear that such financial
suceess wns due to shifting of mofits, as contemplated by the bureau, from
R. & H. to the other corporations.

The companies rentioned did not constitute a single business entoerprise,
within the purvicw of the regulations, during the vears in question. 'There-
fore the ruling of this section, to the effect that they were not affilinted, should
be sustained.

Daxier F. Hickey, Reviewer.
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Exumur C

BUreav oF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Income Tax UUNiT,
NSrEcian Avmrr Thvision,
Mr. Resen: Attached find memo, by Mr. Hickey, one of the reviewers in
affilintion seetion re Roessler & Hasslacher Chemienl Co,
Please instruct me how you wish this caxe closed.
H. L. RosBiNsox.

Exummir D

APRIL 8, 1922,
The Roesster & Hasstacner Cuesmicearn Co,,
New York, N. Y.

Sies: Reference Is made to the printed brief, consisting of affidavits and
schedules supplementary to executed affilinted corporations’ questionnaires
covering the taxable years 1917, 1918, and 1919 filed by you.

From the additional facts diselosed you are advised that vour ecorporation,
the Niagara Electro Chemical Co,, the Perth Amboy Chemical Works, and the
Mexican Roessler & Hasstacher Chemical Corporation were aflilinted duaring
the taxable years 1917 and 1918, within the purview of artieles 77 and 78 of
regulations 41, Treasury Decision 2662, and section 240 of the revenue act of
TS, A consolidated exeess profits tax return should therefore have been filed
for the tuxable your 1917, In the event that such a return should be needed
in auditing the case you will be notified by this office. The filing of a con-
solidated income and profits tax return for the taxable year 1918 was the
proper procedure. :

Your corporation, the Niagzara Eleetro Chemical Co.. the Perth Amboy Chemi-
cal Works, the Mexican Roessler & Hasslacher Chemienl Corporation, and the
Pacific Roessler & Huassicher Chemiecal Corporation from the date of its in-
corporation in June until the end of the year were affilinted during the taxable
yvear 1919, within the purview of section 240 of the revenue act of 1914, You
therefore followed the proper procedure in filing a consolidated income and
profits tax return for that year,

This ruling supersedes that contained in office letter dated June 3, 1920,

In the event of further correspondence refer to I'l': 8A : CR: Af-JBK.

Respectfully,
E. . Barson,
Deputy Commiscioner.

By Wa, . Biun,
Chicf of Subdirision.

Exumzit E

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
I~xcoME Tax UNrr, SPECIAL AUvbiT IhvisioN,
May 11, 1922,

Mr. 8rignut: A fow days ago Mr. I. M. Meekins was sent down to me by the
commissioner with the idea that 1 give him special consideration and discuss
the status of the case of the Roessler & Hussiacher Chemical Co.,, New
York, N. Y.

I gathered from Mr. Meekins that the caxe was in your section and that Mr.
Putnam had been working on it.

Mr. Meekins asked particularly that the case he completed by Mr, Putnam,
and I am writing you this memorandam to suggest that as soon as Mr.
Putnam comes back from the training class he be asked to expedite the closing
of the cave.

Mr. Blair tells me that he is particularly anxious that we give every con-
sideration to Mr. Meekin and elose the cave without delay.

WM. P. Biro, Chief.
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This ruling supersedes that coutained in office letter April 8, 1922,
If not in agreement with thisx ruling yon arve requested to submit an answer
20 days from the date of this letter, referring to I'T-CR-A~-HES-AT,
Respectfually,
J. G, Bricur,
Deputy Commissioner.,
By L. T. LoBMaNN,
Head of Dirvision,

Exumir ¥ .
Ocroper 17, 1923,
Raessire & Hasspacner Cuareaical Co,,

New York, N V.

SNing: Reference Is made to information on file in this office relative to the
afliliations of your company for the taxable yeurs 17, 1918, 1919, 1920, and
1921, '

From a eareful review of all the infermation presented you are advised
that during the taxable years 1917, 1018, 1919, 1820, aud 1921 the companies
listed below were affilinted within the purview of seetion 240 of the revenue
acts of 1918 and 1921

Rocessler & Hasslacher Chemiceal Co.,

Mexican Roessler & Hasslacher Chemieal Co,

PPacific Roessler & Hnsslacher Chemical Corporation.

- Nypania Trausportation Co, (Ine.).

You are advized that during the taxable years 1917, 1918, 19019, 1929, and
1921 the companies listed below were not afilinted with your company or with
any other company within the purview of the authoerities cited above, and
each company should therefore file =eparate income and profit-tax returns for
each of the years named, provided that such action has not been taken,

Niagara Eleetrn Chemicenl Co.

Perth Ambhoy Chemical Works,

Pursuant to this ruling ¢ copy of this letter should be attached to ecach re-
turn when tiled. .

Exmmr G

Woonware Drmvg,
Washivgton, Januwarny 3, 1929,

Re: Roessler & Nasstacher Chemical Co, affiliation,

Hon, J, G, BriGur,
Deputy Commissioner of Internal Rervenue
Washington, i}, €.

Drar Mr. Bricur: 1 am pleased to hand you herewith my personal affidavit
deseribing the procedure in the above mutter, as explained to you and your
associates in oral conference several weeks ago. :

1 am alxo inclosing the joint affidavit of Mr. L. H. Conant and Mr, I, Ligter-
moet, who were persenaily present during the proceedings and have certiffed
to the accuracy of my statement.

With these statements before you, I hope that you will direet the withdrawal
of the recent letter from the consolidated returns’ section indicating that the
question of affiliation of the Niagara Electro Chemical Co. and P'erth Amboy
Chemical Works with the Roessler & IHasslacher Chemical Co. mighr be re-
opened.

Respectfully,
LAWRENCE A. BAKER
(For Baker & Baker).
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Examr H

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
OFrFICE oF DErury CoMMISSIONER, INxcoMe Tax Unir,
January 5, 192}.

Mr. LOHMANN
cAttontion of Mr, Leary, Chief Section A):

There are attached two affidavits relative to the Roessler & Hasslacher
Chemical Co,, the case upon which a conference was held in my office with
respect to the aflillation of the above-named company, the Niagara FEleetro
Chemienl Co., and Perth Amboy Chemical Works during the years 1017, 1918,
and 1919,

In view of the statements ¢ontained in the attached briefs and the informa-
tion sapplied by Mr. Baker in the conference at which were present yourself,
Mr. Polk, and Mr. Partridge. T am of the opinion that the action of the unit
in affiliating these companies should not be disturbed and that the letter to
the company dated October 17, 1923, reversing the previous ruling should be
withdrawn in so far as the years 1917, 1918, and 1918 are concerned, and the
case considered closed,

J. G, Brianr,
Deputy Commissioner,

Exmmit I

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, 887

Lawrence A, Baker, being duly sworn, deposes and states as follows:

In the early part of 1920 I became assoefated as counsel with Clifford,
Hobbx & Beard, of New York, in advixing the Roessler & Hasslacher Chemical
Co, and its afiiated companies with regard to the pending review of the tax
Hability of the parent and subsidiary companies for the years 1917, 191K,
1919, At that time my employment was chiefly in consultation with Mr,
Anson L Beard of that firm who was especially concerned about the action of
the Income Tax Unit in conneetlon with a proposal to deny the Roessler &
Hasxlacher Co, the right to file a consolidated return which would include the
Niagara Eleetrie Chemieal Co. and the Perth Amboy Chemical Works as
afiiated companies,  In the month of June, 1920, Mr. Beard visited Wash-
incten to attend & conference which T had previonsly arranged with the
con=olidated returns seetion for June 3, 1920, The conference was attended
by Mr. Ruseh on hehalf of the Government and the only subject discussed was
the question of aifilintion as to the Perth Ambey Chemical Works and Niagara
Electre Chentieal Co,

Thereafter a field examination was conceluded and letters were sent to the
wxpaver restating the tax linbility of the Roessler & Hasslacher Co, and
«everal subsidigries and xeparate letters were addressed to the Niagara Electro
Co, and the Perth Amboy Chemical Works proposing additional assessinents
auainst each of those companies based on separate veturns for those companies.

In the meantime neder dote of May 7. 1920, Mr, Deard had given a letter
to Mr. Lee J. Wolfe introducing Mr, Wolfe to me in order that T might co-
operate with Mr, Wolfe in an attempt to arrive at the possible tax labilities
of the several companies for the information of the Alien Property Custodian in
whose interest T was advized Me, Wolfe had been employed for the purpose of
aexisting the eustodian in avriving at the fair value of the stock of the several
companies affecred by the propoxed additional taxes. 1 was also informed by
Mr. Wolfe or through some other representative of the custodian that an
attempt would be made to have the commissioner bring the investigation of
tax liability down to date in order that the custodinn might more intellizently
estimate the value of certain shares of stock held by him in the several
companies,

Subsequently Isaac M. Meekins, then general counsel for the Alien Property
Custodian, became interested in the situation, and at his request 1 visited the
office of Judge Meekins and reviewed the general situation with him at length.

My explanation to Judge Meekins of the method of conducting the business
of the Roessler & Hasslacher Chemical Co. and its various subsidiaries and an
analysis of the various stock interests in the several companies led Judge
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Meekins to take up with Commissoner of Internal Revenue Blair the gues-
tion of aflilation which had previously been denied by the conxolidated re-
turns section of the Income Tax. Unit—as I understand—on the recommendation
of Mr. Rusch. Judge Meekins reported to me that the commissioner had
arranged a speeial hearing before the committee on appeals and review and ¥
secompanied Judge Meekins to the committee on appeals and review where
we had an interview with the then chairman of that committee—N. T.
Johnsoun—who had with him at the conference two members of fhe com-
mittee—Mr, Davis and Mr. Gillis. At that conference it wrs agreed that 1
would cooperate with the officers and accountants of the company in the
immediate preparation of analyses of facts and fignres whieh veould enable
the Commitiee on Appeals and Review to fatelligently advise the commissioner
of«its recommendation.

In January, 1922, I filed with the commitiee on appeals and review a
printed statement with exhibits entitled * Taxpayer's statements in support of
a consolidated income and profits tax return for the taxable years 1917, 1916.
1919.”  In support of this printed statemént I appeared with Judge Meckins
and the accountants of the company, Mr. L. L. Cenant, of L. I1. Conant &
Co., 709 Sixth Avenue, New York City, and his assistant, Mr. H, Ligtermoet,
of the same company and address, At that conference 1 presented many ex-
hibits and argumenis, and I was able, with the assistanee of the accountants.
to answer many questions propounded by Mr. Johnson and the other members
of the committee. Mr. Rusch, who had heard the matter in the Income Tax
Unit, was present at the conference and was apparently greatly impressed
by the ilarge amount of additional and convineing evidence then presented.
At the conelusion of the conference representatives for the taxpayer retired
and a consultation was held between members of the committee and Mr.,
Rusch. Thereafter I was informed by Mr. Davis, of the committee, that it
had been agreed in conference to refer the entire file back to the Income Tax
Unit for further consideration there. 1 gathered the impression from conver-
sations with Mr. Davis and Mr. Rusch that the members of the committee
and Mr. Ruseh were in accord in their opinion that the taxpayer’s position
had been sustained and that Mr. Rusch was agreeable to reconsideration of
his recommendstion, not only because of the attitude of the committee but
because of a change in opinion on his part brought about by the argument and
additional data filed hefore the committee,

Under date of April 8, 1922, the Roessler & Hasslacher Chemical Co. received
a letier from the consolidated returns section advising that upon reconsidera-
tion the consolidation of Niagara Electro Chemical Co. and Perth Ambox
Chemical Works with the Roessler & Hasslacher Chemical Co. would be
granied.

The statement is made for the purpose of completing the record of the
Income Tax Unit eoncerning my participation in presenting the argument for
affiliation before the committee on appeals and review.

LAWRENCE A. BAKER.

Subscribed and sworn to hefore me thi~ 31st day of December, 1923,

C. Lamamore KELSEY,
Notary Publie, District of Columbia.

) ExHIBIT J

STATE AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, &s:

L. H, Conant and H. Ligtermoet, being du'y sworn, depose and state as
follows:
hat they have each read the atteched copy of an affidavit by Lawrence A,
Baker, of Washington, D. C., and the statements made therein, as known to
them personally, are true, and as to other statements they believe them to
be true.
L. H. CoNANT.
H. LIGTERMOET.

. Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31st day of December, 1923

AvuGUusT A. HEUSER,
Notary Public.

v
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ExuiBiT K
CONSOLIDATED RETURNS AUDIT DIVISION —TAXPAYER'S CONFERENCE

Taxpayer: Roessler &, H: slacher Chemlcal Co.

Address: New York City.

Represented by : L. A. Baker, attorney.

Credentinls : Power of attorney on file and enrollment in order.
Years involved: 1920 and 1921, '

Matter presented: The conference was arranged to consider the affiliation
of the above company with the Niagara Electro Chemical Co. and the Perth
Amboy Chemical Works for the years invelved. The companics were ruled
aftitiared for the years 1917, 1918, snd 1919, and practically the same facts
exist for the years under consideration,

The Roessler & Hasslacher Chemieal Co. owns 59 per cent of the outstanding
effective stock of the Ningara Elecetro Chemical (o, The Alien Property Cus-
todian holds 11 per cent, which has been held to be an ineffective minority,
leaving an effective minority interest of 30 per cent.

In the case of the Ierth Amboy Chemical stocks, 51 per cent only is owned by
the Roessler & Hasslacher Co,, 49 per cent is held by the Alien Property Cus-
todian, and there is, in fact, a question as to whether the Alien Property
Custodian does not hold 51 per cent,

It is shown that the Roessier & Hasslacher Co. exercised control of the two
companies through common officers and empioyees, centralization of manage-
ment, conumon use of gassets, assignment of the use of patents to the companies
withott compensation, intercompany financing, and various other relations
found in une economic unit, as set forth in Solicitor's Opivion 134,

Decision: It is held that Niagara Electre Chemical Co, should be aflil-
fated with the Roessler & Hasslacher Chemical Co, for the years 1920 and 1921
on the basis of ownership and control, forming one economice unit., In the case
of the Perth Amboy Chemical Works no affilintion is held to exist on the
grounds, first, that there is a question of 51 per cent ownership by the tax-
payer ; secondly, that in an admitted outstanding minority interest of 49 per
cent, effectual control is questionable, and a business so owned can hardly be
an economic unit,

Revised ruling letter to be mailed.

Interviewed by—

F. A. LINzEL,.
Conferce Technical Staff.

J. K. PoLxk,
Auditor Audit Section A.
L. T. LOHMANN,
Head of Division.

Dissenting.

FEBRUARY 1, 1024,
The CHAIRMAN. You may proceed with your next case, Mr. Box.

STATEMENT OF MR. GEORGE . BOX, CHIEF AUDITOR FOR THE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Box. The next case is the case of the Little Estate Corpora-
tion, New York City.

The Cuairman. Is that an inheritance-tax case?

Mr. Box. No, sir; it is an affiliation case. Tt was complained of by
Mr. Hickeya

This corporation was organized on December 28, 1916, under the
laws of the State of New York with an authorized and issued capital
of 2,400 shares of no par value stock. The corporation acquired all
of the real and personal property of the estate of Joseph J. Little,
issuing in consideration thereof 2,400 shares of its capital stock.

Its business is that of dealing in real estate and securities,
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The J. J. Little & Ives Co. was organized under the laws of the
State of New York with an authorized capital of 50,000 shares, par
value $100 each, During the year 1916 the company was authorized
to issue $1,000,000 of preferred stock, representing 10,000 shares, of
a parv value of $100 each.

I'he company is engaged in the business of printing and binding.

The St. Nicholas Seventh Avenue Theater ('o. was organized on
April 22, 1912, under the laws of the State of New York, with an
authorized capital stock of $600,000, of which $325,000 was common
and $75,000 preferred stock. The latter was issued for cash and the
common stock for good will,

Formal complaint has been filed with the committee by Daniel J.
Hickey. formerly employed in the affiliation section of the income--
tax 'unit of the Internal Revenue Buresu, in regard to the action of
the bureau in its procedure in regard to the affiliation questions in-
volved in connection with the above three named companies.

. The complainant states that the bureau ruled that these corpora-
tions were not affiliated early in 1922; that several conferences were
regularily held, and that at one of these conferences Mr. Beelunan,
taxpayer’s representative, stated that his principal, Mr. Lit¢  had
been informed by fellow club members in New York that v it he
wanted could be gotten from the Income Tax Unit if the vig . man
was secured, and therefore he had to keep coming down on confer-
ences; that after discussing the case with an employee of the affilia-
tions section, and being advised that the ruling as made was right
und should stand, L. E. Rusch, then assistant chief of the consoli-
dated returns subdivision, requested Mr. Robinson, chief of section
B, to look the case over; that Mr. Robinson found the previous ruling
yroper and advised Rusch to that effect, whereupon the latter told
obinson that Robinson “would have to give it to them” and for
Robinson to do as he was told ; that Robinson then ordered the lawful
ruling reversed, so that affiliation might be allowed, law or no law.

The complainant further states———

Senator Erxst. Whom are you quoting from?

Mr. Box. This is the complainant. Mr. Hickey has filed a com-
plaint with the committee, and this is from his complaint.

The complainant further states that the reversal of the lawful
ruling in this case created quite a lot of talk among the men on the
affiliation work: that on April 13, 1923, Mr. L. J. Potter. of the
affiliations unit of section B, came upon this case in the regular
course of his work. and as the taxpayer was raising some other ques-
tions in the case, Mr. Potter, who knew all about the corrupt reversal
made, simply reopened the whole matter again and reinstated the
lawful and correct ruling—
ﬁl%e;lator Erxst. Are you still quoting the complaint that was

ed?

Mr. Box. Yes. .

Senator ErNst. And where was the complaint filed ¢

Mr. Box. With the committee, by Mr. Hickey.

That on April 24, 1923, L. E. Rusch. above-mentioned, appeared in
Mr. Robinson’s private office (which was contrary to rules promul-
gated by Mr. Bird), and shortly thereafter Mr. Robinsen came into
the room in which Mr. Potter regularly did his work and had him
reinstate the unlawful ruling, telling Mr. Potter that it would be
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unnecessary to write the taxpayer as to the reinstatement of the
corrupt ruling, since he would tell the taxpayer’s representative.
Mr. Potter had written the taxpayer that he reinstated the legal
ruling. A copy of a complaint made by Mr. Hickey to the Com-
missioner of Internal Revenue under date of ¥ebruary 18, 1924, in
regard to this case appears as Exhibit A.

An investigation 0? the records in this case shows the following:

On March 1, 1922, the three above-named corporations were ruled
by the unit as being not afliliated, and therefore separate returns for
each corporation would be required.

On March 18, 1922, a brief was filed in protest of this ruling by the
treasurer of the taxpayer. As a result of this brief, a conference
was held on March 24, 1922, at which the taxpayer’s representative
requested the permission to file further information tending to show
that all of the stock of the three companies involved was controlled
by the same interests in the same proportion. He was informed that
final ruling would be held in abeyance, provided this information
was submittec within 30 days. (Sec Exhibit B.)

On April 3, 1922, taxpayer filed another brief, as a result of which
a conference was held on April 7, 1922. (Exhibit C.) At this
conference Mr. Beckman, the taxpayer’s attorney, was informed that
on the basis of the facts presented the above-named companies were
not affiliated during the years named. However, in view of certain
statements madce by Mr. Beekman, final ruling was held in abeyance
pending the receipt of an affidavit covering the oral information
furnished by him, which was to be filed within 30 days.

On April 8, 1922, affidavit in relation to the stock ownership of
the three corporations involved was executed and submitted to the
bureau. As a result thereof another conference was held on April
19, 1922 (Exhibit D), at which the conferees recommended that the
burean’s previous rulings be sustained. As a result of this recom-
mendation, the bureau. on May 4, 1922, again ruled the three corpora-
tions not affiliated for the years 1917, 1918, and 1919,

Another brief was, furnished by the taxpayer on June 6, 1922,
comaining additional information, as a result of which another con-
ference was held on June 26, 1922, (Exhibit E.) ‘At this confer-
ence Mr. Beekman, who appeared for the taxpayer, was advised
that the additional information submitted was insufficient to war-
rant a change in the ruling of the bureau.

On August 10, 1922, the taxpayer was advised that the bureau
reatfirmed its rulings as set forth in bureau letters of March 1, 1922,
and May 19, 1922,

Under. date of August 31, 1922, taxpayer exccuted a power of
attorney authorizing George B. Newton, former Deputy Commis-
sioner of Internal Revenue, to represent it before the Treasury
Department in this case, and as a result of this authority Mr. New-
ton, under date of September 5, 1922, addressed a letter to the
Commissioner of Internal Revenue (Exhibit F) in which he ap-
pealed from the decision of the Income Tax Unit rendered in its letter
of August 10, 1922, and requested that the entire file be sent to the
committee on appeals and review in order that the decision of the
unit might be reviewed. The committee fails to find any evidence
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in the records that Mr. Newton’s request was complied with at this
time. '

Under date of November 23, 1922, the following record appears
in the case—and I might explain to the committee that the record
of the affiliations appears on a folder about that size [indicating],
with notations made as to the action tuken on the affiliation, and a
sigmature is down on the bottom, the date of action taken is stamped
up here, and also opposite to the auditor’s name.

Senator Ernst. What conclusion do you draw from that?

Mr. Box. No conclusion at all, except when I state in this report
that a certain person wrote a memorandum, I do not say he signed
it, because his signature is not underneath the memorandum directly.

The Caamrman, But it is in his folder. :

Mr. Box. But it is on his folder, and the same date is stamped
opposite the name as is opposite the action taken, so that each
auditor, when he makes a memorandum, does not sign the memo-
randum immediately under the memorandum.

Under date of November 23, 1922, the following record appears in
the case:

Ruling reversed account stock control being vested in R. . Littie, president,
for all corporations. Class B ruling forms prepared and revised ruling letter
written to the taxpayer, care of George B, Newton.,

This memorandumn was written by L. J. Potter.

Under date of April 3, 1923, the following appears on the record:

Revised raling made November 23, 1922, was incorreet in all years, hut espe-
elally in 1917, when control of stock in class B aflilintions is not provided for.
Large divergencies and minorities also exist in other years. If case is pro-
tested again, case should go to C. on A, & R. (committee on appenls and re-
view). New ruling made of not aflilinted for 1917 to 1921, inclusive, all
companies. New ruling letter written. New forms made.

This memorandum was also written by Mr. Potter, above re-
ferred to.

On April 24, 1923, the following appears:

Ruling of 4-13-23 changed back to agree with ruling of 11-23-22 for years
1918, 1919, 1920, and 1921 by direction of the chief of section B, although in
my opinion this procedure is not in accordance with the facts in this caxe or in
accordance with law and regulations.

This memorandum was also written by Mr, Potter.

On November 26, 1923, this case was sent to the committee on ap-
peals and review by the commissioner. The committee decided the
stockholdings reported by the taxpayer disclosed no basis for affilia-
tion during any of the years from 1917 to 1921, inclusive. Copy of
this decision is made Exhibit G.

On May 31, 1924, Internal Revenue Auditor John T. Slater com-
pleted a reexamination of the three companies involved for the years
from 1917 to 1920, inclusive, which report has been audited in the
bureau and A-2 letters and certificates of overassessment have been
prepared as a result thereof, which apparently await the final exami-
nation prior to signature by the deputy commissioner.

That was the status of the case when it was called for by the om-
mittee. Final action had not been taken, and it is evident that those
letters are waiting to be sent out.

hese letters disclose the following:
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Additional Over-

Name of company Year iax assessnont
None. $168. %7
None. Noae.

None, 12,2¢4.36
None. 25,91, 22

None. None.
None. None.
None. None,.
None. Noue.
None. 5, 665. 62
None. None,
$41,678, 0 None.
59, 381. 34 None.

100, 440. 77 43, 788. 57

The net results of these proposed assessments and refunds results
in a proposed net additional tax of $56,672.20.

The Cramyax. Have you computed what you think it ougit to
be?

Mr. Grece. I think that is what he thinks it should be.

Mr. Box. That is the vesult of the letters, and I think that is cor-
rect,

The Cuameman, I would like to ask Mr. Gregg how he accounts
for so many changes in the rulings?

Mr. Greca, I think a few less considerations might have been given
to it.  However, [ think the real important thing is that we finally
reached the right result.

The Cuammax. T was wondering how many hearings a taxpayer
can get, and how many reversals he can get.

Mr. Box, The taxpayer was granted four hearings in this case
before Mr. Newton appeared.

Mr. Greca. I do not get the criticism as to this case.

Senator Krxsr. That is what I am looking for.

My, Greae. It was finally settled on the basis that the committee’s
staff seems to think is correct.

Mr. Box. Well, complaint was made as to the procedure in the
bureau by Mr. Hickey, and the records seem to substantiate his state-
ments, that there were four conferences, with the same thing held in
ench conference, and thereafter a decision was reached which was
just the opposite, although the affiliators went on record as stating
that theyv did not think the case was decided in the right way, and
after it got up to the appeals board it was decided that the original
raling was correct. :

Senator Erxst. But the taxpayer was certainly given every op-
portunity to be heard, was he not ¢

Mr. Box. Indeed, he was.

The Cramryman. There is no question about that.

Senator Erxsr. I am glad he was given a fair deal in this case.

Mr. Nasnu. This is one of the cases, Mr. Chairman, that led us to
muke the reorganization in the consolidated section that I spoke of
a few moments ago. Mr. Blair asked Mr. Hartson and I to review
the files in this case. We went over them very carefully, and dis-
covered just as Mr. Box has found out, the many reversals, and the
many changes of opinicn on the question of affiliation. We also went

92019—25—rpt 17——135
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over two' or three other cases, and found a similar condition, and
that is one of the reasons the recommendation was made to create a
separate affiliation section to consider these questions. I do not be-
lieve the same condition would exist in a case to-day. This case is
islustrative of what could happen under the old plan of organiza-

tion.
(The exhibits submitted by Mr. Box in The Little Estate Cor-
poration case are as follows:)

Exmpir A

This case stands out with striking vividness as a demonstration of arrogant
rapacity and assurance of immunity to punishment of any kind for the crime
committed. Coupled with it is an example of cowardly cooperation meriting
gupreme contempt, .

Affiliation had been denied in this case early in 1922 after consideration of
data secured from the taxpayer only affer repeated efforts culminating in
recourse to the cooperation of the internal revenue agent in charge—or, rather,
the supervising internal revenue agent. Several conferences were regularly
held, at which the taxpazyer was represented by an attorney named Edgar
Beckman, who with George V. Newton, former deputy commissioner, held the
power of attorney. The original ruling was fully reaffirmed at each con-
ference. At one of these conferences Mr., Beekman stated that while he
understood why the Government's representatives could not grant affiliation
since the law was what it was, his principal, Mr. Little had been informed
by fellow club members in New York that what he wanted could be gotten
from the Income Tax Unit if the ‘ right man” was secured, and that, there-
fore, he had to keep coming down on conferences. It seems that four or more
conferences had been held.

After discussing this case with an employee of the affiliations section and
being advised that the ruling as made was right and should stand, 1. E.
Rusch, then assistant chief of the consolidated returns subdivision, requested
Mr. Robinson to look the case over. Mr. Robinson found the previous ruling
proper and told Rusch so; whereupon Rusch told Robinson that Robinson would
* have to give it to them” and for Robinson to do as he was told. Robinson
then ordered the lawful ruling reversed so that affiliation might be allowed,
law or no law. This was in the closing days of October, 1922, just before
Rusch removed his ennobling personality from the premises of Fourteenth and
Ohio Avenue. Mr. William P. Bird was chief of the subdivision at the time.

The years 1917 to 1921 were involved in the ruling on this case and the tax-
payer desired to file a consolidated return for three corporations. The re-
versal of the lawful ruling in this case created quite & lot of talk among the
men on the affiliations work at the time and never was forgotten. On April
18, 1923, Mr. L. J. Potter, of the affilintions unit of audit section B, came upon
this case in the regular course of his work, and as the taxpayer was raising
some other questions in the case, Mr. Potter, who knew all about the corrupt
reversal mentioned, simply reopened the whole matter again and reinstated
the lawful and correet ruling. On April 24, 1923, 1. E. Rusch appeared in
Mr, Robinson’s private office (which was contrary to rules promulgated by
Mr. Bird) and shortly thereafter Mr. Robinson came into the room in which
Mr. Potter regularly did his work and had him reinstate the unlawful ruling,
telling Mr. Potter that it would be unnecessary to write the taxpayer as to
the reinstatement of the corrupt ruling since he would tell the taxpayer’s
representative. Mr. Potter had written the taxpayer when he reinstated the
legal ruling. Mr. Bird was chief of the subdivision when this happened and
Mr. Lohmann assistant chief. Mr. Bird apparently knew little about what
was done in the way of handling cases, Rusch lookin, after that part of the
work when he was there and Lohmann doing the same when he succeeded
Bright, who had succeeded Rusch. On one occasion Mr. Bird told me not to
zet mixed up in any dirty mcsses, and he also stated on the same occasion
that if anybody was getting anything around there he didn’t know it. I can
assure you that things were belng gotten, Mr., Commissioner, but I am also of
the opinion that Mr. Bird probably did not know much about the benefactions.
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After the incident on April 24, 1923, none of the men who handled aftiliations,
with perhaps an exception or two with their ownp ends to serve, tovk much
stock in Mr. Robinson. He was quite generally discredited, as was to have
been expected. Iowever, some excuses were made for him, but they involved
reflections on officials higher up, as you may surmise, It was understood
among #l1l the men in atfiliations who had been in the unit from July, 1921, at
least, that Rusch, Bright, and Lohmann were close friends and that Rebinson
was apxious to cuarry favor with that trio to get a better job, if possible,  Also,
it was thought that he was afraid of losing the job he did have, He told me
himself that it was alvight for me to ask him to reopen the Little vase, but
that it might cost bim his job. I'd like to know who he thought would bring
about that result. Ruseh couldn’t ask tor his resignation, as he no longer was
in authority in the unit-—-that is, not oflicially in authority. Still Robinson was
afraid to obey the luw and correct the evil he had wrought in this case at the-
command of Rusch, even after Potter had remedied matters by reinstating the
original lawful ruling. Who is the man Robinson was afraid of? That he was
afraid was patent to all,

Mr, Lohmann claims we were making rulings under the * liberal ” policy in
1922, The ruling in this case was made in March, 1922—the original, lawful
ruling. Still affilation was not allowed, It would seem therefore that these
people were not entitled to atfitintion under any of the policies said to have
been in force at various times. Mr, Lohmaunn is having a hard time trying to
cover up the tracks of his friends and make them lily white in epite of their
transgressions.  If he is honest, why s he so interested? Surely Bright, Rusech.
weifert, et al. would seemn to he able to take carve of themselves. Would he have
us understand that out of his love for fair play all the Iabor he is directing is
for the especial vindication, protection, and benefit of the pusillanimous chief
of audit section BB7 Mr. Robinson seems to feel that he is not being treated
exactly right, regardless.

The Little case went along to audit after the unlawful ruling had been re-
instated, but fresh caxes of favoritism came on to attract attention and hold
interest  I'wo of these cases will be taken up next under their respective
aames, These two cases, together with the Little case, may be said to have
precipitated the opening up of this whole state of affairs. Coming upor the
heely; of the reinstatement of the wnlawful ruling in the Little case—in the
nianner in which it was done, the brazen effrontery of Rusch’s tactics--these
cixes offered conclusive proof to my mind that the wolves were going to take
what they wanted in bold defiance of persons or consequences, That they had
control of the only ageuey they need fear wax too plain to be doubted. In short,
the deputy commissioner was lined up right, so why worey? Lohmann was one
of them and Robinson would have to do what e was told, as he had already
done.  (The assistant deputy commissioner is reant where deputy commis-
sioner ix mentioned in this paragraph.)

Exuisir B
CONSOLIDATED RETURNS SUBDIVISION—TAXPAYER'S CONFERENCE

Tuxpuyver: Little Estate Corporation,
Address: New York, N. Y.
Represented by ; Edgar Beckinan, attorney.

Matter presented: Taxpayer's representative protested against the ruling of
the bureau denying affiliation of the above-named company with the J. J.
Little & Ives Co. and St. Nicholas-Seventh Avenue Theater Co. during the
taxuble vears 1917, 1918, and 1919.

Mr. Beckman was informed that the additional information furnished in a
brief duted March 18, 1922, submitted prior to the conference was insufficient
to warrant a change in the previous ruling of the bureau.

No additional information wuas submitted at the conference, but the tax-
payer's representative requested permission to file further information tend-
ing to show that all the stock of the three companies involved was controlled
by the sume interests in the same proportion. He was informed that final
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ruling would be held in aheyance, provided this information was submitted
within 30 days.
Interviewed by—
W. ¥. MEHRMICH,
Teehniea? Staff.
R. 1. PETZOLD,
Affiliations Seclion,
WM. P. Birp,
Chief Consolidated Returns Subdivision.
MARCH 24, 1022,

Exmnrm ¢
CONSOLIDATED RETURNS SUBDIVISION—TAXPAYER'S (ONFERENCE

Taxpayver: Little Estate Corporation. .
Address: New York, N. Y,

Represented by @ Edgar Beekman, attorney.
Matter presented : Affiliations,

Taxpayer's representative called to ascertain whether the information fur-
nished in brief dated April 3, 1922, together with that submirted in a previous
conference would be insufficient to enable the bhureau to reconsider its ruling
denying aflilintion with J. J. Littlg & Ivex €'o. and 8t. Nicholas-Seventh Avenue
Theater Co. during the taxable years 1917, 1918, and 1919 and wmoke a ruling
covering the years 1920 and 1921, .

After a brief discussion Mr. Beckman was informed that on the basis of
the facts presented the above-named companies were not affiliated during the
vears named.  However, in view of Mr. Beekman's oral statements that some
of the stoek in the Little & Ives Co. was aequired by gift, that the stoek held
by the minority interests was ineffective, and that the stock of Margarer W,
Little was controlled by her husband, final ruling was held in abeyance pend-
ing the receipt of an atfidavit covering these points, to be filed within 30 days,

Interviewed by--

W. F. MEHRLICT,

Technical Staff.
R. L. PerzoLn,
Afiliations Scction.
W, 1M Bigw,
C‘hief Consolidnied Returns Subdivision.
ApRIN. 7, 1022,

Exuisir D
CONSOLIDATED RETURNS SUBDIVISION —TAXPAYER'S CONFERENCE

‘raxpayer : Little Estate Corporation,
Address: New York, N, Y.

Represented by : Edgar Beekman, attorney.
Matter presented: Affiliations.

A brief wis submitted by Mr. Beekman eontaining further information rela-
tive to the J. J. Little & Ives Co. for consideration in connection with the
previous ruling of the bureau denying affiliation for the taxable years 1917,
1918, and 1919 and the "action of the conferees in recommending the sus
taining of this ruling and also denying affiliation for 1920 and 1921 at the
conference held on April 7, 1922, .

As the additional information submitted is considered Insufficient to warrant
a reversal of the previous rulings mude for the years under consideration, it is
recommended that the bureaw’s previous rulings be sustained. Taxpayer should
be advised accordingly.

Interviewed by—
W. F. MEHRLICH,

Techrical Staff.
R. L. PET20LD,
Affiliations.
Wa. I'. Bigrp,
Chicf Consolidated Returns Subdivision.
ArriL 19, 1022,
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Exxinr E
CONSBOLIDATED RETURNS SUBDIVISION—TAXPAYER'S CONFERENCE

Tuxpayer: Little Estate Corporation.
Address: New York, N. Y,
Represented by 1 Edgar Beekman, attorney.

Matter presenied: Propriety of including the J. J. Little & Ives Co. and St
Nicholas-Reventh Avenue Theatre Co. in a consolidated return with the above-
named company during each of the taxable years 1917, 1918, 1910, 1920, and
10921,

The burenn had previeusly ruled that these companies were not afliliated
during the years under consideration.

A brlef was filed prior to this conference submitting additional information,
which was given eareful study and consideration,

After a brief dizcussion taxpayer's representative was advised that the addi-
tional information submitted was insuflicient to warrant a change in the ruling
of the bureau, He requested that taxpayer be advised of the bureau's decision,

Interviewed by—

W. I', MEHRLICH,
Technical Stajf.
R. L. PETzoLD,
Affiliations KScetion,

JuUxg 26, 1922,

Dxnme F

New York, September 5, 1922,
The CoMMISBIONEK OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D. C.

Sik: The undersigned, duly authorized attorney in fact, appeals from the
decision of the Income Tax Unit rendered in its letter dated August 10, 1922,
in which it was held that the J. J. Little & Ives Co, Little Extate Corporation,
and St. Nicholas-Seventh Avenue Theatre Co. were not aflilinted within the
meaning of the income tax law for the years 1917 to 1920, inclusive.

It ix respectfully requested that the entire file be sent to the committee on
appeals and review in order that the decision of the Income Tax Unit may be
reviewed.

Respectfully submitted.

Geo. V. NEWTON,

Exuiritr G

COMMITTEE ON APPEALS AND REVIEW,
December 6, 1923.
In re: Little Estate Corporation, J. J. Little & Ives Co., St. Nicholas-Seventh

Avenue Theater (o,

Mr. CoMMISSIONER: Replyving to your memorandum of November 26, 1923, in
reference to the above taxpayers and the propriety of the afiilintion proposed
by the unit, I desire to report that the file has been examined by a member of
the committee and that the examination discloses that the affiliation claimed
is a so-called class B affiliation, the contention being that substantially all the
stock is ow..ed or controlled, directly or indirectly, by certain members of the
Little family. The Little Estate Corporation, herinafter ealled Company
No. 1, is a corporation organized for the purpose of holding the property ac-
quired hy the several heirs of J, J. Little in accordance with the provisions of
his will, that property consixting in the main ot certain shares of stock in the
second and third companiex named above and a parcel of real estate occupied
under a lease by the second company named above. J. J. Little & Ives Co,,
hereinafter called Company No. 2, earries on the business of printing and book-
binding in a building leased by it from the Little Estate Corporation,  St,
Nicholas-Seventh Avenue Theatre (o, hereinafter referred to as Company
No. 3, owns and leases a building in which are located a theater and several
stores,
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"

The following tabulations will show the percentages of stockholdings during
the ceveral years invelved, all stock of Companics Nos, 2 and 3 held by Com-
puny No, 1 being allocated as owned by the several individuals concerned on
thie basis of their stockholdings in Company No. 1, in arccordance with familiar
principles, and certain shares in Company No. 2 piedged during the years 1917,
1018, and 1919 to the aceeptance corporation as collateral security for a loan
being treated as owned aud confrolled by the pledgoers.  Stockholder No. 1 iy
the widow of J. J. Little, stockholders Nos. 2, 3, 4, and § are sons and daugh-
ters of J. J, Little, and stockholder No. 6 is the wife of stockholder No. 2.

January 1, 1917, to February 17, 1920

e e e - -

(Company Company|Compuany
No.1 No.2 No. 3

D U R N 7 L L U R | . 23.3
2.0A, W Littde ... ... ... 16,7
3. E. L. Williams ___........ 10
4. R D Litlle....o.ocovivioans 10
5 L.S. Thompson. .._.......... - 6.7
6. M. W. Little_ ... X 20.8
7. Outside INOrests. oo iiiniesae ety I, ! L 12,5
100

Company|Company
No. 2 No.3

14.1 3.3
2.9 16.7

p2] 10

22 10
1.7 6.7
.......... 20.8
3 12.5

100 100

1 Substantially all the 27.8 per cent interest in Company No. 2 held by outside interests from January
1, 1017, to February 17, 1920, was acquired by Company No. 1, prior to December 31, 1920, as follows:
720 shares, or 15.2 per cent, on Fehruary 17, 1929; 80 shares, or 1.7 per cent, on October 13, 1920; 253 shares,
or 5.3 per cent, on September 23, 1920; 252 shares, or 5.3 per cent, on October 13, 1920,

As of December 31, 19211

Company Company|Company
No. 1 No, 2 No.3

1. J. R, Little a5 14,1 23,3
2. AW, Little._ .. 5 . 20,9
3. E. L. Willinms i 10
4, R. D, Little.___. 10
5. L. W, Thompson 6.7
6, M. W, Little. ... 16.6
7. Outside interests. 12,8
100

1 The only change as compared with December 31, 1920, is in the holdings of stockholders Nos. 2 and 6
(husband and wife) in Company No. 3.

In the opinion of the committee the forgoing stockholdings dixclose no basis
for afliliation during any of the years involved. Where afliliation depends
upon common ownership by the same interests rather than upon ownership
of a subsidiary. by a parent company, section 1331 of the 1921 act, governing
1017, requires that substantially all the stock of the several corporations
shall be owned by the same interests and the 1918 statute, section 240, requires
that substantially all the stock of the several corporations shall be owned or
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controlled by the same Interests. Furthermore, article 633 of Regulations 45
provides:

wx & & The words ‘the same interests’ shall be deemed to mean the
stime individual or partnership or the same individuals or partnerships, but
when the stock of two or more corporations is owned or controlled by two or
more individuals or by two or more partuershipd a consolidated return is not
required unless the percentage of stock held by each individual or each part-
nership is substantially the same in each of the affilinted corporations.”

Finally, the same article, article 633 of Regulations 45, xeems to construe
the phrase *“substantially all the stock” as meaning substantiaily all the
voling stock, Regulations 62 repeat these provisions of Regulations 40,

In the foregoing tabulations there has been included onls coting stock,
consistently with the provision of Artiele 633 lust referred i Inasmuch,
however, as there may be some question whether this lmitation 1s justified,
it should be noted that the only stock excluded is the preferred stock of
Company No. 2, and that if the holdings of such stock were included along
with the common stock of that company the committee's conclusion would not
be affected.

So far as concerns the years 1917, 1918, and 1919, deninl of affiliation 1is
Justified by the existence of a minority interest in Companies Nos, 2 and 3
of 298 per cent and 12,0 per cent, respectively. 8o far as concerns 1920 and
1921, denial of affilintion is justitied by the marked diserepancy in the pro-
portionate stockholdings of the several individuals, Thus, stockholder No, 1
has a 35 per cent interest in Company No. 1 as agalnst an interest of only
14.1 per cent in Company No. 2, whereas, on the other hand. stockholders 2,
3. and 4 have a combined interest in Company No. 2 of 74 per cent as against,
a combined interest in Company No. 1 of 55 per cent. As to Company No.
3 for 1920 and 1921, the outside interests of 12,5 per cent continue, s8s doex
also a substantial holding by stockholder No, 6, an individual not interested
at all in Companies Nos. 1 and 2,

The unit has doubtless been largely influenced in its decision to permit
affiliation by the famlily relationships of the individual stockholders concerned.
However, the control referred to by the statutory provisions has been con-
strued by the department to mean legal control, not moral control, and in the
committee’s opinion this construction is correct. There has, however, long
been an inclination to give weight to considerations tending toward the estab-
lishment of a mere moral control, such as family relationships, relationships
of donor and donee, relationships of employer and employee, the existence
of an option to purchase, ete. The committee believes that the statute affords
no justification for this procedure and decisions to that effect have not been
promulgated. (See 8, I. M. 2776; A. R. R. 942 (I-1 C. B. 298) ; A. R. R. 1231;
A. R R, 1398; A, R. R. 2164, ‘

It must, however, be conceded that the depariment’s rulings as to the cir-
cumstances under which corporations are afiiliated have bheen far from uni-
form. There has, for example, been a very marked disposition to construe
the phrase ‘ substantially all the stock” as affected not only by the consid-
erations referred to above but particularly as affected by intercompany rela-
tionships., The result has been that there has been considerable divergence
in the stock percentages which have been treated by the department as consti-
tuting “ substantially all.” The committee as at present constituted is inclined
to agree with those rulings which give a minimum welght to those collateral
considerations, (1. B. M. 43, A. R. R, 700, A, R, R, 1056, A. R. R. 2534, A. R. R.
3050, AL R, R. 3113, A, R, R, 2958, 8. 1. M. 3836.) The decision in A, R. R.
&5 (I-1 €, B. 413). upon which the taxpayer reliex, is considered by the
committee as at present constituted to be erroneous, The committee is also
inclined to dissent from certain implications of the language used in A. R, R.
378 and A. R. R. 448. ITowever, the decisions in the two recommendations
last named were correctly against affilintion, and while the decision in A, R. R.
835 was in favor of affiliation the facts in that case were co unlike those in
the instant ease that the decision would not be controlling, even assuming it
to he correct.

Cuasrres D, HAMEL,
Chairman Committee on Appeals and Review.

The Cramman. Have you any further cases ready for presenta-

tion this morning. Mr. Box?
Mr, Box. That is sll, Mr. Chairman.
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The CuarzmMan. Mr. Manson is sick. He bas a high temperature
to-day, and he will not probably be here to-viorrow, or perhaps this
week. I am just wondering whether or no¢ we had better adjourn
now until the call of the chair, until we see what his condition is.

Senator Ernst. Have you any other work that we can continue
with? If you have, I think it would be advisable for us to finish
that up; but, of course, that is at the pleasure of the chairman.

The Cuansran. Mr. Box, of course, has simply dug out informa-
tion, and he has not prepared himself the sume as Mr. Manson has
for the presentation of the cases. 1 have gone over these cases my-
self, and some of these points have not been brought out by Mr.
Box, because of his unfamiliarity with the presentation of these
cases, and not having informed himself for that purpose he is not
prepared himself to present these cases, but I have just asked him to
fill in while Mr. Manson is ill. I doubt if we can keep this up
indefinitely. . -

Do you want to make any comments, Mr, Gregg?

Mr. Grege. No, sir. 'We will very shortly have some matter that
we would like to put in.

The Cramstan. Yes.

Mr. Greco. We can get in touch with you at that time, if you
will give us the opportunity.

The Cramman. Then, we had better adjourn now subject to the
call of the chair.

(Whereupon, at 11.45 o’clock a. m., the committee adjourned sub-
ject to the call of the Chair.)
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MONDAY, MAY 11, 1825

UNITED STATES SENATE,
SPECIAL COMMITTEE T0 INVESTIGATE
THE BUreav or INTERNAL Revesve, %
Washington, D. C.

The committee met at 10 o’clock a. m., pursuant to adjournment
of Friday, May 8, 1925.

Present: Senators Couzens (presiding), Watson, Ernst, and Jones
of New Mexico.

Present also: Mr. L. C. Manson, counsel for the commttee, and
Mr. L. I1. Parker, chief engineer for the committee.

Present on behalf of the Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mr, C. R.
Nash, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, and Mr.
A, W, Gregg, solicitor, Burean of Internal Revenue. -

The Cruamman. T understood, Mr, Nash, that yon wanted to take
up something with the committee this morning about some request
that Mr. Parker has made?

Mr. Nasn. Senator, Mr. Parker and Mr. Thomas have requested
duplicate copies of engineer reports and duplicate copies of tax-
payers’ briefs, together with other papers, of such nature as ave in
the files of certain cases that Mr. Thomas is now working on.

I discussed the matter with Mr. Gregg, and there was seme ques-
tion in our minds as to whether the furnishing of those papers after
June 1 will be in keeping with the resolution which was passed con-
tinuing this committee. The papers are a part of the files of the
cases, although engineer’s reports are usually submitted in duplicate
and triplicate. Sometimes there is more than one copy in the file of
the case,

Mr. Parker stated that they were asking for these duvlicates,
rather than asking for photostats, because 1t was quite a physical
job to photostat these files, and they thought they might as well
work from carbon copies as from photostats.

The reason I wanted to bring it to the attention of the committee
was to determine whether or not that was in accordance with the
desires of the committee, and to give the committee an opportunity
to pass upon whether or not it would be in keeping with the spirit
of the resolution,

The Cramymax. From a practical standpoint, what would he the
difference whether we had those copies or whether we took the orvigi-
nals between now and June 1 and made copies? There is nothing
to prevent our doing that as I understand the resolution. Is there?

92919—25-—p1 17~——16 3551
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Mr. Nasu. I believe that from now until June 1 the committee
has a right to take any papers they want, and may take copies of
them if they so, desire.

The Cuairman. I thought that that was the practical side of it,
and T thought that Mr. Parker had approached it in a practical way,
but, of course, if you want to be overexact, perhaps you are correct
in that we could not have those copies.

Mr. Nasu. I do not desire to be over exact. I just want to bring
the situation to the attention of the committee before we act, Senator.

The Crramryan. Mr. Parker, will you tell the committee, if you
wHl, just what you want us to have? I do not know just what it is
that Mr. Parker now is asking for.

Mr. Parker. We are making a rather complete study of the ques-
tion of amortization. I think it is fdir on the part of the bureau to
let us have as much information on that as they can. We want to
know how much amortization was allowed in these cases, and on
what basis it was allowed, etc. That is all contained in the engineers’
reports.

Ig‘aome six weeks ago Mr. Thomas, in examining the files, noticed
that there were oftentimes as many as four copies, but sometimes
only two. He took the matter up with Mr. Keenarn, the head of the
amortization section, and also with Mvr. Rashleigh, the head of the
production division, who furnishes us the papers, and they both
agreed that it would be all right. However, recently—within the
last week—they began to feel that they did not have authority to do
that, and they probably are right, so they referred it to Mr. Green-
idge. Mr, Greenidge told us that our request was a practical thing,
bat he wanted to refer to Mr. Nash, and I wrote Mr. Nash a letter
explaining what we wanted. However, we have been working under
the idea that we could have those, and of course those papers would
be ultimately returned to the bureau. We have no use for them after
we have drawn off the necessary information. There were a great
many of these reports; I think around 350 of them.

Mr. Grece. There is this thought that occurs to me, Mi. Chair-
man : We have authcrity to disclose data in reference to returns only
in certain cases, in specified cases, and one of those cases is under
the proper authority of the committee investigating the bureau.
I think it is clear that the resolution technically does not permit the
withdrawal of those papers. They are original papers, and, tech-
nically, it does not permit their withdrawal and retention by the
committee. The reason we raised the point at all was because we
doubted our authority to comply with the request.

The CrairmaN. You mean to do it after June 1¢

Mr. Grege. Yes; to submit those papers or to allow them to be
kept for more than two weeks after June 1, because as a practical
matter there is no difference m the world, as you can see, between
our having originals and copying them or in having the photostats,
{)ut technically there is a little difterence. However, if the committee
thinks that that difference should be waived I understand that Mr.
Nash is agreeable to it.

Mr. Nasu. I am agreeable to it, but I did not want to take the
action alone. ‘

Mr. Parker. There is a question as to what sre called original
papers. There are often two with the case, or at least one with the
audit part of it, and then there may be two or three in the engineer’s

f
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files, which are separate files. Oftentimes the engineer has an un-
signed cogy in his desk. Are all of those official papers of the de-
partment?

Mr. Grece. I think so. I think they are. It seems to me that
everything in the file of a case is a part of the original record.

'I‘l):e CramryaN. Just what has delayed the securing of those
papers from six weeks ago until some few days ago?

Mr. Parker. We have the papers, Senator. It is simply a matter
of taking them out of the bureau; that is all.

The Caammax. Oh, they have furnished them?

Mr. Parker. We have the majority of the papers. We have 90
per cent of them, I should say.

The Crarman. So far as the chairman is concerned. he does not
want to ask the bureau to violate the law or the spirit of the resolu-
tion, or the terms of it, and if the bureau wants to insist that they
be returned, we will have to proceed and take copies of them; that
is all. '

Mr. Grece. I do not think we are taking that position, Mr, Chair-
man. We might ask Mr. Manson what he thinks of the question.
The question is whether we are justified in allowing the committee
to take copies of engineers’ reports and similar documents, where
there are duplicates in the files, to take them and keep them, not
subject to the two weeks’ rule as contained in the resolution.

Mr. Manson. The law provides that we can make copies. If a
copy has already been made and the paper is not an original
paper, it can not be, of course, even copied. It is just a duplication
of expense to make copies.

Mr. Greea. As a practical matter that is perfectly true. 1 am
rather inclined to think that every paper in our file is an original
paper. I think the term “original papers” as used in the resolution
15 to distinguish our papers from papers compiled by the comm ttee
staff from our records.

Senator Ernst, It is used in the sense of papers which belong to
the department?

Mr. Greee. Yes; that is the way I would construe it, but as a
practical matter it is perfectly true that the sa.ne results can be
reached with less expense by the committee taking the duplicates.

The CHaRMAN. So far as I an concerned. I will leave it with the
bureau to decide. It is a question of whether thev want to go to the
exgense of making the copies or of keepiug the copies in the burean.

Mr. Nasn. Senator., the wayv we looked at it was that the Senate
resolution is luw as far as we are concerned, and we are obliged to
follow it and ve want to follow it, but we want to follow it with as
little inconvenience to ourselves and to the committee as possible.
We do not want to violate it one way or the other. end I told Mr.
Parker and Mr. Thomas on Saturday that so far as Mr. Gregg and
myself are concerned, at least, we were perfectly agrecable to per-
mitting the members of the staff to take these papers after June 1,
but I did not think we ought to assume full responsibility for those
papers leaving the department without at least putting the facts
before the committee and getting an expression from the committee
on it.
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The Cuarrman. I do not know what Senator Ernst thinks about
it, but I think we ought to proceed in a practical way and save the
Government as much expense as possible. TIf the burcau wants to
insist upon it, why. we will proceed along the line of taking our own
copies, but I understand that if the bureau and the committee agree
you will let us have the copies. TIs that the idea?

Mr. Nasu. I would suggest this, Senator, on that: We ought to
schedule the copies and obtain a receipt from Mr. Parker or Mr.
Thomas, or whoever receives them. and we will hold that individual
responsible for the return of them to the files when the committee is
through with them.

Senator Ernst. Of course, you will always have either the original
or the duplicate ? .

Mr. Nasin. We will retain the original in the file, but we would
not want these papers to be scattered around so that they might get
into the channels where they should not go.

Mr. Maxnson, T will receipt for them and will be responsible for
them.

The Crammax. I have a matter that T brought down with me,
because I thought Mr. Manson was going to be a little later than he
has been. '

In considering the cases of the United States Graphite Co. and
the New Jersey Calcite Co., I think that their reply was that these
cases were closed and that they were not going to reopen them. The
question presented to me was, what will be the bureau’s position
with regard to future depletion rates, now that they have been called
to their attention? In other words, if the bureau takes the position
that the cases that we examined are closed. and they do not waut to
reopen them, the question here continues in succeeding years as to
the depletion rate. I think the committee would like to know
whether or not the bureau is going to continue to use this depletion
rate, which we all seemed to agree was not complete at the time,
and the bureau took the position that they do not want to reopen it.
There should be some definite information as to whether vou are
going to continue these depletion rates in succeeding years.

Mr. Grece. Mr. Nash and T have discussed that question between .
oyrselves, Mr. Chairman, and the conclusion we reached was this,
not only with respect to those two cases but with respect to other
cases in which we now question the judgment of the men who settled
them: It is our opinion that for the vears that are not closed the
matter should be considered as a fresh matter: it should be considered
de novo and decided on its merits, irrespective of what was done for
prior vears,

The Cramryax. Then, as I understand it. vou tell the committee
that you will reexamine the question of depletion and apply your
new decision, if a new decision is reached, for years succeeding those
that are closed?

Mr. Gregi. Yes,

Senator Erxst. What do you mean by a “ new decision *?

The Cuamyan. On the question of depletion. The question of a
depletion rate was raised n those two c¢ases that I have just re-
ferred to.

Senator Ervst, Yes,
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The Caaryax. And there seemed to be an agreement between the
bureau and the committee staff that the former depletion rates were
subject to criticism, at least. The bureau now states that they are
going to reexamine this depletion rate and apply it to years not yet
closed.

Senator Warsox, Does that mean ihe adoption of 4 different
formula?

Mr. Grece. Not necessarily at all, Tt means that we will consider
the unclosed years de novo on the question of depletion. Of course,
it is possible that we may reach the same conclusion, )

Senator Warson. Does that mean with reference to particular
cases or the whole subject matter?

Mr. Grece. We were talking about cases that were called to our
attention by the committee.

The Cuamman. Because their answer to that was that the cases
were closed, and they did not want to reopen them.

Senator WarsoN. Yes.

The CHamyMan. And I raise the question whether, if they were
closed improperly, they were going to continue to be dealt with in
succeeding years improperly. The bureau answers that they are
going to l'eop\en that point which is under discussion.

Now, Mr. Manson, yvou may proceed.

Senator Warsox, Is there a consensus of ‘the competent on the
subject of depletion with reference to mines and oil wells, or is
there such a diversity and variety of opinion among the skilled that
you can not say that any definite conclusion has ever been reached ?

" Mr. Gerge. I think it will be agreed that if you put 10 expert
witnesses on the stand on the question of valuation of a mine you
will probably get 10 different answers, if they did not consult before,
and the range of their answers would be very broad. However,
there are some conclusions that you can tell were wrong, or, rather,
in which the judgment used was not sound. .

Mr. Maxsox. But some landmarks of principle might be tied to.

Mr. Greae. Yes, '

(At 11.20 o’clock a. m. the committee adjourned.)
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UNITED STATES SENATE,
SPECIAY, COMMITTEE TO INVESTIGATE
THE BUREAU oF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D. C.

The coramittee met at 10 o’clock a. m., pursuant to adjournment.

Present: Senators Couzens (presiding), Watson, Ernst, Jones of
New Mexico, and King.

Present also: Mr. L. C. Manson, counsel for the committee.

Present on behalf of Bureau of Internal Revenue: Mr. C. R.
Nash, assistant to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, and Mr.
A. W. Gregg, solicitor Bureau of Internal Revenue.

The CuaigkMan. You may proceed, Mr. Manson, if you are ready.

Mr. Maxso~. I want to call the attention of the committee to
some phases of the question of the tax on capital gains and the de-
duction of capital losses. This is a matter which, in my judgment,
demands the serious consideration of Congress.

Up to the present time the tax on capital gains has resulted in a
very large net loss to the Government, particularly in the case of
incomes in the high-tax brackets.
